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$65,250,000
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS
REFUNDING SERIES 2008B (NON-AMT)

Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington (the “District”) is providing this
Supplement, dated March 25, 2013 (this “Supplement”), amending and supplementing the Remarketing
Memorandum, dated February 20, 2013 (the “Original Remarketing Memorandum” and together with this
Supplement, the “Remarketing Memorandum”), of the District relating to the outstanding Public Utility
District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington, Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series
2008B (Non-AMT) (the “2008B Bonds™). Except as otherwise set forth in this Supplement, all
capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein have meanings set forth in the Original
Remarketing Memorandum.

2008B Credit Facility

After the date of the Original Remarketing Memorandum, the District and Union Bank, N.A. (the
“Bank”™) agreed to revise certain provisions of the 2008B Credit Facility, including provisions relating to
the Event of Termination, certain of the Events of Default and the Suspension Event, such revisions to be
effective on April 24, 2013 (the “Effective Date”). On March 25, 2013, the District provided notice of
such revisions to the Trustee to be forwarded to The Depository Trust Company, as the registered owner
of the 2008B Bonds, and also on the Electronic Municipal Market Access system maintained by the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. Any owners of the 2008B Bonds who desire to do so for any
reason may elect to exercise their demand purchase rights pursuant to the 2008B Supplemental Resolution
prior to the Effective Date.

To reflect the revisions to the 2008B Credit Facility, the description of the 2008B Credit Facility
in the Original Remarketing Memorandum under the heading “THE BANK AND THE 2008B CREDIT
FACILITY—The 2008B Credit Facility—FEvents of Default’ and appearing on pages 23 through 25
thereof is revised to read as follows. Additions are shown in double underscore italics, and deletions are

shown in strikethrough.
Events of Default

Event of Termination. The 2008B Credit Facility provides that it will be an “Event of
Termination” if the Rating Agencies (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) shall (i) reduce their long-
term unenhanced ratings assigned to the 2008B Bonds or any other Bonds (as further defined in the
2008B Credit Facility and for purposes of this section of this Remarketing Memorandum, “Parity Bonds™)
below Investment Grade (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility), or (ii) suspend or withdraw their long-

term ratings assigned to the 2008B Bonds or any Parity Bonds ether—than—as—a—result-of(A)-debt

for credit related reasons.
Events of Default Resulting in Immediate Termination. Each of the following events
constitutes an “Event of Default” under the 2008B Credit Facility:



(a) the District shall fail to pay when due any principal or interest on the 2008B
Bonds or any Credit Facility Provider Bond (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) (other than a failure

to pay any 2008B Bonds or Credit Facility Provider Bonds which have been accelerated pursuant to the
terms of the 2008B Credit Facility and other than such principal or interest which is part of the Purchase

Price (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) of any Tendered Bonds); or

(b) the District shall fail to pay when due (whether by scheduled maturity, required

prepayment or acceleration) any Parity Bonds (subjeet-to-certain-execeptions-contained-in-the 2008B
CreditFaetlity other than as a result of a failure to pay any Parity Bonds which have been accelerated

ursuant to the terms of a letter of credit, credit agreement, liquidity facility or other similar instrument
related to any such Parity Bonds) or any interest thereon, and such failure shall continue beyond any
applicable period of grace specified in any underlying resolution, indenture, contract or instrument
pursuant to which such Parity Bonds have been issued; or

(©) one or more final, nonappealable money judgments against the District payable
from the Revenues which, individually or in the aggregate, equal or exceed $20,000,000 shall remain
unpaid, unstayed, undischarged, unbonded or undismissed for a period exceeding the later of (i) that
permitted by State law and (ii) sixty (60) days; or

(d) the District shall (i) commence any case, proceeding or other action under any
existing or future law of any jurisdiction relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or relief of
debtors, seeking to have an order for relief entered with respect to it, or seeking to adjudicate it as
bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, winding up, liquidation,
dissolution, composition or other relief with respect to it or its Debts (as defined in the 2008B Credit
Facility); or (ii) commence any case, proceeding or other action seeking appointment of a receiver,
trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for all or any substantial part of its assets, or make a
general assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or (iii) have commenced against it any case, proceeding
or other action of a nature described in clause (i) above which (A) results in an order for such relief or in
the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official, or (B) remains undismissed,
undischarged or unbonded for a period of sixty (60) days; or (iv) take any action in furtherance of, or
indicating its consent to, approval of, or acquiescence in, any of the acts summarized in clauses (i), (ii),
(iii) or (iv) of this paragraph (d); or (v) become insolvent within the meaning of Section 101(32) of the
United States Bankruptcy Code; or

(e) any provision of the 2008B Credit Facility, the 2008B Bonds or the Resolution
relating to (i) the obligation of the District to pay, when due, the principal or interest payable on the
2008B Bonds or any Parity Bonds or (ii) the Lien (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) on or pledge
of the Revenues securing the 2008B Bonds or any Parity Bonds shall (A) cease to be valid and binding on
the District or shall be declared to be null and void, invalid or unenforceable as the result of a final
nonappealable judgment by any federal or state court or as a result of any legislative or administrative
action by any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the District, or (B) be repudiated or

otherwise denied by an authorized officer of the District in writing; or

® a debt moratorium or comparable extraordinary restriction on repayment of debt
shall have been declared or announced by the District (whether or not in writing) or any governmental
authority with appropriate jurisdiction in a finding or ruling with respect to the 2008B Bonds or all Parity
Bonds.

Events of Default not Resulting in Immediate Termination or Suspension. Each of
the following will constitute an “Event of Default” under the 2008B Credit Facility:



(a) Misrepresentation. Any material representation made by the District under the
2008B Credit Facility shall prove to be untrue in any material respect on the date as of which it was made;
or

(b) Non Payment of Fees. The District shall fail to pay any amounts when due
under the 2008B Credit Facility or the Fee Agreement (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) (other
than those described in paragraph (a) under the subheading “—Events of Default Resulting in Immediate
Termination” above) which failure is not remedied within ten (10) business days after the Trustee and the
District have received written notice thereof from the Bank; or

(©) Certain Breaches. The District shall breach any of the terms or provisions of
certain covenants in the 2008B Credit Facility, subject to certain qualifications therein; or

(d) Other Breaches. The District shall breach any other terms or provisions of the
2008B Credit Facility which breach is not remedied within thirty (30) days after the District has received
written notice thereof from the Bank; or

(e) Invalidity. Any material provision of the 2008B Credit Facility or any Related
Document (other than as described in paragraph (e) under the subheading “—FEvents of Default Resulting
in Immediate Termination™ above) shall at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on the
District or shall be declared to be null and void, or the validity or enforceability thereof shall be contested
by the District or by any governmental authority having jurisdiction; or

® Cross Default. The occurrence of any “event of default” by the District (after
giving effect to any applicable cure period) as defined in the Resolution (which is not waived pursuant to
the terms thereof) which is not otherwise described under this subheading, “Events of Default not
Resulting in Immediate Termination or Suspension,” which would permit the acceleration of any Parity
Bonds, other than the failure of the Bank to provide funds for the purchase of Tendered Bonds when
required by the terms and conditions of the 2008 B Credit Facility; or

(2) Other Debt. The District shall default in the payment of or performance under
any Debt in a principal amount of $20,000,000 or more, and such default permits the acceleration of the
payment of such principal; or

(h) Swap Contracts. The District shall default in the payment of any amount under
any Swap Contract (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) and such default causes a termination of the
Swap Contract and gives rise to an obligation of the District to make a termination payment aggregating
in excess of $20,000,000.

Suspension Event. The 2008B Credit Facility provides that it will be a “Suspension
Event” under the 2008B Credit Facility if there shall have been commenced against the District any case,
proceeding or other action under the United States Bankruptcy Code seeking to adjudicate it as bankrupt
or insolvent, or seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, winding up, liquidation, dissolution,
composition or other relief with respect to it under the United States Bankruptcy Code, which remains
undismissed, undischarged or unbonded and fewer than sixty (60) days shall have elapsed from the
commencement of such case, proceeding or other action.

2013 Payment Agreement

After the date of the Original Remarketing Memorandum, the District exercised its right to
voluntarily terminate the forward-starting 2013 Payment Agreement with Goldman Sachs Mitsui Marine



Derivative Products, L.P. (the “GSMMDP?”), effective as of March 14, 2013. The District made a
termination payment to GSMMDP in the amount of $9,392,000 from available funds, which amount
reflects the then-market value of the 2013 Payment Agreement to GSMMDP. The District elected to
terminate the 2013 Payment Agreement because the District no longer intends to issue the refunding
Bonds originally expected to be issued in 2013 and associated with the 2013 Payment Agreement, as the
Senior Consolidated System Bonds the District had intended to refund with such Bonds have previously
been refunded for debt service savings. See page 77 of the Original Remarketing Memorandum under the
heading “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Consolidated System Payment Agreements—2013 Payment
Agreement” for additional information regarding the 2013 Payment Agreement.
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The Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2008B (Non-AMT) of Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington
(the “District”) are being remarketed in the principal amount of $65,250,000 (the “2008B Bonds”). The proceeds of such remarketing,
together with other available funds of the District, will be applied to pay the Purchase Price of the District’s outstanding 2008B Bonds upon
the mandatory tender thereof for purchase. The 2008B Bonds will be remarketed as variable rate bonds that bear interest at a Weekly Interest
Rate, but may be converted at the option of the District, subject to certain restrictions, to bonds that bear interest at different rates. The
Weekly Interest Rate for the 2008B Bonds will be determined by Barclays Capital Inc., as Remarketing Agent for the 2008B Bonds.

So long as Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), is the registered owner of the 2008B Bonds, individual
purchases will be made in book-entry form in authorized denominations, and purchasers of the 2008B Bonds will not receive certificates
representing their interests in the 2008B Bonds. Payments of principal and Purchase Price of, and premium, if any, and interest on the 2008B
Bonds are to be paid to purchasers by DTC through DTC Participants (defined herein). U.S. Bank National Association (the “Trustee”) serves
as Trustee for the 2008B Bonds.

The principal and Purchase Price of and, premium, if any, and interest on the 2008B Bonds are payable solely from and secured by the
applicable accounts within the 2008B Bond Fund, the 2008B Reserve Account and Revenues of the Consolidated System pledged to such funds
and from amounts on deposit in any sinking fund established for the 2008B Bonds, all as provided in the Master Resolution, as amended and
supplemented, including by the 2008B Supplemental Resolution (as defined herein). The 2008B Bonds are issued subject to (1) the prior lien
on Revenues of the Senior Consolidated System Bonds and the obligation of the District to deposit Revenues in the bond funds established by
the Senior Consolidated System Resolution with respect thereto and (2) the parity lien on Revenues of the Bonds (as defined in the Resolution)
heretofore and hereafter issued pursuant to the Resolution (defined herein) and of any Payment Agreement Payments in respect of any
Payment Agreements (as defined in the Resolution) heretofore or hereafter entered into with respect to a Series of Bonds on a parity basis.
See “SECURITY FOR THE 2008B BONDS.”

The 2008B Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption and mandatory tender for purchase as described
herein.

The 2008B Bonds are special limited obligations of the District and are not obligations of the State of Washington or any political
subdivision thereof, other than the District. Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of the District, the State of Washington or
any political subdivision thereof, are pledged to the payment of principal or Purchase Price of or premium, if any, or interest on the 2008B
Bonds.

The 2008B Bonds are being remarketed in connection with the replacement of the existing Standby Bond Purchase Agreement with
respect to the 2008B Bonds, which expires on March 7, 2013. Following the mandatory tender and remarketing of the 2008B Bonds on
March 6, 2013, and while the 2008B Bonds bear interest at a Weekly Interest Rate, the payment of the Purchase Price of 2008B Bonds that are
tendered or deemed tendered for purchase but not remarketed are payable, subject to certain conditions, from amounts to be made available
under a Standby Bond Purchase Agreement, to be dated as of March 1, 2013 (the “2008B Credit Facility”), by and among the District, the
Trustee and Union Bank, N.A. (the “Bank”).

l‘ UnionBank

The 2008B Credit Facility will be in effect from and after the remarketing of the 2008B Bonds through March 2, 2016, unless earlier
terminated or extended as described herein. Under certain circumstances, the 2008B Credit Facility may be suspended or terminated as
further described herein. See “THE BANK AND THE 2008B CREDIT FACILITY—The 2008B Credit Facility.”

On June 3, 2009, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel, delivered an opinion that, based upon an analysis of then-existing
laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and compliance
with certain covenants, interest on the 2008B Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) and Title XIII of the Tax Reform Act of 1986. Bond Counsel further opined that interest on the
2008B Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual and corporate alternative minimum taxes, nor is it included
in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Bond Counsel expressed no opinion regarding
any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the 2008B Bonds. In connection
with the execution and delivery of the 2008B Credit Facility, Bond Counsel will be delivering an opinion to the effect that the execution and
delivery of the 2008B Credit Facility, in and of itself, will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the 2008B Bonds from gross income
for federal income tax purposes. The opinion of Bond Counsel delivered in connection with the original issuance of the 2008B Bonds has not
been updated as of the date of this Remarketing Memorandum, and Bond Counsel is not rendering any opinion or expressing any view as to
the current exclusion of interest on the 2008B Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes. See “TAX MATTERS.” A copy of the
proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix F.

This cover page is not intended to be a summary of the terms of, or the security for, the 2008B Bonds. Investors are advised to read the
Remarketing Memorandum in its entirety to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.

This Remarketing Memorandum describes the 2008B Bonds only while such 2008B Bonds are in a Weekly Interest Rate Period.

In connection with the remarketing of the 2008B Bonds, certain legal matters will be passed upon for the District by Orrick, Herrington
& Sutcliffe LLP, Seattle, Washington, Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel to the District; for the Remarketing Agent, by its counsel, Hawkins
Delafield & Wood LLP, New York, New York; and for the Bank, by its counsel, Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, lllinois. It is expected that the
remarketed 2008B Bonds will be delivered in book-entry form through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York on or about March 6, 2013.

©5 BARCLAYS
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Information about the District or other matters on the District’s web site is not incorporated herein by this reference. Such
information should not be relied upon in making any investment decision with respect to the 2008B Bonds. The 2008B
Bonds are remarketed only by means of this Remarketing Memorandum.



No dealer, broker, salesperson or any other person has been authorized by the District or the Remarketing
Agent to give any information or to make any representations, other than the information and representations
contained herein, in connection with the offering of the 2008B Bonds, and if given or made, such information or
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. This Remarketing
Memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any of the 2008B Bonds, nor
shall there be any sale of the 2008B Bonds by any person, in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to make such
offer, solicitation or sale.

The information set forth herein has been furnished by the District, DTC, the Remarketing Agent, and
certain other sources that are believed to be reliable but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by the
Remarketing Agent, and this Remarketing Memorandum is not to be construed as a representation by the
Remarketing Agent. The information and expressions of opinion contained herein are subject to change without
notice, and neither the delivery of this Remarketing Memorandum nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the District since the date
hereof. Any statements made herein involving matters of opinion, estimates or forecasts, whether or not so
expressly described herein, are intended solely as such and not as representations of fact or representations that such
matters, estimates or forecasts will be realized. This Remarketing Memorandum is not to be construed as a contract
with the purchasers of the 2008B Bonds.

CERTAIN STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN THIS REMARKETING MEMORANDUM DO NOT
REFLECT HISTORICAL FACTS BUT ARE FORECASTS AND “FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS.” NO
ASSURANCE CAN BE GIVEN THAT THE FUTURE RESULTS DISCUSSED HEREIN WILL BE ACHIEVED,
AND ACTUAL RESULTS MAY DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THE FORECASTS DESCRIBED HEREIN.
IN THIS RESPECT, WORDS SUCH AS “ESTIMATE,” “FORECAST,” “ANTICIPATE,” “EXPECT,”
“INTEND,” “PLAN,” “BELIEVE,” “PROJECT” AND SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS ARE INTENDED TO
IDENTIFY FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS. ALL PROJECTIONS, FORECASTS, ASSUMPTIONS
AND OTHER FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE EXPRESSLY QUALIFIED IN THEIR ENTIRETY
BY THE CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS SET FORTH IN THIS REMARKETING MEMORANDUM.

The Remarketing Agent has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Remarketing
Memorandum. The Remarketing Agent has reviewed the information in this Remarketing Memorandum in
accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the
facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Remarketing Agent does not guarantee the accuracy or
completeness of such information.

THE 2008B BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON A SPECIFIC EXEMPTION CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT, NOR HAVE
THEY BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE.
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$65,250,000
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS
REFUNDING SERIES 2008B (NON-AMT)

SUMMARY STATEMENT

This Summary Statement is subject in all respects to the more complete information contained in this
Remarketing Memorandum. Investors are advised to read the entire Remarketing Memorandum to obtain
information essential to making an informed investment decision. Certain capitalized terms used in this Summary
Statement have the meanings specified elsewhere in this Remarketing Memorandum.

The District

Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington (the “District™), is a municipal corporation of
the State of Washington (the “State”) located in central Washington approximately 138 miles east of Seattle and 165
miles west of Spokane. The District was established in 1936 and began electric utility operations in 1947. In
addition to its Distribution Division, which primarily serves Chelan County (the “County”), the District also owns,
operates and maintains three major hydroelectric power generating projects: the Rock Island Project, the Rocky
Reach Project and the Lake Chelan Project (collectively, the “Hydro-Electric Projects”). The Hydro-Electric
Projects typically supply energy in excess of the amount necessary to serve the District’s retail loads. See “THE
DISTRICT—General.” In an effort to assist in developing energy resources with low environmental impacts, the
District also purchases power from a wind generation project. The District also owns and operates a Water System,
a Wastewater System and a Fiber and Telecommunications System, which serve portions of the County.

Under Washington law, the District has the authority to establish separate enterprise funds with respect to
its various municipal utility business operations, each of which enterprise funds is accounted for separately. In
addition, those utility business operations that generate revenues (known as “systems”) can be separately financed
through the issuance of debt by the District payable solely from revenues of that particular system. The District
currently has three systems through which it issues debt: the Rock Island System, the Rocky Reach System
(collectively, the “Large Hydro Systems”), and the “Consolidated System.” The Consolidated System currently
includes (i) the District’s retail electric utility business operations (referred to as the “Distribution Division™), (ii) the
Lake Chelan Project, (iii) the Fiber and Telecommunications System, (iv) the Water System, and (v) the Wastewater
System. Although these systems have been consolidated into the Consolidated System for financing purposes, all of
these systems are accounted for separately and only the four utility business operations have been combined for
financial statement reporting purposes. The District also has two enterprise funds, the Internal Service Fund and the
Treasury Service Fund, which are used to account for administrative, financing and other costs allocable to more
than one system.

See “INTRODUCTION,” “THE DISTRICT—General,” and “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—
General,” “—Properties and Facilities of the Consolidated System” and “—Other Properties and Facilities of the
District.”

The District’s Power Supply

The District obtains most of its power supply from the Hydro-Electric Projects, which have a combined
nameplate rating of 1,988 megawatts (“MW?”). The Hydro-Electric Projects typically supply energy in excess of the
amount necessary to serve the District’s annual retail loads. See “THE DISTRICT—General.” Because the original
investments in the Hydro-Electric Projects were made decades ago, in 2011 the cost of generating energy from the
Hydro-Electric Projects was substantially below the market value of such energy. For the year ended December 31,
2011, the Rock Island Project delivered 3,267,000 megawatt hours (“MWh”) of power at an average cost of
generation of $24 per MWh, the Rocky Reach Project delivered 7,125,000 MWh of power at an average cost of
generation of $10 per MWh and the Lake Chelan Project delivered 480,000 MWh of power at an average cost of
generation of $24 per MWh. The Hydro-Electric Projects collectively thus produced 10,872,000 MWh of power at
an average cost of generation of $15 per MWh. For the same period, the “average adjusted wholesale” preference
rate for Bonneville Power Administration (“Bonneville”) customers was $35 per MWh and the Mid-Columbia
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Electricity Price Index average was $24 per MWh. Comparable data for the year ended December 31, 2012 are not
yet available.

Under almost all power production and hydrologic conditions, the District’s reserved shares of the Hydro-
Electric Projects have been sufficient to meet the District’s retail load requirements. The District has never failed to
meet its retail load requirements, and normally the Distribution Division is a net seller of power. During periods of
extremely low water conditions or unusually high peak energy demand, the reserved share of the Hydro-Electric
Projects may be insufficient to meet the District’s retail load requirements for relatively limited periods. The extent
and duration of these shortfalls are estimated in advance by the District’s power supply planners. On these
occasions the District buys power on the wholesale market to meet the portion of the District’s retail load
requirements not supplied by the Hydro-Electric Projects.

According to the Average Service Reliability Index (defined as the year-to-date efficiency of the
distribution system to deliver electric energy to the District’s customers), the District’s reliability in 2011 was
99.98%, in 2010 was 99.98% and in 2009 was 99.99%. Reliability information for the year ended December 31,
2012 is not yet available.

See “THE DISTRICT—General.”
Sales of the District’s Power Supply
General

The Consolidated System purchases power from the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects (as an
operating expense of the Consolidated System) for sale to its retail customers through the Distribution Division.
The power from the Hydro-Electric Projects, including the Lake Chelan Project, and not allocated for the District’s
own retail load is sold:

(a) on a cost-of-service “plus” basis under long-term contracts with an investor-owned utility
and a large industrial purchaser;

(b) on a cost-of-service basis under a long-term contract with another public utility district;

(©) under fixed-price wholesale market-based slice contracts, each for a fixed percentage of
output, with purchasers selected through an annual competitive auction process and with staggered terms of up to
five years, consistent with the District’s hedging strategy;

(d) under fixed-price wholesale market-based block contracts, each for a fixed amount of
output, with purchasers selected based on market price and credit and liquidity profiles and with varied terms from
within the current year plus up to an additional 60 months, consistent with the District’s hedging strategy; and

(e) as short-term surplus power at wholesale market prices to meet the District’s “day-ahead”
forecast.

These sales are a substantial source of revenues to the District’s Consolidated System. See “THE
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Energy Sales; Load/Resource Balancing; Hedging Strategy,” “—Puget Sound
Energy Power Sales Contract” and “—Alcoa Power Sales Contract” and “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—
Management’s Discussion of Distribution Division Financial Results” and “—Power Sales Revenues and District
Near-Term Financial Outlook.”

Prior to November 1, 2011 with respect to the Rocky Reach Project and prior to June 8, 2012 with respect
to the Rock Island Project, power from the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects, excluding an amount allocated
for the District’s own retail load, was sold on a cost-of-service basis pursuant to long-term contracts with a number
of investor-owned utilities, another public utility district and a large industrial purchaser and into the wholesale
market. See “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—The Prior Power Sales Contracts.”
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Power Sales Contracts

In February 2006, the District executed a new long-term power sales contract (the “Puget Contract”) with
Puget Sound Energy, Inc. (“Puget Sound Energy”), and in July 2008, the District executed a new long-term power
sales contract with Alcoa, Inc. (“Alcoa”) (the “Alcoa Contract” and together with the Puget Contract, the “Power
Sales Contracts”). The Puget Contract is scheduled to terminate on October 31, 2031, and the Alcoa Contract is
scheduled to terminate on October 31, 2028.

Under the Puget Contract, from November 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012, Puget Sound Energy purchased 25%
of the energy and capacity from the Rocky Reach Project and, thereafter, purchases 25% of the combined energy
and capacity from both the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects. In exchange, Puget Sound Energy pays its
percentage share of operation and maintenance, certain debt service-related costs and other costs and charges. In
connection with the execution of the Puget Contract, Puget Sound Energy also made a one-time payment of
$89 million to the District for the account of the Consolidated System in April 2006 as a “capacity reservation
charge,” which the District may use for any lawful purposes. The District is recognizing the $89 million payment as
revenue of the Consolidated System for accounting purposes in equal annual amounts over the term of the Puget
Contract, commencing on November 1, 2011. The District has allocated the entire payment for use by the various
systems of the District, including $18 million allocated to the Fiber and Telecommunications System. See “THE
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Puget Sound Energy Power Sales Contract” and APPENDIX [—“Summary of
Power Sales Contract with Puget Sound Energy, Inc.”

Under the Alcoa Contract, from November 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012, Alcoa purchased energy equivalent to
27.5% of the output from the Rocky Reach Project and, thereafter, purchases energy equivalent to 26% of the
combined output from both the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects. In exchange, Alcoa pays its percentage
share of operation and maintenance, certain debt service-related costs and other costs and charges. The District
retained all capacity rights and environmental attributes and has the right to source energy from other sources. In
connection with the execution of the Alcoa Contract, Alcoa also made a one-time payment of $22.9 million to the
District for the account of the Consolidated System in August 2008 as a “capacity reservation charge,” which the
District may use for any lawful purposes. The District is recognizing the $22.9 million payment as revenue of the
Consolidated System for accounting purposes in equal annual amounts over the term of the Alcoa Contract,
commencing November 1, 2011. This payment is currently held as part of the District’s cash reserves, and no
portion of this payment has yet been allocated for use by any specific system of the District. =~ See “THE
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—AIcoa Power Sales Contract” and APPENDIX J—“Summary of Power Sales
Contract with Alcoa, Inc.”

Load/Resource Balancing; Hedging Strategy

To balance the District’s anticipated power resources and demand for those power resources on an on-
going basis, the District, as do most other retail electric utilities, enters into short-term forward physical power sales
agreements when resources are expected to exceed demand and enters into short-term forward physical power
purchase agreements when demand is expected to exceed the resources estimated to be available.

To mitigate potential wholesale sales and price volatility, to help keep future rates stable and affordable and
to maintain financial stability, the District has implemented a comprehensive forward hedging strategy. In addition
to the Power Sales Contracts, a key component of the strategy includes executing medium-term power sales
contracts for (i) fixed percentages of future output from the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects and (ii) fixed
amounts of such output, in each case at fixed prices and for staggered terms from within the then-current year plus
up to an additional 60 months. This strategy is expected to mitigate the District’s exposure to changes in wholesale
power prices and Columbia River flows (the latter of which affects generation at the Hydro-Electric Projects) and to
secure a revenue stream for the duration of those contracts. As of September 30, 2012, the District has locked in
revenues under these medium-term contracts of $447.7 million for the period from January 2013 through the end of
2017.

The Consolidated System derives a substantial portion of its annual revenues from wholesale sales of the
Distribution Division’s share of surplus power generated by the Hydro-Electric Projects. As a result of the
expiration of the Prior Power Sales Contracts and the commencement of deliveries under the Power Sales Contracts,

(iii)



the amount of surplus power sold by the District in 2011 and 2012, and thus the percentage of annual Distribution
Division revenues derived from such wholesale sales, increased from prior years. These wholesale sales provided
45% of annual Distribution Division revenues in fiscal year 2011 and 36% of annual Distribution Division revenues
in fiscal year 2010. The information regarding the total revenues generated from such wholesale sales in 2012 is not
yet available.

The amount of such power available for sale in any given year, and the prices at which such power can be
sold, however, are highly variable, and depend to a large extent on factors outside of the control of the District. In
particular, the amount of such power available for sale is dependent upon relative flows down the Columbia River
past the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects and the timing of such flows, both of which are largely dependent
upon weather conditions in and upstream of the Mid-Columbia River and weather conditions in the District’s service
area, which affects the District’s relative load from season to season. The price of such power also is dependent,
among other things, on weather conditions inside and outside the Pacific Northwest, the relative demand for power
at any given time across the Western United States, general economic conditions, the cost and the availability of
alternative sources of power, including in particular energy generated by facilities fueled by natural gas, wind and
numerous other factors. The District seeks to moderate the variability in its revenues arising from these factors
through a variety of means, including the implementation of its energy hedging strategy, the maintenance of
significant liquidity, including the maintenance of the Rate Stabilization Fund, and its ability to impose rate
increases or temporary rate surcharges on relatively short notice.

See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Consolidated System Liquidity” and “—Power Sales Revenues and
District Near-Term Financial Outlook,” “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Energy Sales; Load/Resource
Balancing; Hedging Strategy,” “—Puget Sound Energy Power Sales Contract” and “—Alcoa Power Sales Contract”
and “SECURITY FOR THE 2008B BONDS—Rate Stabilization Fund.”

The table on the following page presents the Distribution Division’s energy resources and purchased power
costs for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 through 2011 and for the nine months ended September 30,
2012. The information for fiscal years 2007 through 2011 has been extracted from the District’s audited financial
statements. The information provided for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 is unaudited and may not be
indicative of actual year-end results. The information provided for the nine months ended September 30, 2012
reflects the expiration of the Prior Power Sales Contracts and the commencement of deliveries under the Power
Sales Contracts, under which a larger portion of the energy generated by the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects
is available to the District for sale as surplus power in the wholesale market. See APPENDIX B—
“PRELIMINARY UNAUDITED FINANCIAL DATA OF THE DISTRICT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012.”

[Remainder of page intentionally blank]
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Requirements (000 MWh)

Consolidated System
Distribution Division
Energy Requirements, Resources and Power Costs
Years Ended December 31, 2007 through 2011 and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

Total Sales®
Timing Differences &
Losses®

Resources (000 MWh)
Rocky Reach Project™
Rock Island Project
Lake Chelan Project
Non-firm Purchases®®

Purchased Power Costs
(8000)

Rocky Reach Project
Rock Island Project
Lake Chelan Project
Non-firm Purchases®

Average Cost ($/MWh)©®

Nine

Months

Ended
September

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 30,2012
4,845 4416 4257 4227 5,762 6,731
(64) (10) &) (67) (100) )
4,781 4,406 4,249 4,160 5,662 6,722
2,431 2,147 2,041 1,883 3,086 4,424
1,516 1,393 1,345 1,283 1,619 1,295
459 405 338 417 480 286
378 460 525 577 477 717
4,781 4,406 4,249 4,160 5,662 6,722
$ 29782 $ 31,449 $ 28274 $ 30,668 $ 37,112 $ 58405
33,540 37,309 38,398 40,206 38,509 33,620
5,171 6,152 9,003 10,198 11,430 8,329
21,127 29.485 18,672 22,880 14,429 18,959
$ 89,620 $ 104395 $§ 94,857 $ 103,952 $ 101,480 $ 119,313
$ 19 §$ 24 % 2 % 25 % 18 $ 18

M In 2010, year 2008 total sales and timing differences and losses were restated to correct a data entry error.
@ See Table 7, “Customers, Energy Sales and Revenues.”
@ Includes timing differences between actual calendar year energy requirements and monthly billing cycles, and system losses.

@ Effective November 1, 2011, the Distribution Division share of Rocky Reach output increased under the Power Sales

Contracts.

© Non-firm purchases include power purchased to meet local requirements and certain contractual obligations, to hedge price
movements and to minimize the District's overall risk exposure to changes in power prices.
© Includes actual costs of power to the Distribution Division plus allocable administrative and other expenses of the Distribution
Division. Fluctuations in average cost are due primarily to fluctuations in water conditions on the Columbia River, which
may significantly affect market prices, and fluctuations in power repurchases from Alcoa under the prior power sales contract

between the District and Alcoa. See “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—The Prior Power Sales Contracts.”

Source: The District.
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Electric Rates

The District’s retail rates and charges for electric power are fixed by the Commission, free from the
jurisdiction and control of the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (“WUTC”) and, the District
believes, free from the jurisdiction and control of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”). The
Hydro-Electric Projects are, however, owned and operated by the District under separate long-term licenses from
FERC. The District has covenanted in the Master Resolution to fix, establish, maintain and collect rates and charges
for electric power and energy, water, wastewater, fiber and telecommunications, and other services, facilities and
commodities sold, furnished or supplied by or through the Consolidated System sufficient to pay the operation and
maintenance expenses and all debts and obligations of the Consolidated System.

In 2008, the District increased electric rates by 5% to help move the District away from reliance on
wholesale power sales revenues over time. Prior to the 2008 rate increase, the District last increased electric rates in
January 2000.

In 2009 and 2010, an unusual combination of low wholesale energy prices, below-average snowpack and a
declining interest rate environment resulted in a significant decline in revenues to the District from sales of surplus
power and interest income earned on investments. In response to these developments, the District, among other
things, implemented a temporary 9% rate surcharge, which went into effect May 1, 2009 and extended through
December 31, 2011.

The District adopted an electric rate design change on October 17, 2011. The new rate design, which
included an overall retail rate increase of 2.5%, went into effect on January 1, 2012 following the expiration of the
9% surcharge.

If conditions adversely affecting the District’s revenues (including below-average river flows and
depressed wholesale energy prices) return in the future, the District could re-impose a retail rate surcharge or take
other rate action to maintain the health of the District’s finances.

See “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Electric Rates; Other Rates” and “FINANCIAL
INFORMATION—Power Sales Revenues and District Near-Term Financial Outlook” and “—Strategic Planning.”

Authorization for the 2008B Bonds

The 2008B Bonds were issued pursuant to Resolution No. 07-13067, adopted by the Commission of the
District (the “Commission”) on March 12, 2007 (the “Master Resolution”), as amended and supplemented, including
by Resolution No. 08-13258, adopted by the Commission on February 11, 2008 (the “Fourth Supplemental
Resolution”), and the Certificate of the District, dated as of March 7, 2008 (the “2008B Delivery Certificate™), as
amended and supplemented by Resolution No. 09-13452, adopted by the Commission on April 27, 2009 (the “Fifth
Supplemental Resolution”), and the Certificate of the District, dated June 3, 2009 (the “2008B Reissuance Delivery
Certificate”), and as supplemented by Resolution No. 13-13775, adopted by the Commission on January 7, 2013
(the “Tenth Supplemental Resolution”), and the Certificate of the District, to be dated March 6, 2013 (the “2008B
Remarketing Delivery Certificate”). The Fourth Supplemental Resolution, as supplemented by the 2008B Delivery
Certificate and as amended and supplemented, including as amended and supplemented by the Fifth Supplemental
Resolution, as supplemented by the 2008B Reissuance Delivery Certificate, and as supplemented by the Tenth
Supplemental Resolution, as supplemented by the 2008B Remarketing Delivery Certificate, is referred to herein
collectively as the “2008B Supplemental Resolution.” The Master Resolution, as amended and supplemented,
including by the 2008B Supplemental Resolution, is referred to herein collectively as the “Resolution.”

Pledge of Revenues
The principal and Purchase Price of and premium, if any, and interest on the 2008B Bonds are payable
from and secured by (i) amounts on deposit in the applicable accounts in the Bond Fund established under the

2008B Supplemental Resolution for the 2008B Bonds (the “2008B Bond Fund”), the applicable account in the
Reserve Fund established under the 2008B Supplemental Resolution for the 2008B Bonds (the “2008B Reserve
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Account”) and any sinking fund that may be established for such 2008B Bonds and (ii) Revenues pledged to such
funds and the payment of the Bonds; provided, that the lien and charge of the Senior Consolidated System Bonds on
Revenues and the obligation of the District to deposit Revenues in the bond funds established by the Senior
Consolidated System Resolution have priority over the lien and charge of the Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds, on
Revenues. See “SECURITY FOR THE 2008B BONDS—Pledge of Revenues.”

The outstanding 2008B Bonds, together with any other bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness
heretofore or hereafter issued under the Master Resolution on a parity therewith, are collectively referred to herein
as the “Bonds.” As of December 31, 2012, the Bonds were outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of
$521,230,000 (excluding the 2009A/B Bonds (defined herein) held in trust, which are not considered outstanding for
financial reporting purposes). As of February 6, 2013, after giving effect to the optional redemption of $23,565,000
principal amount of 2008B Bonds, the Bonds are outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $497,665,000
(excluding the 2009A/B Bonds held in trust).

Pursuant to Resolution No. 95-10188, adopted by the Commission on June 19, 1995, as supplemented and
amended, including as amended and restated by Resolution No. 99-11303, adopted by the Commission on
November 1, 1999 (collectively, the “Senior Consolidated System Resolution”), the District has issued Chelan
Hydro Consolidated System Revenue Bonds (the “Senior Consolidated System Bonds™) payable from and secured
by a pledge of Revenues senior to the lien thereon of the Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds. As of
December 31, 2012, the Senior Consolidated System Bonds were outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of
$40,430,000. The District has covenanted in the Master Resolution not to issue any additional Senior Consolidated
System Bonds under the Senior Consolidated System Resolution and not to issue or incur any additional
indebtedness with a lien or charge on Revenues superior or prior to that of the Bonds. See “FINANCIAL
INFORMATION—Outstanding Debt.”

Pursuant to the Master Resolution, the District may enter into one or more interest rate swap agreements
with respect to all or a portion of a Series of Bonds. The Master Resolution provides that, if and to the extent
provided in any Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Series of Bonds, regularly scheduled
payments due under interest rate swap agreements (“Payment Agreements”) may be paid directly out of the account
or accounts in the Bond Fund established with respect to such Series of Bonds, and thus on a parity with debt service
on the Bonds. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Consolidated System Payment Agreements.”

Limited Obligations

The 2008B Bonds are special limited obligations of the District and are not obligations of the State or any
political subdivision thereof other than the District. Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of the
District, the State or any political subdivision thereof, are pledged to the payment of the principal or Purchase Price
of or premium, if any, or interest on the 2008B Bonds.

2008B Reserve Account

The 2008B Bonds are secured by a reserve account in the Reserve Fund (the “2008B Reserve Account”)
established pursuant to the 2008B Supplemental Resolution. Upon the remarketing of the 2008B Bonds on March 6,
2013, there will be an amount equal to $972,225 in the 2008B Reserve Account (the “2008B Reserve Account
Requirement”). See “SECURITY FOR THE 2008B BONDS—Debt Service Reserve Funds—Consolidated
System.”

The Bank and the 2008B Credit Facility

From and after the remarketing of the 2008B Bonds on March 6, 2013 and while the 2008B Bonds bear
interest at a Weekly Interest Rate, the payment of the Purchase Price of 2008B Bonds that are tendered or deemed
tendered for purchase but not remarketed will be payable, subject to certain conditions, from amounts to be made
available under a Standby Bond Purchase Agreement, to be dated as of March 1, 2013 (the “2008B Credit Facility™),
by and among the District, the Trustee and Union Bank, N.A. (the “Bank™). The 2008B Credit Facility permits the
Trustee to draw funds (in an amount not to exceed the available amount thereunder) sufficient to pay the Purchase
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Price of 2008B Bonds tendered or deemed tendered for purchase and not remarketed. The initial term of the 2008B
Credit Facility will end on March 2, 2016, unless earlier terminated or extended as provided therein and described
herein. Under certain circumstances, the Bank’s obligation under the 2008B Credit Facility to purchase 2008B
Bonds may be suspended or terminated, and, in some limited instances, such obligation may be suspended or
terminated without notice to the District or the holders of the 2008B Bonds. See “THE BANK AND THE 2008B
CREDIT FACILITY—The 2008B Credit Facility—Events of Default—Event of Termination,” “—Events of
Default Resulting in Immediate Termination” and “—Suspension Event” and “—Remedies—Immediate
Termination” and “—Suspension — Involuntary Proceedings.”

Additional Indebtedness

The District has covenanted in the Master Resolution not to issue any additional Senior Consolidated
System Bonds under the Senior Consolidated System Resolution and not to issue or incur any additional
indebtedness with a lien or charge on Revenues superior or prior to that of the Bonds.

Upon compliance with certain terms and conditions contained in the Master Resolution, the District may
issue additional bonds, notes and other evidences of indebtedness with a lien and charge on Revenues on a parity
with that of outstanding Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds, for any lawful purpose, including, without limitation,
(1) the refunding of outstanding Bonds, Senior Consolidated System Bonds, Prior Rock Island Bonds (each as
defined herein), bonds of the Water System and bonds of the Wastewater System and (2) financing or refinancing
the cost of additions, betterments or improvements to, or renewals and replacements of, the Consolidated System,
and for other lawful purposes of the District. The Master Resolution allows the District substantial flexibility as to
the terms and conditions of any additional Bonds hereafter issued with a lien and charge on Revenues on a parity
with that of the 2008B Bonds.

The Resolution does not prevent the District from issuing or incurring any additional indebtedness with a
lien or charge on Revenues junior and subordinate to the lien or charge of the Bonds

The Resolution contains no restrictions on the issuance of Rock Island Bonds or Rocky Reach Bonds (each
as defined herein). The District may issue additional Rock Island Bonds and Rocky Reach Bonds for purposes of
refunding outstanding Prior Rock Island Bonds and Rock Island Bonds and Rocky Reach Bonds, refunding
outstanding Senior Consolidated System Bonds or Bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to the Rock Island and
Rocky Reach Systems, and financing or refinancing the cost of additions, betterments or improvements to, or
renewals and replacements of, the Rock Island System or Rocky Reach System, as applicable, and other lawful
purposes of the District. Such bonds, however, would be issued under separate master resolutions of the District,
not under the Master Resolution.

[Remainder of page intentionally blank.]
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PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON
REMARKETING MEMORANDUM
RELATING TO

$65,250,000
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS
REFUNDING SERIES 2008B (NON-AMT)

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this Remarketing Memorandum, including the cover, inside front cover, summary statement
and appendices hereto, is to provide information concerning Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County,
Washington (the “District”), its Consolidated System, and its Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, Refunding
Series 2008B (Non-AMT), currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $65,250,000 (the “2008B
Bonds”), in connection with the mandatory tender and remarketing of the 2008B Bonds on March 6, 2013 (the
“Mandatory Tender Date”). The 2008B Bonds are being remarketed in connection with the replacement of the
existing Standby Bond Purchase Agreement securing the payment of the Purchase Price of the 2008B Bonds that is
scheduled to expire on March 7, 2013.

The 2008B Bonds were issued pursuant to Chapter 1 of the Laws of Washington, 1931, as amended and
supplemented, constituting Title 54 of the Revised Code of Washington, Chapter 167 of the Laws of Washington,
1983, as amended and supplemented, constituting Chapter 39.46 of the Revised Code of Washington, and
Chapter 138 of the Laws of Washington, 1965, as amended and supplemented, constituting Chapter 39.53 of the
Revised Code of Washington (collectively, the “Enabling Act”), and pursuant to Resolution No. 07-13067, adopted
by the Commission on March 12, 2007 (the “Master Resolution™), as amended and supplemented, including as
amended and supplemented by Resolution No. 08-13258, adopted by the Commission on February 11, 2008 (the
“Fourth Supplemental Resolution™), and the Certificate of the District, date March 7, 2008 (the “2008B Delivery
Certificate”).

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, enacted on February 19, 2009 (“ARRA”),
permitted issuers, such as the District, to refund certain of their outstanding bonds the interest on which is a specific
preference item for purposes of the federal individual and corporate alternative minimum taxes, such as the 2008B
Bonds, with bonds, the interest on which is not a specific preference item for such purposes. In accordance with
such provisions of ARRA and pursuant to Resolution No. 09-13452, adopted by the Commission on April 27, 2009
(the “Fifth Supplemental Resolution™), and the Certificate of the District, dated June 3, 2009 (the ‘“2008B
Reissuance Certificate”), the District reissued the 2008B Bonds on June 3, 2009 so that the interest thereon is not a
specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual and corporate minimum taxes.

From and after the remarketing of the 2008B Bonds on March 6, 2013 and while the 2008B Bonds bear
interest at a Weekly Interest Rate, the payment of the Purchase Price of 2008B Bonds that are tendered or deemed
tendered for purchase but not remarketed will be payable, subject to certain conditions, from amounts to be made
available by Union Bank, N.A. (the “Bank”) under a new Standby Bond Purchase Agreement, to be dated as of
March 1, 2013 (the “2008B Credit Facility”), by and among the District, U.S. Bank National Association (the
“Trustee”) and the Bank. The execution and delivery of the 2008B Credit Facility and related actions are authorized
pursuant to Resolution No. 13-13775, adopted by the Commission on January 7, 2013 (the “Tenth Supplemental
Resolution”), and the Certificate of the District to be dated as of March 6, 2013 (the “2008B Remarketing Delivery
Certificate”). The Fourth Supplemental Resolution, as amended and supplemented by the Fifth Supplemental
Resolution and as supplemented by the Tenth Supplemental Resolution, is referred to herein collectively as the
“2008B Supplemental Resolution.” The Master Resolution, as amended and supplemented, including as
supplemented by the 2008B Supplemental Resolution, is referred to herein collectively as the “Resolution.”



This Remarketing Memorandum contains estimates and projections prepared by the District. Such
estimates and projections are based upon a number of assumptions with respect to future events and conditions,
including, without limitation, water conditions, federal and state environmental and other laws and regulations, and
economic conditions. While the District believes that these assumptions are reasonable, they are dependent on such
future events and conditions. To the extent actual events and conditions differ from such assumptions, actual results
will vary from the projections, and these variances could be substantial.

The District’s audited financial statements and accompanying notes for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2011 are included in this Remarketing Memorandum in APPENDIX A. Some financial data in this Remarketing
Memorandum is provided as of December 31, 2011 because the District’s audited financial statements for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2012 are not yet available. Certain preliminary unaudited financial and operating data as
of September 30, 2012 have been provided for informational purposes; however, such data may not be indicative of
actual year-end results. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—General” and APPENDIX B—“PRELIMINARY
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL DATA OF THE DISTRICT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012.7

This Remarketing Memorandum includes summaries of the terms of the Senior Consolidated System
Bonds, the Outstanding Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds, the Master Resolution, the 2008B Supplemental
Resolution, the Senior Consolidated System Resolution, the Power Sales Contracts and certain contracts and
arrangements for the purchase and sale of power and energy. The summaries of and references to all agreements,
documents, statutes, resolutions, reports and other instruments referred to herein do not purport to be complete,
comprehensive or definitive, and each such summary and reference is qualified in its entirety by reference to each
such agreement, document, statute, report or instrument. Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the
meanings as set forth in Appendices C, D, H, I and J or in the respective documents.

APPLICATION OF THE REMARKETING PROCEEDS OF THE 2008B BONDS

On the Mandatory Tender Date, the remarketing proceeds of the 2008B Bonds are to be applied to pay the
portion of the Purchase Price of the 2008B Bonds on the Mandatory Tender Date allocable to the principal amount
of the 2008B Bonds. The District expects to use other available funds to pay the accrued interest on the 2008B
Bonds to the Mandatory Tender Date and to pay other costs relating to the mandatory tender and remarketing of the
2008B Bonds.

DESCRIPTION OF THE 2008B BONDS
General

The 2008B Bonds were issued and are being remarketed in the form of fully registered bonds without
coupons in authorized denominations in a Weekly Interest Rate Period in the aggregate principal amount of
$65,250,000. So long as the 2008B Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository
Trust Company (“DTC”), purchases of beneficial interests in the 2008B Bonds will be made in book-entry form,
without certificates. See APPENDIX G —“Book-Entry Only System.”

If the book-entry only system for the 2008B Bonds is discontinued, (i) the principal and Purchase Price of
and premium, if any, on each 2008B Bond will be payable to the owner thereof by check or draft at maturity, upon
acceleration or on the date fixed for redemption, as the case may be, upon the presentation and surrender of each
such 2008B Bond to the Trustee; (ii) interest on the 2008B Bonds will be payable by the Trustee on each Interest
Payment Date by check or draft mailed to each owner as of the Record Date, at the most recent address shown on
the Bond Register; provided, that payment of interest to each owner who owns of record $1,000,000 or more in
aggregate principal amount of 2008B Bonds may be made to such owner by wire transfer to such wire address
within the United States as that owner may request in writing prior to the Record Date; and (iii) the 2008B Bonds
will be exchangeable for fully registered certificated 2008B Bonds in any authorized denominations. Payments of
defaulted interest shall be made as of a special record date to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of which special record
date shall be given to the owners by the Trustee not less than ten days prior thereto. See APPENDIX G—
“Book-Entry Only System.”



The Trustee may impose a charge sufficient to reimburse the District for any tax, fee or other governmental
charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or any transfer of a 2008B Bond.

Capitalized terms used herein not otherwise defined shall have the meanings given in APPENDIX D—
“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution.”

2008B Bonds During a Weekly Interest Rate Period
General

The 2008B Bonds will bear interest at a Weekly Interest Rate. While the 2008B Bonds are in a Weekly
Interest Rate Period, the interest will be computed (other than on Credit Facility Provider Bonds) on the basis of a
365- or 366- day year and the actual number of days elapsed. Interest on the 2008B Bonds will be payable on each
Interest Payment Date for the period commencing on the first day of the immediately preceding month (or the first
day of the Weekly Interest Rate Period if such first day is not the first day of the month) to and including the last day
of such immediately preceding month, unless such Interest Payment Date shall be the day after the last day of the
Weekly Interest Rate Period, in which case interest will be payable on that Interest Payment Date for the period
commencing on the first day after the last month for which interest has been paid to but not including that Interest
Payment Date. While the 2008B Bonds are in a Weekly Interest Rate Period, the authorized denominations for the
2008B Bonds will be $100,000 and integral multiples of $5,000 in excess of $100,000.

“Interest Payment Date” means, in connection with any Weekly Interest Rate Period, (a) the first
Wednesday of each calendar month, or, if such first Wednesday shall not be a Business Day, the next Business Day,
and the Business Day after the last day of such Weekly Interest Rate Period, (b) with respect to any 2008B Bond, the
day on which that 2008B Bond becomes a Credit Facility Provider Bond, and (c) with respect to any Credit Facility
Provider Bond, the first Business Day of each calendar month, and the date on which such Credit Facility Provider
Bond is remarketed pursuant to the 2008B Supplemental Resolution. The date on which any 2008B Bond is subject
to mandatory sinking fund redemption will be an Interest Payment Date with respect to such 2008B Bond.

Remarketing Agreement and Remarketing Agent

The District expects to enter into the Remarketing Agreement, to be dated as of March 6, 2013 (the
“Remarketing Agreement”), with Barclays Capital Inc., as the remarketing agent (the “Remarketing Agent”) with
respect to the 2008B Bonds. The Remarketing Agreement will supersede any such prior agreements between the
District and the Remarketing Agent.

Determination and Notice of Weekly Interest Rate

The Remarketing Agent will determine the Weekly Interest Rate on the Business Day prior to the first day
of any Weekly Interest Rate Period and thereafter on Tuesday of each week (or the next Business Day if such
Tuesday is not a Business Day) by 4:00 P.M. New York City time. The first Weekly Interest Rate determined for
each Weekly Interest Rate Period will apply to the period commencing on the first day of such period and ending on
the next Tuesday. Thereafter, each Weekly Interest Rate will apply to the period commencing on Wednesday and
ending on the next Tuesday, unless such Weekly Interest Rate Period ends on a day other than a Tuesday, in which
event the last Weekly Interest Rate for such Weekly Interest Rate Period will apply to the period commencing on the
Wednesday before the last day of such Weekly Interest Rate Period and ending on such last day.

The Weekly Interest Rate on the 2008B Bonds will be the rate determined by the Remarketing Agent on
such dates (taking into account the Interest Rate Factors) to be the minimum interest rate which, if borne by such
2008B Bonds for the Weekly Interest Rate Period, would enable the Remarketing Agent to sell such 2008B Bonds
on that day at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any; provided, however, that in
no event will the rate of interest determined on any date to be borne by the 2008B Bonds (other than Credit Facility
Provider Bonds) exceed the Maximum Rate as of such date of determination. “Maximum Rate” means the lower of
(a) the maximum rate of interest covered by the 2008B Credit Facility and (b) the maximum rate of interest, if any,
then provided by law.



The Remarketing Agent is required to give promptly telephonic or, at the request of the District, electronic
notice, confirmed in writing, to the District, the Tender Agent and the Trustee, of each Weekly Interest Rate. The
2008B Supplemental Resolution provides that the determination of each Weekly Interest Rate by the Remarketing
Agent shall be conclusive and binding upon the Remarketing Agent, the Trustee, each Credit Facility Provider, the
District, the Tender Agent and the Owners, except that such determination shall not apply to Credit Facility Provider
Bonds, which shall at all times be subject to the Credit Facility Provider Interest Rate for the 2008B Bonds.

If the Remarketing Agent fails to determine a Weekly Interest Rate for any week, the interest rate for such
week will be the same as the Weekly Interest Rate for the immediately preceding week.

Change in Interest Rate Period of the 2008B Bonds

At the option of the District, all or a portion of the 2008B Bonds (in an amount which is an Authorized
Denomination for the new Interest Rate Period) may be converted to a different Interest Rate Period, including a
Fixed-Rate Interest Period. The District may terminate a Weekly Interest Rate Period for the 2008B Bonds, or any
portion thereof in Authorized Denominations, on any Business Day, upon notice to the Trustee. To effect the
termination of any Weekly Interest Rate Period, the District is required to give written notice to the Trustee no later
than seven (7) Business Days before the termination date selected by the District specifying (i) the termination date,
and (ii) the Authorized Denominations to be subject to new Interest Rate Periods after such termination date. The
Trustee is required under the Resolution to promptly give written notice of the District’s election to change any
Interest Rate Period to the Tender Agent, the Remarketing Agent and each Credit Facility Provider.

Conditions Precedent to Change in Interest Rate Period. Any change in the Interest Rate Periods for the
2008B Bonds will be effective only if (i) a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel is delivered and not withdrawn prior
to the effective date of the change in Interest Rate Period, (ii) the new Credit Facility, if any, is issued to the Trustee
or the Tender Agent, as the case may be, on or before that effective date and satisfies the requirements of the 2008B
Supplemental Resolution, and (iii) before the effective date of the change in Interest Rate Period, unless the 2008B
Bonds subject to such change in Interest Rate Period will continue to be secured by the same Credit Facility, the
Trustee receives from the Rating Agencies (A) certification or confirmation of the rating or ratings to be assigned to
the new Interest Rate Period and (B) confirmation that the change in Interest Rate Period will not, by itself, cause
the ratings on such 2008B Bonds to be lowered or withdrawn.

If the conditions precedent to the change in Interest Rate Period from a Weekly Interest Rate Period are not
satisfied, then (i) the 2008B Bonds scheduled to be subject to the new Interest Rate Period, other than Credit Facility
Provider Bonds, will be subject to the mandatory tender for purchase on the day such new Interest Rate Period
would have become effective and (ii) the 2008 B Bonds will remain in and be remarketed in the Weekly Interest Rate
Period. See “—Mandatory Purchase — Change in Interest Rate.”

Selection of 2008B Bonds. If only a portion of the 2008B Bonds are to be subject to a new Interest Rate
Period, the Trustee is to select the 2008B Bonds to be subject to the new Interest Rate Period by random drawing
conducted by the Trustee.

Notice to Owners of Change in Interest Rate Period. At least five Business Days prior to the effective date
of the new Interest Rate Period for 2008B Bonds, the Trustee is required under the Resolution to give written notice
to the Tender Agent, the Remarketing Agent and the Credit Facility Providers and to each Owner of 2008B Bonds
subject to a new Interest Rate Period, of the change in the Interest Rate Period.

At least two Business Days prior to the effective date of a new Interest Rate Period for any of the 2008B
Bonds, the District is required to provide to the Trustee, the Tender Agent and the Remarketing Agent the following
information: (i) the new Interest Rate Period to be in effect for such 2008B Bonds, (ii) if a new Interest Rate Period
will be a Fixed-Term Interest Rate Period, the new optional redemption provisions, if any, to be applicable to that
Fixed-Term Interest Rate Period, (iii) the Interest Payment Dates to be in effect for such 2008B Bonds, (iv) whether
a Credit Facility will be in effect for such 2008B Bonds and the terms thereof and the Credit Facility Provider, and
(v) information regarding the credit ratings assigned or to be assigned to such 2008B Bonds upon such change to a
new Interest Rate Period, as certified to the Trustee by the District.



Demand Purchase of 2008B Bonds

While 2008B Bonds are in a Weekly Interest Rate Period, any 2008B Bond will be purchased or deemed
purchased, as described below in “—Purchase and Remarketing of the 2008B Bonds,” at a Purchase Price equal to
the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest, if any, to the Purchase Date, on the first Business Day occurring
on or after the seventh day after delivery by the Owner of such 2008B Bond to the Tender Agent at the Delivery
Office of an irrevocable written notice stating the principal amount and identifying numbers of such 2008B Bond to
be purchased; provided, however, that the principal amount to be purchased and the principal amount of such 2008B
Bond, if any, to be retained by such Owner are both required to be an Authorized Denomination. The notice shall
also state the date on which such 2008B Bond shall be purchased, which date shall be a Business Day at least seven
days following the date of receipt of such notice by the Tender Agent. If such notice is not received by the Tender
Agent’s close of business, it shall be deemed received on the following Business Day. Payment of the Purchase
Price of such 2008B Bond is required to be made in immediately available funds, by wire transfer of the Tender
Agent, on the Purchase Date as soon as practicable following delivery of such 2008B Bond to the Tender Agent.
All such 2008B Bonds are to be delivered to the Tender Agent at the Delivery Office, at or prior to 3:00 P.M., New
York City time, on the Purchase Date.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the 2008B Supplemental Resolution summarized in the foregoing
paragraph, while a Credit Facility Agreement (including the 2008B Credit Facility) is in effect for the 2008B
Bonds and while such 2008B Bonds are in a Weekly Interest Rate Period, the 2008B Supplemental Resolution
provides that the Owners of such 2008B Bonds shall have no right to demand purchase of such 2008B Bonds as
described above effective as of the date of any revocation, termination or cancellation of such Credit Facility
Agreement pursuant to its terms. Under certain circumstances, the Bank may suspend or terminate its obligation
under the 2008B Credit Facility to purchase the 2008B Bonds, and, in limited instances, such obligation may be
suspended or terminated without notice to the District or the holders of the 2008B Bonds. See “THE BANK AND
THE 2008B CREDIT FACILITY—The 2008B Credit Facility—Events of Default—Event of Termination,” “—
Events of Default Resulting in Immediate Termination” and “—Suspension Event” and “—Remedies—
Immediate Termination” and “—Suspension — Involuntary Proceedings.”

Mandatory Tender for Purchase

While in a Weekly Interest Rate Period, the 2008 B Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase
as described below. No Owner shall have the right to retain any 2008B Bond required to be purchased in a
mandatory tender.

Change in Interest Rate Period. On the first day of a new Interest Rate Period for 2008B Bonds, such
2008B Bonds, or portions thereof in Authorized Denominations, are to be purchased or deemed purchased at a
Purchase Price equal to the principal amount thereof.

Termination or Expiration of Credit Facility, Substitution of Credit Facility. 1If the Tender Agent is
required to give notice to Owners of 2008B Bonds pursuant to the 2008B Supplemental Resolution in connection
with a Termination Date or a Substitution Date for any Credit Facility securing such 2008B Bonds, including the
2008B Credit Facility, the 2008B Bonds secured by the Credit Facility are required to be purchased or deemed
purchased one Business Day before that Termination Date or Substitution Date, as the case may be, at a Purchase
Price equal to 100 percent of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest, if any.

Mandatory Purchase of Unauthorized Denominations. All 2008B Bonds will be subject to mandatory
purchase on the first day of each Daily Interest Rate Period, Weekly Interest Rate Period and CP Interest Rate
Period if such 2008B Bonds are not in Authorized Denominations, at a Purchase Price equal to the principal amount
thereof, plus accrued interest, if any.

Mandatory Purchase at Direction of Credit Facility Provider. 1f within ten days after the Tender Agent
requests payment under a Credit Facility, to pay interest on 2008B Bonds the Trustee receives telephonic notice,
promptly confirmed in writing, from the Credit Facility Provider that the amount available to be paid under that
Credit Facility to pay interest will not be reinstated, or if the Trustee receives telephonic notice, promptly confirmed
in writing, from the Credit Facility Provider that an event of default has occurred under the Credit Facility or the



Credit Facility Agreement with respect thereto and if that Credit Facility or Credit Facility Agreement provides that
in such event the Credit Facility may be drawn upon to pay the Purchase Price of 2008B Bonds secured thereby and
the Credit Facility Provider is then, in accordance with the terms of the Credit Facility or Credit Facility Agreement,
obligated to make such payment, then all 2008B Bonds payable from payments under that Credit Facility shall be
subject to mandatory purchase and shall be purchased or deemed purchased on the Purchase Date chosen by the
Trustee and occurring not later than 15 days after receipt by the Tender Agent of any such written notice from the
Credit Facility Provider. Such 2008B Bonds are to be purchased at a Purchase Price equal to the principal amount
thereof plus accrued interest, if any, to the Purchase Date. Within five days after receipt of such written notice from
a Credit Facility Provider, the Trustee shall give written notice to the Tender Agent, the Remarketing Agent, each
other Credit Facility Provider and to each Owner of 2008B Bonds to be purchased that such 2008B Bonds shall be
subject to mandatory tender for purchase and stating the date fixed for such mandatory purchase and the procedures
therefor.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the 2008B Supplemental Resolution, no 2008B
Bonds required to be purchased as described in the immediately preceding paragraph are to be remarketed.

In the event that payment is made under the Credit Facility for the 2008B Bonds, including the 2008B
Credit Facility, such payment will not be deemed to be a payment of the District, and such payment amounts will
continue to be due and payable by the District under the 2008B Supplemental Resolution.

Payment of the Purchase Price. Payment of the Purchase Price on any such 2008B Bond subject to
mandatory purchase is to be made by check or draft of the Tender Agent on the Purchase Date as soon as practicable
following delivery of such 2008B Bond to the Tender Agent. All such 2008B Bonds are to be delivered to the
Tender Agent at the Delivery Office, accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to the
Tender Agent, executed in blank by the Owner thereof with the signature of such Owner guaranteed by a bank, trust
company, national banking association or other banking institution, or member firm of the New York Stock
Exchange and such other documents as the Tender Agent may reasonably require, at or prior to 12:00 noon, New
York City time, on the Purchase Date.

Purchase and Remarketing of 2008B Bonds

Purchase of the 2008B Bonds. The Tender Agent will be required to purchase, on behalf of the District, the
2008B Bonds required to be purchased in accordance with the demand purchase and mandatory tender for purchase
provisions described above from the Owners of such 2008B Bonds on the applicable Purchase Date at the applicable
Purchase Price.

Funds for the payment of such Purchase Price of 2008B Bonds are to be derived from the following sources
in the order of priority indicated: (i) moneys provided to the Tender Agent for such purpose by the District or the
Trustee and on deposit in the 2008B Bond Fund; (ii) proceeds of the remarketing of such 2008B Bonds, to
purchasers other than the District, furnished to the Tender Agent by the Remarketing Agent and on deposit in the
Remarketing Account established for the 2008B Bonds; and (iii) moneys representing the proceeds of payments
under a Credit Facility for 2008B Bonds, including the 2008B Credit Facility, and on deposit in the 2008B Credit
Facility Purchase Account established pursuant to the 2008B Supplemental Resolution.

Neither the Tender Agent nor the Remarketing Agent will have any responsibility to determine the amount
representing accrued interest which may be payable in connection with the purchase of 2008B Bonds and may rely
conclusively on the computation of such accrued interest by the Trustee pursuant to the 2008B Supplemental
Resolution. The Tender Agent will not be obligated to expend its own funds in connection with any such purchase,
or to pay the Purchase Price of any 2008B Bonds in any type of funds other than that received by the Tender Agent
for such purchase. Any payment of the Purchase Price of any 2008B Bond required to be made pursuant to the
2008B Supplemental Resolution is to be made by the Tender Agent to the Owner to whom such payment is due by
not later than 3:00 P.M. New York City time, on the Purchase Date, at its address as it appears on the Bond Register
or at such other address as may be specified by such Owner at least 24 hours prior to the Purchase Date.

All 2008B Bonds required to be purchased in accordance with the demand purchase and mandatory tender
for purchase provisions described above will be deemed to have been tendered on the Purchase Date, for all



purposes of the 2008B Supplemental Resolution, whether or not such 2008B Bonds have been delivered to the
Tender Agent at the Delivery Office. Upon receipt by the Tender Agent of funds sufficient to purchase such 2008B
Bonds, such 2008B Bonds will be deemed purchased and the former Owner of such 2008B Bond will no longer be
entitled to the benefits of the Resolution, except for the purpose of the payment of the Purchase Price thereof.

The District will be required to execute, and the Registrar will be required to authenticate and deliver, a
new 2008B Bond in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the 2008B Bond not delivered
but deemed purchased, bearing a number or numbers or other designation not contemporaneously outstanding, and
any such new 2008B Bond is to be made available for delivery. Every 2008B Bond authenticated and delivered as
described in the preceding sentence will be entitled to all the benefits of the Resolution equally and proportionately
with any and all other 2008B Bonds duly executed and delivered under the 2008B Supplemental Resolution, except
that any Credit Facility Provider Bond will not be entitled to the benefits of any Credit Facility, including the 2008B
Credit Facility.

Notice of 2008B Bonds Delivered for Purchase. As soon as practicable and no later than 4:00 P.M., New
York City time, on the day the Tender Agent receives notice from the Owner of a 2008B Bond subject to a Weekly
Interest Rate, the Tender Agent shall give telephonic or telegraphic notice, promptly confirmed in writing, to the
Remarketing Agent, the Trustee, the Credit Facility Provider which provided the Credit Facility, if any, for such
2008B Bonds and the District of the principal amount of 2008B Bonds with respect to which such notice has been
delivered to it demanding the purchase of such 2008B Bonds in accordance with the demand purchase provisions of
the 2008B Supplemental Resolution described above.

Remarketing of 2008B Bonds. Upon receipt of notice that the Tender Agent will be required to effect the
purchase of any 2008B Bond in accordance with demand purchase or mandatory tender for purchase provisions
described above, the Remarketing Agent will be required to offer for sale and to use its reasonable best efforts to sell
such 2008B Bond, any such sale to be made on the Purchase Date at par plus accrued interest, if any. The
Remarketing Agent will be required to continue to offer for sale and use its reasonable best efforts to sell any 2008B
Bond purchased by the District or any Credit Facility Provider Bonds until such time as the District or the Credit
Facility Provider, as applicable, instructs the Remarketing Agent in writing to discontinue such efforts; provided,
however, that no 2008B Bond purchased by the District will be remarketed without the Favorable Opinion of Bond
Counsel.

The Remarketing Agent is required to give telephonic or telegraphic notice, promptly confirmed in writing,
to the Tender Agent, specifying the principal amount of 2008B Bonds (including any Credit Facility Provider
Bonds), if any, sold by it pursuant to the demand purchase or mandatory tender provisions described above, by
12:00 Noon, New York City time, on each Purchase Date, which notice is to include the names, addresses and
taxpayer identification numbers of the new purchasers.

Delivery of 2008B Bonds. 2008B Bonds, including Credit Facility Provider Bonds, which have been
remarketed by the Remarketing Agent and are purchased with amounts on deposit in the Remarketing Account are
to be made available to the Remarketing Agent by the Tender Agent at the Delivery Office upon payment or
evidence of payment therefor.

2008B Bonds for which the source of the Purchase Price was moneys on deposit in the 2008B Bond
Purchase Account are, subject to the 2008B Supplemental Resolution, to be delivered to or upon the order of the
District.

2008B Bonds purchased with moneys provided under a Credit Facility, including the 2008B Credit
Facility, that have not been remarketed by the Remarketing Agent (i) are to be registered by the Tender Agent in the
name of the Credit Facility Provider or any custodian, nominee, agent or depositary designated by the Credit Facility
Provider; (ii) will be held by the Tender Agent, for the account of the Credit Facility Provider or its designee or
upon the request of the Credit Facility Provider shall be made available by the Tender Agent (without charge to the
Credit Facility Provider) to the Credit Facility Provider or its designee; and (iii) are to be reregistered by the Tender
Agent in such name or names, and exchanged for 2008B Bonds in such Authorized Denominations as the Credit
Facility Provider may direct, all without charge to the Credit Facility Provider.



Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Credit Facility Provider Bond is to be registered to any person other than
the Credit Facility Provider or its designee until the Tender Agent receives telephonic notice, promptly confirmed in
writing, stating that such Credit Facility has been reinstated in full with respect to such 2008B Bond or has been
terminated in accordance with the terms of that Credit Facility.

Drawings on Credit Facility. The Tender Agent is required to request payment under a Credit Facility
provided for 2008B Bonds, including the 2008B Credit Facility, in accordance with its terms to the extent necessary
to make timely payments of the Purchase Price of the 2008B Bonds required to be made pursuant to, and in
accordance with, the demand purchase and mandatory tender for purchase provisions described above. The Tender
Agent is required to request payment under such Credit Facility no later than the time provided in such Credit
Facility in order to receive payment, in immediately available funds, of an amount sufficient to pay the Purchase
Price of the 2008B Bonds on the Purchase Date. If any 2008B Bond is purchased by the Credit Facility Provider
which provided the Credit Facility pursuant to a request for payment under that Credit Facility, such Credit Facility
Provider will be deemed to own such 2008B Bonds. The 2008B Supplemental Resolution provides that Credit
Facility Provider Bonds and 2008B Bonds owned by the District shall not be entitled to the benefits of any Credit
Facility delivered until remarketed.

Delivery of Proceeds of Sale. The proceeds of the sale by the Remarketing Agent of 2008B Bonds are to

be delivered to the Tender Agent for deposit in the Remarketing Account established for the 2008B Bonds
immediately upon receipt but in no event not later than 12:00 Noon, New York City time, on each Purchase Date.

Redemption of 2008B Bonds
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The 2008B Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption prior to maturity on July | of the years set forth below, at a redemption price equal to the principal

amounts to be redeemed, plus interest accrued to the date of redemption.

Redemption Date

(July 1 of the years set forth below) Principal Amount
2013 $1,175,000
2014 1,250,000
2015 1,330,000
2016 1,410,000
2017 18,400,000
2018 1,590,000
2019 1,695,000
2020 1,800,000
2021 1,915,000
2022 2,040,000
2023 2,170,000
2024 2,300,000
2025 2,455,000
2026 1,850,000
2027 785,000
2028 1,630,000
2029 -
2030 -
2031 -
2032 (final maturity) 45,020,000

™ On February 6, 2013, the District redeemed (pursuant to its rights of
optional redemption) $23,565,000 principal amount of the 2008B Bonds.
The District has directed the Trustee to apply the principal amount of
2008B Bonds so redeemed against the mandatory sinking fund
redemptions for 2013 through 2017.



Optional Redemption. The 2008B Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity while the 2008B
Bonds bear interest for a Weekly Interest Rate Period, at the option of the District, as a whole or in part at any time
(but if in part only in Authorized Denominations), at the Redemption Price of 100 percent of the unpaid principal
amount of the 2008B Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest, if any, accrued thereon to the date of
redemption.

Selection. Pursuant to the 2008B Supplemental Resolution, the Trustee shall, at the written direction of the
District (or in the absence of such written direction, by random drawing conducted by the Trustee), select the
particular 2008B Bonds which shall be subject to optional redemption; provided, however, that Credit Facility
Provider Bonds are to be selected for redemption first, in the inverse order in which such 2008B Bonds became
Credit Facility Provider Bonds.

Notice and Effect of Redemption. Notice of redemption of any 2008B Bonds to be redeemed shall be given
by first class mail to the owners of the 2008B Bonds designated for redemption at least 15 but not more than 60 days
prior to the redemption date, and to certain specified securities depositories and information services. When notice
of redemption has been given as provided in the Resolution, the 2008B Bonds designated for redemption shall
become due and payable on the redemption date and interest on such 2008B Bonds so called for redemption shall
cease to accrue as of that redemption date.

Defeasance

Under the Master Resolution, upon the deposit with the Trustee, at or before maturity, of money or non-
callable Government Securities which, together with the earnings thereon, are sufficient to pay the Principal,
Purchase Price or Redemption Price of any particular Bond or Bonds, or portions thereof, becoming due, together
with all interest accruing thereon to the due date or redemption date, and pays or makes provision for payment of all
fees, costs and expenses of the Trustee due or to become due with respect to such Bonds, all liability of the District
with respect to such Bond or Bonds (or portions thereof) will cease and such Bond or Bonds (or portions thereof)
will be deemed not to be Outstanding under the Master Resolution. The Owner or Owners of such Bond or Bonds
(or portions thereof) will be restricted exclusively to the money or Government Securities so deposited, together
with any earnings thereon, for any claim, subject to the provisions of the Master Resolution, and such Bond or
Bonds will no longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits of the Master Resolution, except as provided in the
Master Resolution. If such Bond is to be redeemed prior to maturity, irrevocable notice of such redemption must
have been given as provided in the Master Resolution. See APPENDIX D—“Summary of Certain Provisions of the
Master Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution—The Master Resolution—Discharge and Defeasance.”

Trustee and Tender Agent

U.S. Bank National Association (the “Trustee” and the “Tender Agent”) has been appointed Trustee and
Tender Agent for the 2008B Bonds. The Trustee may be removed or replaced as Trustee and/or Tender Agent by
the District as provided in the Resolution.

Book-Entry System

The 2008B Bonds will be delivered in fully registered form only, and when delivered will be registered in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. DTC acts as securities depository for the 2008 B Bonds. Ownership
interests in the 2008B Bonds may be purchased in book-entry only form, in the denominations set forth above. So
long as DTC acts as securities depository for the 2008B Bonds, the District, the Trustee, the Tender Agent and the
Remarketing Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (1) the accuracy of the records of DTC,
Cede & Co. or any Participant with respect to any beneficial ownership interest in the 2008B Bonds, (2) the delivery
to any Participant or any other person, other than an owner as shown in the Bond Register, of any notice with respect
to the 2008B Bonds, or (3) the payment to any Participant or any other person, other than an owner as shown in the
Bond Register, of any amount with respect to principal or Purchase Price of, premium, if any, or interest on the
2008B Bonds. The District, the Trustee, the Tender Agent and the Remarketing Agent may treat and consider the
person in whose name each 2008B Bond is registered in the Bond Register as the holder and absolute owner of such
2008B Bond for the purpose of payment of principal, Purchase Price and interest on such 2008B Bond, for the



purpose of giving notices with respect to such 2008B Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever. See
APPENDIX G—“Book-Entry Only System.”

SECURITY FOR THE 2008B BONDS
Pledge of Revenues

The principal and Purchase Price of and premium, if any, and interest on the 2008B Bonds are payable
from and secured by (i) amounts on deposit in the applicable accounts in the bond fund established under the 2008B
Supplemental Resolution for the 2008B Bonds (the “2008B Bond Fund”), the applicable account in the Reserve
Fund established under the 2008B Supplemental Resolution for the 2008B Bonds (the “2008B Reserve Account™)
and any sinking fund that may be established for such 2008B Bonds and (ii) Revenues pledged to such funds and the
payment of the Bonds; provided, that the lien and charge of the Senior Consolidated System Bonds on Revenues and
the obligation of the District to deposit Revenues in the bond funds established by the Senior Consolidated System
Resolution have priority over the lien and charge of the Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds, on Revenues. The
District pledges, obligates and binds itself in the Resolution to pay into the applicable accounts in the 2008B Bond
Fund a fixed amount of Revenues, after payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses without regard to any
fixed proportion of Revenues, sufficient in time and amount to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest
on the 2008B Bonds from time to time Outstanding, as the same respectively become due and payable, either at
maturity, or upon purchase, redemption or acceleration thereof pursuant to the terms of the Resolution.

The Enabling Act provides that the revenue obligations and interest thereon issued by a public utility
district thereunder shall be a valid claim of the owner thereof only as against the special fund or funds provided for
the payment of such obligations and the proportion or amount of the revenues pledged to such fund or funds, and
that such pledge of the revenues or other moneys or obligations shall be valid and binding from the time made, that
the revenues or other moneys or obligations so pledged and thereafter received by the public utility district shall
immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge without any physical delivery or further act, and that the lien of
any such pledge shall be valid and binding as against any parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract or
otherwise against the public utility district irrespective of whether such parties have notice thereof.

The Resolution defines “Revenues” generally as all revenues, rates and charges received or accrued by the
District for electric power and energy, water, wastewater, fiber and telecommunications and other services, facilities
and commodities sold, furnished or supplied by the Consolidated System, together with income, earnings and profits
therefrom, all as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) as applied to
governmental entities. The revenues of the Water System and the Wastewater System do not constitute a part of
Revenues to the extent such revenues are pledged to the payment of bonds or other obligations for borrowed money
of either of those respective systems. Revenues include all amounts received or accrued by the Consolidated
System, including principal and interest payments to the Consolidated System on or with respect to loans made by
the Consolidated System to any separate system of the District that is not part of the Consolidated System.
Revenues do not include proceeds from the issuance of any obligations for borrowed money, amounts loaned to the
Consolidated System, Payment Agreement Receipts, proceeds from taxes, customer deposits while retained as such,
contributions in aid of construction, gifts, grants, insurance or condemnation proceeds that are properly allocated to
a capital account, unrealized mark-to-market gains with respect to any property investment or financial or other
agreement, or money received by the District as the proceeds of the sale of any portion of the properties of the
Consolidated System.

Once all of the Bonds Outstanding under the Resolution as of August 11, 2009 (excluding the Public Utility
District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington, Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009C and Series
2009D), are no longer Outstanding, the definition of “Revenues” will include the following sentence: “Federal and
state grant moneys received by the District that do not constitute Contributions-in Aid-of Construction within the
meaning of GAAP shall constitute Revenues if designated as such by the District.”

“Operation and Maintenance Expenses” means the costs paid or accrued for the proper operation,
maintenance and repair of the Consolidated System and taxes, assessments or other governmental charges lawfully
imposed on the Consolidated System or the Revenues, or payments in lieu thereof, all as determined in accordance
with GAAP as applied to governmental entities. The operation and maintenance expenses of the Rock Island
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System or the Rocky Reach System shall not constitute a part of Operation and Maintenance Expenses unless and
until the Rock Island System or the Rocky Reach System, respectively, is consolidated into the Consolidated
System. Operation and Maintenance Expenses shall not include depreciation or amortization expense or unrealized
mark-to-market losses with respect to any property, investment, or financial or other agreement. See APPENDIX
D—“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution—
Definitions” for the definitions of other capitalized terms used above.

Generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”) and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) allow for the deferral of various types of
revenues and expenses for the intended purpose of providing a more accurate assessment of the financial position of
governmental and other entities, as well as financial reporting that better matches the rate-setting process for rate-
regulated entities. Accordingly, certain expenses and credits, which are normally reflected in the change of net
position as incurred, may be recognized when included in rates and recovered from or refunded to customers. These
deferrals include mark-to-market adjustments with respect to certain derivatives transactions, the deferral of the
recognition of revenues from prepayments (such as those made by Puget Sound Energy and Alcoa under the Power
Sales Contracts), the deferral of significant contributions in aid of construction and other items. The net effect of
these changes is such that “Revenues” and “Operation and Maintenance Expenses,” as defined under the Master
Resolution, may differ materially from actual cash receipts and cash expenditures for a given Fiscal Year of the
District. Consequently, “Net Revenues” as defined under the Master Resolution, may be materially greater or less
than the amounts actually available to the District to pay debt service on the Bonds and other obligations of the
District. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Changes in Accounting Principles.”

Limited Obligations

The 2008B Bonds are special, limited obligations of the District and shall not in any manner or to any
extent constitute general obligations of the District or of the State, or of any political subdivision of the State. The
2008B Bonds are not a charge upon any general fund or upon any moneys or other property of the District, or of the
State, or of any political subdivision of the State, other than Revenues and other funds, assets and security pledged
therefor pursuant to the Resolution. Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of the District, of the State
or of any political subdivision of the State, are pledged to the payment of the 2008B Bonds. The 2008B Bonds shall
not constitute indebtedness of the District, or of the State or any political subdivision of the State, within the
meaning of the constitutional and statutory provisions and limitations of the State.

Outstanding Bonds

The outstanding 2008B Bonds, together with any other bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness
heretofore or hereafter issued under the Master Resolution on a parity therewith, are collectively referred to herein
as the “Bonds.” As of December 31, 2012, the Bonds were outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of
$521,230,000, excluding $21,855,000 principal amount of Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series
2009A and $8,500,000 principal amount of Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2009B
(collectively, the “2009A/B Bonds”) currently held in trust for the benefit of the District, which are not considered
outstanding for financial reporting purposes. As of February 6, 2013, after giving effect to the option redemption of
$23,565,000 principal amount of the 2008B Bonds on February 6, 2013, the Bonds are outstanding in the aggregate
principal amount of $497,665,000 (excluding the 2009A/B Bonds). See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—
Outstanding Debt.”

Senior Consolidated System Bonds

Pursuant to Resolution No. 95-10188, adopted by the Commission on June 19, 1995, as supplemented and
amended, including as amended and restated by Resolution No. 99-11303, adopted by the Commission on
November 1, 1999, as amended and supplemented (as so amended and supplemented, the “Senior Consolidated
System Resolution”), the District has issued its Chelan Hydro Consolidated System Revenue Bonds (the “Senior
Consolidated System Bonds™) payable from and secured by a pledge of Revenues, senior to the lien thereon of the
Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds. As of December 31, 2012, the Senior Consolidated System Bonds are
outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $40,430,000. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Outstanding
Debt.”
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The lien and charge of the Senior Consolidated System Bonds on Revenues, and the obligation of the
District to deposit Revenues in the bond funds established by the Senior Consolidated System Resolution, have
priority over the lien and charge on Revenues of the Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds.

The covenants and other provisions of the Senior Consolidated System Resolution are different from those
of the Master Resolution. See APPENDIX C—*“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Senior Consolidated System
Resolution.”

Flow of Funds

The District, by Resolution No. 870, adopted on September 14, 1954, created a special fund known as the
Revenue Fund (the “Revenue Fund”), which is held by the District. The District has covenanted and agreed to pay
all income, revenues, receipts and profits and other moneys derived by the District through the ownership and
operation of the Consolidated System, including Revenues, into the Revenue Fund, subject to the terms, limitations,
restrictions, covenants, liens, charges and pledges contained in the resolutions of the District that established the
Large Hydro Systems and provided for the issuance of bonds to finance those Systems. Unlike the Senior
Consolidated System Resolution, the Master Resolution includes a specific flow of funds provision. The Master
Resolution provides for the disbursement of Revenues deposited in the Revenue Fund in the following order of
priority:

(a) First, for the payment of Operation and Maintenance Expenses;

(b) Second, (i) for the payment of the principal of and interest and redemption premium, if
any, on any Senior Consolidated System Bonds; (ii) for deposit into a reserve fund securing any Senior Consolidated
System Bonds; (iii) for Payment Agreement Payments pursuant to Payment Agreements entered into by the District
with respect to any Senior Consolidated System Bonds; and (iv) for payment to any financial institution or insurance
company providing any letter of credit, line of credit, or other credit or liquidity facility, including municipal bond
insurance and guarantees, that secures the payment of principal of or interest on any Senior Consolidated System
Bonds; in each case in any order of priority within this paragraph (b) established by the Senior Consolidated System
Resolution;

(©) Third, for deposit in the Interest Account of each Bond Fund created pursuant to the
Resolution;

(d) Fourth, for deposit in the Bond Retirement Account of each Bond Fund created pursuant
to the Resolution;

(e) Fifth, for deposit in the Reserve Fund pursuant to the Resolution;

® Sixth, (i) for the payment of the principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any,

on any Subordinate Obligations; (ii) for deposit into a reserve fund securing any Subordinate Obligations; (iii) for
Payment Agreement Payments pursuant to Payment Agreements entered into by the District with respect to any
Subordinate Obligations; and (iv) for payment to any financial institution or insurance company providing any letter
of credit, line of credit, or other credit or liquidity facility, including municipal bond insurance and guarantees, that
secures the payment of principal of or interest on any Subordinate Obligations; in each case in any order of priority
within this paragraph (f) which may be hereafter established by the District by resolution;

(2) Seventh, for any payment due under a Payment Agreement that does not constitute a
Payment Agreement Payment;

(h) Eighth, for any payment due under a Power Purchase Agreement that does not constitute
an Operation and Maintenance Expense; and

6)] Ninth, for any other lawful purpose of the Consolidated System, in any order of priority
which may be hereafter established by the District by resolution.
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The District may not withdraw moneys from the Revenue Fund in accordance with clauses (e) through
(1) above unless the District first determines that the amounts to be withdrawn are not expected to be required for the
purposes of clauses (a) through (d) above.

See “—Contingent Payment Obligations” under this heading and APPENDIX D—“Summary of Certain
Provisions of the Master Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution—Definitions” for the definitions of
capitalized terms used above.

Additional Indebtedness

The Enabling Act prohibits the District from creating or incurring indebtedness payable from Revenues that
would require the District to set aside for the payment thereof an amount or proportion of Revenues which, in the
judgment of the Commission of the District, is greater than that which will be available over and above the amount
or proportion required to pay the costs of operation and maintenance of the Consolidated System and the amount or
proportion previously pledged to the payment of the District’s revenue obligations, including the Bonds and the
Senior Consolidated System Bonds.

The District has covenanted in the Master Resolution not to issue any additional Senior Consolidated
System Bonds under the Senior Consolidated System Resolution and not to issue or incur any additional
indebtedness with a lien or charge on Revenues superior or prior to that of the Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds.
The Master Resolution does not prohibit the District from issuing or incurring any indebtedness payable from, or
secured by a lien on, revenues of the Water System and the Wastewater System prior to or on a parity with the lien
created by the Master Resolution.

Upon compliance with certain terms and conditions contained in the Master Resolution, the District may
issue additional Bonds with a lien and charge on Revenues on a parity with that of the currently Outstanding Bonds
(including the 2008B Bonds) for any lawful purpose, including, without limitation (i) the refunding of Outstanding
Bonds, Senior Consolidated System Bonds, Prior Rock Island Bonds, bonds of the Water System and bonds of the
Wastewater System and (ii) financing or refinancing the cost of additions, betterments or improvements to, or
renewals and replacements of, the Consolidated System, and for other lawful purposes of the District. See
APPENDIX D—*“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental
Resolution—The Master Resolution—Additional Indebtedness.” The Master Resolution allows the District
substantial flexibility as to the terms and conditions of any additional Bonds hereafter issued with a lien and charge
on Revenues on a parity with that of the 2008B Bonds.

The Master Resolution permits the District to issue Bonds and enter into Payment Agreements providing
for Payment Agreement Payments to be made on a parity with the Bonds. Subsequent Payment Agreements may
also provide for Payment Agreement Payments that are subordinate to the Bonds. See “FINANCIAL
INFORMATION—Consolidated System Payment Agreements.”

The Resolution contains no restrictions on the issuance of Rock Island Bonds or Rocky Reach Bonds. The
District may issue additional Rock Island Bonds and additional Rocky Reach Bonds for purposes of refunding
outstanding Rock Island Bonds and Rocky Reach Bonds, respectively, and funding new capital projects of the Rock
Island and Rocky Reach Systems, respectively. Such bonds, however, will be issued under separate master
resolutions of the District, not under the Resolution.

Subordinate Obligations

The Master Resolution does not prevent the District from issuing or incurring any additional indebtedness
with a lien or charge on Revenues junior and subordinate to the lien or charge of the Bonds. Pursuant to Resolution
No. 08-13378, adopted by the Commission on October 14, 2008 (as amended and supplemented from time to time,
the “Subordinate Consolidated System Resolution™), the District has issued and has outstanding its Consolidated
System Subordinate Revenue Notes, Series 2009A and Series 2009B (the “2009A/B Subordinate Notes”). The
outstanding 2009A/B Subordinate Notes, together with any other bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness
hereafter issued under the Subordinate Consolidated System Resolution on a parity therewith, are collectively
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referred to herein as the “Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations.” The Subordinate Consolidated System
Obligations are payable from and secured by a pledge of Revenues subordinate to the lien thereon of the Senior
Consolidated System Bonds and the Bonds. As of December 31, 2012, the Subordinate Consolidated System
Obligations were outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $28,970,000. See “FINANCIAL
INFORMATION—Outstanding Debt.”

The Subordinate Consolidated System Resolution also provides that the District may enter into one or more
interest rate swap agreements with respect to all or a portion of a Series of Subordinate Consolidated System
Obligations.

On April 1, 2011, the District and Bank of America, N.A. (“Bank of America”) entered into a Line of
Credit and Reimbursement Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with an available commitment of $50 million. The
District may either draw on the Credit Agreement directly or request that Bank of America issue a letter of credit for
certain specified purposes. The District’s obligations under the Credit Agreement are payable from and secured by a
pledge of Revenues subordinate to the lien and pledge thereon of the Senior Consolidated System Bonds, the Bonds
and the Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations, to make required debt service reserve fund deposits with
respect thereto, and to make regularly scheduled Payment Agreement Payments. The Credit Agreement is
scheduled to expire on April 1, 2014. As of February 19, 2013, the District has not drawn on the Credit Agreement
or requested the issuance of any letters of credit, and the District currently does not anticipate making any such
draws or requests. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Consolidated System Liquidity” and “District Near-Term
Outlook; Strategic Planning.”

Power Purchase Agreements

Pursuant to the Master Resolution, “Power Purchase Agreement” means a resolution, contract or agreement
with a term of more than five (5) years pursuant to which the Consolidated System is obligated to purchase capacity
or energy, including from a separate system of the District, and is obligated to pay for such capacity or energy
regardless of whether or not such capacity or energy is taken by or made available or delivered to the Consolidated
System.

The Master Resolution restricts the ability of the District to enter into any such Power Purchase
Agreements, payable from Revenues, for the purchase of power from new or existing facilities. Such facilities could
be owned by another entity, or could be part of a separate system of the District. Before entering into a Power
Purchase Agreement, the District must deliver to the Trustee a Certificate of the District demonstrating compliance
with the requirements for issuing additional Bonds set forth in the Master Resolution for the first three full Fiscal
Years following the Fiscal Year in which such Power Purchase Agreement will become effective. See APPENDIX
D—“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution—The
Master Resolution—Additional Bonds Certification.” Any amounts expended by the Consolidated System for the
purchase of power under such a contract likely would constitute an Operation and Maintenance Expense of the
Consolidated System.

The District has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement with respect to its share of the output from the
Nine Canyon Wind Project. See “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Consolidated System Energy Resources.”

Intersystem Loans of Bond Proceeds

The District has adopted certain resolutions providing for lending a portion of the proceeds of the Senior
Consolidated System Bonds and the Bonds to the Rocky Reach System and the Rock Island System and the
repayment of those interfund loans by such Systems to the Consolidated System (the “Loan Resolutions”). See
“FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Intersystem Loans” for a discussion of these interfund loans. Under both the
Puget Contract and the Alcoa Contract, Puget Sound Energy and Alcoa, respectively will be obligated to make
payments that include their proportionate shares of the repayment of such interfund loans. See “THE
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Puget Sound Energy Sales Contract” and “—Alcoa Power Sales Contract.”
Pursuant to a long-term Power Sales Contract between the District and Public Utility District No. 1 of Douglas,
Washington (“Douglas PUD”), Douglas PUD is also obligated to make similar such payments.
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The revenues of the Rocky Reach System and the Rock Island System do not constitute Revenues of the
Consolidated System and are not pledged to secure the payment of the Senior Consolidated System Bonds or the
Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds. The loan repayments, however, made from those revenues to the Consolidated
System do constitute Revenues of the Consolidated System and are available to pay the principal and Purchase Price
of and premium, if any, and interest on the Senior Consolidated System Bonds, the Bonds and the Subordinate
Consolidated System Obligations.

Debt Service Reserve Funds
Senior Consolidated System Bonds

The District has established debt service reserve funds to be held in trust by the District pursuant to the
supplemental resolutions authorizing the outstanding Senior Consolidated System Bonds (each, a “Senior
Consolidated System Reserve Fund”), and within each such Senior Consolidated System Reserve Fund, a separate
reserve account for each series of Senior Consolidated System Bonds secured by such Senior Consolidated System
Reserve Fund (each, a “Senior Consolidated System Reserve Account”). Each Senior Consolidated System Reserve
Account is to be maintained at the applicable reserve requirement and may be funded with cash, permitted
investments, one or more Reserve Fund Credit Policies, or any combination thereof. Each Senior Consolidated
System Reserve Account may be drawn upon solely to pay debt service on the series of Senior Consolidated System
Bonds secured by such account.

Table 1 below lists each series of outstanding Senior Consolidated System Bonds secured in whole or in
part with a Reserve Fund Credit Policy and information regarding each such Reserve Fund Credit Policy.

Table 1
Senior Consolidated System Bonds
Reserve Account Credit Policies

Series of Senior Outstanding Reserve Account Amount of Reserve  Reserve Account
Consolidated Principal Amount Credit Policy Account Credit Credit Policy
System Bonds (as of 12/31/2012)  Expiration Date!” Policy” Provider?

2004C 15,000,000 July 1, 2014 903,783.33 NPFG
2005A 25,430,000 July 1, 2015 1,303,287.50 NPFG

)" Generally, the Reserve Account Credit Policies expire upon the final maturity of the related series of Senior Consolidated

System Bonds. The Reserve Account Credit Policies relating to the 2004C and 2005A Senior Consolidated System Bonds,
however, expire upon initial mandatory tender dates for the 2004C and 2005A Senior Consolidated System Bonds, as
applicable. The final maturities for the 2004C and 2005A Senior Consolidated System Bonds are 2024 and 2039,
respectively.

The amount of each Reserve Account Credit Policy is equal to the applicable reserve requirement.

The Reserve Account Credit Policies for the 2004C and 2005A Senior Consolidated System Bonds were issued by Financial
Guaranty Insurance Company. All of these Reserve Account Credit Policies are currently reinsured and administered by
National Public Finance Guarantee Corporation (“NPFG”).

Source: The District.

)
3)

The Senior Consolidated System Resolution requires that a Reserve Fund Credit Policy deposited in a
Senior Consolidated System Reserve Account must be from a financial institution whose senior unsecured debt
obligations or claims-paying ability is rated in the highest rating category by the Rating Agencies only as of the time
of delivery of such Reserve Fund Credit Policy. The Senior Consolidated System Resolution, however, does not
require that those ratings be maintained after the date of deposit.

Consolidated System Bonds
The Master Resolution established the Consolidated System Revenue Bonds Reserve Fund (the “Reserve

Fund”), and the Master Resolution authorizes the District to establish one or more reserve accounts in the Reserve
Fund (each, a “Reserve Account”), each of which may secure one or more Series of Bonds pursuant to the
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Supplemental Resolutions authorizing their issuance. The Reserve Fund and the Reserve Accounts therein are held
and administered by the Trustee. Each Reserve Account may be drawn upon for the sole purpose of paying the
Bonds and Payment Agreement Payments, if any, relating to the Bonds secured by such Reserve Account. Each
Reserve Account is to be maintained at all times at the aggregate Reserve Requirements for all Series of Bonds
secured by such Reserve Account. The District may satisfy its obligations to fund the Reserve Accounts with Bond
proceeds, other available funds of the District, authorized investments, one or more Reserve Account Credit
Facilities, or a combination thereof, in an aggregate amount equal to the aggregate Reserve Requirement for the
Bonds secured by such Reserve Account.

2008B Reserve Account. The Fourth Supplemental Resolution established the 2008B Reserve Account
to secure the 2008B Bonds, as well as any future Series of Bonds designated as a “2008B Reserve Account Series.”
Upon the delivery of the remarketed 2008B Bonds, the 2008B Reserve Account will be funded in the amount of
$972,225 (the “2008B Reserve Requirement”). The 2008B Reserve Account will continue to secure the 2008B
Bonds following the remarketing of the 2008B Bonds on the Mandatory Tender Date.

The District may satisfy its obligation to fund the 2008B Reserve Account through cash, a letter of credit,
insurance policy and/or surety bond meeting the requirements set forth in the Resolution, or a combination thereof,
in an aggregate amount equal to the 2008B Reserve Requirement.

Moneys in the 2008B Reserve Account may be used solely for the purpose of paying and securing the
payment of the principal and Purchase Price of and interest on the 2008B Bonds and any other 2008B Reserve
Account Series of Bonds. Moneys in the 2008B Reserve Account may not be used to pay the principal or Purchase
Price of or interest on any other Series of Bonds. The 2008B Reserve Account will be held by the Trustee. In the
event of the bankruptcy or insolvency of the District, a bankruptcy court may be able to direct the application of
moneys in the 2008B Reserve Account to other purposes. The Resolution does not require that any additional series
of Bonds be secured by the 2008B Reserve Account.

Reserve Account Credit Facilities. The Master Resolution defines “Reserve Account Credit Facility” as a
letter of credit, insurance policy, surety bond, or other credit facility provided to the Trustee by a bank, insurance
company or other financial institution whose senior unsecured debt obligations are, or whose claims-paying ability
is, rated in the highest rating category by each of at least two Rating Agencies, which provides for payment when
due, in accordance with the terms thereof, of the principal or redemption price of and/or interest on one or more
Series of Bonds or portion thereof. The Master Resolution does not require the District to replace or otherwise
address Reserve Account Credit Facilities upon downgrade of a Facility provider. No Bonds are currently secured
by a Reserve Account Credit Facility.

Combined District Systems

As of December 31, 2012, approximately 5% of the District’s aggregate reserve fund requirements for the
Senior Consolidated System, Consolidated System, Subordinate Consolidated System, Rock Island System and
Rocky Reach System are secured by reserve account credit policies or facilities, with the remaining 95% being
funded with cash and investments.

Rate Covenant

The District has covenanted in the Master Resolution to fix, establish, maintain and collect rates and
charges for electric power and energy, water, wastewater, fiber and telecommunications and other services, facilities
and commodities sold, furnished or supplied by or through the Consolidated System, which shall be fair and
nondiscriminatory and adequate to provide the District with Revenues in each Fiscal Year sufficient:

(a) To pay, to the extent not paid from Available Funds or other moneys of the Consolidated System,
(i) the Operation and Maintenance Expenses due and payable during such Fiscal Year; (ii)) Annual Debt Service on
the Bonds and the Senior Consolidated System Bonds due and payable in such Fiscal Year; (iii) the amounts, if any,
required to be deposited into the Reserve Fund and any debt service reserve fund for the Senior Consolidated
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System Bonds during such Fiscal Year; and (iv) any and all other amounts the District is obligated to pay or set
aside from the Revenues by law or contract in such Fiscal Year;

(b) Together with Available Funds, to provide a Bond Coverage Ratio of at least 1.25, and
(c) Excluding Available Funds, to provide a Bond Coverage Ratio of at least 1.0.

The District has also covenanted in the Master Resolution that it will fix, establish, maintain and collect
rates and charges for electric power and energy and other services, facilities and commodities sold, furnished or
supplied by or through the Rock Island System and the Rocky Reach System, respectively, which shall be adequate,
together with other available funds of the Rock Island System and the Rocky Reach System, respectively, to make
all required payments due from those systems to the Consolidated System, including any payments due on account
of loans or advances of funds from the Consolidated System to the Rock Island System and the Rocky Reach
System, respectively.

“Available Funds” means, as of any date of calculation, any unencumbered funds of the Consolidated
System, including cash and the book value of investments, held in the Rate Stabilization Fund, the Contingency
Reserve Fund, and any other similar capital or operating reserve or contingency fund hereafter designated by the
Commission, in each case that the District reasonably expects would be available, for all of the first full Fiscal Year
following the date of calculation, to pay principal of and interest on Bonds when due. See APPENDIX D—
“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution—Definitions”
for the definitions of other capitalized terms used above.

“Bond Coverage Ratio” for any Fiscal Year means the ratio of (a) Adjusted Net Revenues in such Fiscal
Year (plus Available Funds, to the extent provided herein), to (b) Annual Debt Service on the Outstanding Bonds
and Senior Consolidated System Bonds in such Fiscal Year.

“Adjusted Net Revenues” in any Fiscal Year means: (a)Net Revenues in such Fiscal Year, plus
(b) Withdrawals, if any, from the Rate Stabilization Fund that have been allocated to such Fiscal Year, less
(¢) Deposits, if any, into the Rate Stabilization Fund that have been allocated to such Fiscal Year.

“Contingency Reserve Fund” means the fund of that name previously established by the District within the
Consolidated System by Resolution No. 94-10052, adopted by the Commission on December 19, 1994, the moneys
in which are held in reserve and available in extraordinary circumstances to pay Operation and Maintenance
Expenses, principal of and interest on Bonds, and other costs of the Consolidated System.

See “—Rate Stabilization Fund” below and APPENDIX D—“Summary of Certain Provisions of the
Master Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution—Definitions” for the definitions of capitalized terms
used above.

Rate Stabilization Fund

The District created the Rate Stabilization Fund to be held and administered by the District pursuant to the
Master Resolution for the purpose of stabilizing rates and charges for retail customers of the Distribution Division.
Pursuant to the Master Resolution, the District is required to transfer from the Revenue Fund into the Rate
Stabilization Fund or from the Rate Stabilization Fund into the Revenue Fund such amounts, if any, as the District
determines from time to time. If such transfer is made within 90 days after the end of a Fiscal Year, the District may
allocate such transfer to the prior Fiscal Year rather than to the current Fiscal Year for purposes of complying with
certification requirements for the issuance of additional Bonds or with the District’s rate covenant. The Master
Resolution further provides that deposits into the Rate Stabilization Fund made prior to January 1, 2008, shall not be
taken into account for purposes of determining Adjusted Net Revenues for the current or preceding Fiscal Years.

The District may withdraw amounts from the Rate Stabilization Fund for any lawful purpose of the District

in the event the Commission determines that it is necessary or desirable to do so for purposes of stabilizing rates and
charges for retail customers of the Distribution Division.
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For purposes of determining whether the District is in compliance with its rate covenant or with the
required test for the issuance of additional bonds, deposits made into the Rate Stabilization Fund (excluding the
initial deposits made to the fund prior to January 1, 2008) are to be treated as an offset against Net Revenues and
withdrawals from the Rate Stabilization Fund will be added to Net Revenues.

On December 3, 2007, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 07-13198 establishing the District’s
policies regarding the Rate Stabilization Fund. Pursuant to such resolution, if, in connection with any fiscal year,
the District experiences an increase in revenues, decrease in operating expenses, or increase in net revenues of the
Consolidated System, or unencumbered balances available in the Consolidated System, the Commission is required
to consider whether to deposit revenues from the Revenue Fund or other moneys of the Consolidated System into
the Rate Stabilization Fund in an amount or amounts to be determined by the Commission. Such resolution further
provides, that if in connection with any fiscal year, the District experiences a decrease in revenues, increase in
operating expenses, or decrease in net revenues of the Consolidated System, the Commission is required to consider
whether to withdraw moneys from the Rate Stabilization Fund to the Revenue Fund in an amount or amounts to be
determined by the Commission.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 07-13198, amounts transferred from the Rate Stabilization Fund to the Revenue
Fund are required to be used for the following purposes in the following order of priority:

(1) To pay operating and maintenance expenses of the District;

2) To pay for capital costs of the Consolidated System otherwise expected to be paid from
revenues of the Consolidated System (other than as set forth below);

3) To pay any other costs of the Consolidated System otherwise expected to be paid from
revenues of the Consolidated System (other than as set forth below);

4 To pay debt service on bonds, notes or other obligations of the Consolidated System for
borrowed money the interest on which is taxable to the owners or holders thereof, or to make required deposits into
any reserve funds therefor;

(5) To make required deposits into any reserve funds for bonds, notes or other obligations of
the Consolidated System for borrowed money the interest on which is tax-exempt to the owners or holders thereof;
and

(6) To pay debt service on bonds, notes or other obligations of the Consolidated System for
borrowed money the interest on which is tax-exempt to the owners or holders thereof.

Resolution No. 07-13198 further provides that the District shall not transfer amounts from the Rate
Stabilization Fund to the Revenue Fund or other funds of the Consolidated System unless the Commission
reasonably determines that current rates and charges for the commodities and services provided by the Consolidated
System, excluding amounts in the Rate Stabilization Fund and other available funds of the District, are projected to
be sufficient to provide revenues to pay all operating expenses, debt service costs, planned capital expenditures and
any other amounts to be payable from the revenues of the Consolidated System, and to replenish such withdrawal to
the extent necessary or otherwise desirable from the Rate Stabilization Fund as soon as is reasonably practicable.

On December 31, 2007, the District made an initial deposit of $50 million from available funds of the
Consolidated System into the Rate Stabilization Fund, and as of September 30, 2012, the District continues to
maintain a balance of $50 million in the Rate Stabilization Fund. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—
Consolidated System Liquidity.”

Pursuant to Resolution No. 07-13198, it is the District’s policy to utilize the Rate Stabilization Fund as one
tool along with rate increases, surcharges, power adjustment clauses and other related revenue and expense action to
protect the District and its ratepayers from unexpected fluctuations in revenues and operating expenses of the
Consolidated System. In accordance with RCW 54.24.080 and pursuant to the Master Resolution, the District is
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required to fix, establish, maintain and collect rates and charges adequate to provide sufficient revenues in each year.
See “— Rate Covenant” under this heading.

See APPENDIX D—“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master Resolution and the 2008B
Supplemental Resolution—Definitions” for the definitions of capitalized terms used above.

Operating Reserve Fund

Pursuant to Resolution No. 07-13198, the District established a fund designated as the ‘“Public Utility
District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington, Operating Reserve Fund” (the “Operating Reserve Fund”) for the
purpose of mitigating unexpected fluctuations in revenues and operating expenses within the Consolidated System.

Such resolution provides that the District is required to transfer Consolidated System revenues in excess of
working capital needs from the Revenue Fund into the Operating Reserve Fund, or transfer amounts from the
Operating Reserve Fund into the Revenue Fund to cover working capital needs, as the District determines from time
to time, in order to maintain an adequate reserve for working capital purposes.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 07-13198, the District’s policy is to manage fluctuations in the unencumbered
balance in the Consolidated System Revenue Fund on a periodic basis to maintain an adequate working capital
balance. The District is authorized to transfer any funds in the Revenue Fund in excess of such needs to the
Operating Reserve Fund. The resolution provides that if moneys in the Revenue Fund fall below an adequate
working capital balance, the District is required to make a transfer or transfers from the Operating Reserve Fund to
the Revenue Fund sufficient to provide for such working capital needs.

On December 31, 2007, the District made an initial deposit of $52 million from available funds of the
Consolidated System into the Operating Reserve Fund. As of September 30, 2012, there was $57.7 million on
deposit in the Operating Reserve Fund. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Consolidated System Liquidity.”

Other Covenants

The District has covenanted in the Master Resolution to maintain, preserve and keep the properties of the
Consolidated System in good repair, working order and condition, to make all necessary and proper repairs,
renewals, replacements, additions, extensions and betterments thereto and to operate the properties and business of
the Consolidated System in an efficient manner and at a reasonable cost. In addition, the District has covenanted in
the Master Resolution to use its best efforts to obtain renewals of permits or licenses for the Consolidated System or
obtain new permits or licenses, unless such renewals or new permits or licenses are not, in the judgment of the
District, in the best interest of the District. See APPENDIX D—“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master
Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution—The Master Resolution—Certain Covenants.”

Sinking Funds for Balloon Bonds

The District has covenanted in the Master Resolution to establish and maintain a Balloon Sinking Fund, to
be held by the District, with respect to each Balloon Bond at least three (3) years prior to the maturity date,
mandatory redemption date, or date of mandatory tender for purchase of such Bonds in order to secure the payment
of the maturing Principal, including Accreted Value, Purchase Price or Redemption Price of such Bonds. The
Master Resolution requires the District to fund each such Balloon Sinking Fund in four equal annual installments of
one-fourth of such maturing Principal, Purchase Price or Redemption Price commencing not less than three (3) years
prior to such payment date, either (i) by deposits from Revenues or other available funds, or (ii) by obtaining one or
more Credit Facilities that provide for the payment of such maturing Principal, Purchase Price or Redemption Price.
Amounts in each such Balloon Sinking Fund are pledged to the payment of such Bonds on their maturity date,
mandatory redemption date, or date of mandatory tender for purchase, and are subject to the lien and charge of the
Master Resolution for the benefit of such Bonds. Any amounts in any such Balloon Sinking Fund not required on
the maturity date, mandatory redemption date, or date of mandatory tender for purchase may be used for any other
lawful purpose of the District. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Consolidated System Liquidity,” footnote 2 to
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Table 16 in “—Annual Debt Service,” and APPENDIX D—*“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master
Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution—Definitions” for definitions of capitalized terms.

Additional Balloon Indebtedness of the District

The District has issued, and there are outstanding, under the Senior Consolidated System Resolution
several series of Senior Consolidated System Bonds, the full principal amounts of which come due at maturity. The
Senior Consolidated System Resolution defines “Excluded Principal Amounts” to include (i) the Final Compounded
Amount of any Capital Appreciation Bond (each as defined in the Senior Consolidated System Resolution)
designated as an “Excluded Principal Amount” in a Supplemental Resolution (as defined in the Senior Consolidated
System Resolution), (ii) the principal amount of any Tender Obligations (as defined in the Senior Consolidated
System Resolution), and (iii) as of the date of calculation, that portion of the principal amount of any series of
Senior Consolidated System Bonds which is not required to be amortized by purchase or redemption prior to
maturity, and which is designated as an Excluded Principal Payment Amount in a Supplemental Resolution (as
defined in the Senior Consolidated System Resolution). The District has covenanted in the Senior Consolidated
System Resolution to establish with respect to each Excluded Principal Payment, at least three years prior to the
maturity date or date of mandatory tender for purchase for such Senior Consolidated System Bonds, a sinking fund
for the payment of the maturing principal amount, accreted value or purchase price of the such series of Senior
Consolidated System Bonds. The Senior Consolidated System Resolution provides that the District is required to
fund each such sinking fund either by depositing, from Revenues or other available funds, in four equal annual
installments of one-fourth of such maturating principal amount, accreted value or purchase price commencing not
less than three years prior to such payment date, or by obtaining a Credit Facility (as defined in the Senior
Consolidated System Resolution) that provides for the payment of such maturing principal, Accreted Value or
purchase price. See APPENDIX C—“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Senior Consolidated Resolution—
Definitions” and “—The Senior Consolidated System Resolution—Sinking Funds; Working Capital and
Contingency Funds” and “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Consolidated System Liquidity” and footnote 2 to
Table 16 in “—Annual Debt Service” and footnote 4 to Table 14 in “—Outstanding Debt.”

The currently outstanding Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations constitute “Balloon Bonds” under
the Subordinate Consolidated System Resolution. Pursuant to the Subordinate Consolidated System Resolution,
“Balloon Bonds” means the aggregate principal of Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations of a series
(including capital appreciation bonds) that becomes due and payable, either at scheduled maturity, by mandatory
sinking fund payment or by mandatory tender for purchase, in any fiscal year constitutes 25% or more of the initial
aggregate principal of such series of Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations. Unlike the District’s obligations
under the Senior Consolidated System Resolution to establish a Sinking Fund prior to maturity with respect to
Excluded Principal Payments (each as defined in the Senior Consolidated System Resolution) or under the
Resolution to establish a Balloon Bond Sinking Fund prior to maturity with respect to a series of Balloon Bonds, the
District is not obligated under the Subordinate Consolidated System Resolution to set aside funds prior to maturity
of a Series of Balloon Bonds.

The 2009A/B Subordinate Notes will mature in the aggregate principal amount of $28,970,000 on July 1,
2014. There are no credit or liquidity facilities in place to pay the maturing principal amounts of the Subordinate
Consolidated System Obligations. Although the District is not required under the Subordinate Consolidated System
Resolution to set aside funds in a “sinking fund” prior to the respective maturity dates of such Subordinate
Consolidated System Obligations, the District’s liquidity policy requires that the District set aside funds available to
pay the maturing principal amounts of the Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations. The District is setting
aside funds to pay at maturity the principal amounts of the currently outstanding Subordinate Consolidated System
Obligations in four equal annual installments, commencing three years prior to the respective maturity dates of each
series of Subordinate Consolidated System Obligation, consistent with the requirements of the Master Resolution for
paying Balloon Bonds.

Authorized Investments

All moneys in any of the funds and accounts held by the Trustee, Treasurer or any Fiscal Agent and
established pursuant to the Master Resolution may be invested in any obligation or investment in which the District
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may legally invest its funds. For a description of the District’s current investment policies and practices, see
“FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Investment Policies.”

Contingent Payment Obligations

The District has entered into, and may in the future enter into, contracts and agreements in the course of its
business that include an obligation on the part of the District to make payments or post collateral contingent upon
the occurrence or nonoccurrence of certain future events, including events that are beyond the direct control of the
District. The amount of any such contingent payments or collateral requirements may be substantial. To the extent
that the District did not have sufficient funds on hand to make any such payment, it is likely that the District would
seek to borrow such amounts through the issuance of additional Bonds or otherwise.

These contracts and agreements may include interest rate swap and other similar agreements, power
purchase agreements, including those with “mark-to-market” collateral requirements, commodities futures contracts
with respect to the delivery of electric energy or capacity, investment agreements, including for the future delivery
of specified securities, energy price swap and similar agreements, other financial and energy hedging transactions,
and other such contracts and agreements. Any such payments, or portions thereof, which are subject to
characterization as Operation and Maintenance Expenses, would be payable from Revenues prior to the payment of
debt service on the Bonds. Other such payments may be payable on a parity with debt service on the Bonds,
including any Payment Agreement Payment to a Qualified Counterparty, as such term is defined in the Master
Resolution. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Consolidated System Payment Agreements.”

The purposes for such contracts and agreements may include management of the District’s exposure to
future changes in interest rates and energy prices, management of the District’s load/resource balance, and other
purposes. Such contingent payments or the required posting of collateral may be conditioned upon the future credit
ratings of the District and/or other parties to the agreements, maintenance by the District of specified financial ratios,
future changes in electric energy or related prices, and other factors. See “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—
Consolidated System Energy Resources” and “—Wholesale Power Management Activity.”

Given the strength of the District’s financial metrics and credit ratings and the terms of the District’s
negotiated credit agreements for power marketing activities, the District does not currently anticipate that it would
be exposed to substantial contingent payment or collateral requirements. The District cannot guarantee, however,
that power purchase or power sales contracts entered into by the District in the future will not expose the District to
substantial contingent payment or collateral requirements. To help mitigate this risk, the District entered into the
Credit Agreement, which can be drawn upon to satisfy any collateral requirements the District may have in
connection with its electricity hedging activities.

Addition of Separate Systems

Pursuant to the Master Resolution, the District may add to the Consolidated System at any time any other
separate utility system of the District and any other facilities or systems of the District that the District is authorized
by law to own and operate. The District does not currently anticipate adding any facilities or systems to the
Consolidated System.

Certain Provisions of the Master Resolution Relating to Credit Facility Provider Rights

Pursuant to the Master Resolution, except as otherwise provided in the Supplemental Resolution
authorizing the issuance of a Series of Bonds, if the Credit Facility Provider with respect to such Series of Bonds is
not in default in respect of any of its obligations under the Credit Facility securing such Series of Bonds, then:
(a) such Credit Facility Provider shall be deemed to be the Owner of such Series of Bonds at all times for the
purposes of (i) giving any approval or consent to the effectiveness of any Supplemental Resolution other than a
Supplemental Resolution providing for (A)a change in the terms of redemption, purchase or maturity of the
principal of any Outstanding Bond of such Series or any interest thereon or a reduction the Principal amount,
Purchase Price or Redemption Price thereof or in the rate of interest thereon, or (B) a reduction in the percentage of
Owners required to approve or consent to the effectiveness of any Supplemental Resolution, and (ii) giving any
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approval or consent or exercising any remedies in connection with the occurrence of an Event of Default; (b) any
amendment to the Master Resolution requiring the consent of Owners of such Series of Bonds shall also require the
prior written consent of such Credit Facility Provider; and (c) any amendment to the Master Resolution not requiring
the consent of Owners of such Series of Bonds shall require the prior written consent of such Credit Facility
Provider if its rights shall be materially and adversely affected by such amendment. See APPENDIX D—
“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution—The Master
Resolution—Credit Facility Provider Rights.”

“Credit Facility” means a letter of credit, line of credit, or other credit or liquidity facility provided by a
financial institution or insurance company, including municipal bond insurance and guarantees, delivered to the
Trustee for a Series of Bonds or portion thereof, which provides for payment, in accordance with the terms thereof,
of the Principal, Purchase Price and/or Redemption Price of and/or interest on such Series of Bonds or portion
thereof.

“Credit Facility Provider” means the financial institution or insurance company that is providing a Credit
Facility. See APPENDIX D—“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master Resolution and the 2008B
Supplemental Resolution—Definitions” for definitions of other capitalized terms used above. The 2008B Credit
Facility does not constitute a “Credit Facility” for the foregoing purposes, nor does the Bank constitute a “Credit
Facility Provider” for such purposes.

THE BANK AND THE 2008B CREDIT FACILITY
The Bank

The Bank is a full-service commercial bank providing an array of financial services to individuals, small
businesses, middle-market companies, and major corporations. The Bank operates 402 branches and 607 ATMs in
California, Oregon, Washington, Texas, Illinois, and New York, as well as two international offices. The Bank
serves corporate clients across the country, and has a retail customer base of approximately 1 million households.

The Bank is the primary subsidiary of UnionBanCal Corporation (“UnionBanCal”), the second-largest
commercial bank holding company headquartered in California, based on assets of $88.2 billion at September 30,
2012. UnionBanCal is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., and a member of the
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG, NYSE:MTU), one of the world’s largest financial organizations.

For the quarter ending September 30, 2012, UnionBanCal had loans totaling $54.7 billion, total assets of
$88.2 billion and total deposits of $65.1 billion. Net income was $124 million, down from $187 million for the prior
quarter, and down from $172 million for the year-ago quarter. Copies of the latest annual report and the most recent
quarterly report may be obtained at www.unionbank.com ” or at the Bank’s Los Angeles office, located at 445 South
Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, California 90071.

The 2008B Credit Facility

The following description is a summary of certain provisions of the 2008B Credit Facility. Such summary
does not purport to be a complete description or restatement of the material provisions of the 2008B Credit Facility.
Investors should obtain and review a copy of the 2008B Credit Facility to understand all of the terms of the 2008B
Credit Facility.

General
The 2008B Credit Facility provides that, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such 2008B Credit

Facility, the Bank shall extend credit to the District through the purchase of 2008B Bonds tendered or deemed
tendered pursuant to the 2008B Supplemental Resolution (as more fully defined in the 2008B Credit Facility,

* Information about the Bank or other matters on the Bank’s web site is not incorporated herein by this reference.
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“Tendered Bonds™). The 2008B Credit Facility is scheduled to expire on March 2, 2016 (the “Stated Expiration
Date”), unless extended or terminated pursuant to its terms.

Under certain circumstances described below, the obligation of the Bank to purchase Tendered Bonds may
be immediately suspended or terminated without notice to the owners of the 2008B Bonds. In such event, sufficient
funds may not be available to purchase Tendered Bonds. In addition, the 2008B Credit Facility does not provide
support or security for the payment of regularly scheduled principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the 2008B
Bonds.

Purchase of Tendered Bonds by the Bank

The Bank will purchase from time to time Tendered Bonds during the period from and including March 6,
2013 (following the mandatory tender of the 2008B Bonds), to and including the Stated Expiration Date (unless
earlier terminated pursuant to the terms of the 2008B Credit Facility). The price to be paid by the Bank for the
Tendered Bonds will be equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Tendered Bonds, provided that the aggregate
principal amount of such Tendered Bonds so purchased shall not exceed the Available Principal Commitment (as
defined in the 2008B Credit Facility), plus the lesser of (i) the Available Interest Commitment (as defined in the
2008B Credit Facility) and (ii) interest accrued thereon to the date of such purchase.

Events of Default

Event of Termination. The 2008B Credit Facility provides that it will be an “Event of
Termination” if the Rating Agencies (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) shall (i) reduce their long-term
unenhanced ratings assigned to the 2008B Bonds or any other Bonds (as further defined in the 2008B Credit Facility
and for purposes of this section of this Remarketing Memorandum, “Parity Bonds”) below Investment Grade (as
defined in the 2008B Credit Facility), or (ii) suspend or withdraw their long-term ratings assigned to the 2008B
Bonds or any Parity Bonds other than as a result of (A) debt maturity, redemption or defeasance, or (B) in the case
of the 2008B Bonds or other Parity Bonds supported by credit enhancement, the reduction, suspension or
withdrawal of the long-term ratings assigned to the Bank or to the other related credit enhancer.

Events of Default Resulting in Immediate Termination. Each of the following events
constitutes an “Event of Default” under the 2008 B Credit Facility:

(a) the District shall fail to pay when due any principal or interest on the 2008B Bonds or
any Credit Facility Provider Bond (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) (other than such principal or interest
which is part of the Purchase Price (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) of any Tendered Bonds); or

(b) the District shall fail to pay when due (whether by scheduled maturity, required
prepayment or acceleration) any Parity Bonds (subject to certain exceptions contained in the 2008B Credit Facility)
or any interest thereon, and such failure shall continue beyond any applicable period of grace specified in any
underlying resolution, indenture, contract or instrument pursuant to which such Parity Bonds have been issued; or

(©) one or more final, nonappealable money judgments against the District payable from the
Revenues which, individually or in the aggregate, equal or exceed $20,000,000 shall remain unpaid, unstayed,
undischarged, unbonded or undismissed for a period exceeding the later of (i) that permitted by State law and (ii)
sixty (60) days; or

(d) the District shall (i) commence any case, proceeding or other action under any existing or
future law of any jurisdiction relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or relief of debtors, seeking to have
an order for relief entered with respect to it, or seeking to adjudicate it as bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking
reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, winding up, liquidation, dissolution, composition or other relief with
respect to it or its Debts (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility); or (ii) commence any case, proceeding or other
action seeking appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for all or any substantial
part of its assets, or make a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or (iii) have commenced against it any
case, proceeding or other action of a nature described in clause (i) above which (A) results in an order for such relief
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or in the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official, or (B) remains undismissed,
undischarged or unbonded for a period of sixty (60) days; or (iv) take any action in furtherance of, or indicating its
consent to, approval of, or acquiescence in, any of the acts summarized in clauses (i), (i), (iii) or (iv) of this
paragraph (d); or (v) become insolvent within the meaning of Section 101(32) of the United States Bankruptcy
Code; or

(e) any provision of the 2008B Credit Facility, the 2008B Bonds or the Resolution relating to
(i) the obligation of the District to pay, when due, the principal or interest payable on the 2008B Bonds or any Parity
Bonds or (ii) the Lien (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) on or pledge of the Revenues securing the 2008B
Bonds or any Parity Bonds shall (A) cease to be valid and binding on the District or shall be declared to be null and
void, invalid or unenforceable as the result of a final nonappealable judgment by any federal or state court or as a
result of any legislative or administrative action by any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the District,
or (B) be repudiated or otherwise denied by the District; or

63} a debt moratorium or comparable extraordinary restriction on repayment of debt shall
have been declared or announced by the District (whether or not in writing) or any governmental authority with
appropriate jurisdiction in a finding or ruling with respect to the 2008B Bonds or all Parity Bonds.

Events of Default not Resulting in Immediate Termination or Suspension. Each of the
following will constitute an “Event of Default” under the 2008B Credit Facility:

(a) Misrepresentation. Any material representation made by the District under the 2008B
Credit Facility shall prove to be untrue in any material respect on the date as of which it was made; or

(b) Non Payment of Fees. The District shall fail to pay any amounts when due under the
2008B Credit Facility or the Fee Agreement (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) (other than those described in
paragraph (a) under the subheading “—Events of Default Resulting in Immediate Termination” above) which failure
is not remedied within ten (10) business days after the Trustee and the District have received written notice thereof
from the Bank; or

(©) Certain Breaches. The District shall breach any of the terms or provisions of certain
covenants in the 2008B Credit Facility, subject to certain qualifications therein; or

(d) Other Breaches. The District shall breach any other terms or provisions of the 2008B
Credit Facility which breach is not remedied within thirty (30) days after the District has received written notice
thereof from the Bank; or

(e) Invalidity. Any material provision of the 2008B Credit Facility or any Related
Document (other than as described in paragraph (e) under the subheading “—Events of Default Resulting in
Immediate Termination” above) shall at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on the District or shall
be declared to be null and void, or the validity or enforceability thereof shall be contested by the District or by any
governmental authority having jurisdiction; or

63} Cross Default. The occurrence of any “event of default” by the District (after giving
effect to any applicable cure period) as defined in the Resolution (which is not waived pursuant to the terms thereof)
which is not otherwise described under this subheading, “Events of Default not Resulting in Immediate Termination
or Suspension,” which would permit the acceleration of any Parity Bonds, other than the failure of the Bank to
provide funds for the purchase of Tendered Bonds when required by the terms and conditions of the 2008B Credit
Facility; or

(2) Other Debt. The District shall default in the payment of or performance under any Debt

in a principal amount of $20,000,000 or more, and such default permits the acceleration of the payment of such
principal; or
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(h) Swap Contracts. The District shall default in the payment of any amount under any
Swap Contract (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) and such default causes a termination of the Swap Contract
and gives rise to an obligation of the District to make a termination payment aggregating in excess of $20,000,000.

Suspension Event. The 2008B Credit Facility provides that it will be a “Suspension Event” under
the 2008B Credit Facility if there shall have been commenced against the District any case, proceeding or other
action under the United States Bankruptcy Code seeking to adjudicate it as bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking
reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, winding up, liquidation, dissolution, composition or other relief with
respect to it, which remains undismissed, undischarged or unbonded and fewer than sixty (60) days shall have
elapsed from the commencement of such case, proceeding or other action.

Remedies

The following are remedies available to the Bank under the 2008B Credit Facility upon the occurrence of
certain Events of Termination, Events of Default and Suspension Events thereunder:

Immediate Termination. In the case of any Event of Termination or Event of Default described
under “—Event of Default—Event of Termination” or “—Event of Default—Events of Default Resulting in
Immediate Termination” above, the Available Commitment (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) and Purchase
Period (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) and the obligation of the Bank to purchase 2008B Bonds shall
immediately terminate without notice or demand, and thereafter the Bank shall be under no obligation to purchase
2008B Bonds. Promptly upon the Bank obtaining knowledge of any such Event of Termination or Event of Default,
the Bank is required to give written notice of the same to the Trustee, the District and the Remarketing Agent;
provided, that the Bank shall incur no liability or responsibility whatsoever by reason of its failure to give such
notice and such failure shall in no manner affect the termination of the Bank’s Available Commitment and of its
obligation to purchase 2008B Bonds pursuant to the 2008B Credit Facility.
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Suspension — Involuntary Proceedings. Upon the occurrence of any Suspension Event
described under the subheading “—Event of Default—Suspension Events” above, the obligation of the Bank to
under the 2008B Credit Facility to purchase Tendered Bonds shall be immediately suspended until the case,
proceeding or other action referred to therein is terminated prior to the court entering an order granting the relief
sought. In the event such case, proceeding or other actions is so terminated, the obligation of the Bank under the
2008B Credit Facility to purchase Tendered Bonds shall be reinstated and the terms of the 2008B Credit Facility
will continue in full force and effect (unless the obligation of the Bank under the 2008B Credit Facility to purchase
Tendered Bonds shall have otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of the 2008B Credit Facility) as if
there had been no such suspension.

Termination with Notice. In the case of any Event of Default described under the subheading
“—Event of Default--Events of Default not Resulting in Immediate Termination or Suspension” above, the Bank
may terminate the Available Commitment and Purchase Period and the obligation of the Bank to purchase Tendered
Bonds by giving written notice (a “Notice of Termination”) to the Trustee, the District and the Remarketing Agent,
specifying the date on which the Available Commitment and Purchase Period shall terminate, which shall be not less
than thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice by the Trustee, and on and after the Purchase
Termination Date (as defined in the 2008B Credit Facility), the Bank shall be under no further obligation to
purchase Tendered Bonds under the 2008B Credit Facility.

Other Remedies. In addition to the rights and remedies summarized in the preceding paragraphs
under this subheading “—Remedies,” in the case of any Event of Termination or Event of Default specified under
the “—Event of Termination,” “—Events of Default Resulting in Immediate Termination” or “—Events of Default
not Resulting in Immediate Termination or Suspension” under the subheading “—Events of Default” above, upon
the election of the Bank: (i) all accrued amounts payable under the 2008B Credit Facility (other than payments of
principal and redemption price of and interest on the Bonds or payments of Excess Bond Interest (as defined in the
2008B Credit Facility)) shall upon notice to the District become immediately due and payable without presentment,
demand, protest or further notice of any kind, all of which are expressly waived by the District; and (ii) the Bank
shall have all the rights and remedies available to it under the 2008B Credit Facility, the Related Documents (as
defined in the 2008B Credit Facility) or otherwise pursuant to law or equity; provided, however, that the Bank shall
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not have the right to terminate its obligation to purchase 2008B Bonds or to declare any amount due under the
2008B Credit Facility due and payable except as provided in the 2008B Credit Facility, or to accelerate the maturity
date of any 2008B Bonds. The provisions of the 2008B Credit Facility described in this paragraph shall not limit the
exercise of any of the Bank’s other remedies described under this subheading “—Remedies.”

THE DISTRICT
General

The District is a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, located in central Washington
approximately 138 miles east of Seattle and 165 miles west of Spokane. The District was established in 1936 and
began electric utility operations in 1947. In addition to its Distribution Division (mentioned below), which primarily
serves Chelan County (the “County”), the District also owns, operates and maintains three major hydroelectric
power generating projects: the Lake Chelan Project, the Rocky Reach Project and the Rock Island Project
(collectively, the “Hydro-Electric Projects”). The District obtains most of its retail power supply from its three
Hydro-Electric Projects, which have a combined nameplate rating of 1,988 MW. For the year ended December 31,
2011, the Hydro-Electric Projects collectively produced 10,872,000 MWh of power at an average cost of generation
of $15 per MWh. Comparable information for 2012 is not yet available. For the same period, the “average adjusted
wholesale” preference rate for Bonneville Power Administration (“Bonneville”) customers was $35 per MWh and
the Mid-Columbia Electricity Price Index average was $24 per MWh. The District also owns and operates the
Water System, the Wastewater System and the Fiber and Telecommunications System, which serve portions of the
County. The District has its administrative offices in Wenatchee, Washington.

Under Washington law, the District has the authority to establish separate enterprise funds with respect to
its various municipal utility business operations, each of which enterprise funds is accounted for separately. In
addition, those utility business operations that generate revenues (known as “systems”) can be separately financed
through the issuance of debt by the District payable solely from revenues of that particular system. The District
currently has three systems through which it issues debt: the Rock Island System, the Rocky Reach System, and the
“Consolidated System.” The Consolidated System currently includes (i) the District’s retail electric utility business
operations (referred to as the “Distribution Division”), (ii) the Lake Chelan Project, (iii) the Fiber and
Telecommunications System, (iv) the Water System, and (v) the Wastewater System. Although these systems have
been consolidated into the Consolidated System for financing purposes, all of these systems are accounted for
separately and only the four utility business operations have been combined for financial statement reporting
purposes. The District also has two enterprise funds, the Internal Service Fund and the Treasury Service Fund,
which are used to account for administrative, financing and other costs allocable to more than one system.

Under almost all power production and hydrological conditions, the District’s shares of the output of the
three Hydro-Electric Projects are sufficient to meet the District’s retail load requirements. The District has never
failed to meet its retail load requirements, and generally the Distribution Division is a net seller of power. During
periods of extremely low water conditions or unusually high peak energy demand, the reserved share of the Hydro-
Electric Projects can be insufficient to meet retail load requirements for relatively limited periods. The extent and
duration of these shortfalls are estimated in advance by the District’s power planners. On these occasions the
District buys power on the wholesale market to meet the District’s retail load requirements. According to the
Average Service Reliability Index (defined as the year-to-date efficiency of the distribution system to deliver electric
energy to the District’s customers), the District’s reliability in 2011 was 99.98%, in 2010 was 99.98% and in 2009
was 99.99%. Reliability information for the year ended December 31, 2012 is not yet available.

The Consolidated System’s Distribution Division consists of the District’s properties and assets used in
distributing electric energy throughout the County. The Consolidated System also includes the Lake Chelan Project,
but neither the Rocky Reach System nor the Rock Island System is part of the Consolidated System. The revenues
of the Rocky Reach System and the Rock Island System are not part of the Revenues of the Consolidated System.
In 1992, the District consolidated its Water System and Wastewater System into what is now called the
Consolidated System, preserving, however, substantial flexibility as to the future use of the revenues of such
Systems. The District also owns a small hydroelectric project in Stehekin to serve electric customers in a remote
portion of the District. This generating project is included in the Distribution Division but not as part of the
District’s Hydro-Electric Projects.
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Pursuant to the Enabling Act, the District is empowered, among other things, to (1) purchase electric
energy, (2) sell electric energy at wholesale and retail, (3) acquire, construct and operate electric generating plants
and transmission and distribution facilities, and (4) issue revenue obligations for the purpose of financing the
acquisition and construction of electric properties and for other corporate purposes. The Enabling Act also requires
the District to establish, maintain and collect rates and charges for service which will be fair and nondiscriminatory
and adequate to provide revenues sufficient to pay its revenue obligations and the maintenance and operating costs
of its electric facilities and renewals and replacements thereto. In addition, the Enabling Act authorizes the District
to issue general obligation bonds and to levy a limited property tax.

Cities in the District’s service area have statutory authority to provide electric service. No cities, however,
currently do so, nor is the District aware of any city or utility that is considering providing such electric service in
the County. The District also has statutory rights of eminent domain that, subject to certain limitations, enable the
District to acquire various assets and property rights, including electric distribution facilities in the County of any
investor-owned utility company that may seek to serve the County.

Under Washington law, public utility districts (such as the District) are authorized to provide retail
electrical service beyond their boundaries. The District does provide retail electrical service to a limited number of
customers beyond its boundaries; however, no other public utility districts provide retail electrical service within the
District’s boundaries.

Management and Administration

Pursuant to Washington statutes, the District is administered by a Commission of five elected members
serving staggered four- and six-year terms. Three of the commissioners are elected from districts (six-year terms)
and two are elected at-large (four-year terms). A Commissioner holds office until his or her successor has been
elected and has qualified for office. The legal responsibilities and powers of the District, including the
establishment of rates and charges for services rendered, are exercised through the Commission. The Commission
also acts as a board of directors and establishes policy, approves plans, budgets and expenditures, and reviews the
District’s operations, including hiring the General Manager.

The present Commissioners of the District are as follows:

Carnan Bergren, President, is currently serving his second term as Commissioner, which expires on
December 31, 2016. Mr. Bergren is a life-long Wenatchee Valley resident who spent his career in tree fruit
production and marketing. Mr. Bergren was involved in rural community growth issues before running for election
to the Commission.

Ann Congdon, Vice President, is currently serving her second term as Commissioner, which expires on
December 31, 2016. Ms. Congdon serves on the member board of Energy Northwest, a joint operating agency that
operates the Columbia Generating Station and the Nine Canyon Wind Project. She has served on several boards
locally and is a retired educator and a businesswoman.

Dennis Bolz, Secretary, is currently serving his second term as Commissioner, which expires on
December 31, 2014. Mr. Bolz has served on several committees, boards, and policy groups and worked in public
school education for 31 years.

Randy Smith, Commissioner, is currently serving his second term as Commissioner, which expires on
December 31, 2018. Mr. Smith represents the District as a delegate to the American Public Power Association.
Mr. Smith is an orchardist and has served on the boards of several community, business and national organizations.

Norman Gutzwiler, Immediate Past President, is currently serving his second term as Commissioner,
which expires on December 31, 2014. Mr. Gutzwiler serves as the District’s delegate to the Northwest Public Power
Association and serves on numerous advisory boards and commissions at the local, state and national level. Mr.
Gutzwiler’s background is in horticultural consulting and orcharding.
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Senior management of the District includes the following individuals:

John Janney, General Manager, was appointed to his present position in August 2010. He previously
served as Executive Manager — Finance-Risk Group / CFO-CRO. Mr. Janney began his career in the banking
industry, including service at the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston and the Federal Reserve System Board of
Governors in Washington, D.C. In 1997, he began working in the energy and utilities industry, assuming
increasingly responsible positions in finance, risk and commercial sales and trading at integrated utility companies
in the upper Midwest and Western United States and at privately held energy firms. Mr. Janney first joined the
District in 2007. Mr. Janney is a certified Financial Risk Manager and holds a master’s degree in finance from
Boston College.

On February 12, 2013, Mr. Janney announced that he would be leaving the District to spend more time with
his family and in serving his church. Mr. Janney has agreed to continue as General Manager until August 1, 2013 so
that the District will have time to select a new General Manager without disrupting District operations. The District
expects to begin the search for a new General Manager in the next several weeks.

Kelly Boyd, Chief Financial/Risk Officer / CFO-CRO, was appointed to her present position in
September 2010. She previously served as Director — Strategic Financial Planning Division, Accounting Manager,
Internal Auditor and Business Advisor. Ms. Boyd has been employed by the District since September 1993. She
began her career at the public accounting firm of PriceWaterhouse and is a certified public accountant.

Gregg Carrington, Energy Resources Managing Director, was appointed to his current position in June
2011. He previously served as Managing Director of Environmental Resources, Director of External Affairs,
Director of Hydro Services (Engineering) and Director of Licensing and Compliance. Mr. Carrington has been
employed by the District since 1997. Prior to joining the District, he was the Regional Director for a consulting
company, Licensing and Compliance Manager for a private utility, and he began his career as an engineer for a
private consulting company. Mr. Carrington is a licensed professional engineer and holds a masters degree in
engineering from Clarkson University.

Mike Coleman, Fiber & Telecommunications Managing Director, was appointed in August 2012. Mr.
Coleman began his career in the telecommunications industry with Southwestern Bell Telephone/SBC where he
held increasingly responsible positions in network operations, sales and engineering at the executive level. Mr.
Coleman holds a bachelors degree in engineering and an MBA.

Kirk Hudson, Generation & Transmission Managing Director, was appointed to his current position in
June 2011. He previously served as Managing Director of Operations, Managing Director of Utility Services,
Director of Transmission and Distribution, Supervisor of Project Controls, and Engineering Supervisor. Mr. Hudson
has been employed by the District since July 1997. He began his career in the Engineering and Environmental
consulting industry in 1990 and is a licensed Civil Engineer in the State of Washington.

Jeff Smith, District Services Managing Director, was appointed to his present position in August 2012.
He previously served as Director of External Affairs, Director of Community & Intergovernmental Relations,
Enterprise Business Solutions Project Manager, Customer Accounting Supervisor and Public Information Officer.
Mr. Smith has been employed by the District since February 1988. He began his career at KIRO Broadcasting in
Seattle.

John Stoll, Customer Utilities Managing Director, was appointed to his current position in June 2011.
Mr. Stoll previously served as Director of Customer Service and Distribution, Materials Superintendent, Budget
Supervisor and System Accountant. Mr. Stoll has been employed by District since May 1998. He began his career
in the accounting profession in 1994 and has passed the Washington State certified public accounting exam.

Carol A. Wardell, General Counsel / CCO, was appointed to her position in March 1998. Ms. Wardell
has practiced law for over 30 years. Prior to joining the District, Ms. Wardell served as a State of Washington
Superior Court Judge (general jurisdiction court). Before assuming the bench, Ms. Wardell represented the District.
In 2007, she was appointed Chief Compliance Officer responsible for the District’s compliance programs.
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Employees

As of September 30, 2012, the total number of District employees was 710, including some seasonal
employees. Of these employees, 286 hold management, administrative and professional positions and 424 are part
of a bargaining unit represented by Local 77 of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers. On March 19,
2012, the Commission approved a three-year collective bargaining agreement with Local 77, which was ratified by
the bargaining unit employees on February 28, 2012. The agreement between the District and Local 77 includes pay
increases for bargaining unit employees of 1.00% effective April 1, 2012, 1.50% effective April 1, 2013, and 1.50%
effective April 1, 2014, plus additional increases for apprenticable positions of 0.25% effective April 1, 2012, 1.25%
effective April 1, 2013, and 1.50% effective April 1, 2014. The District has never experienced any work stoppages
or slowdowns. The District considers its over-all employee relations to be good.

Pension Plans

General. Substantially all of the District’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in the
Washington State Public Employees Retirement System (“PERS”), administered by the State. The Legislature,
rather than participating local government employers, determines pension benefits for participants in PERS.

The following information regarding PERS was derived from the 2011 Valuation Report (mentioned below)
and from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Washington Department of Retirement System Funds
of the State of Washington for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 (the “2012 Retirement Fund Audit”). The
District believes such information to be reliable, but the District does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of
such information.

PERS. PERS is a multiple-employer, cost-sharing public employee retirement system operated by the
State. PERS is comprised of three separate plans for membership and benefit purposes (“PERS 1,” “PERS 2” and
“PERS 3”). See Note 8 in the District’s audited financial statements in APPENDIX A for a description of PERS
benefits and eligibility requirements for these plans.

PERS 1 is closed to employees hired after September 30, 1977. Eligible employees hired after that date are
members of either PERS 2 or PERS 3. The District is one of almost 1,200 governmental employers that participate
in PERS. As of June 30, 2011, 79,363 retireces and beneficiaries were receiving benefits under PERS, 29,925
terminated plan members were entitled to, but not yet receiving, benefits and 152,417 were active plan members.
Benefits for active members in PERS 1 or PERS 2 vest after five years of service and in PERS 3 after 10 years
unless they qualify for early vesting after five years.

PERS 1 and PERS 2 are defined benefit plans, and PERS 3 is a hybrid plan that includes defined benefits
and a defined contribution component. PERS 1 and PERS 2 and the defined benefit portion of PERS 3 are defined
benefit plans in which member benefits are specified in advance and are payable from assets of the respective plans.
Unlike in a defined contribution plan, where the employer’s liability is limited to making its specified contribution
and the employee takes the risk that the contributions and investment income thereon will generate sufficient
retirement income, in a defined benefit plan the employer takes the risk that contributions and investment income
will be sufficient in the future to pay the promised benefits. PERS 1 and PERS 2 are funded by a combination of
investment earnings and employer and employee contributions, and the defined benefit component of PERS 3 is
funded by employer contributions and investment earnings. Employee contributions and investment earnings
finance the defined contribution component of the PERS 3 plan, and the defined contribution retirement benefits
depend solely upon the results of investment earnings. The Washington State Investment Board (the “WSIB”)
estimates that approximately 75 to 80 percent of PERS assets are derived from investment income.

Employers are not liable directly for and do not guarantee the obligations of PERS, but as described below
employer contribution rates for defined benefit plans may increase if assets are, or are projected to be, insufficient to

pay promised benefits.

The WSIB directs the investment of retirement system assets and invests all retirement funds in a single
pool, referred to as the Commingled Trust Fund (the “CTF”). Although in general assets from one plan may not be
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used to fund benefits from another plan, the defined benefit portions of PERS 2 and PERS 3 are accounted for in the
same fund and all assets of the combined PERS 2/3 defined benefit plan may be used to pay defined benefits of
PERS 2 or PERS 3 members.

Actuarial Valuation, Funding Policy and Assumptions

Actuarial Valuation. Actuarial valuations are prepared on a plan-wide basis and not for individual
employers. The Office of the State Actuary (the “OSA”) is required to provide an actuarial valuation of each
retirement system, including PERS, every two years. In practice, however, the OSA provides valuations annually,
although only the valuations for odd-numbered years (which are released during the following even-numbered year)
are used to calculate contribution rates. In those even-numbered years, the OSA provides its preliminary results and
recommended contribution rates to the Select Committee on Pension Policy, a committee of the Legislature (the
“SCPP”), and to the Pension Funding Council (“PFC”). See “--Contribution Rates” below.

In September 2012, the OSA released an actuarial valuation for June 30, 2011 (the “2011
Valuation Report”). The primary purposes of the 2011 Valuation Report are to determine contribution rates that
would be sufficient to fund the State’s retirement plans, including PERS, under the funding policy established by the
Legislature and to provide information on the funding progress and developments in the plans over the State fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011. Washington statutes require that valuation reports that are used in determining
contribution rates be audited by independent actuaries selected by the PFC. The independent audit of the 2011
Valuation Report was performed by Cheiron.

Funding Policy. The State’s funding policy and methods for determining the contribution rates are
set forth in RCW Chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW (collectively, the “Pension Act”). In 2009, the Pension Act was
amended to provide for the amortizing in full the unfunded accrued actuarial liability of PERS 1 over a rolling-10-
year period, using methods and assumptions that balance the needs for increased benefit security, decreased
contribution rate volatility and affordability of contribution rates. The Pension Act also requires that to the extent
feasible all benefits for PERS 2 and PERS members be funded over the working lives of those members. In
preparing valuations and making recommendations regarding contribution rates, the OSA uses valuation methods,
economic and demographic assumptions, including rates of retirement, rates at which members become disabled,
turnover rates and mortality rates, and other assumptions, including assumptions about plan benefits.

Assumptions. Demographic assumptions are based on experience studies, which are generally
released every seven years. The demographic assumptions were last updated based upon the 2001-2006 Experience
Study Report released in 2007. Economic assumptions are adopted by the PFC and/or prescribed by the Legislature.
In August 2011, OSA recommended that the PFC adopt new long-term assumptions about system membership
growth and new economic assumptions and that the PFC phase in the changes over the following five biennia,
including reducing the assumed rate of inflation from 3.5% to 3.0%; reducing the assumed annual investment return
from 8.0% to 7.5%; reducing the 10-year membership growth from 1.25% to 0.95%; and reducing the general salary
growth assumption from 4.0% to 3.75%. In late 2011, the PFC adopted lower economic assumptions. In 2012, the
Legislature enacted a schedule to decrease the investment rate of return assumption for all plans, assuming a rate of
return of 7.9% for the 2013-2015 biennium, 7.8% for the 2015-2017 biennium and 7.7% for the 2017-2019
biennium. For the 2011 Valuation Report, the OSA assumed a rate of inflation of 3.0%, an assumed annual
investment return of 7.9%, a 10-year membership growth rate of 0.95%, and a general salary growth assumption of
3.75%.

Actuarial Funding Rate. For purposes of determining the plans’ funded status on an actuarial basis (but
not to determine contribution requirements), the OSA determines the ratio of the actuarial value of assets (the
“AVA”) to the cost of plan benefits calculated using the Projected Unit Credit (“PUC”) cost method and using a
long-term interest rate assumption. Under the PUC cost method, the annual cost of benefits is comprised of (i) the
“normal cost” of benefits and (ii) the amount required to amortize the unfunded accrued actuarial liability (the
“UAAL”) over a specified period. The “normal cost” is the estimated present value (using the assumed investment
rate of 8% as the discount rate) of projected benefits current plan members will earn in the year following the
valuation date, and the “normal cost rate” is the level percentage of salary contribution required each year per
employee to accumulate, over the projected working lifetime of each employee, the reserves needed to meet the cost
of the projected benefits, assuming the UAAL is paid off and that the plan’s actual experience conforms to the
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actuarial assumptions used by the OSA in calculating the plan’s actuarial liabilities. The UAAL is the difference
between a plan’s actuarial accrued liability (“AAL”) and the actuarial value of the plan’s assets or the present value
of benefits earned at the valuation date not covered by current actuarial assets. The AAL represents the portion of
the present value of fully projected benefits attributable to service credit that has been earned (or accrued) as of the
valuation date.

To determine a plan’s AVA, the OSA determines the current Market Value of Assets (the “MVA”), taking
into account the prior year’s contributions, disbursements and investment returns. To limit fluctuations in
contribution rates and plan funded status that would otherwise arise from short-term changes in the MVA, the OSA
“smoothes” the inherent volatility in the MVA by deferring a portion of annual investment gains or losses (which
occur when the annual return on investments varies from the long-term assumed rate of 7.9%) over a period of not to
exceed eight years. To help ensure that the AVA maintains a reasonable relationship to the MVA, any valuation of
the AVA may need exceed 130% of, nor drop below 70% of, the MVA.

As of June 30, 2011, the funded status for PERS 1 and PERS 2/PERS 3 on an actuarial basis, based on the
PUC method was 71% and 112%, respectively, and as of June 30, 2010, the funded status for PERS 1 was 74% and
for PERS 2/3 was 113%.

Table 2
PERS PUC Liability and Funded Ratio on an Actuarial Basis
2010 2011

PERS 1 PERS 2/3 PERS 1 PERS 2/3
PUC Liability® $12,531 $17,272 $12,567 $18.,815
Valuation Assets"® 9,293 19.474 8.883 20,997
Unfunded Liability" $ 3,238 ($2,202) $ 3,684 ($2,182)
Funded Ratio 74% 113% 71% 112%

" Dollars in millions.

@ Liabilities have been valued using the PUC cost method at an interest rate of 7.9%. Note 2(d) to the 2011
Retirement Fund Audit indicates that as of June 30, 2011, PERS 2/3 is funded at 97%, based on using the
entry age normal method for determining the UAAL. The actuarial method for PERS 2 and PERS 3 does
not separately amortize the UAAL.

©) Assets have been valued using the actuarial asset method.

Source: Office of the State Actuary; 2011 Valuation Report.

Contribution Rates. The employee contribution rate for PERS 1 is established by statute at 6% of covered
payroll for local government unit employees. As of December 31, 2012, the employee contribution rate for PERS 2,
which is determined by the PFC, is 4.64% of covered payroll, and effective as of July 1, 2013, will increase to
4.92% of covered payroll. Employee contribution rates for the defined contribution component of PERS 3 are
determined by the Director of the Department of Retirement Systems and include six options, ranging from a
minimum of 5.0% to a maximum of 15.0% of covered salary. Employees are not required to contribute to the
defined benefit component of PERS 3. Some PERS employers “pick up” (pay) their employees’ contributions to
PERS, but the District does not.

Employer contribution rates for the upcoming biennium (the State’s two-year period ending on June 30 of
an odd-numbered year) are adopted during even-numbered years according to a statutory rate-setting process. Based
upon the statutory funding policy, the same contribution rate is charged to employers regardless of the plan in which
employees hold membership. The process begins with the OSA performing an actuarial evaluation of each plan and
determining recommended contribution rates. As discussed above in “Actuarial Valuation, Funding Policy and
Assumptions,” in even-numbered years, the OSA provides its preliminary results and recommended contribution
rates to the SCPP and to the PFC. The PFC, based on the recommendations of the OSA and the SCPP, adopts
contribution rates. The rates adopted by the PFC are subject to revision by the Legislature, and the Legislature may,
and in 11 of the past 12 years has, adopted contribution rates that are lower than those suggested by the OSA and
adopted by the PFC. All employers are required to contribute at the levels established by the Legislature.

The OSA does not use the PUC method to develop recommended contribution rates, and because PERS 1
is closed, the OSA uses different methods to determine recommended contribution rates for PERS 1 than for PERS 2
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and PERS 3. For PERS 1, the OSA uses a variation of the “entry age normal” cost of method to determine the AAL.
Under this method, the annual cost of benefits is comprised of (i) the “normal cost,” determined on an individual
basis, from a member’s age at plan entry, and designed to be a level percentage of salary throughout the member’s
career, and (ii) the amount necessary to amortize the UAAL. The UAAL is equal to the unfunded actuarial present
value of projected benefits less the actuarial present value of future normal costs for all active members and is reset
at each valuation date. The OSA bases the present value of future normal costs on the aggregate normal cost rate for
PERS 2 and PERS 3, as described below, and the resulting UAAL is amortized over a rolling ten-year period, as a
level percentage of projected system payroll. The projected payroll includes payroll from PERS 2 and PERS 3, as
well as from some of the State’s other retirement plans, and from new plan entrants. As a result, employers pay the
same contribution rate, regardless of the PERS plan in which its employees are members.

For PERS 2 and PERS 3, the OSA uses an “aggregate cost method” to determine the normal cost and the
AAL. Under this method, the unfunded actuarial present value of fully projected benefits is amortized over the
projected earnings of the active group. The employee contribution for PERS 2 members is 50% of the normal cost.
The entire contribution is normal cost, and no UAAL exists. All gains and losses are amortized over future salaries
of current active members. The employer contribution for PERS 2 and PERS 3 is the balance of the cost of benefits,
plus amounts intended to amortize the PERS 1 UAAL over a ten-year rolling period.

The Legislature also determines benefits, and current law requires that any benefit increases that become
effective after June 30, 2009 for PERS 1 members be funded over a fixed 10-year period and that for any benefit
enhancements enacted following the adoption of the basic rates a temporary and supplemental contribution rate
increase be charged and that supplemental contribution rates be included in the basic rates at the beginning of the
next contribution rate-setting cycle. In 2010, the Legislature amended the Pension Act to suspend the minimum
contribution rates adopted in 2009 and to adopt, for all PERS plans, rate ceilings effective through 2015 for the
portion of the employer contributions rates designed to amortize the UAAL for PERS 1 and established a minimum
UAAL rate of 5.25% beginning July 1, 2015. In 2011, Legislature amended the Pension Act again to, among other
things, reduce the minimum UAAL rate beginning July 1, 2015 to 3.5% and to eliminate the automatic, annual,
service-based adjustment each July 1 to benefits received by eligible PERS 1 retirees, referred to as the “Uniform
COLA,” effective as of June 30, 2011, except for those PERS 1 retirees who currently receive a benefit that falls
below a specified minimum level.

Two separate lawsuits were filed challenging the repeal of the Uniform COLA adjustment in which the
plaintiffs asked for declaratory and injunctive relief seeking, inter alia, restoration of the Uniform COLA
adjustment. The court granted class action status for the plaintiffs. In November 2012, the court issued a
memorandum of opinion holding, among other things, that the repeal of the Uniform COLA adjustment constituted
an unconditional impairment of contract. The court’s final order has been entered.

In 2007, the Legislature repealed the statutory gain sharing provisions that allowed PERS 1 and PERS 3
members to share in “extraordinary investment returns” under certain conditions, effective as of January 2, 2008.
The Legislature also adopted new provisions to replace the gain sharing benefit, including new provisions for early
retirement. Four separate lawsuits were filed by members and retirees, which were consolidated into one action.
One of these lawsuits was voluntarily dismissed in June 2009, leaving only three cases in the consolidated case. In
September 2010, the King County Superior Court ruled in favor of the plaintiffs, finding that the repeal of gain
sharing was invalid. In January 2011, the court ruled that the State could reserve its right to appeal this first phase of
the lawsuit until after the second phase of the lawsuit, addressing the benefits provided to replace gain sharing, is
completed. In December 2011, the court heard summary judgment arguments regarding whether the benefits
enacted to replace gain sharing could be repealed once gain sharing was restored, and the trial court issued an order
holding that the replacement benefits could be repealed as a matter of law. Both parties appealed the decision to the
Supreme Court.

As of December 31, 2012, the employer contribution rate for all PERS plans is 7.21% of covered payroll,
which includes the employer administrative expense fee (currently 0.16%) and amortization of the PERS 1 UAAL,

effective as of July 1, 2013, the rate will increase to 9.19%, including the employer administrative expense fee.

The District does not have any control over the determination of the employer contribution rates or the
process for setting such rates. Employee and employer contribution rates are expected to increase over the next
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several years, and those increases may be significant, especially if gain sharing and the Uniform COLA are
reinstated.

District Contributions. For the year ended December 31, 2011 (the last year for which such information is
available), the District’s total payroll was approximately $57.2 million, and the District’s total payroll for employees
covered by PERS was approximately $56.5 million. Both the District and its employees made the required
contributions to PERS in 2011, with the District contributing $3,361,862, consisting of $77,606 to PERS 1,
$2,734,289 to PERS 2 and $549,967 to PERS 3, and the District’s employees contributing $2,527,395.

Financial Reporting. The actuarial methods used for calculating PERS 1 funded status and recommended
contribution rates are different than the methods used for financial reporting by PERS under GASB Statement 25
and by employers under GASB Statement 27, primarily because the actuarial funding method for PERS 1 includes
payroll outside the PERS 1 plan. For financial reporting purposes, the Entry Age Cost method is used for PERS 1,
and the PERS 1 UAAL is amortized as a level dollar amount over the applicable amortization period (currently, a
rolling 10-year period). For PERS 2 and PERS 3, the Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method is used to calculate the
contribution rates. Under this method, the unfunded actuarial present value of fully projected benefits is amortized
over the projected earnings of the active group. The entire contribution is normal cost, and no PERS 2/3 UAAL
exists. All gains and losses are amortized over future salaries of current active members, and minimum contribution
rates are based upon 80% of the entry age normal cost rate.

Actual contribution rates for PERS 1 and for PERS 2/3 for funding purposes are also different than annual
required contribution rates (“ARCs”) for financial reporting purposes. Under GASB Statement 25, which governs
reporting by the retirement system, the PERS 1 ARC for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was $508.0 million of
which 51% was contributed, and the ARC for PERS 2/3 was $407.7 million, of which 94% was contributed.

In June 2012, GASB approved GASB Statement 67 and GASB Statement 68. GASB Statement 67 revises
and replaces financial reporting and disclosure requirements of GASB Statements 25 and 50, as they relate to certain
pension plans. GASB Statement 68 revises and replaces financial reporting and disclosure requirements of GASB
Statements 27 and 50 as they relate to governments that provide certain types of pension plans. GASB Statement 67
will take effect for pension plans in fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2013, and Statement 68 will take effect for
employers in fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.

GASB Statement 67 requires additional note disclosure and required supplementary information in
financial reports for certain defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

GASB Statement 68 requires, among other things, that (i) governments providing defined benefit pensions
report in their statement of net position a net pension liability (the difference between the total pension liability and
the assets set aside in a trust and restricted to pay such benefits); (ii) certain components of pension expense (such as
changes in economic and demographic assumptions and differences between assumptions and actual experience) be
recognized over a closed period; (iii) the effects on the net pension liability of differences between expected and
actual investment returns be recognized in pension expense over a closed 5-year period; (iv) employers calculate
pension liability on a more standardized basis, including incorporating into projected costs certain ad hoc
postemployment benefit changes (those not written into the benefit plans) if considered to be substantively
automatic, using a single actuarial cost method (entry age), and adjusting discount rates under certain circumstances;
and (v) that employers provide more extensive note disclosure and supplementary information in their financial
statements.

GASB Statement 68 also requires that cost-sharing employers, among other things, record a liability and
expense equal to their proportionate share of the collective net pension liability and expense for a cost-sharing plan
and provide more extensive note disclosure and supplementary information in their financial statements.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

In June 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” (“GASB 45”). GASB 45 establishes accounting and financial
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reporting standards for how state and local governments should account for and report their costs and obligations
related to post-employment health care insurance and other non-pension benefits (“OPEB”). The District pays part
of the premiums costs for health insurance made available to retired District employees, and such subsidies are
treated as OPEBs under GASB 45. Under GASB 45, unless OPEB plan assets are held in an irrevocable trust with a
third-party fiduciary, the plan assets and the corresponding liabilities must be included in a government’s financial
statements. In 2007, the District retained an actuary to estimate the amount of the District’s OPEB liability for
providing healthcare insurance plan for retirees and determined that unless the District funded an irrevocable trust, it
would be required under GASB 45 to recognize unfunded liability of approximately $1.976 million as of
December 31, 2006. The District recognized that liability in 2006, and in 2007 modified its health insurance
program and funded an irrevocable trust (the “OPEB Trust”) with U.S. Bank National Association.

The healthcare insurance plan administered by the District for its retired employees is a single-employer
defined benefit healthcare insurance plan (the “Plan”) provided through a group health insurance plan with Premera
Blue Cross (Premera Blue Cross Plan 3). The Plan provides medical, prescription drug and vision insurance to
eligible retirees, spouses and surviving spouses until the age of 65 and to eligible children and surviving children
until the age of 26. To be eligible for the Plan, the retiree must retire directly from active service with the District
and be eligible to receive retirement benefits under PERS. As of December 31, 2011, there were 646 active
participants and 49 retired and surviving participants drawing benefits under the Plan.

Premiums for Plan members are funded with a combination of contributions from the District and
contributions from the retirees receiving benefits. For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the District
contributed 28% of the cost of premiums for eligible retired Plan members and their spouses, or $129,000 and
$126,000, respectively, and Plan members receiving benefits contributed 72% of premium costs, or an aggregate
$330,000 and $323,000, respectively. The District’s contributions are paid through the OPEB Trust. For accounting
purposes, the Plan is a “substantive plan,” based upon the District’s and the employees’ and retirees’ understanding
of its terms. Based upon the current terms of the Plan and the results of the biannual actuarial valuations described
below, the District expects that its future contributions will be calculated at the level established by the actuary in
2007, adjusted for inflation, with Plan members contributing the remaining premium amounts. Contribution rates
may be adjusted and the Plan may be revised at the District’s discretion. The District may also elect to terminate the
Plan once there are no more participants.

In July 2011, Mercer (“Mercer”) released its Postretirement Health Benefits Program Actuarial Valuation
Report as of January 1, 2011 — Chelan County PUD for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2011 (the “2011
OPEB Valuation”). Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. As noted in more detail in Note 9 in
Appendix A, in valuing the Plan, Mercer made various assumptions, based in part upon the terms of the Plan and in
part upon the demographic assumptions, including mortality, disability, termination and retirement rates, used by the
Washington State actuary to value PERS pension plans. In the 2011 OPEB Valuation, the actuary also assumed an
inflation rate of 2.3% and that the District’s contributions would increase at that rate; and an investment return (and
discount rate) of 7% (based upon the investment policy established for the OPEB Trust, including investment
allocations of 50% in U.S. stocks, 20% U.S. in fixed income securities, 15% in foreign stocks, 5% in foreign fixed
income securities and 10% cash equivalents).

GASB 45 requires the District to disclose in its financial statements a schedule of funding progress for the
Plan, the District’s annual required contribution (the “ARC”) and its net OPEB obligation, which are summarized
below. The ARC is the “normal cost” plus amortization of the initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability (the
“UAAL”). In computing contributions and liabilities, Mercer used the projected unit credit method of funding,
which produces an initial liability for benefits credited for service prior to the date the method is introduced. To the
extent that the liability is not covered by assets of the plan, the plan has a UAAL to be funded over a period of time
in accordance with an amortization schedule. As of January 1, 2011, the OPEB Trust has no UAAL and is required
to fund only the normal cost. The normal cost is the sum of the present value (using the assumed investment rate,
7.0%, as the discount rate) of the benefit deemed to accrue for each participant in the Plan year.

The information summarized in Tables 3 and 4 below for fiscal years 2007 and 2008 is based upon the

valuation report as of January 1, 2007, and for fiscal years 2009 and 2010 is based upon the valuation report as of
January 1, 2009 and for fiscal year 2011 is based upon the 2011 OPEB Valuation. ~ See Note 9 and the Required
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Supplementary Information in APPENDIX A—“AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011.”

Table 3
OPEB Funding Progress
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
January 1, 2007 $0 $2,177,526 $2,177,526 0% $46,311,000 5.00%
January 1, 2008  $2,177,526 $2,227,526 $50,000 98% $48,046,983 0.10%
January 1,2009  $1,791,487 $1,573,100 ($218,387) 114% $49,003,415 (0.45)%
January 1,2010  $1,791,487 $1,573,100 ($218,387) 114% $48,038,582 (0.45)%
January 1, 2011 $2,186,952 $1,417,889 ($769,063) 154% $48,550,921 (1.58)%
Source: 2011 OPEB Valuation and the District.
Table 4
Annual Required Contribution and Net OPEB Obligation
2008 2009 20107 2011”
Annual Required Contribution (ARC)® $50,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 0 3,500 0 0
ARC Adjustment 0 (53,500) 0 0
Annual OPEB Cost $50,000 ($50,000) $ 0 $ 0
Contributions Made 0 0 0 0
Increase in Net OPEB Obligations $50,000 ($50,000) $ 0 $ 0
Net OPEB Obligation — Beginning of Year $ 0 $50,000 $ 0 $ 0
Net OPEB Obligation — End of Year $50,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

)" Mercer notes in the valuation report for 2009 that GASB 45 permits the District to use the 2009 Valuation for 2010
so long as there are not “significant changes in benefit provisions, the covered population or other factors that
impact long-term assumptions.”

@ Mercer notes in the 2011 OPEB Valuation that GASB 45 permits the District to use the 2011 Valuation for 2012 so
long as there are not “significant changes in benefit provisions, the covered population or other factors that impact

long-term assumptions.”

® Mercer notes in the valuation report for 2009 that GASB 45 specifies that the ARC should not be negative as a
result of overfunding (implying a payment due from the irrevocable trust to the employer). As a result, the ARC
for 2010 and 2011 were $0 under the current plan and assumptions, and the 2010 and 2011 Annual OPEB Costs
were also $0, as no contributions were made to the OPEB Trust.

Sources: 2011 OPEB Valuation, Valuation Report for 2009, and the District.

Insurance

The District seeks to maintain insurance with responsible insurers to the extent available at reasonable cost.
Insurance limits and retentions are established utilizing standard risk management practices and under the advice of
an experienced insurance brokerage firm.

The District currently maintains insurance with retentions plus coverage as follows: general liability, auto
and public officials’ liability from $2 million to $75 million; property from $1 million to $350 million; boiler and
machinery from $500,000 to $200 million; crime from $100,000 to $25 million; and blackout-brownout liability
from $2,500 to $10 million. The District also carries non-owned aircraft liability, business travel accident, excess
workers’ compensation insurance, and some underlying coverage for the Water and Wastewater Systems.
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The District utilizes self-insurance programs to pay covered claims up to the deductibles or the self-insured
retentions of the policies described above. These programs pay claims which fall within the definitions of coverage
in the policies layered above the self-insurance programs. The District also self-insures for its workers’
compensation and its employee medical insurance program. Claims not covered by insurance and the self-insurance
programs are paid by the appropriate System. The District’s self-insurance program funds are maintained in the
District’s Internal Service Fund. The Internal Service Fund is used to account for administrative and other costs
which must be allocated among more than one System. As of September 30, 2012, the self-insurance restricted cash
reserve and claim funds had a combined balance of $5.2 million.

Dam Safety and Security

The area in Eastern Washington in which the District is located has experienced large earthquakes in the
past, although the most recent was more than 140 years ago. That earthquake was centered near Lake Chelan and
occurred at a time when the areca was very sparsely populated. It was apparently felt throughout the Pacific
Northwest.

The District’s Hydro-Electric Projects were designed to conform to all then-existing Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) dam and seismic safety regulations. In addition, the Hydro-Electric Projects are
“run of the river” dams, meaning they have very limited reservoir capacity, and are also “low-head,” meaning that
the reservoir behind the dam is not that much higher than the river immediately below the dam. Thus the potential
damage that may arise from dam failure is much less than with “high-head” dams with large reservoirs.
Nonetheless, it is possible that a major seismic event could cause significant damage to one or all of the Hydro-
Electric Projects, including flooding of the powerhouse or even dam failure. The resulting damage, including in
particular to areas immediately downstream of the Hydro-Electric Projects, could be significant.

FERC is currently considering the adoption of new dam safety standards, including Seismic Design
Standards, for all hydroelectric facilities around the country that are within its jurisdiction, including the Hydro-
Electric Projects. New standards may require modifications or improvements to the Hydro-Electric Projects. The
nature and extent of any such modifications or improvements and the costs thereof are unknown at this time, but
could be significant. The District, in collaboration with Public Utility District No. 1 of Grant County, Washington
(“Grant PUD”), Public Utility District No. 1 of Douglas County, Washington (“Douglas PUD”), and other
stakeholders, recently completed a study designed to update the regional seismic hazard potential within the area
that could affect the Hydro-Electric Projects. The study was completed in 2012 on a schedule and in a manner
approved by FERC and was subsequently accept by FERC.

The results of the study indicate that both the potential seismic activity and impacts that could affect the
Hydro-Electric Projects are more significant than was understood when the Hydro-Electric Projects were originally
constructed. The District is working with FERC and Grant PUD to address how the updated seismic potential is to
be applied to the Hydro-Electric Projects, including engineering analysis of how the structures will be expected to
perform during earthquake events and potential modifications to the Hydro-Electric Projects to ensure they continue
to meet or exceed current regulatory standards.

The District relies on comprehensive security systems and measures to ensure critical assets are protected.
Many of these security measures are required by federal law due to the nature of the District’s facilities, specifically
the Hydro-Electric Projects. The District has carefully implemented a number of integrated security measures,
including but not limited to: strategically placed security cameras, electronic access control, restricted access,
intrusion alarms, locked doors/gates/windows, fencing, signage, policies, procedures and employee training
programs.

THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM
General

The Consolidated System currently includes (i) the Distribution Division, (ii) the Lake Chelan Project, (iii)
the Fiber and Telecommunications System, (iv) the Water System and (v) the Wastewater System. The Rocky

36



Reach System and the Rock Island System (collectively, the “Large Hydro Systems™) are not part of the
Consolidated System.

The Large Hydro Systems produce power and energy in part for use in the Distribution Division and in part
for sale to others. The revenues of the Rock Island System and the Rocky Reach System are required to be used to
pay the costs of operating, maintaining and providing for certain capital improvements for those Systems and are
pledged to payment of the bonds issued by those Systems, and therefore are not available to pay or secure the Senior
Consolidated System Bonds, the Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds, or the Subordinate Consolidated System
Obligations.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Distribution Division served an average of 48,173 retail
customers and had energy sales of 5,762,000 MWh and operating revenues of $149,179,000. Comparable
information for the year ended December 31, 2012 is not yet available. Historically, the Distribution Division has
obtained most of its power supply from the District’s Hydro-Electric Projects and relatively small amounts from
other sources. The Hydro-Electric Projects provide power to the Distribution Division at a comparatively low cost,
enabling the District to provide electric service to its customers at rates substantially below those charged by most
other utilities in the Pacific Northwest. Power available to the Distribution Division in excess of the amounts
required to serve its customer load may be sold on the wholesale market. For a discussion of the District’s
wholesale energy sales, see “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Energy Sales; Load/Resource Balancing;
Hedging Strategy” and “—Wholesale Power Management Activity.” For a description of the Hydro-Electric
Projects, see “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Properties and Facilities of the Consolidated System—Hydro-
Electric Projects” and “—Other Properties and Facilities of the District.”

The District has retained substantial flexibility with respect to the use of the revenues of the Water System
and Wastewater System, including the ability to pledge such revenues to other obligations on a basis senior to that of
the Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Water System served 5,497
customers and the Wastewater System served 487 customers. Comparable information for the year ended December
31, 2012 is not yet available. As of December 31, 2012, the Water System had outstanding long-term debt in the
principal amount of $11,154,698 and Consolidated System intersystem loans payable in the amount of $5,955,505.
As of December 31, 2012, the Wastewater System had no outstanding long-term debt but had Consolidated System
intersystem loans payable in the amount of $437,044. These amounts are based on unaudited financial information
and are subject to year-end adjustment. The District’s current policy is to pay operating expenses and debts of the
Water System and Wastewater System from the respective revenues of such Systems. A significant portion of the
direct debt of the Water and Wastewater Systems is assessment-backed local utility district debt secured by liens on
the property benefited by such Systems or low interest loans received from various State and federal programs.

The District’s “Carbon Footprint”

As the District’s energy resources consist almost entirely of hydro-electric power and to a much lesser
extent wind power, the District’s utility operations are responsible for very little carbon dioxide emitted through the
combustion of fossil fuels, other than carbon associated with wholesale market purchases of fossil fuel generated
power. In 2011, the most recent year for which information is available, the District’s calculated fuel mix included
approximately 4% carbon dioxide emitting power resources. The District does sell a portion of the environmental
attributes associated with some of its hydro-electric power and wind power; however, this is accounted for in the
District’s required fuel mix disclosure. The District currently does not foresee any significant additional costs to its
utility operations as a result of future legislative or other measures seeking to remedy carbon dioxide loads imposed
upon the environment. See, however, “DEVELOPMENTS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC UTILITY
INDUSTRY—State Energy Legislation.”

Properties and Facilities of the Consolidated System
Distribution Division
The Distribution Division serves at retail the entire territory within the County. As of December 31, 2011,

the Distribution Division included 35 substations with a total capacity of 748,346 kVA, 881 miles of overhead and
843 miles of underground distribution lines and other buildings, equipment, stores and related facilities. As of
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December 31, 2011, the gross utility plant of the Distribution Division, including construction work in progress, was
$307,423,000, with net utility plant of $175,853,000. Comparable information for the year ended December 31,
2012 is not yet available. The Distribution Division also includes the Cashmere system. See “THE DISTRICT—
General.”

Hydro-Electric Projects

General. As of December 31, 2011, the combined gross utility plant of the Hydro-Electric
Projects, including construction work in progress, was $1,287,229,000, with net utility plant of $779,888,000.
Comparable information for the year ended December 31, 2012 is not yet available. The Rock Island System and
the Rocky Reach System are not part of the Consolidated System. See “—Other Properties and Facilities of the
District—The Rock Island System” and “—The Rocky Reach System” below.

The Lake Chelan Project. The Lake Chelan Project consists of (i) the Lake Chelan Hydro-
Electric Generating Plant, which was placed in commercial operation in the 1920s and which is located at the east
end of Lake Chelan in Chelan County, Washington, approximately 38 miles north of the City of Wenatchee,
Washington, together with (ii) associated substation and transmission facilities to connect the generating plant with
other facilities of the District and Avista Corporation (“Avista”). A dam approximately 40 feet high and 490 feet
long allows the regulation of Lake Chelan between elevations of 1,079 feet and 1,100 feet, thereby providing usable
storage of approximately 676,000 acre-feet of water. A tunnel approximately two miles in length leads to the
powerhouse, which contains two generating units. Modernization of the two units was completed in 2010, resulting
in an increase in total nameplate capacity for the Lake Chelan Project from 48 MW to 59 MW. The efficiency of the
units was also improved by approximately 6%. Net energy delivered from the generating plant averaged
approximately 412,000 MWh annually during the three years from 2009 through 2011. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, the generating plant delivered 480,000 MWh, at an average cost of $24 per MWh. As of
December 31, 2011, the gross utility plant of the Lake Chelan Project, including construction work in progress, was
$120,048,000, with net utility plant of $97,296,000. Comparable information for the year ended December 31, 2012
is not yet available.

Fiber and Telecommunications System

The Fiber and Telecommunications System has been consolidated into the Consolidated System. See
“THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—The Fiber and Telecommunications System” for information regarding the
Fiber and Telecommunications System.

Water and Wastewater Systems

The Water and Wastewater Systems were consolidated into what is now the Consolidated System in 1992;
however, the District has preserved substantial flexibility regarding the use of the revenues of such Systems. See
“THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—General.”

Other Properties and Facilities of the District

The Rocky Reach System. Pursuant to Resolution No. 1412, adopted by the District on November 20,
1956, as amended and supplemented (the “Prior Rocky Reach Resolution”), the District established the Rocky
Reach System, and pursuant to Resolution No. 08-13390, adopted by the Commission on October 20, 2008 (the
“Rocky Reach Master Resolution”), the District continued the Rocky Reach System. The Rocky Reach System
consists of (i) the Rocky Reach Hydro-Electric Generating Plant (the “Rocky Reach Project”), which was placed in
commercial operation in 1961, and is located on the Columbia River about seven miles upstream from Wenatchee,
Washington, together with (ii) associated substation and transmission facilities to connect the output of the
generating plant to the other facilities of the District and to the transmission grid of the Pacific Northwest. A dam
with an effective head of approximately 89 feet provides water to 11 turbine generators with a combined nameplate
capacity of 1,300 MW. Net energy delivered from the generating plant averaged 5,719,000 MWh annually during
the three years from 2009 through 2011. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the generating plant delivered
7,125,000 MWh, at an average cost of $10 per MWh. As of December 31, 2011, the gross utility plant of the Rocky
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Reach System, including construction work in progress, was $601,612,000, with net utility plant of $355,565,000.
Comparable information for the year ended December 31, 2012 is not yet available.

Pursuant to the Rocky Reach Master Resolution, the District has issued its Rocky Reach Hydro-Electric
System Revenue Bonds (the “Rocky Reach Bonds”) payable from and secured by a pledge of the revenues of the
Rocky Reach System. As of December 31, 2012, the Rocky Reach Bonds were outstanding in the aggregate
principal amount of $17,675,000. In addition, as of December 31, 2012, intersystem loans payable from the
revenues of the Rocky Reach System were $223,150,935. These amounts are based on unaudited financial
information and are subject to year-end adjustment. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Outstanding Debt” and
“—Interfund and Intersystem Loans.”

The District previously issued bonds payable by the Rocky Reach System for the purpose of financing
relicensing costs of the Rocky Reach System. Such bonds were purchased by the Distribution Division and as of
December 31, 2012 were outstanding in the principal amount of $10,667,308. This amount is based on unaudited
financial information and is subject to year-end adjustment.

In 2007, the District completed a modernization program at the Rocky Reach Project at a cost
approximately $180 million. Excessive cracking and wear of the turbine blades required replacement of the original
seven turbines. The remaining four newer units were upgraded to “Kaplan”-type turbines with adjustable blades.
The District also replaced main transformers, generator breakers, excitation, and governors. The seven original
generators were replaced and the stators of the four newer units were replaced with the rotors being refurbished
during the modernization program. The results of the modernization program have increased the efficiency of the
plant by 4.5% to 5.5%. The turbine design also incorporated then-current technology intended to improve survival
of juvenile salmon migrating downstream to the Pacific Ocean.

During routine inspections in 2009, the District became aware of cracks in the rotor spiders of seven units
at the Rocky Reach Project. A temporary repair has been applied to all such units until permanent repairs can be
made. The units are being repaired under the generator modernization contract warranty. The permanent repairs to
the first unit began in September 2010 and were completed in March 2011. The District developed plans to repair
two units per year, with the last unit repair expected to be completed in April 2014. Because of experience gained
with the repair of the first unit, subsequent outages for each unit repair are expected to last only three months instead
of the six months required to complete the permanent repairs to the first unit. The outage schedule for the repairs is
expected to result in a reduction of generation availability at the Rocky Reach Project by approximately 4.5% during
each year until all repairs are completed. To minimize the economic impacts of these outages, the rotor repairs are
scheduled to occur during the fall and winter when power prices and Columbia River flows are expected to be low.
While the exact value of lost generation is dependent on future river conditions and market power prices, the
average projected estimate is $1.4 million for each spring outage and $500,000 for each fall outage. The future
combined outages are anticipated to result in potential lost opportunity costs of approximately $2.4 million. As of
December 31, 2012, repairs have been completed on four of seven units.

In October 2011, the main transformer at one of the units was thoroughly inspected due to concerns
regarding insipient gassing observed in oil samples. The manufacturer of the transformer performed an on-site
inspection, identified several deficiencies, made repairs and returned the transformer to service. Since then, the
District has continued to observe an upward trend of gas levels in the oil of the transformer. The District intends to
remove the transformer from service in August 2013 and to install and operate a spare transformer for that unit until
the original transformer problem can be identified and repaired. The District estimates that an outage of
approximately three weeks is required to remove the unit’s main transformer and to install the spare transformer.
The warranty for these transformers is currently being reviewed by both the District and the manufacturer. Three
other main transformers are showing signs of gassing, but to a much lower magnitude, and do not require corrective
action at this time.

The Rock Island System. Pursuant to Resolution No. 1137, adopted by the District on December 20,
1955, as amended and supplemented, and Resolution No. 97-10671, adopted by the District on February 27, 1997
(collectively, the “Prior Rock Island Resolution”), the District established and continued the Rock Island System,
and pursuant to Resolution No. 08-13391, adopted by the Commission on October 20, 2008 (the “Rock Island
Master Resolution”), the District continued the Rock Island System. The Rock Island System consists of (i) the
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Rock Island Hydro-Electric Generating Plant (the “Rock Island Project”) located on the Columbia River
approximately 12 miles downstream from Wenatchee, Washington, together with (ii) associated substation and
transmission facilities to connect the generating plant to the other facilities of the District and Puget Sound Energy
and to the transmission grid of the Pacific Northwest. A dam with an effective head of approximately 39 feet
provides water to 19 generating units with a combined nameplate capacity of approximately 629 MW. The
generating units are housed in two powerhouses. Of the eleven units in the first powerhouse, five, including the
station service unit, were placed in commercial operation in 1933 and six in 1952 and 1953. The eight units in the
second powerhouse were placed in commercial operation in 1978 and 1979. The first four units in the first
powerhouse were originally constructed by Puget Sound Energy, which later sold the dam and generating units to
the District. The remaining units in the first powerhouse were constructed by the District. Net energy delivered
from the generating plant averaged 2,778,000 MWh annually during the three years from 2009 through 2011. For
the year ended December 31, 2011, the generating plant delivered 3,267,000 MWh, at an average cost of $24 per
MWh. As of December 31, 2011, the gross utility plant of the Rock Island System, including construction work in
progress, was $565,569,000, with net utility plant of $326,937,000. Comparable information for the year ended
December 31, 2012 is not yet available.

Pursuant to the Prior Rock Island Resolution, the District has issued its Columbia River-Rock Island
Hydro-Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1997A and 1997B (the “Prior Rock Island Bonds™)
payable from and secured by a pledge of revenues of the Rock Island System. As of December 31, 2012, the Prior
Rock Island Bonds were outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $252,659,003. Pursuant to the Rock
Island Master Resolution, the District has issued its Rock Island Hydro-Electric System Revenue Bonds (the “Rock
Island Bonds™) payable from and secured by a pledge of the revenues of the Rock Island System junior to that of the
Prior Rock Island Bonds. As of December 31, 2012, the Rock Island Bonds were outstanding in the aggregate
principal amount of $12,975,000. In addition, as of December 31, 2012, intersystem loans payable from revenues of
the Rock Island System were $149,272,702.15. These amounts are based on unaudited financial information and are
subject to year-end adjustment. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Outstanding Debt” and “—Interfund and
Intersystem Loans.”

In 2003, the District began a multi-year process to modernize Rock Island Powerhouse No. 1. To date, the
District has completed several projects, including installation of new cranes, four new generator step-up
transformers and new generator breakers. Work was completed in May 2008 on the first of two units in Powerhouse
No. 1 that will receive new turbines, generators, governors and controls. Work on the second unit was completed in
April 2012. The new units have improved efficiencies of about 10% and the turbines are safer for fish passage. In
addition, three of the four oldest units have received new stators, and rotors and turbine components were repaired
on site as necessary. Efficiency improvement of the new stators has been measured at about 1.0%. The turbines are
expected to last another 20 years with minor repairs and routine maintenance. The District has spent approximately
$107 million on the modernization program at Powerhouse No. 1 through 2012.

During periodic machine condition monitoring, plant staff observed deterioration over time of the “air gap”
between the rotor and the stator, a critical clearance measurement, in the fourth of the oldest generating units that
has yet to have the stator, rotor and turbine rehabilitated. The clearance is now below acceptable reliable operating
limits, which could limit unit reliability in the short-term. To correct the deterioration, the District intends to install
a new stator, to replace key rotor components and to reshape and realign the unit to within industry standards for
normal operation. Work on the unit is scheduled and budgeted to be performed in 2017.

Data for an additional unit also shows a deteriorating air gap clearance, however, the unit is continuing to
operating normally. The unit is monitored with machine condition monitoring (“MCM”) equipment installed to
track shaft vibration and generator conditions, including the air gap. If the air gap reaches a predetermined threshold
value, the operator will receive notification from the MCM and the unit will be turned off. Restarting the unit will
require either correction of the stator shape to improve the air gap or replacement of the stator, both of which could
represent significant outage time. As the air gap for this unit is still above reliable operating limits, the District has
not yet engineered, budgeted or scheduled any repairs to the unit to address the air gap deterioration.

Powerhouse No. 2 began operation in the late 1970s and received new generator step-up transformers

between 1994 and 1997. In 2008, the District completed installing new generator breakers and other operational
improvements, including replacement of the generation unit intake trashracks and installation of a trashrack cleaning
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system to reduce intake head losses. These projects are maintaining reliability and resulted in increased energy
production of approximately 2.5%.

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission License Status
General

The District operates the Hydro-Electric Projects under long-term licenses issued by FERC pursuant to the
Federal Power Act of 1920, as amended. No competing licensing applications have ever been submitted.

Table 5
FERC Licenses
Hydro-Electric Project Issuance Date Expiration Date
Lake Chelan Project November 6, 2006 October 31, 2056
Rocky Reach Project February 19, 2009 January 31, 2052
Rock Island Project January 18, 1989 December 31, 2028

Lake Chelan Project

On November 6, 2006, FERC issued a 50-year license for the Lake Chelan Project. The license reflects the
terms of a comprehensive settlement agreement developed by the District with various stakeholders and submitted to
FERC in October 2003, with several changes. The license requires detailed management plans for operations, fish,
wildlife and recreation resources, which were approved by FERC in November 2007 and in April 2008. In
accordance with the settlement agreement, the FERC-approved fish management plans and the required water
quality certification, the District constructed three significant capital projects: a low-level outlet structure at the
dam, a pump station adjacent to the Lake Chelan Project tailrace and four acres of fish spawning habitat in the lower
Chelan River and Lake Chelan Project tailrace. These projects were completed in October 2009.

The settlement agreement and license include measures that are to be carried out by various agencies using
funds provided by the District. The costs of these measures are recorded as a liability in the District’s financial
statements. The District has set aside funds specifically to pay for these obligations in current and future periods.
As of September 30, 2012, the District has internally reserved $7.6 million for these measures.

Rocky Reach Project

On February 19, 2009, FERC issued a 43-year license for the Rocky Reach Project. The license, for the
most part, is based on a comprehensive settlement agreement developed between the District and stakeholders,
including local communities, state and federal agencies, Native American Tribes and environmental groups, and
submitted to FERC in March 2006.

The Washington State Department of Ecology (“WDOE”) issued its final water quality certification for the
Rocky Reach Project (the “Rocky Reach 401 Certification™) in March 2006. In August 2006, FERC issued a final
environmental impact statement for the Rocky Reach Project. In July 2007, National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (“NOAA”) issued its Biological Opinion for the Rocky Reach Project evaluating how the new
license may affect listed species in the area — specifically, salmon and steelhead — and endorsed continuation of the
District’s Habitat Conservation Plan (“HCP”). In December 2008, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (the
“USFWS”) filed its Biological Opinion for the Rocky Reach Project, concluding that the Rocky Reach Project is not
likely to jeopardize the continued existence of bull trout or destroy or adversely modify designated critical habitat.
The USFWS Biological Opinion provided conditions through an “incidental take statement” and requires certain
measures be implemented to minimize the “incidental take” of bull trout.

The Rocky Reach Project license includes various operational requirements and environmental protections,

including continuation for the HCP for salmon and steelhead, stocking and monitoring of juvenile white sturgeon,
research and passage measures for bull trout and passage for pacific lamprey. The license also requires that the
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District develop detailed management plans for operations, recreation and wildlife resources. FERC has approved
the District’s plans, and the District is now implementing those plans.

The Rocky Reach 401 Certification imposes both narrative and numeric criteria. Narrative criteria include
consideration of fish spawning, rearing, migration, and harvest, recreation, wildlife, and aesthetics. Water quality
numeric criteria include total dissolved gas (“TDG”), temperature, turbidity, toxics, and oil spills.

Narrative Criteria. Compliance with the Rocky Reach 401 Certification narrative criteria can be complex
and challenging. The District’s fish management plans approved by FERC and included in the Rocky Reach 401
Certification seek to protect anadromous salmonids, including those listed as threatened and endangered in the
mainstem Columbia River, and other species of concern, including white sturgeon, pacific lamprey and bull trout.
Upon license issuance in February 2009, the District began a ten-year effort to implement, monitor and adjust
protection, mitigation, and enhancement measures for these species. The ultimate success of these efforts remains
uncertain.

Numeric Criteria. The District has two areas of concern regarding compliance with numeric criteria at the
Rocky Reach Project. The first relates to water temperature. The Rocky Reach Project generally meets the numeric
criteria for water temperature under the Rocky Reach 401 Certification, but not in all respects. The license requires
the District to monitor water temperature during the first five years of the license. If after five years data collection
and modeling show that the Rocky Reach Project is in compliance with water temperature numeric criteria, the
WDOE may reduce or eliminate further monitoring requirements. If the Rocky Reach Project is not in compliance
with numeric criteria, then the District may be required to identify reasonable and feasible measures to come into
compliance. The District also has the option of requesting a change in the Rocky Reach 401 Certification numeric
criteria.

A long-term effort is underway by the Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) to evaluate
temperature increases collectively in the mainstem Mid-Columbia River. This is a difficult and complex process
that is being addressed in a draft Columbia and Snake River Mainstem Temperature “Total Maximum Daily Load”
(“TMDL”). A TMDL is a calculation of the maximum amount of a “pollutant” (in this case, increased temperature)
that a waterbody can receive and still meet water quality standards, and includes an allocation of that amount to the
pollutant’s various sources. When the temperature TMDL is developed for the Columbia River and Snake River
Mainstem, the incremental temperature increase allowed to the Rocky Reach Project may change. The schedule for
implementation of the TMDL is yet to be determined and therefore any new requirements that may be imposed on
the District are unknown at this time.

The District’s second area of concern regarding compliance with the numeric criteria at the Rocky Reach
Project is TDG. During certain periods of fish migration, the District passes a portion of the river flow through its
spill gates to facilitate downstream passage of juvenile fish rather than through the turbines. While fish spill is
recognized as a passage method and often required by federal agencies with jurisdiction, spilling water can increase
dissolved gas levels in the water. Too much gas in the water can have negative impacts on fish, which is why the
WDOE regulates permissible gas levels. Regulatory agencies attempt to strike a balance between the need for spill
to facilitate fish migration and the need for water quality protection. The District routinely files TDG abatement
plans with WDOE in order to provide fish spill consistent with requirements in the water quality standards. Based
on studies conducted during the relicensing process, the District believes it is able, with slight alterations to
operations, to meet the TDG requirements at the Rocky Reach Project. The Rocky Reach 401 Certification requires
compliance with TDG standards at year 5 of the license (2014). If the District is in compliance, the WDOE may
require the District to continue the project operations that have resulted in such compliance. If the District is not in
compliance, the WDOE may require evaluation of new operational and dam structural measures that could be
implemented to reduce TDG production at the Rocky Reach Project.

Rock Island Project
In 1989, FERC issued a 40-year license for the Rock Island Project. In June 2004, FERC approved

incorporation of the terms of the HCP into the Rock Island license. See also “AGREEMENTS, PROCEEDINGS
AND LAWS AFFECTING THE DISTRICT—Endangered Species Act.”
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Relicensing Procedure and FERC Options

The District has covenanted in the Master Resolution to use its best efforts to secure new licenses when the
current FERC licenses for the Hydro-Electric Projects expire. Upon expiration of the District’s licenses, and
assuming that project decommissioning is not at issue in the relicensing proceeding, FERC has three options under
existing law: to issue a new license to the District; to issue a new license to a different licensee; or to issue a non-
power license to the District or a different licensee (if FERC found that the project should no longer be used for
power purposes). The Federal Power Act (“FPA”) requires FERC, upon expiration of a license, to issue annual
licenses until such time as a new license or non-power license is issued.

Under current law, assuming that project decommissioning is not at issue in the relicensing proceeding, if
there is competition for the issuance of a new license, the new license must be issued to the applicant having the
final proposal best adapted to serve the public interest, except that insignificant differences between competing
applications are not to result in the transfer of a project to a different licensee.

Consolidated System Energy Resources

The District’s principal sources of power supply are its Hydro-Electric Projects. See “—Properties and
Facilities of the Consolidated System—Hydro-Electric Projects—The Lake Chelan Project” and “—Other Properties
and Facilities of the District--The Rocky Reach System” and “--The Rock Island System” under this heading. For
the year ended December 31, 2011, the Hydro-Electric Projects provided most of the Distribution Division’s retail
energy requirements. In addition, during most periods the Hydro-Electric Projects provided surplus generation
which was sold in the wholesale power market. During certain hourly peak loads and some periods of exceptionally
cold or dry weather, the Distribution Division must purchase additional energy from other sources, including the
spot market, to meet its retail load requirements.

Table 6 on the following page presents the Distribution Division’s energy resources and purchased power
costs for the years 2007 through 2011 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. The information for
fiscal years 2007 through 2011 has been extracted from the District’s audited financial statements. The information
provided for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 is unaudited and may not be indicative of actual year-end
results. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—General.”

[Remainder of page intentionally blank.]
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Table 6
Consolidated System
Distribution Division
Energy Requirements, Resources and Power Costs
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 through 2011 and for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

Nine
Months
Ended
September
2007 2008" 2009 2010 2011 30,2012
Requirements (000 MWh)
Total Sales” 4,845 4,416 4,257 4,227 5,762 6,731
Timing Differences & (64) (10) (8) (67) (100) 9)
Losses®
4,781 4,406 4,249 4,160 5,662 6,722
Resources (000 MWh)
Rocky Reach Project™® 2,431 2,147 2,041 1,883 3,086 4,424
Rock Island Project 1,516 1,393 1,345 1,283 1,619 1,295
Lake Chelan Project 459 405 338 417 480 286
Non-firm Purchases® 378 460 525 577 477 717
4,781 4,406 4,249 4,160 5,662 6,722
Purchased Power Costs
($000)
Rocky Reach Project $ 29,782 $ 31,449 $§ 28274 § 30,668 $ 37,112 $ 58,405
Rock Island Project 33,540 37,309 38,398 40,206 38,509 33,620
Lake Chelan Project 5,171 6,152 9,003 10,198 11,430 8,329
Non-firm Purchases® 21,127 29,485 18,672 22,880 14,429 18,959
$ 89,620 $ 104395 $ 94857 $ 103,952 $ 101,480 $ 119,313
Average Cost ($/MWh)©® $ 19 8 24§ 2 8 25§ 18 $ 18

' In 2010, year 2008 total sales and timing differences and losses were restated to correct a data entry error.

@ See Table 7, “Customers, Energy Sales and Revenues.”

@ Includes timing differences between actual calendar year energy requirements and monthly billing cycles, and system losses.

® Effective November 1, 2011, the Distribution Division share of Rocky Reach output increased under the Power Sales
Contracts. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—General” and “—Power Sales Revenues and District Near-Term Financial
Outlook.”

© Non-firm purchases include power purchased to meet local requirements and certain contractual obligations, to hedge price
movements and to minimize the District's overall risk exposure to changes in power prices.

® Includes actual costs of power to the Distribution Division plus allocable administrative and other expenses of the Distribution
Division. Fluctuations in average cost are due primarily to fluctuations in water conditions on the Columbia River, which
may significantly affect market prices, and fluctuations in power repurchases from Alcoa under the prior power sales contract
between the District and Alcoa. See “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—The Prior Power Sales Contracts.”

Source: The District.

The Hydro-Electric Projects

The Distribution Division obtains approximately three-fourths of its power from the Rocky Reach Project
and the Rock Island Project. See “—The Puget Sound Energy Power Sales Contract” and “—The Alcoa Power
Sales Contract” under this heading. The entire output of the Lake Chelan Project is taken by the Distribution
Division. The Lake Chelan Project output constituted approximately 8% of the Distribution Division’s total energy
requirements for the year ended December 31, 2011. Comparable information for the year ended December 31,
2012 is not yet available.
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Nine Canyon

The District also is a purchaser of power from the Nine Canyon Wind Project, located in Benton County,
Washington. The project is owned and operated by Energy Northwest. There are ten purchasers of power output
from the Nine Canyon Wind Project. All are public utility districts in the State of Washington. Upon project startup
in 2001, the District joined Nine Canyon as a purchaser, interested in a long-term power supply portfolio that was
diversified, adequate for projected load obligations and cost-effective and that included an appropriate level of
alternative and renewable power supply resources. In addition, the Washington State legislature had recently
required utilities to provide customers with the ability to purchase qualified alternative energy resources, which
included facilities fueled by wind.

Phase 1 of the Nine Canyon Wind Project, from which the District purchased a 12.5% share of the output,
consists of 37 1.3 MW wind turbines. Phase 1 was certified for commercial operation in September 2002. The
capacity of Phase 1 is 48 MW. Under the Phase 1 contract of purchase, the District agreed to pay its 12.5% share of
the project’s annual budgeted expenses, including debt service on project bonds whether or not the project is
operating or capable of operating. As of June 30, 2012, $51,645,000 principal amount of Phase 1 Bonds are
outstanding.

Energy Northwest expanded the project with Phase 2, which added 12 turbines, with a combined capacity
of 15.6 MW. The District purchased 12.5% of this additional capacity. Under the amended contract, the District
agreed to pay its 12.5% share of the debt service on the Phase 2 project bonds whether or not the project is operating
or capable of operating. As of June 30, 2012, $14,745,000 principal amount of Phase 2 Bonds are outstanding. The
District also agreed to pay 12.5% of the combined Phase 1 and Phase 2 annual budgeted operation and maintenance
expenses. The District has also agreed to pay up to an additional 3.125% of such expenses in the event one or more
other participants fail to make their payments. The first units of Phase 2 were certified for commercial operation in
September 2003, with all units certified for commercial operation by December 2003. From 2008 through 2011, the
average capacity factor of Phases 1 and 2 combined energy delivered to the District was 25.0%.

Phase 3 of the project (the final phase) is a 14 turbine, 32 MW expansion that was placed into commercial
operation in May 2008. The District declined to participate in Phase 3. In October 2006, the District signed a
second amended power purchase agreement, reducing the District’s share in the combined project from 12.5% to
approximately 8.3% upon the commencement of commercial operation of Phase 3. This reduced the District’s share
in the combined generation output and combined maintenance and operation costs to 8.3%. Although the District’s
combined project share percentage is now lower, the District’s megawatt capacity remains the same at
approximately 7.96 megawatts because the expanded project has a larger megawatt capacity. Phase 3 is consistently
showing a higher capacity factor than Phase 1 and Phase 2 as was anticipated, averaging 29.3% from 2008 through
2011. The District’s debt obligations related to Phases 1 and 2 remain the same at 12.5% share of each as previously
described. The District has no obligation to pay bond debt of Phase 3.

Puget Sound Energy Power Sales Contract

In February 2006, the District executed a new long-term power sales contract (the “Puget Contract”) with
Puget Sound Energy. Deliveries under the Puget Contract commenced on November 1, 2011 and July 1, 2012 for
the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects, respectively. The Puget Contract is scheduled to terminate on
October 31, 2031. Under the Puget Contract, Puget Sound Energy purchases 25% of the combined energy and
capacity from both the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects. In exchange, Puget Sound Energy is obligated to
pay, among other things, its percentage share of (i) the operation and maintenance expenses of the Rocky Reach and
Rock Island Projects; (ii) certain debt service-related Financing Costs (as defined in the Puget Contract) with respect
to the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects; (iii) a Coverage Amount; (iv) an annual Capital Recovery Charge (as
defined in the Puget Contract); and (v) an annual Debt Reduction Charge (as defined in the Puget Contract). In
addition, Puget Sound Energy made a one-time payment of $89 million to the District in April 2006 as a “capacity
reservation charge,” which the District may use for any lawful purposes. The District’s Consolidated System is
recognizing the $89 million payment as revenue in equal annual amounts over the term of the Puget Contract,
commencing on November 1, 2011. FERC approved the Puget Contract in March 2006.
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The Coverage Amount is an amount approximately equal to 15% of the maximum annual debt service
related costs with respect to the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects, as that amount may increase in connection
with the issuance of additional debt. The Debt Reduction Charge will be an amount each year approximately equal
to a percentage determined by the District of up to 3.0%, multiplied by the outstanding principal amount of the debt
obligations related to the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects. The Capital Recovery Charge is an amount
approximately equal to a percentage determined by the District of up to 50%, multiplied by $25 million in 2004
dollars (as adjusted for inflation) and as adjusted by the District based upon updated capital improvement projects.
The annual debt service-related Financing Costs are determined based upon a number of factors, including when
such debt was incurred (before or after the execution of the Puget Contract), the structure of such debt (serial or term
obligations) and whether such debt is for refunding purposes, as more fully described in APPENDIX [—*“Summary
of Power Sales Contract with Puget Sound Energy, Inc.”

In December 2010, the Commission set the annual Debt Reduction Charge and the Capital Recovery
Charge at the maximum rates authorized under the Puget Contract, effective January 1, 2012. In November and
December of 2011, the Debt Reduction Charge and Capital Recovery Charge were collected at the default rates
under the Puget Contract. The rates may be adjusted by the Commission by giving one years’ prior notice. The
District estimates the annual value of these charges to Puget Sound Energy to be approximately $6.4 million in 2012
and $8.8 million in 2013, which amounts the District expects to use to pay capital expenditures of the Rocky Reach
and Rock Island Projects and/or to retire outstanding indebtedness.

The payment obligations of Puget Sound Energy are expected to exceed its 25% share of the actual costs
incurred by the District in each fiscal year for operation and maintenance expenses and debt service costs related to
the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects. The District is free to structure its actual debt service with respect to the
Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects so that debt service related payments by Puget Sound Energy for its portion
of the output of the Projects may be greater than, equal to or less than the District’s actual debt service.

The payment obligations of Puget Sound Energy under the Puget Contract are absolute and unconditional,
regardless of whether it can receive, accept, take delivery of or use all or any portion of such output, and regardless
of whether either of the Rocky Reach or Rock Island Projects is operable or operating, or the operation thereof is
interrupted, suspended, interfered with, reduced or curtailed, in whole or in part, at any time for any reason. In
addition, the payment obligations of Puget Sound Energy under the Puget Contract are subject to a mandatory step-
up of its pro rata share of the defaulting participant’s share in the event of a default by any other long-term power
purchaser of the output of the Rocky Reach or Rock Island Projects. In no event will Puget Sound Energy’s total
share exceed 40% without its written permission due to this provision.

See APPENDIX [—“Summary of Power Sales Contract with Puget Sound Energy, Inc.”

For a description of Puget Sound Energy, see APPENDIX H—“DESCRIPTION OF MAJOR POWER
PURCHASERS.”

Alcoa Power Sales Contract

In July 2008, the District executed a new long-term power sales contract with Alcoa, Inc. (“Alcoa”) (the
“Alcoa Contract” and together with the Puget Contract, the “Power Sales Contracts”). Deliveries under the Alcoa
Contract commenced on November 1, 2011 and July 1, 2012 for the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects,
respectively. The Alcoa Contract is scheduled to terminate on October 31, 2028. Under the Alcoa Contract, Alcoa
purchased energy equivalent to 27.5% of the output of the Rocky Reach Project from November 1, 2011 to June 30,
2012, and thereafter Alcoa will purchase energy equivalent to 26% of the combined Output of both the Rock Island
and Rocky Reach Projects. “Output” is defined in the Alcoa Contract as an amount of energy determined in relation
to the energy production of the Rock Island Project and the Rocky Reach Project. Energy may be supplied by the
District from any source. The District retains for its own benefit and use all capacity, pondage, environmental
attributes and other products related to the output of the two Projects except for certain ancillary services necessary
to supply the output that will be used at Alcoa’s Wenatchee Works aluminum smelting plant. In exchange, Alcoa is
obligated to pay, among other things, its percentage share of (i) the operation and maintenance expenses of the
Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects; (ii) certain debt service-related Financing Costs (as defined in the Alcoa
Contract) with respect to the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects; and (iii) a Coverage Amount (as defined in the
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Alcoa Contract). Alcoa is also obligated to pay an annual Capital Recovery Charge (as defined in the Alcoa
Contract); and (v) an annual Debt Reduction Charge (as defined in the Alcoa Contract). Alcoa will also pay a credit
rating premium based upon the differential between Alcoa’s long-term senior unsecured credit ratings and the
District’s credit ratings. In addition, Alcoa made a one-time payment of $22.9 million in August 2008 as a capacity
reservation charge, which the District may use for any lawful purposes. The District’s Consolidated System is
recognizing the $22.9 million payment as revenue in equal annual amounts over the term of the Alcoa Contract,
commencing on November 1, 2011. FERC approved the Alcoa Contract in September 2008.

The payment provisions of the Alcoa Contract are similar to those of the Puget Contract, including the
Coverage Amount, the Debt Reduction Charge, the Capital Recovery Charge and the Financing Costs provisions
summarized above. In December 2010, the Commission set the annual Debt Reduction Charge and the Capital
Recovery Charge at the maximum rates authorized under the Alcoa Contract, effective January 1, 2012. In
November and December of 2011, the Debt Reduction Charge and Capital Recovery Charge were collected at the
default rates under the Alcoa Contract. The rates may be adjusted by the Commission by giving one years’ prior
notice. The District estimates the annual value of these charges to Alcoa to be approximately $6.8 million in 2012
and $9.2 million in 2013, which amounts the District expects to use to pay capital expenditures of the Rocky Reach
and Rock Island Projects and/or to retire outstanding indebtedness.

The payment obligations of Alcoa under the Alcoa Contract are expected to exceed Alcoa’s percentage
share of the actual costs incurred by the District in each fiscal year for operation and maintenance expenses and debt
service costs related to the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects. The District is free to structure its actual debt
service with respect to the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects so that debt service related payments by Alcoa for
its portion of the output of the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects may be greater than, equal to or less than the
District’s actual debt service.

The payment obligations of Alcoa under the Alcoa Contract are absolute and unconditional, regardless of
whether it can receive, accept, take delivery of or use all or any portion of such output, and regardless of whether
either of the Rocky Reach or Rock Island Project is operable or operating, or the operation thereof is interrupted,
suspended, interfered with, reduced or curtailed, in whole or in part, at any time for any reason. In addition, the
payment obligations of Alcoa under the Alcoa Contract are subject to a mandatory step-up of its pro rata share of
the defaulting participant’s share in the event of a default by any other long-term power purchaser of the output of
the Rocky Reach or Rock Island Projects.

The Alcoa Contract also provides that:

(1) The Output provided pursuant to the Alcoa Contract is to be used to run the Wenatchee
Works project, Alcoa cannot use the energy at any other plant or location and can only resell the energy under
certain circumstances described in the Alcoa Contract.

(i1) A deferred capacity reservation charge of up to $83.7 million is to be paid by Alcoa if the
Wenatchee Works project is shut down under certain circumstances. If Alcoa shuts down the Wenatchee Works
project for 90 days, Alcoa would be obligated to pay to the District an initial shut down amount (the annual initial
shutdown amount of $8.6 million, prorated for the period shut down). If the initial shutdown continues for 18
months or if there is a second shutdown of 90 days’ duration, whichever occurs first, Alcoa would owe the District
the entire balance of the deferred capacity reservation charge. The deferred capacity reservation charge declines as
time passes during the contract term. Such payments may not be required, however, if the shut down is the result of
an Uncontrollable Circumstance (as defined in the Alcoa Contract).

(iii) The District will have the option to terminate the Alcoa Contract if Alcoa operates less
than a minimum load of 175 aMW for 18 months, announces permanent shutdown, formally announces it has
elected to abandon the Wenatchee Works plant or has sold the plant to a third party without the District’s express
written consent; however, if the District decides not to terminate the Alcoa Contract, Alcoa will remain liable for all
remaining payments under the Alcoa Contract.

@iv) Alcoa may not assign the Alcoa Contract to any other entity without the express written
consent of the District. Further, if there is a Change of Control (a person or group acquiring more than 50% of the
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combined voting power or outstanding Equity Interests in Alcoa), the District must expressly consent to that event,
and if the District does not consent to a Change in Control, the District has the right to terminate the Alcoa Contract.
The District’s consent to either situation is within the District’s sole discretion.

(v) The District may request performance assurance or collateral upon the occurrence of a
downgrade event for Alcoa or if the District has reasonable grounds to believe that Alcoa’s creditworthiness or
performance under the Alcoa Contract has become unsatisfactory. The District may request such performance
assurance to cover the sum of approximately three months of periodic payments and an amount equal to the deferred
capacity reservation charge described in (ii) above (all as defined in the Alcoa Contract).

See APPENDIX J—“Summary of Power Sales Contract with Alcoa, Inc.”

In January 2010, the Commission approved Alcoa’s plan to invest an additional $20 million in power
system upgrades that will make it possible to operate a third pot line reliably at Alcoa’s Wenatchee Works. The
District and Alcoa entered into an Interconnection Agreement, pursuant to which Alcoa will finance upgrades to the
District’s McKenzie substation, improve the connection at Alcoa for the District’s 230-kv Columbia 2 transmission
line to the Rocky Reach Project and purchase for the District a part of the Valhalla Substation near Alcoa and
currently owned by Bonneville. The District will own and operate the facilities, and Alcoa will be responsible for
all costs. Alcoa began operating the third pot line as of March 2011.

For a description of Alcoa, see APPENDIX H—“DESCRIPTION OF MAJOR POWER PURCHASERS.”
The Prior Power Sales Contracts

Prior to November 1, 2011, the energy available to the District from its ownership and operation of the
Rocky Reach Project was governed by power sales contracts with (i) four investor-owned utility companies (the
“Prior IOU Power Sales Contracts”), (ii) Alcoa Power (the “Prior Alcoa Power Contract”), and (iii) Douglas PUD
(the “Douglas PUD Power Sales Contract” and together with the Prior IOU Power Sales Contracts and the Prior
Alcoa Power Contract, the “Prior Rocky Reach Power Sales Contracts”).

Under the Prior IOU Power Sales Contracts, a major portion (59.1%) of the power output of the Rocky
Reach Project was sold to four investor-owned utility companies on a take-or-pay and cost-of-service basis, with the
balance (40.9%) taken by the District, and each party paid its percentage share of the total annual cost of the Rocky
Reach Project. Under the Prior Alcoa Power Contract, energy sales to Alcoa Power, consisting of approximately
23% of the equivalent output of the Rocky Reach Project, were based on a pro rata portion of the costs of
generation, with Alcoa Power liable for such obligations on a take-or-pay basis. Alcoa Power could purchase
additional energy of up to 42 megawatts at a price equal to the District’s average industrial rate. All sales to Alcoa
Power under the Prior Alcoa Power Contract were classified by the District as “Resale.”

Pursuant to the Douglas PUD Power Sales Contract, the District agreed to sell to Douglas PUD, from the
District’s share of Rocky Reach Project energy, an amount of energy equal to 2.77% of the output of the Rocky
Reach Project, upon payment by Douglas PUD of an amount equal to the District’s cost of such energy. This
contract provides that Douglas PUD has the right to take an additional 2.77% under the same terms and pay the
same costs as other “slice purchasers” beginning November 1, 2011. The original term of the Douglas PUD contract
ended on October 31, 2011, but the contract can be extended in ten-year increments at the option of Douglas PUD
five times, for a final potential term (including extensions) of October 31, 2061. Douglas PUD has provided notice
for the first 10-year extension until October 31, 2021 for 5.54% of output of the Rocky Reach Project.

Prior to June 7, 2012, the energy available to the District from its ownership and operation of the Rock
Island Project was governed by a power sales contract between the District and Puget Sound Energy, pursuant to
which the output of the Rock Island Project was sold on a take-or-pay and cost-of-service basis to Puget Sound
Energy, subject to the right of the District to take certain portions of the output for its own use (the “Prior Rock
Island Power Sales Contract” and together with the Prior Rocky Reach Power Sales Contracts, the “Prior Power
Sales Contracts”). For 2011 and through June 7, 2012, 50% of the power output of the Rock Island Project was sold
to Puget Sound Energy and the remaining 50% was taken by the District.
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Energy Sales; Load/Resource Balancing; Hedging Strategy

Because approximately 93% of the District’s residential customers and a portion of the District’s
commercial and industrial customers use electricity as a source of energy for space heating, the District’s energy
sales are significantly affected by the weather. To mitigate potential wholesale sales and price volatility, to help
keep future rates stable and affordable and to maintain financial stability, the District has implemented a
comprehensive forward hedging strategy. In addition to the Power Sales Contracts, a key component of the strategy
includes executing medium-term power sales contracts for (i) fixed percentages of future output from the Rock
Island and Rocky Reach Projects and (ii) fixed amounts of such output, in each case at fixed prices and for staggered
terms from within the then-current year plus up to an additional 60 months. This strategy is expected to mitigate the
District’s exposure to changes in wholesale power prices and Columbia River flows (the latter of which affects
generation at the Hydro-Electric Projects) and to secure a revenue stream for the duration of those contracts. As of
September 30, 2012, the District has locked in revenues under these medium-term contracts of $447.7 million for
the period from January 2013 through the end of 2017.

The Consolidated System derives a substantial portion of its annual revenues from wholesale sales of the
Distribution Division’s share of surplus power generated by the Hydro-Electric Projects. These wholesale sales
provided 45% of annual Distribution Division revenues in fiscal year 2011 and 36% of annual Distribution Division
revenues in fiscal year 2010. The amount of surplus power sold by the District in 2011 and 2012 increased from
prior years, and thus the percentage of annual Distribution Division revenues derived from such sales, as a result of
the expiration of the Prior Power Sales Contracts and the commencement of deliveries under the Power Sales
Contracts.

The amount of such power available for sale in any given year, and the prices at which such power can be
sold, however, are highly variable, and depend to a large extent on factors outside of the control of the District. In
particular, the amount of such power available for sale is dependent upon relative flows down the Columbia River
past the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects and the timing of such flows, both of which are largely dependent
upon weather conditions in and upstream of the Mid-Columbia River and weather conditions in the District’s service
area, which affects the District’s relative load from season to season. The price of such power also is dependent,
among other things, on weather conditions inside and outside the Pacific Northwest, the relative demand for power
at any given time across the Western United States, general economic conditions, the cost and the availability of
alternative sources of power, including in particular energy generated by facilities fueled by natural gas, wind and
numerous other factors. The District seeks to moderate the variability in its revenues arising from these factors
through a variety of means, including the implementation of its energy hedging strategy, the maintenance of
significant liquidity, including the maintenance of the Rate Stabilization Fund, and its ability to impose rate
increases or temporary rate surcharges on relatively short notice.

In 2012, the District entered into a new five-year agreement with Powerex, a real-time scheduling service
provider, to balance the District’s resources with its daily load requirements and other contractual obligations on a
real-time basis. In addition to the real-time scheduling services it provides to the District, Powerex also has rights to
access the District’s balancing authority and scheduling services at the Mid-Columbia energy hub and to access the
District’s residual system capability. The District has secured additional revenues from the Powerex agreement.
FERC approved the agreement with Powerex in November 2012.

Table 7 on the following page presents the District’s customers and energy sales of its Distribution
Division for the years 2007 through 2011 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. The information for
fiscal years 2007 through 2011 has been extracted from the District’s audited financial statements. The information
provided for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 is unaudited. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—
General.”
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Table 7
Distribution Division — Customers, Energy Sales and Revenues
Years Ended December 31, 2007 through 2011 and Nine Months Ending September 30, 2012

Nine Months
Ended
September
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 30,2012

Customers

Retail:
Residential 34,129 35,357 35,516 35,687 35,806 36,040
General Service 5,666 5,968 6,027 6,074 6,092 6,144
Industrial 30 32 31 31 30 31
Interdepartmental 501 523 544 549 537 541
Other) 4,985 5,745 5,749 5,710 5,708 5,688
Total Retail Customers 45311 47,625 47,867 48,051 48,173 48,444

Resale: 60 68 70 73 78 79
Total Customers 45,371 47,693 47,937 48,124 48,251 48,523

Energy Sales (000 MWh)

Retail:
Residential 723 744 803 738 776 562
General Service 434 447 469 447 470 351
Industrial 297 297 315 296 284 193
Interdepartmental 18 19 20 19 19 16
Other) 45 47 48 40 41 40
Total Retail Sales 1,517 1,554 1,655 1,540 1,590 1,162

Resale:
Alcoa Power 1,464 1,380 1,313 1,341 1,622 1,551
Douglas PUD 176 159 146 140 231 326
City of Cashmere® 61 49 - - - -
Other — Firm - - - 19 586 1,565
Other — Non-firm 1,627 1,274 1,143 1,187 1,733 2,127
Total Sales for Resale 3,328 2,862 2,602 2,687 4,172 5,569
Total Energy Sales 4,845 4,416 4,257 4,227 5,762 6,731

Revenue ($000)

Retail:
Residential $ 21,515 $ 23,197 $ 26,203 $ 25,132 $ 26,560 $ 18,138
General Service 13,970 15,154 16,842 16,687 17,468 11,959
Industrial 5,542 5,757 6,378 6,246 6,089 3,923
Interdepartmental 506 559 607 583 583 483
Other) 1,536 1,650 1,775 1,719 1,688 1,509
Total Retail Revenue $ 43,069 $ 46,317 $ 51,805 $ 50,367 $ 52,388 $ 36,012

Resale:
Alcoa Power $ 21,427 $ 25,025 $ 22,448 $ 24,740 $ 24,340 $ 24,532
Douglas PUD 2,073 2,004 1,930 2,074 2,395 2,952
City of Cashmere® 830 721 - - - -
Other — Firm - - - 771 19,402 49,808
Other — Non-firm 79,377 66,250 36,484 43,358 47,863 64,108
Total Resale Revenue $ 103,707 $ 94,000 $ 60,862 $ 70,943 $ 94,000 $ 141,400
Other Revenues 1,256 2,619 1,615 1,511 2,791 7,822
Total Revenue $ 148,032 $ 142,936 $ 114,282 $ 122,821 $ 149,179 $ 185,234

()
2

Includes irrigation, frost protection and street/yard lighting.

On October 30, 2008, the District acquired the City of Cashmere’s distribution system, which is now owned and operated as a part of the District’s
Distribution Division.

Source: The District.
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Electric Rates; Other Rates

The District is empowered and required pursuant to State statutes to establish, maintain and collect rates or
charges for electric service which are fair and nondiscriminatory and adequate to provide revenues sufficient for the
payment of the principal of and interest on its revenue obligations and for all payments which the District is
obligated to set aside in any special fund or funds for such purpose and for the proper operation and maintenance of
the Consolidated System and all necessary repairs, replacements and renewals thereof.

The District has maintained rates for retail electric service which have been sufficient to provide for
operation and maintenance costs and expenses, debt service, repairs, replacements and renewals and to provide for a
major portion of the capital additions to the Consolidated System. Rates and charges of the District are fixed by its
Commission. The Commission holds public hearings annually to consider the District’s proposed budget. In
addition, the Commission holds open meetings to consider the District’s construction plan and load forecast and
effects on the District’s revenue requirements. Based on these planning documents, the District’s staff estimates the
District’s revenue requirements and prepares various rate proposals designed to produce this revenue. The
Commission holds public meetings to introduce and explain the proposals to the public and to receive public input.
The input is then considered in a public meeting and the Commission makes a final decision as to rates.

The District, pursuant to State statutes, has the full and exclusive authority to regulate and control rates and
charges for retail electric service free from the jurisdiction and control of the Washington Utilities and
Transportation Commission (“WUTC”). The District is, however, subject to certain rate-making provisions of the
federal Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978, as amended (“PURPA”), governing rate-making policies.
The District believes that it is operating in compliance with PURPA.

The District believes that it is exempt under the FPA from any regulation by FERC of its retail electric
rates, and neither FERC nor its predecessor agency has ever attempted to assert such regulatory authority over the
District.

In 2008, the District increased electric rates by 5% to help move the District away from reliance on
wholesale power sales over time. Prior to the 2008 rate increase, the District last increased electric rates in
January 2000.

In 2009 and 2010, an unusual combination of low wholesale energy prices, below-average snowpack and a
declining interest rate environment resulted in a significant decline in revenues to the District from sales of surplus
power and interest income earned on investments. In response to these developments, the District, among other
things, implemented a temporary 9% rate surcharge, which went into effect on May 1, 2009 and extended through
December 31, 2011.

The District implemented a temporary 2.0% rate increase, effective December 1, 2010 through April 15,
2011, to defray certain anticipated project costs. The District adopted an electric rate design change on October 17,
2011. The new rate design, which included an overall retail rate increase of 2.5%, went into effect on January 1,
2012 following the expiration of the 9% surcharge.

If conditions adversely affecting the District’s revenues (including below-average river flows and
depressed wholesale energy prices) return in the future, the District could re-impose a retail rate surcharge or take
other rate action to maintain the health of the District’s finances.

In addition to the electric rate increases and surcharges described above, the District has also implemented
rate increases for some of its other systems. The District increased rates for its Water System and Wastewater
System by 9% on January 1, 2008, 6.9% for the Water System and 6.5% for the Wastewater System on April 1,
2009, 5.0% for both systems on April 1, 2011 and 6.0% for both systems on April 1, 2012. The District also
increased wholesale rates charged to serviced providers for its Fiber and Telecommunications System by 2.0% on
January 1, 2008, by an approximate blended rate of 5% on January 1, 2011 and by 9% on August 1, 2012.
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Table 8 below presents the District’s average monthly electric bills and those of several other major public
and private Pacific Northwest utilities. The rates shown are those in effect as of December 1, 2012.

Table 8
Comparative Monthly Electric Bills
As of December 1, 2012

()

Residential Commercial® Industrial®
(1000 KWh) (2,000 kWh) (30 kW, 9,000 kWh) (400 KW, 150,000 KWh)
Summer Winter Summer Winter Summer Winter
The District $35 $62 $268 $268 $4,510 $4,510
Selected Municipalities:
Tacoma Power 77 148 666 666 7,668 7,668
City of Seattle 102 200 621 621 9,324 9,324
Selected Public Utilities:
Grant County PUD No. 2 52 93 392 392 6,288 6,288
Snohomish County PUD No. 1 85 177 670 748 10,168 11,566
Investor Owned Utilities:
Avista 80 170 885 885 12,689 12,689
Puget Sound Energy 103 209 819 847 12,035 13,227

M Computed from the rate schedules provided by the utilities listed. There are some variations in rate schedules and rate
classification of the various utilities.
@ Assumes power delivered is three-phase where available. Delivery voltage varies.

The Distribution Division rates are among the lowest in the country. Chart 1 on the following page
compares the District with Pacific Northwest and national averages. District residential rates averaged 3.4 cents per
kWh in 2011 compared to 8.7 cents per kWh for the Pacific Northwest average and 12.1 cents per kWh for the
national average. This is due, in part, to the low-cost hydro generation provided by the District’s three Hydro-
Electric Projects. Chart 2 on the following page compares the District’s combined hydro production cost with the
Bonneville priority firm rate available to public utilities and the annual market average based on the Mid-Columbia
Electricity Price Index. For 2011, the District’s combined Hydro-Electric Projects’ production cost was $15 per
MWh (1.46 cents per kWh) compared to Bonneville’s firm priority rate of $35 per MWh (3.46 cents per kWh) and
the Mid-Columbia market average of $24 per MWh (2.38 cents per kWh). Comparable data for 2012 is not yet
available.
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Largest Customers

The largest wholesale customers of the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Systems are the power purchasers of
those Systems (collectively, the “Power Purchasers”). See “—The Puget Sound Power Sales Contract,” “—The
Alcoa Power Sales Contract” and “—The Prior Power Sales Contracts” under this heading. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Power Purchasers, which excludes Alcoa and Douglas PUD, collectively purchased
approximately 54.7% of the output of the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Systems. Revenues of the Rock Island
System and Rocky Reach System do not constitute Revenues pledged to the payment of the Senior Consolidated
System Bonds, the Bonds or the Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations.

Table 9 below presents the five largest local customers, including both local wholesale purchasers and
major retail customers, of the Distribution Division in terms of MWh sales for the year ended December 31, 2011.
Alcoa Power, the Distribution Division’s largest local wholesale purchaser, accounted for 16.3% of the revenues of
the Distribution Division. Comparable date for the year ended December 31, 2012 is not yet available.

Table 9
Consolidated System
Distribution Division

Five Largest Local Wholesale Purchasers and Major Retail Customers'"

2011
Revenue from Percent of

Energy Sales Energy Sales Distribution’s

Customer Business (000 MWh) ($000) Total Revenue
Alcoa Power? Aluminum Mfg. 1,622 $ 24,340 16.3%
Douglas County PUD Electric Utility 231 2,395 1.6%
Stemilt Growers Inc. Agriculture 64 1,308 0.9%
Keyes Fibre Inc. Paper Products 39 710 0.5%
Trout Inc. Agriculture 32 642 0.4%
1,988 $ 29,395 19.7%

" Excludes non-firm sales for resale.

@ Under the prior power sales agreement between the District and Alcoa, which expired October 31, 2011, Alcoa assigned its
23% share of the output of the Rocky Reach Project to the Distribution Division, and in return, the Distribution Division
provided power equivalent to 23% of the Rocky Reach Project output to Alcoa at cost and procured any additional power
needed or sold any surplus power to Alcoa at contractual rates, which approximated market rates. See “THE
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—The Prior Power Sales Contracts.” The Alcoa Contract became effective November 1, 2011
with respect to the Rocky Reach Project and July 1, 2012 with respect to the Rock Island Project. See “THE
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—The Alcoa Power Sales Contract.”

Wholesale Power Management Activity

The District has the opportunity to purchase and sell power from and to a number of power marketing
firms, banks, independent power producers and other electric utilities and to enter into future delivery contracts for
the forward purchase and sale of electricity. While this creates new opportunities, it also creates risks. The District
recognizes these risks and has committed significant resources to mitigate them. In 1998, the District developed a
Power Risk Management Policy, which establishes guidelines for monitoring and controlling exposure to market,
counterparty/credit, tax and other risks associated with wholesale power transactions. The policy is reviewed and
revised at least annually to ensure that the policy remains adequate in the changing energy market. The District
maintains a Power Risk Management Committee, comprised of the Senior Managers. Other staff members, as
defined by resolution, may serve on the committee during any vacancies of those positions. The District’s General
Manager reviews proposed actions and is the final authority on all decisions made by the committee. The committee
is responsible for approving the Power Risk Management Policy, approving strategies, monitoring performance,
communicating with the Commission, establishing trading and position limits, approving new product offerings,
ensuring that strategies are consistent with the District’s business objectives and reviewing financial results.
Included in the Power Risk Management Policy noted above is a credit policy, which requires that trades be made
only with pre-approved counterparties. The objective of the credit policy is to preserve the capital and liquidity of
the District. This is done in part by establishing procedures for granting open lines of credit and for monitoring and
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managing customer and counterparty credit exposures related to power marketing activities. The intent of these
credit policies and procedures is to maintain customer and counterparty default risk at acceptable levels. See Table
7 — “Distribution Division Customers, Energy Sales and Revenues.”

The Fiber and Telecommunications System
General

The District built, maintains and operates the Fiber and Telecommunications System that runs throughout
the County to provide various communication services necessary for the District to conduct its business. The Fiber
and Telecommunications System is strategically placed to provide for the interconnection of many of the District’s
facilities, including office buildings, distribution substations, transmission switchyards, and the Hydro-Electric
Projects. Through the Fiber and Telecommunications System, the District also provides telecommunications
infrastructure access to private retail service providers, all of which have “open access” to the network at rates
reviewed and established annually by the Commission. These service providers, in turn, deliver services which may
include telephone, television and high-speed Internet access to retail end users. Private retail service providers set
their own end user pricing and are directly responsible for billing each end user. The District bills the service
providers for the wholesale services provided by the District through the Fiber and Telecommunications System. A
significant portion of end users receive services from one large private retail service provider.

As of the December 31, 2012, the District has made fiber-optic services available pursuant to its applicable
policies to approximately 29,700 premises through lit distribution hubs. The District intends to continue connecting
premises to existing fiber optic distribution hubs upon end user request, as the budget for each year allows. The
estimated number of end users of the Fiber and Telecommunications System increased to 12,240 in 2012. Of these
end users, approximately 89% use the network to subscribe for data services, approximately 52% subscribe to
telephone services and approximately 45% subscribe to video services, with certain users accessing the network for
multiple services, all though the retail service providers.

The District completed a Fiber and Telecommunications System strategic planning effort in 2012 under the
four key objectives indentified within the District’s 2010 Strategic Plan. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—
Strategic Planning.” The purpose of Fiber and Telecommunications System strategic planning was to perform an
assessment of the business unit in terms of the deployed technology, business model, service offerings, financial
stability, product rate structures and capital and operational costs. Based on the results of these strategic planning
efforts, the General Manager recommended to the Commission several policies intended to help make the Fiber and
Telecommunications System self-sustaining over the long term. Based on these recommendations, the Commission
took the following actions in 2012: (i) authorized a one-time equity transfer from the Distribution Division to retire
approximately $99 million of intersystem debt; (ii) adopted a five-year business plan and financial policies,
including establishing minimum positive cash flow requirements, “savings accounts” to accumulate funds for larger
capital expenditures, and minimum cash reserves for emergencies, unanticipated expenses or declining revenues;
(iii) established a policy limiting financing for any expansion of the Fiber and Telecommunications System to new
areas of the County beyond the present lit fiber distribution footprint to revenues generated by the Fiber and
Telecommunications System; (iv) adopted a 9% increase in most Fiber and Telecommunications wholesale rates,
effective as August 1, 2012; and (v) hired a new Fiber and Telecommunications System Manager.

Although these policies are intended to make the Fiber and Telecommunications System self-sustaining
over the long term, the Fiber and Telecommunications System is subject to, and heavily influenced by, competition,
changes in technology and customer preferences. Efforts to improve all areas within the Fiber and
Telecommunications business unit are underway. The District continues to review other 2012 strategic planning
recommendations, and Fiber and Telecommunications System rates studies are expected to be completed in 2013.

Regulatory Environment and Government Regulation

Telecommunication services are subject to significant regulatory oversight at the federal, state and local
level, which may affect future results.

The Washington State Legislature passed Senate Bill 6675 effective June 8, 2000 (codified as RCW

54.16.330), which authorized public utility districts to provide wholesale telecommunications services. RCW
54.16.340 subjects the District’s telecommunications services to the limited jurisdiction of WUTC with respect to
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whether the rates, terms, and conditions for wholesale telecommunications services are unduly or unreasonably
discriminatory or preferential. Any such proceeding may only be initiated by petition of a third-party, and not by
WUTC.

At the federal level, the Federal Communications Commission (the “FCC”) regulates a number of
telecommunications activities, which directly or indirectly impacts the District and the service providers using the
Fiber and Telecommunications System. The District has reviewed FCC requirements with outside counsel and
believes that all registrations and filings required by Federal regulations in 2012 have been made.

Agreements with Retail Service Providers

The District offers wholesale telecommunications facilities (dark fiber) and services to retail service
providers authorized to provide telecommunications services to the general public. Service providers requesting
dark fiber enter into a Telecommunications Facilities License Agreement with the District. Service providers
requesting other telecommunications services offered by the District are required to enter into a Non-Exclusive
Telecommunications Access and Transport Services License Agreement with the District. Other business
opportunities being explored by the District through separate service provider agreements relate to extension and
construction of District fiber optics for purposes of serving cell tower sites.

Competition

Charter Communications (“‘Charter”) is the incumbent cable company in most of the County and offers
broadband internet, cable television service, and “Voice over Internet Protocol” or VoIP telephone service via
coaxial cable. Charter maintains a direct retail relationship with its customers and does not allow other providers to
access its network. Frontier is the incumbent telephone provider in the County and provides traditional telephone
service throughout the county, digital subscriber lines (“DSL”) in some areas of the County and satellite television
service through DirecTV. Satellite television services are also available from Dish Network and DirecTV. The
District’s Fiber and Telecommunications System currently provides the service providers in many areas with faster
download speeds than those available from Charter or Frontier. Current broadband internet and television offerings
from the service providers are priced competitively with Charter and Frontier.

Historical Results

Table 10 on the following page sets forth a summary of financial results of operation of the Fiber and
Telecommunications System for fiscal years 2007 through 2011 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012.
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Table 10
Consolidated System
Fiber and Telecommunications System
Summary of Operating Results

($000)
Nine
Months
Ended
September
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 30,2012
Operating revenues
Wholesale fiber services $ 2,563 $ 3,088 $ 3,706 $ 4,109 $ 4,541 $ 3,641
Fiber leasing 378 422 464 487 505 374
Intra-district revenues 1,509 1,695 1,869 1,984 1,937 1,583
Total operating revenues 4,450 5,205 6,039 6,580 6,983 5,598
Operating expenses'"
Administrative and general 1,647 1,601 1,678 1,522 1,637 1,143
Repairs and maintenance 865 806 743 1,043 1,115 1,078
Other operating 1,466 1,582 1,205 1,400 2,613 1,243
Depreciation expense 3,385 4,072 4,764 5,170 5,545 4,306
Total operating expenses 7,363 8,061 8,390 9,135 10,910 7,770
Operating loss (2,913) (2,856) (2,351) (2,555) (3,927) (2,172)
Other expense (3,617) (4,091) (4,733) (4,856) (4,882) (7
Net loss before capital contributions (6,530) (6,947) (7,084) (7,411) (8,809) (2,179)
Capital contributions 6 309 10 5 21 207
Interfund equity transfers® 18,000 - - 94 337 98,978
Changes in Net Position $ 11,476 $ (6,638) $ (7,074) $ (7,312) $ (8,451) $ 97,006

@ Includes NOANet assessments.

@ In 2007, represents the portion of the one-time payment of $89 million from Puget Sound Energy as a capacity reservation charge
that was allocated to the Fiber and Telecommunications System. In 2010 and 2011, represents a temporary 2.0% Distribution
Division rate increase effective December 1, 2010 through April 15, 2011 intended to defray certain project costs. In 2012,
represents a one-time equity transfer from the Distribution Division to retire all internal loans previously made to the Fiber and
Telecommunications System.

Technology and Related Risk

The District has elected to “light” the fiber network with what is referred to as a Passive (unpowered)
Optical Network (“PON”), using “Fiber to the Premises” or FTTP equipment. The District’s PON network
configuration can serve up to 32 Customer Premises Devices delivering service to homes or businesses from a single
strand of fiber. The network can service up to 2,304 premises from a single chassis. This structure greatly reduces
the cost of the outside plant deployment by reducing the number of fiber optic strands required and the number of
active (powered) nodes, the maintenance required to maintain them, and the associated costs.

Telecommunications is a rapidly evolving industry subject to a high degree of technical obsolescence.
While fiber optics is the clear current technological leader in terms of data transfer rates and reliability, broadband
data transfer capabilities are increasing with subsequent applications making the prior capacity insufficient. Unlike
certain other technologies, the data transfer capacity of the fiber itself is nearly infinite, currently limited only by the
capability of commercially available equipment lighting the fiber. District staff anticipates that the electronic
equipment lighting the fiber network will need to be periodically upgraded to meet the increasing bandwidth needs
of the District and the community, but that the fiber itself will be capable of meeting the broadband needs for the
foreseeable future.

The Alcatel-Lucent FTTP platform deployed includes two systems that are technologically disparate:
Broadband Passive Optical Network (“BPON”) and Gigabit Passive Optical Network (“GPON”). Both are PON-

based systems, provide the same type of services and share the same fiber plant but are not interchangeable or
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interoperable between the two systems. The BPON system is near end-of-life with limited vendor technical and
product support and is scheduled for a systematic replacement to the next generation GPON product. The
replacement is targeted to be completed by the end of 2016.

System Integrity

In the District’s opinion, its reserve funds and insurance coverage are adequate to cover loss or damage
associated with the Fiber and Telecommunications System. In addition, the network is designed to have some level
of resiliency and redundancy where possible, with ongoing efforts to improve reliability. For example, all of the
core equipment is either 48VDC powered with battery backup capability or powered through an uninterruptable
power supply and is located within environmentally controlled facilities. In addition, the District’s core fiber
equipment, failure of which could result in a temporary loss of network function, is maintained in a secure building
protected by an advanced fire suppression system and an uninterruptable power system to minimize these risks.
This core equipment defines the District’s transport systems and includes the following platforms: Synchronous
Optical Network, Asynchronous Transfer Mode and 10 Gigabit Ethernet over Multiprotocol Label Switching.
Similarly, where possible path diversity is maintained between core network devices either over redundant fiber
paths, various transport systems or through multiple network interfaces to improve reliability. Lastly, the District
maintains a daily backup copy of all critical network provisioning.

NOANet

Northwest Open Access Network (“NOANet”), a Washington non-profit mutual corporation, is a wholesale
provider of high-speed backbone transport capacity in Washington for internet, Ethernet and TDM services.
NOANet has licensed fiber optic cable capacity from Bonneville and other sources to create a network for its
municipal electric utility members and rural communities in Washington State. That network became commercially
operational in 2001. NOANet makes its facilities and services available at cost to Incumbent Local Exchange
Carriers, Competitive Local Exchange Carriers, Inter-eXchange Carriers, Regional Service Providers, Internet
Service Providers and Application Service Providers. NOANet is a registered telecommunications company under
the regulatory oversight of the Washington Ultilities and Transportation Commission.

NOANet was formed pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act (RCW Ch. 39.34) for the purpose of
developing a regional telecommunications network for its members. A “member” of a mutual corporation is the
effective equivalent of a shareholder. Pursuant to NOANet’s Articles of Incorporation, all members must be public
agencies located in Bonneville’s service area. Members have voting rights equal to their respective percentage
interests. NOANet’s original members included public utility districts (“PUDs”) and one regional electric utility
joint action agency, Energy Northwest. The District was a member of NOANet from its inception in 2000 until
September 3, 2012. The District provided notice of withdrawal in accordance with the NOANet Articles of
Incorporation and Bylaws, effective as of August 31, 2012. At the time of its withdrawal, the District’s membership
percentage was 11.71%. Douglas County PUD also withdrew from NOANet, effective in July 2012.

Pursuant to an agreement with NOANet (as affirmed by the District in connection with the issuance by
NOANet of refunding bonds in June 2011, the “Third Repayment Agreement”), the District is obligated to make
payments to NOANet in amounts sufficient, to the extent not otherwise paid from NOANet’s revenues, to pay debt
service on NOANet’s bonds outstanding as of July 12, 2001 and on any bonds issued by NOANet to refund its 2001
bonds. The District has guaranteed the payment of 10.12% of debt service on such long-term bonds, or $1,096,502
of the approximately $10,835,000 aggregate principal amount of such bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2012.
The District and the other former members of NOANet and the remaining members of NOANet are each also
obligated to pay up to an additional 25% of their respective percentage interests to cover any deficiency caused by
any other member’s or former member’s failure to pay pursuant to the Third Repayment Agreement. The payment
obligation of each member or former member, including the District, under the Third Repayment Agreement is
subordinate to the payment of (1) the operating and maintenance expenses of the member’s or former member’s
utility system, (2) the principal and interest on any existing or future bonds or other obligations of the member’s or
former member’s utility system, and (3) required reserves for such obligations and the bond and note covenants of
the member or former member. The District also guaranteed under two separate agreements (the “Fourth
Repayment Agreement” and the “Fifth Repayment Agreement” and together with the Third Repayment Agreement,
the “Repayment Agreements”) two non-revolving lines of credit issued by Bank of America to NOANet in 2008 and
2009, respectively, with credit limits totaling $1.5 million each. NOANet’s outstanding balances for the 2008 and
2009 lines of credit as of December 31, 2012 are $300,000 and $500,000, respectively, of which the District has
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guaranteed 11.71%, or $35,130 and $58,550, respectively. As of December 31, 2012, the District’s aggregate
obligations under the Repayment Agreements total $1,190,182.

In 2010, NOANet was awarded and accepted two federal grants in the aggregate amount of approximately
$139 million (the “Grants”) under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act from the National
Telecommunications and Information Administration’s “Broadband Telecommunications Opportunity Program.”
NOANet has entered into certain agreements in connection with the Grants with the federal government and others
(the “Grant Agreements”). NOANet is the lead entity for a consortium of mostly public agencies, together with a
few private entities. The various participants (the ‘“Project Participants™) are required pursuant to various
agreements (the “Participation Agreements”) to provide additional cash and in-kind contributions to the projects
being funded, which have a total proposed budget of almost $185 million. NOANet’s share of the required cash
match is $2.7 million. The stated purpose of the Grants is to expand wholesale telecommunications facilities and
services to 34 of Washington’s 39 counties, most of which are rural areas either underserved or not served by private
telecommunications network providers. The Grants are expected to allow completion of NOANet’s network
system. The District itself was not a Project Participant or a participant in either Grant, and is not a party to any of
the Grant Agreements or Participant Agreements. As of the date of its withdrawal from NOANet, the District is no
longer responsible for any assessments that may result from the Grant Agreements or the Participant Agreements.
Thus, the District believes that it has no obligation to NOANet or otherwise with respect to the Grants, the Grant
Agreements, the Participation Agreements or the projects to be funded with such Grants.

Pacific Northwest Transmission System

The Rocky Reach and Rock Island Systems are connected into the Bonneville transmission grid at several
points. Bonneville markets power from 29 federal hydro-electric and thermal projects, with an installed peak
generating capacity of over 23,500 MW and a firm generating capability of over 8,500 average MW and has the
largest transmission system in the Pacific Northwest.

Two 115-kV lines owned by the District extend north to the Lake Chelan area where they connect to the
115-kV facilities of Avista. A 115-kV line owned by the District extends to the west where it connects to the 115-
kV facilities of Puget Sound Energy. A 230-kV line owned by the District extends from the Rocky Reach Project
switchyard to Alcoa’s Wenatchee Works Smelter to provide direct service to Alcoa Power. This line also extends to
an interconnection with Grant PUD at the Bonneville Columbia switching station. A 230-kV line owned by Puget
Sound Energy has a direct connection to the Rocky Reach Project switchyard and extends west where it is connected
into Puget Sound Energy’s system in its service area. The District also is interconnected at the Rocky Reach Project
switchyard with Douglas PUD by a 230-kV line owned by Douglas PUD. The District’s interconnections with
Bonneville transmission are:

(1) one 345-kV Bonneville line connected to the Rocky Reach System switchyard;
2) one 230-kV Bonneville line connected to the Rocky Reach System switchyard;
3) one 230-kV District-owned line connected to multiple Bonneville transmission lines at the

Bonneville Columbia switching station;

4 two 115-kV District lines connected to the Bonneville transmission system at the Bonneville
Valhalla substation; and

(5) two 115-kV District transformers connected to the Bonneville transmission system at the
Bonneville Valhalla substation to provide direct service to Alcoa.

Bonneville’s transmission facilities interconnect with the British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority
(“BC Hydro”) in the Canadian province of British Columbia and with utilities in the Pacific Southwest of the United
States. Bonneville’s transmission system includes 360 substations, approximately 15,000 circuit miles of high
voltage transmission lines and other related facilities. This transmission system provides about 75% of the Pacific
Northwest’s high-voltage bulk transmission capacity and serves as the main power grid for the Pacific Northwest.
In addition to federal power, the major portion of the power produced from several nonfederal projects, including
those of the District, is transmitted over Bonneville’s transmission facilities to various investor-owned and publicly-
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owned utilities in the Pacific Northwest. Bonneville routinely provides both long- and short-term transmission
access to Pacific Northwest utilities for the purpose of wheeling power within the Pacific Northwest.

The Pacific Northwest-Pacific Southwest Intertie (the “Intertie””), which consists of a combination of AC
and DC power lines, provides the primary bulk transmission link between the Pacific Northwest and the Pacific
Southwest of the United States. Bonneville owns approximately 80% of the portions of the Intertie located north of
California and Nevada. The Intertie consists of three high-voltage AC transmission lines with a combined capacity
of about 4,800 MW and one high-voltage DC transmission line with a capacity of about 3,100 MW. Bonneville has
developed a long-term Intertie access policy and conditions under which it allows nonfederal use of its portion of the
Intertie.

Energy Northwest

Energy Northwest is a municipal corporation and joint operating agency in the State of Washington. The
membership of Energy Northwest consists of Washington public utility districts and cities. The District withdrew as
a member of Energy Northwest in 1995 and subsequently rejoined as a member in 2003. The District is a purchaser
of power from the Nine Canyon Wind Project, which is owned and operated by Energy Northwest. See “THE
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Consolidated System Energy Resources—Nine Canyon.”

Energy Northwest also owns and operates a nuclear electric generating project, Project No. 2 (“Project
No. 2” or the “Columbia Generation Station”), with a net design electrical rating of 1,153 MW, which was placed in
commercial operation in 1984. Energy Northwest also owns all or a portion of four other nuclear electric generating
projects: Project No. 1 (“Project No. 1”) and Project No. 3 (“Project No. 3”), which were terminated by Energy
Northwest in 1994; and Projects Nos. 4 and 5 (“Projects Nos. 4 and 5”), which also were terminated in 1982.
Project Nos. 1, 2 and 3 are collectively referred to as the “Net Billed Projects.” Each of the foregoing projects
(collectively, the “Energy Northwest Projects™) is financed and accounted for as a separate utility system, except for
Projects Nos. 4 and 5, which were financed and accounted for as a single utility system separate and apart from all
other Energy Northwest Projects. As of June 30, 2012, Energy Northwest had outstanding approximately
$5.49 billion aggregate principal amount of bonds issued for the Net Billed Projects. Energy Northwest (then
known as the Washington Public Power Supply System) defaulted in 1983 on the approximately $2.25 billion
principal amount of bonds it issued in connection with Projects Nos. 4 and 5.

Bonneville acquired the capability of the Net Billed Projects pursuant to net billing agreements (the “Net
Billing Agreements”) and, in the case of Project No. 1, exchange agreements with five investor-owned utilities.
Bonneville was not a party to any of the agreements entered into in connection with the construction or financing of
Projects Nos. 4 and 5. Under the Net Billing Agreements, the District purchased from Energy Northwest and, in
turn, assigned to Bonneville the District’s 0.501% and 0.433% share of the capability of Project No. 1 and Energy
Northwest’s ownership share of Project No. 3, respectively. The District is not a participant in Project No. 2.

Under the Net Billing Agreements, Bonneville is responsible for the District’s percentage share of the total
annual cost of Projects Nos. 1 and 3, including debt service on revenue bonds issued to finance the cost of
construction of such Net Billed Projects, whether or not such Net Billing Projects are completed, operable or
operating and notwithstanding the suspension, reduction or curtailment of Net Billing Project output. As of
June 30, 2012, revenue bonds outstanding for Projects Nos. 1 and 3 totaled approximately $1.56 billion and
$1.49 billion, respectively. Notwithstanding the assignment of the District’s share of the capability of each Net
Billed Project to Bonneville, the District remains unconditionally obligated to pay to Energy Northwest its share of
the total annual cost of each Net Billed Project to the extent payments or credits relating to such annual cost are not
received by Energy Northwest from Bonneville.

Under the Net Billing Agreements, payment by Bonneville to Energy Northwest of the District’s
percentage share of the total annual cost of each Net Billed Project is made by a crediting arrangement whereby
Bonneville credits, against amounts which the District owes Bonneville for the purchase of electric power and
energy, operation and maintenance of facilities, use of transmission facilities and emerging and standby power, the
District’s share of the total annual cost of each Net Billed Project. To the extent the District’s share of such annual
cost exceeds amounts owed by the District to Bonneville, Bonneville is obligated, after certain assignment
procedures, to pay the amount of such excess directly to the District or to Energy Northwest from funds legally
available therefor. The District is obligated under its Net Billing Agreements to pay Energy Northwest (as a
purchased power cost of the Distribution Division) the amounts credited or paid to the District by Bonneville.

60



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
General

Revenues from the District’s sales of the surplus portion of its share of the energy produced by the
District’s three Hydro-Electric Projects on the wholesale market have generated substantial revenues for the
Consolidated System, providing 45% of annual Distribution Division revenues in 2011 and 36% of annual
Distribution Division revenues in 2010. These surplus revenues have allowed the District to keep rates to
Distribution Division customers among the lowest in the nation. Comparable data for 2012 are not yet available.

Historically, given the traditional reliance of the Pacific Northwest on hydro-electric energy, there has been
an inverse relationship between the level of water flows on the Columbia River and wholesale power prices. That is,
when flows were comparatively high and hydro-generated energy comparatively plentiful, prices declined. When
flows and therefore hydro-generated energy supply were comparatively low, wholesale prices increased. The net
result has been that the District’s revenues from sales of surplus energy on the wholesale market have remained
relatively constant.

However, there has been a significant increase in the volatility of the volume of water and its monthly share
that is available to use for generation as well as the price at the Mid-Columbia trading hub. Increasingly, market
prices have shown a correlation with natural gas prices, which may or may not follow water volume. Variable
energy generation, such as wind, is also affecting the market prices for electricity at the Mid-Columbia trading hub.
For example, negative prices, in fact, result when wind is over-producing and other types of generation are required
to satisfy “must run” requirements. Given the changes in the electric utility industry and power markets generally,
and that hydro-electric energy is becoming a smaller portion of the over-all power supply in the Pacific Northwest,
there is no assurance that the historical relationship between hydro-electric power supply and power prices will
continue.

The District also has implemented an energy hedging strategy to help stabilize wholesale revenue in
volatile markets and during low river flows. The District, as part of its ongoing strategic financial planning, expects
to offset any material reduction in revenues from surplus power sales in any given year by maintaining its current
strong cash reserve position, by retaining future periodic increases in revenues from surplus energy sales as an
additional component of its cash reserves and, if necessary, by rate adjustments or surcharges. See “THE
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Energy Sales; Load/Resource Balancing; Hedging Strategy” and “—Electric Rates;
Other Rates.”

Some financial data in this Remarketing Memorandum is provided as of December 31, 2011 because the
District’s audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 are not yet available. The
District’s audited financial statements and accompanying notes for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 are
included in this Remarketing Memorandum in APPENDIX A. Certain preliminary unaudited financial and
operating data as of September 30, 2012 have been provided for informational purposes; however, such data may
not be indicative of actual year-end results. The District’s financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental entities applied on a consistent basis. In
addition, the information provided for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 reflects significant increases in
wholesale power sales revenues in 2012 following the expiration of the Prior Power Sales Contracts and the
commencement of deliveries under the Power Sales Contracts, under which a larger portion of the energy generated
by the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects is available to the District for sale as surplus power in the wholesale
market. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Power Sales Revenues and District Near-Term Financial Outlook,”
“THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Energy Sales; Load/Resource Balancing; Hedging Strategy,” “—Puget Sound
Energy Power Sales Contract” and “—Alcoa Power Sales Contract” and APPENDIX B—“PRELIMINARY
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL DATA OF THE DISTRICT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012

Management’s Discussion of Distribution Division Financial Results
General

Power Sales Contracts. In February 2006 and July 2008, the District executed the Puget
Contract and the Alcoa Contract, respectively. Deliveries under the Power Sales Contracts commenced on
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November 1, 2011 for the Rocky Reach Project and July 1, 2012 for the Rock Island Project, after the expiration of
the Prior Power Sales Contracts on October 31, 2011 and June 7, 2012, respectively. For a description of the Puget
Contract, see “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Puget Sound Energy Sales Contract” and APPENDIX I—
“Summary of Power Sales Contract with Puget Sound Energy, Inc.” For a description of the Alcoa Contract, see
“THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Alcoa Power Sales Contract” and APPENDIX J—“Summary of Power Sales
Contract with Alcoa, Inc.”

Master Resolution. On March 12, 2007, the Commission adopted the Master Resolution. The
Master Resolution was drafted in contemplation of the Power Sales Contracts with respect to the output from the
Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects. The Master Resolution has been revised from the form of the Senior
Consolidated System Resolution with the primary intent of improving the covenants and provisions for the benefit
of owners of the Bonds. The changes include the addition of flow-of-funds provisions, modification of the rate
covenant and additional bonds test, the addition of a Rate Stabilization Fund, restrictions on the ability of the
District to enter into take-or-pay power purchase agreements on a basis which is superior to the lien of the Bonds,
and the addition of a third-party bond trustee. For a more detailed description of the Master Resolution, see
“SECURITY FOR THE 2008B BONDS—and APPENDIX D—“Summary of Certain Provisions of the Master
Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution.”

Strategic Planning. In September 2010, after several months of research and planning sessions,
including customer surveys, focus group meetings and public meetings, the Commission approved the 2010
Strategic Plan, which incorporated new financial targets intended to put the District’s finances on a more reliable,
sustainable path through 2014 and to serve as a foundation for longer-term financial health and growth, even under
unusual water flow or power price conditions. The financial targets are intended to permit the District to obtain a
sufficient rate of return on District assets, maintain acceptable debt service coverage ratios on the District’s
outstanding indebtedness, gradually reduce the District’s debt ratio, and maintain adequate financial liquidity while
paying down outstanding debt, building “rainy day” reserves and avoiding large, sudden rate adjustments. See
“FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Strategic Planning” and “—Consolidated System Liquidity.”

Distribution Division Results

General. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Distribution Division incurred a net gain of
$12.0 million compared to a net loss of $13.9 million for the same period in 2010. The 2010 loss was primarily due
to increased purchased power costs resulting from decreased generation at the District’s Hydro-Electric Projects as a
result of lower-than-average river flows.

Operating Revenues. For the year ended December 31, 2011, Distribution Division operating
revenues increased 21.5% compared to the same period in 2010. The increase is due primarily to greater wholesale
non-firm power sales. The increase in non-firm sales is partially due to an increase in MW sold, but more
importantly, due to a significant increase in price per MW. In 2010, operating revenues increased 7.5% from 2009,
also due to significant increase in prices per MWh. Operating revenues in 2009 decreased 20.0% from operating
revenues in 2008. During 2008 operating revenues decreased by 3.4% from 2007.

Operating Expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2011, Distribution Division operating
expenses decreased 0.1% compared to the same period in 2010. Operating expenses in 2010 increased 7.9%
compared to the same period in 2009. Operating expenses were higher due primarily to increased purchased power
costs resulting from reduced generation at the District’s Hydro-Electric Projects due to lower-than-average river
flows in 2010. In 2009, operating expenses decreased 8.4% from 2008. The decrease in 2009 was primarily the
result of decreased purchased power costs. Operating expenses in 2008 increased 13% from 2007. The 2008
increase is primarily the result of an increase in purchased power costs.

Balance Available for Distribution Division Debt Service. The funds available from the
Distribution Division’s operations increased $28.6 million during 2011, due to higher generation causing decreased
purchased power costs. The funds available from the Distribution Division’s operations decreased $4.3 million
during 2010, due to lower generation causing increased purchased power costs. The funds available from the
Distribution Division’s operations decreased $17.5 million in 2009 from 2008 due to decreased revenues caused by
lower generation. Funds available in 2008 decreased by $24.4 million from 2007 as the result of lower operating
results.
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Preliminary Results for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012. As of September 30,
2012, the Distribution Division has incurred a year-to-date net gain of $28.7 million compared to a year-end net gain
of $12.0 million for 2011. For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, Distribution Division operating revenues
were $185.2 million ($36.0 million greater than 2011 year-end operating revenues) and Distribution Division
operating expenses were $$155.5 million ($14.4 million greater than 2011 year-end operating revenues). The
increase in operating revenues is primarily the result of the availability to the District of additional surplus energy
for sale under the Power Sales Contracts and the locking in of higher prices on surplus energy through fixed price
contracts as described above. Although the District’s share of operating expenses is also higher under the Power
Sales Contracts, net operating income for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 was $29.7 million as
compared to $8.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Over the nine months ended September 30, 2012,
the funds available from Distribution Division operations for debt service had increased by $11.7 million.

Table 11 below presents the actual statement of revenues and expenses of the Distribution Division for the
years ended December 31, 2007 through 2011 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. The Distribution
Division is part of the Consolidated System, but is accounted for separately. Table 12 on the following page
presents the actual power production cost and power delivered from the Hydro-Electric Projects for the years ended
December 31, 2007 through 2011 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. The information for fiscal
years 2007 through 2011 has been extracted from the District’s audited financial statements. The information
provided for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 is unaudited and may not be indicative of actual year-end
results. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION--General.”

Table 11
Consolidated System
Distribution Division
Statement of Revenues and Expenses

($000)
Nine

Months

Ended
September

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 30,2012

Operating Revenues
Retail $ 43,069 $ 46317 $ 51,805 $ 50367 $ 52388 $§ 36,012
Resale" 103,708 94,000 60,862 70,943 94,000 141,400
Other® 1,255 2,619 1,615 1,511 2,791 7,822
Total 148,032 142,936 114,282 122,821 149,179 185,234
Operating Expenses'" 126,582 143,040 130,977 141,310 141,117 155,514
Net Operating 21,450 (104) (16,695) (18,489) 8,062 29,720
Revenue (loss)

Other Income (Expense) 10,746 11,000 8,139 4,584 4,016 (1,049)
Net Revenue (loss)® $ 32,196 $ 10,896 $ (8,556) $ (13,905) $ 12,078 $ 28,671

D Includes contractual purchases and non-firm purchases for resale.
@ Beginning November 1, 2011, the Distribution Division includes transmission revenues under new transmission agreements.
© Prior to changes in accounting principles, capital contributions and interfund equity transfers.
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Table 12
Hydro-Electric Projects
Power Cost and Net Power Delivered
($000 other than for Cost in $/MWh)

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Rocky Reach System

OperatingExpenses(” $ 41,938 $ 44,201 $ 40,023 $ 40,777 $ 40,558 $ 26,537
Debt Service:?

Hydro Issues 1,564 1,553 1,948 2,633 2,628 -

Consolidated System Loans 33,814 34,680 29,942 33,021 33,381 -
Depreciation and Amortization® - - - - - 12,706
Interest Expense® - - - - - 12,100
Other Revenues™® (4,498) (4,795) (1,410) (1,448) (2,172) (595)
Total Power Cost™™® $ 72,818 $ 75,639 $ 70,053 $ 74,983 $ 74395 $ 50,748
Net Power Delivered (000 MWh) 6,247 5,564 5,169 4,862 7,125 5,660
Cost in $/MWh® $ 12 $ 14 $ 14 $ 15 $ 10 $ 9
Plant Factor'® 55% 49% 45% 43% 63% 66%
Availability Factor'” 98% 98% 99% 91% 94% 95%
Average River Flow (000 CFS)® 111 103 91 89 141 143

Rock Island System
Operating Expenses'" $ 35,430 $ 38,715 $ 39,050 $ 40,321 $ 36,675 $ 28,761
Debt Service:®

Hydro Issues 22,577 22,594 22,971 23,560 23,055 -
Consolidated System Loans 12,435 16,335 17,446 19,134 19,492 -
Depreciation and Amortization® - - - - - 7,790
Interest Expense® - - - - - 20,316
Other Revenue® (3,198) (3,026) (2,736) (2,602) (2,204) (136)
Total Power Cost® $ 67,244 $ 74,618 $ 76,731 $ 80413 $ 77,018 $ 56,731
Net Power Delivered (000 MWh)® 2,796 2,721 2,572 2,496 3,267 2,616
Cost in $/MWh $ 24 $ 27 $ 30 $ 32 $ 24 $ 24
Plant Factor® 51% 50% 47% 45% 59% 63%
Availability Factor'” 93% 94% 94% 90% 92% 91%

Lake Chelan Project
Operating Expenses'" $ 3,498 $ 3,426 $ 3,220 $ 3,523 $ 4,729 $ 3,060
Debt Service:?

Hydro Issues - - - - -
Consolidated System Loans 2,336 3,816 6,552 7,402 7,138

Depreciation and Amortization® - - - - - 1,385
Interest Expense® - - - - - 3,039
Other (Revenue)/Expense™ (663) (1,090) (769) (727) (436) 193
Total Power Cost® $ 5171 $ 6,152 $ 9,003 $ 10,198 $ 11,431 $ 7,677
Net Power Delivered (000 MWh) 459 405 338 417 480 286
Cost in $/MWh $ 11 $ 15 $ 27 $ 24 $ 24 $ 27
Plant Factor'” 109% 96% 80% 81% 93% 74%
Availability Factor'” 99% 100% 68% 99% 98% 99%
Combined Hydro Cost in $/MWh $ 15 $ 18 $ 19 $ 21 $ 15 $ 13

M
(@]

3)
“)
)
6)
(@]
®)
©)

Does not include depreciation expense.

Years 2007 through 2011 are based on accrual debt schedules. Prior to the expirations of the Prior Power Sales Contracts, most capital
projects of the Large Hydro Systems were financed with proceeds of Rock Island Bonds or Rocky Reach Bonds (as applicable) and loans
from the Consolidated System. Debt service on such bonds and loans was approximately equal to interest expense and depreciation.
Following the commencement of deliveries under the Power Sales Contracts, the District expects to finance the majority of capital
expenditures with cash.

Includes other income and expenses that impact power cost.

Year 2011 has been restated to reflect accounting changes following the effectiveness of the Power Sales Contracts as of November 1, 2011.
Non-GAAP, may not be comparable with other similarly titled District metrics.

Net power delivered as a percentage of rated capacity for the year.

Years 2009 and 2010 have been restated to correct a data entry error.

Annual average Columbia River flow measured at Rocky Reach Project in thousands of cubic feet per second (000 CFES).

After minor sales to operators’ cottages and adjustments for encroachment and Canadian Treaty deliveries.
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Debt Service Coverage

Table 13 below reflects the District’s Consolidated System Operating Results and debt service coverage
requirement under the Master Resolution for the fiscal years 2007 through 2011.

Table 13
Consolidated System
Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage

($000)
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Operating Revenues”

Retail® $ 47,145 $ 50,671 $ 56,572 $ 54,989 $ 57,195

Resale™” 113,314 105,347 75,891 87,702 114,079

Other 18,130 20,172 17,555 18,088 18,792

Total 178,589 176,190 150,018 160,779 190,066
Less: Operating Expenses

Purchased power and water (89,941) (104,720) (95,200)  (104,265) (101,787)

Other operation & maintenance (45,331) (48,154) (45,018) (44,730) (50,785)

Taxes (4,260) (4,497) (5,021) (4,653) (5,100)

Depreciation & amortization (17,714) (17,685) (18,449) (20,804) (20,923)
Operating Income (Loss) 21,343 1,134 (13,670) (13,673) 11,471
Adjustments®

Add back depreciation & amortization 17,714 17,685 18,449 20,804 20,923

Add investment income 17,915 14,659 8,191 5,405 7,040

Add principal and interest payments

from Rocky Reach & Rock Island 44,734 48,870 47,247 51,003 51,888

Less investment earnings credited to

Rocky Reach & Rock Island® (4,120) (3,438) (1,102) (1,171) (892)

Total Adjustments 76,243 71,776 72,785 76,041 78,959
Net Revenues'” 97,586 78,910 59,115 62,368 90,430

Plus withdrawals (deposits) to Rate

Stabilization Fund - - - - -
Adjusted Net Revenues $ 97,586 $ 78910 $ 359,115 $ 62,368 $ 90,430
Available Funds® $128,467 $172,832  $159,605  $151,781 $147,990
Annual Debt Service

Senior Consolidated System Bonds $ 45,836 $ 39,451 $ 31,084 $ 28817 $ 34,229

Bonds 915 7,893 10,903 13,237 14,470

Total Debt Service $ 46,751 $ 47344 $ 41951 § 42,054 $ 48,699
Debt Service Coverage

With available funds (min. 1.25x) 4.84 5.32 5.21 5.09 4.90

Without available funds (min. 1.00x) 2.09 1.67 1.41 1.48 1.86

(O]
()

Year 2007 is restated to reflect clarification to the definitions under the Master Resolution.

Includes revenues of the District’s Distribution Division, Financing Facilities, Treasury Services and Internal Service Funds,
and Lake Chelan, Fiber and Telecommunications System, Water and Wastewater Systems, all of which are part of the
Consolidated System.

Includes retail sales from the District’s Distribution Division, Water and Wastewater Systems.

Includes resale sales from the District’s Distribution Division, Financing Facilities and Treasury Services Funds, and Lake
the Chelan and Fiber and Telecommunications Systems.

As determined pursuant to the definition of Revenues in the Master Resolution.

Year 2007 has been restated to include investment earnings credited back to the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Systems.

As defined in the Master Resolution; not comparable with other similarly titled District metrics.

As defined in the Master Resolution. Includes all unencumbered funds of the District that the District reasonably expects to
be available to pay debt service on the Senior Consolidated System Bonds and the Bonds.

3)
“4)

)
(6)
()]
®)
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Power Sales Revenues and District Near-Term Financial Outlook

The Consolidated System purchases power from the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects (as an
operating expense of the Consolidated System) for sale to its retail customers through the Distribution Division.
The power from the Hydro-Electric Projects, including the Lake Chelan Project, and not allocated for the District’s
own retail load is sold:

(a) on a cost-of-service “plus” basis under long-term contracts with an investor-owned utility
and a large industrial purchaser;

(b) on a cost-of-service basis under a long-term contract with another public utility district;

(c) under fixed-price wholesale market-based slice contracts, each for a fixed percentage of
output, with purchasers selected through an annual competitive auction process and with staggered terms of up to
five years, consistent with the District’s hedging strategy;

(d) under fixed-price wholesale market-based block contracts, each for a fixed amount of
output, with purchasers selected based on market price and credit and liquidity profiles and with varied terms from
within the current year plus up to an additional 60 months, consistent with the District’s hedging strategy; and

(e) as short-term surplus power at wholesale market prices to meet the District’s “day-ahead”
forecast.

Prior to November 1, 2011 with respect to the Rocky Reach Project and prior to June 8, 2012 with respect
to the Rock Island Project, power from the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects, excluding an amount allocated
for the District’s own retail load, was sold on a cost-of-service basis pursuant to long-term contracts with a number
of investor-owned utilities, another public utility district and a large industrial purchaser and into the wholesale
market. The power from the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects delivered under the Puget Contract and the
Alcoa Contract is sold on a cost-of-service “plus” basis to Puget Sound Energy and Alcoa. The balance of the
power from the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects and not allocated for the District’s own retail load may be
sold as surplus power in the wholesale market as described in (c) through (e) above. Following the expiration of the
Prior Power Sales Contracts and the commencement of deliveries under the Power Sales Contracts, the District
anticipates recognizing significantly improved wholesale power sales revenues beginning in 2012 as a result of
contract terms that are more favorable to the District and the availability to the District of a larger portion of the
energy generated by the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects for sale as surplus power in the wholesale market
(which has increased from approximately 130 aMW under the Prior Power Sales Contracts to approximately 330
aMW under the Power Sales Contracts). See “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Puget Sound Energy Sales
Contract” and “—Alcoa Power Sales Contract” and APPENDIX [—“Summary of Power Sales Contract with Puget
Sound Energy, Inc.” and APPENDIX J—“Summary of Power Sales Contract with Alcoa, Inc.” The District is
recognizing significant increases in wholesale power sales revenues in 2012, and as of September 30, 2012, the
District estimated net revenues from sales of surplus power in 2013 of between $98.4 million and $125.6 million,
resulting in a range in change of net position from an increase of $62.3 million to an increase of $89.3 million in
2013. These estimates have not changed substantially since September 30, 2012, and the District also estimates
similar results in the three fiscal years thereafter. Actual results will depend upon a variety of factors, many of
which are beyond the control of the District, including energy prices in the wholesale markets, general economic
conditions, precipitation and snowpack in the Columbia River watershed, regional weather conditions and the price
of natural gas for other generating facilities in the region. See also “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Energy
Sales; Load/Resource Balancing; Hedging Strategy.”

In 2011 and 2010, the sales of surplus power generate substantial revenues for the District’s Consolidated
System, providing 45% and 36% of annual Distribution Division revenues, respectively. The District’s combined
financial results for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 have improved compared to the same period in
2011. The increase is due primarily (i) to the transition from cost-of-service to cost-of-service “plus” based long-
term contracts as described above, (ii) to the locking in higher prices on surplus energy through fixed price contracts
as described above and (iii) to the availability to the District of additional surplus energy for sale under the Power
Sales Contracts. Although the District’s share of operating expenses is also higher under the Power Sales Contracts,
combined District net operating income for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 was $91.1 million as
compared to $41.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011. See APPENDIX B — “PRELIMINARY
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UNAUDITED FINANCIAL DATA OF THE DISTRICT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
2012

Strategic Planning

In September 2010, after several months of research and planning sessions, including customer surveys,
focus group meetings and public meetings, the Commission approved a revised strategic plan (the “2010 Strategic
Plan”), which incorporated new financial targets adopted in June 2010, intended to put the District’s finances on a
more reliable, sustainable path through 2014 and to serve as a solid foundation for longer-term financial health and
growth, even under unusual water flow or power price conditions. The financial targets are intended to permit the
District to obtain a sufficient rate of return on District assets, maintain acceptable debt service coverage ratios on the
District’s outstanding indebtedness, gradually reduce the District’s debt ratio, and maintain adequate financial
liquidity while paying down outstanding debt, building “rainy day” reserves and avoiding large, sudden rate
adjustments. As part of its 2010 Strategic Plan, the District has adopted targets with respect to its debt ratio, debt
coverage, rates of return on District assets and liquidity. Since the adoption of the 2010 Strategic Plan, the District
has made significant progress towards meeting its established financial targets. During 2012, the District continued
to focus on increasing efficiency and sustainability to better position the District to meet any long-term challenges.
In 2013, the District intends to make it a priority to extend beyond 2014 the planning horizon under the 2010
Strategic Plan.

The District determines its debt ratio based on (i) total debt, divided by (ii) total debt plus net position (on a
combined basis). The District currently has a debt ratio target of 60% by 2015. The District can achieve this target
by making regularly scheduled payments on its existing Consolidated System, Rock Island System and Rocky
Reach System indebtedness, including on the 2008B Bonds. The District may also retire some of its outstanding
Senior Consolidated System Bonds, Bonds and Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations ahead of their
scheduled maturity dates. See Table 14, “Senior Consolidated System, Consolidated System, Subordinate
Consolidated System and Large Hydro Systems Outstanding Long-Term Indebtedness.” The District currently does
not anticipate issuing any new Consolidated System indebtedness to finance capital requirements of the
Consolidated System or the Large Hydro Systems through at least 2017. Instead, the District anticipates funding
any such capital requirements with available funds of the District. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Capital
Requirements. The District intends to continue monitoring its outstanding Consolidated System debt for refunding
opportunities.

As part of the 2010 Strategic Plan, the District has also adopted targets with respect to debt service
coverage. The combined debt service coverage target (the “Combined Debt Service Coverage Target”) is determined
taking into account all of the District’s outstanding indebtedness and the individual coverage requirements set forth
in the various resolutions of the District pursuant to which it issues debt. The District’s current Combined Debt
Service Coverage Target beginning in 2012 is 2.25x. For a discussion of the required Bond Coverage Ratio for the
Bonds, see “SECURITY FOR THE 2008B BONDS—Rate Covenant.”

The District has also adopted targets with respect to the rate of return (the “Rate of Return”) on the
District’s assets. The Rate of Return is the change in the District’s net position divided by the net utility plant (on a
combined basis). The District’s current annual target range for Rate of Return is between 4% and 6%.

Consistent with the 2010 Strategic Plan, on January 24, 2011, the Commission adopted Resolution No. 11-
13616 to establish a financial policy to maintain a minimum reserve of $150 million of “primary liquidity,”
consisting of unrestricted cash and investments of the District, and a minimum reserve of $175 million of “total
liquidity,” including the minimum of $150 million of “primary liquidity” and additional “secondary liquidity,”
consisting of other internal District sources of funds, such as certain Rock Island and Rocky Reach System funds, if
available, and general bank lines, letters of credit or other similar instruments. The District has established targets
for “total liquidity” through 2016 based on a detailed liquidity requirements methodology that takes into account the
District’s current policy to have in place readily available operating reserves, contingency reserves and planning
reserves to address certain costs or events, including, among other things, operating and maintenance expenses for a
specified period, potential collateral requirements associated with its electricity hedging policies and capital
requirements. As of September 30, 2012, the District’s “total liquidity” targets for 2012 through 2016 based on the
liquidity requirements methodology were $192 million, $196 million, $176 million, $188 million and $175 million,
respectively.
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On April 1, 2011, the District and Bank of America entered into the Credit Agreement with an available
commitment of $50 million, which is part of the District’s secondary liquidity under the District’s financial policy.
The District may either draw on the Credit Agreement directly or request that Bank of America issue a letter of
credit. The District may use the proceeds of any draws on the Credit Agreement or on any letters of credit issued
under the Credit Agreement to (i) to satisfy any collateral requirements of the District in connection with any
electricity hedges, (ii) to make swap termination payments, or (iii) upon receipt of the prior written consent of Bank
of America (which consent may not be unreasonably withheld), for other general purposes of the District. The
initial term of the Credit Agreement expires on April 1, 2014, but the term may be extended for up to an additional
three years. The District’s obligations under the Credit Agreement are payable from and secured by a pledge of
Revenues subordinate to the lien and pledge thereon of the Senior Consolidated System Bonds, the Bonds and the
Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations, to make required debt service reserve fund deposits with respect
thereto, and to make regularly scheduled Payment Agreement Payments. As of February , 2013, the District has
not drawn on the Credit Agreement or requested the issuance of any letters of credit, and the District currently does
not anticipate making any such draws or requests. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Consolidated System
Liquidity.”

Outstanding Debt

Table 14 on the following page presents long-term debt of the District’s Consolidated System, Rock Island
System and the Rocky Reach System payable from Revenues of the Consolidated System, revenues of the Rock
Island System and revenues of the Rocky Reach System, respectively, outstanding as of December 31, 2012. The

information in Table 14 is based on unaudited information and is subject to year-end adjustment.

Table 14 does not reflect the optional redemption of $23,565,000 principal amount of 2008B Bonds on
February 6, 2013.

[Remainder of page intentionally blank]
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Table 14
Senior Consolidated System, Consolidated System, Subordinate Consolidated System
and
Large Hydro-Systems
Outstanding Long-Term Debt as of December 31, 2012

($000)
Date Final Original Principal Accumulated
of Maturity Series Principal Scheduled Actual Amount for
Bonds Date of Amount Retirement!”  Retirement”  Outstanding _ Retirement"’

SENIOR CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM

4/29/2004 7/1/2024 2004C® $ 15,000 $ - $ - $ 15,000 $ 7,500

4/5/2005 1/1/2039 2005AW 25,430 - - 25,430 6,358
Total Senior Consolidated System $ 40430 $ - $ - $ 40430 $ 13,858
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM

5/31/2007 7/1/2042 2007B $ 8,370 $ - $ - $ 8,370 $ 418

5/31/2007 7/1/2037 2007C 25,590 2,265 2,265 23,325 1,239

2/28/2008 7/1/2024 2008A 47,075 4,060 4,060 43,015 15,342

3/7/2008 7/1/2032 2008B® 92,880 4,065 4,065 88,815 3,491

8/11/2009 7/1/2019 2009C 6,545 1,660 1,660 4,885 243

8/11/2009 7/1/2039 2009D 27,015 - - 27,015 1,800

6/1/2011 7/1/2026 2011A 107,500 7,380 7,380 100,120 5,244

6/1/2011 7/1/2026 2011B 72,220 4,960 4,960 67,260 3,377

11/9/2011 7/1/2026 2011C 164,425 6,000 6,000 158,425 5,351
Total Consolidated System $ 551,620 $ 30,390 $ 30,390 $ 521,230 $ 36,505
SUBORDINATE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM

7/22/2009 7/1/2014 2009A© $ 20,630 $ - $ - $ 20,630 $ 1,355

7/22/2009 7/1/2014 2009B® 8,340 - - 8,340 527
Total Subordinate Consolidated System $ 28,970 $ - $ - $ 28,970 $ 1,882
ROCK ISLAND SYSTEM

3/17/1997 6/1/2029 1997A7 $ 135,944 $ 76,450 $ 76450 $ 252,659 $ 32,026

8/11/2009 7/1/2034 2009A 14,000 1,025 1,025 12,975 608
Total Rock Island System $ 149,944 $ 77475 $ 77475 $ 265,634 $ 32,634
ROCKY REACH SYSTEM

12/4/2008 7/1/2014 2008A $ 7,415 $ 4,585 $ 4,585 $ 2,330 $ 268

8/11/2009 7/1/2034 2009A 15,895 1,050 1,050 14,845 764
Total Rocky Reach System $ 23,310 $ 5,635 $ 5,635 $ 17,675 $ 1,032
Grand Total $ 794274 $ 113,500 $ 113,500 $ 873,939 $ 85911

1

2

3)

“)

)

(6)

7

Amount of serial bonds matured as of December 31, 2012 plus scheduled minimum redemption of term bonds to have been retired from mandatory
sinking funds.

Amount of serial bonds matured as of December 31, 2012 plus actual retirement of term bonds retired from mandatory sinking funds, reserve accounts
and optional purchases

Amounts accumulated as cash and investments in various principal accounts, sinking funds and reserve accounts available for the future retirement of
bonds. Investments are represented at book value.

The 2004C Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase on July 1, 2014 and the 2005A Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase on
July 1, 2015 upon the expiration of their respective current fixed-term interest rate periods. The District intends to retire such bonds at that time;
however, the District may elect to remarket some or all such Senior Consolidated System Bonds in new interest rate periods.

Does not reflect the redemption of $23,565,000 principal amount of 2008B Bonds optionally redeemed on February 6, 2013.

Represents Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations that mature in whole on July 1, 2014 with semi-annual interest payments. These Subordinate
Consolidated System Obligations are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Represents capital appreciation bonds on which interest is compounded. Thus, the accreted value reported as “Amount Outstanding” may exceed
“Original Principal Amount” less “Actual Retirements.”

Source: The District.
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Interfund and Intersystem Loans
Interfund Loans

The District established an Internal Service Fund to account for and allocate the cost of facilities and
services that are used jointly by separate systems and divisions of the District. The Distribution Division, the Lake
Chelan Project, the Water System, the Wastewater System and the Fiber and Telecommunications System are all
accounted for separately, although they are all part of the Consolidated System. Proceeds of the Senior Consolidated
System Bonds, the Bonds and the Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations have been advanced to these
separate systems and divisions through interfund loans. As all of these interfund loans are within the Consolidated
System, however, they have no effect on the Revenues of the Consolidated System and are for internal accounting
purposes only.

Intersystem Loans to the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Systems

The District adopted the Loan Resolutions to provide for lending a portion of the proceeds of the Senior
Consolidated System Bonds and the Bonds to the Rocky Reach System and the Rock Island System, respectively, and
the repayment of those loans by such Large Hydro Systems to the Consolidated System. Each loan to the Large
Hydro Systems is repaid through periodic principal and interest payments made from the respective Large Hydro
System to the Consolidated System.

The obligations of the Rocky Reach System and the Rock Island System to make loan payments to the
Consolidated System are subordinate to the obligation of such Large Hydro Systems to pay operation and
maintenance expenses and debt service on revenue bonds payable from revenues of such Large Hydro Systems. The
loan payments made by the Large Hydro Systems to the Consolidated System are part of the total costs of those
Large Hydro Systems payable by the respective purchasers of power from the Large Hydro Systems, including the
District’s Distribution Division. The payments made by the Consolidated System’s Distribution Division to the
respective Large Hydro Systems for such power constitute a purchased power cost, and thus an operating expense, of
the Distribution Division. As such, under the Master Resolution, these purchased power costs are payable prior to
debt service on the Senior Consolidated System Bonds and the Bonds.

The revenues of the Rocky Reach System and the Rock Island System do not constitute Revenues of the
Consolidated System and are not pledged to secure the payment of the Senior Consolidated System Bonds or the
Bonds, including the 2008B Bonds; however, the loan repayments made from those revenues to the Consolidated
System do constitute Revenues of the Consolidated System and are available to pay the principal and purchase price
of and premium, if any, and interest on the Senior Consolidated System Bonds, the Bonds and the Subordinate
Consolidated System Obligations.

Other Intersystem Obligations

The District currently has a number of other intersystem obligations, accounts receivable, accounts payable
and rental arrangements in place. The Rock Island System, Rocky Reach System and Consolidated System
(including its Internal Service Fund) pay for the use of equipment and facilities of the other systems.

Table 15 on the following page presents a summary of the outstanding intersystem loans as of December 31,
2012 to the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Systems and the interfund loans to funds and components of the
Consolidated System. The information in Table 15 is based on unaudited information and is subject to year-end
adjustment.
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Table 15
Consolidated System Loans

as of December 31, 2012
($000)
Allocated Principal
Amount of Bonds Adjustments to Loans Net Loans
Outstanding"” Outstanding® Outstanding
Rocky Reach System $ 223,151 $ 14,049 $ 237,200
Rock Island System 149,273 (1,423) 147,850
Consolidated System® 218,206 (92,790) 125,416
Total $ 590,630 $ (80,164) $§ 510,466

)" Represents aggregate principal amounts of Senior Consolidated System Bonds, Bonds and Subordinate Consolidated System

Obligations allocated to intersystem and interfund loans.
Consists primarily of prior loan repayments. Also includes adjustments for unamortized original issue discounts, issuance
costs and amounts payable to and (receivable) from other systems.

@ Includes bond proceeds advanced to various funds and components of the Consolidated System for capital purposes.
Source: The District.

()

Annual Debt Service

Table 16 on the following page shows aggregate annual debt service on all outstanding Senior Consolidated
System Bonds, Bonds and Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations as of December 31, 2012.

Table 16 also shows the aggregate annual loan payments from the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Systems to
the Consolidated System with respect to outstanding intersystem loans to those Large Hydro Systems from the
Consolidated System as of December 31, 2012. See “—Interfund and Intersystem Loans” under this heading. The
total amount of such loan payments through 2044 is equal to 91% of aggregate annual debt service on the Senior
Consolidated System Bonds, the Bonds and the Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations over the same period.
The loan payments to the Consolidated System will be made by the respective Large Hydro Systems from payments
received from the respective purchasers of power from those Systems, including the District’s Distribution Division.
The Prior Power Sales Contracts pursuant to which such loan payments previously were made by the power
purchasers expired in 2011 and 2012, respectively; however, a similar payment obligation continues under both of the
Power Sales Contracts and is expected to be included in any future such contracts with other parties. See “THE
CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—Puget Sound Energy Sales Contract” and “—Alcoa Power Sales Contract.”
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Table 16
Senior Consolidated System, Consolidated System and Subordinate Consolidated System Debt Service and
Large Hydro System Loan Payments
as of December 31, 2012

Senior Consolidated System Bonds, Bonds and
Subordinate Consolidated System Obligations Large Hydro System Annual Loan Payments'"

Aggregate Annual Debt Service Rocky Rock Total Loan

Year Principal® Interest” Total Reach Island Payments

2013 $ 15,200,000 $ 22,643,695  $37,843,695 $ 30,449,522 $ 18,609,909 $ 49,059,431
2014 84,732,990 22,179,332 106,912,322 30,802,564 18,939,194 49,741,758
2015 47,820,000 18,120,937 65,940,937 30,852,463 17,817,875 48,670,338
2016 17,855,000 16,092,983 33,947,983 30,404,740 16,395,606 46,800,346
2017 43,790,000 15,375,679 59,165,679 29,214,359 16,131,129 45,345,488
2018 28,855,000 14,391,558 43,246,558 22,110,177 14,823,818 36,933,995
2019 32,832,400 13,302,948 46,135,348 19,884,836 14,640,997 34,525,833
2020 32,405,000 12,024,951 44,429,951 18,682,912 14,704,160 33,387,072
2021 29,000,000 10,732,500 39,732,500 16,995,034 13,966,042 30,961,076
2022 30,290,000 9,532,044 39,822,044 16,995,986 13,784,472 30,780,458
2023 31,695,000 8,234,023 39,929,023 16,928,190 13,778,138 30,706,328
2024 30,788,183 6,812,688 37,600,871 16,872,091 13,305,762 30,177,853
2025 34,840,000 5,303,174 40,143,174 14,732,661 12,851,979 27,584,640
2026 22,533,353 3,744,526 26,277,879 13,050,225 12,792,367 25,842,592
2027 2,930,000 2,059,260 4,989,260 11,627,056 12,791,571 24,418,627
2028 3,875,000 1,958,477 5,833,477 10,208,263 13,409,100 23,617,363
2029 2,345,000 1,854,454 4,199,454 8,878,935 8,566,986 17,445,921
2030 2,450,000 1,748,606 4,198,606 7,463,981 9,899,917 17,363,898
2031 2,565,000 1,635,821 4,200,821 6,054,618 9,387,546 15,442,164
2032 44,209,442 1,443,452 45,652,894 4,803,146 8,249,877 13,053,023
2033 2,800,000 1,245,779 4,150,004 4,045,779 8,193,662 12,414,294
2034 2,930,000 1,116,864 4,046,864 3,961,897 8,345,171 12,307,068
2035 3,065,000 986,615 4,051,615 2,638,751 7,726,901 10,365,652
2036 3,195,000 850,364 4,045,364 1,388,256 7,567,744 8,956,000
2037 2,101,027 708,335 2,809,362 289,191 7,303,721 7,592,912
2038 1,905,000 559,859 2,464,859 289,191 6,488,326 6,777,517
2039 194,940 474,457 669,397 146,202 3,091,288 3,237,490
2040 - 385,020 385,020 - 1,033,001 1,033,001
2041 - 385,020 385,020 - 928,704 928,704
2042 7,951,826 385,020 8,336,846 - 649,708 649,708
2043 - - - - 410,126 410,126
2044 - - - - 19,601 19,601

Total $£565,154,161 $196,288,442 $761,442,603  $369,945,879  $326,604,398  $696,550,277

Q)]

()

3)
“4)

Represents loan payment obligations of the Large Hydro Systems to the Consolidated System with respect to intersystem loans
from the Consolidated System.

Includes serial and balloon payments reduced by funds held in Debt Service Reserve Accounts at the time of final maturity.
The District may elect to utilize the Debt Service Reserve Accounts other than as assumed depending on market conditions
and limitations contained in the governing resolutions. The District anticipates that most balloon payments will be made as
scheduled on or prior to the dates they become due; however the District may elect to refinance balloon payments.

Interest is net of Build America Bond (BAB) direct payment federal subsidy for certain Bonds.

Includes scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemptions of the 2008B Bonds. The District intends to apply the principal
amount of the 2008B Bonds optionally redeemed on February 6, 2013 against such mandatory sinking fund redemptions. See
“DESCRIPTION OF THE 2008B BONDS—2008B Bonds During a Weekly Interest Rate Period—Redemption of 2008B
Bonds.”

Source: The District.
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Capital Requirements

The District has prepared projections of the capital requirements for the five-year period 2013 through 2017.
These projections are in accordance with the District’s best estimates and long-range planning. As such, some
anticipated projects are still undergoing feasibility studies. The District periodically reviews its capital improvement
program and modifies it as appropriate to reflect changing conditions. As a result, amounts currently forecasted for
the future are subject to modification as the Commission directs. Table 17 below presents the District’s projected
capital requirements, based on expenditure levels relative to budget which are consistent with prior experience.

Table 17
Consolidated System and Large Hydro Systems
Projected Capital Requirements

($000)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Distribution Division $ 16,709 $ 15109 $ 17,029 $§ 23,298 $ 14,303
Fiber and Telecommunications System 1,742 2,345 2,275 2,465 1,306
Water/Wastewater Systems 651 928 1,592 2,945 2,956
Internal Service System 9,095 8,758 1,924 5,573 3,282
Rocky Reach System 8,571 14,246 12,230 8,386 3,046
Rock Island System 4,541 7,853 8,720 13,502 15,138
Lake Chelan Project 100 357 1,928 2,467 2,079
Total Capital Requirements $ 41,409 $ 49596 $ 45698 $§ 58,636 $ 42,110

The District focus for Distribution Division capital improvements continues to be on replacement programs
such as underground cable replacements and line improvements. Major planned capital improvements for the
Distribution Division also include transmission reliability and compliance upgrades and substation upgrades and
replacements, such as rebuilding a substation in Cashmere beginning in 2014 and, if growth remains at current rates,
building a new substation in Wenatchee. Major planned expenditures also include replacing two mobile substations,
one in 2013 and one in 2016. Internal Service System projects include upgrades and replacements for trunked radio
communication sites and equipment, information technology services and hardware and vehicles/equipment
purchases. Both Rock Island System and Rocky Reach System capital projects include upgrading and replacing
generator control and monitoring equipment. Additional Rocky Reach System capital projects include upgrading
parks as required by the Rocky Reach Project license and upgrading crane systems and controls. The District is
monitoring changes to FERC’s dam safety regulations, including to its Seismic Design Standards. At this time, the
District cannot predict what impact any such changes will have on the District’s capital requirements although such
impact may be significant.

Table 18 below presents the projected amounts and sources of funds for the Consolidated System, the Rocky
Reach System and the Rock Island System based on the capital requirements set forth in Table 17 above.

Table 18
Consolidated System and Large Hydro Systems
Projected Sources of Funds

($000)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Proceeds of New Bond Issues $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Other Available Funds® 41,409 49,596 45,698 58,636 42,110
Total $ 41,409 $ 49,596 $ 45,698 $ 58,636 $ 42,110

M Includes other internal funds such as revenue fund cash, unspent proceeds of prior bond issues, contributions in aid of

construction, and intersystem loan obligations. Also includes additional amounts available under the Power Sales Contracts,
including Debt Reduction Charges and Capital Recovery Charges paid by the Power Purchasers and the District’s
Distribution Division and available for subsequent use by the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Systems.
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Financing Capital Improvements

The District intends to fund the majority, if not all, of its renewals, replacements, improvements and
additions to plant from non-debt related sources for the next five-year period. Projected sources of funds include net
revenues, contributions in aid of construction, grants, additional amounts available under the Power Sales Contracts
and other accumulated cash held by the District.

Consolidated System Liquidity

The District currently maintains a high level of liquidity, including the amounts held in the funds of the
District set forth in Table 19 below, which presents various fund balances for the Consolidated System as of
September 30, 2012. The information in Table 19 is based on unaudited information.

Table 19
Consolidated System

Unrestricted and Restricted Fund Balances®”

as of September 30, 2012
($000)
Lake Internal
Utility Chelan Financing Service
Services? Project Facilities” Fund Total
Unrestricted Funds
Revenue Fund® $ 26,303 $ 799 $ 2273 $ 10936 $ 40,311
Available Funds:
Rate Stabilization Fund 50,000 - - - 50,000
Operating Reserve Fund 57,729 - - - 57,729
Contingency Reserve Fund 9,954 - - - 9,954
Other Unrestricted Funds:® 2,414 7,556 47,848 7,082 64,900
Total Unrestricted Funds 146,400 8,355 50,121 18,018 222,894
Restricted Funds'® 61,518 309 42,625 6,026 110,478
Total Fund Balances $207,918 $§ 8664 § 92,746 $ 24,044 $ 333,372

™ Amounts reflect both cash and book value of investments.

@ Includes Distribution Division, Fiber and Telecommunications, Water and Wastewater Systems and Treasury Services
Fund.

® Financing Facilities is an internal service fund of the District’s Consolidated System used to account for various financing
related activities, including holding Consolidated System debt service reserve funds.

® Unencumbered funds of the District held in the Revenue Fund.

© Includes all other Unrestricted Funds such as Board Designated Construction Funds and Reserves.

® Includes all Restricted Funds such as Consolidated System Bond Proceeds, Bond Reserves and other Reserves.

Source: The District.

The “Rate Stabilization Fund” was established by the District for the purpose of stabilizing rates and charges
for retail customers of the Distribution Division. See “SECURITY FOR THE 2008B BONDS—Rate Stabilization
Fund.”

The “Operating Reserve Fund” was established for the purpose of mitigating unexpected fluctuations in
revenues and operating expenses of the Consolidated System. See “SECURITY FOR THE 2008B BONDS—
Operating Reserve Fund.”

The “Contingency Reserve Fund” was established by the District to provide a special reserve account for
emergency operating conditions and liquidity for the District’s Consolidated System bonds. The District’s current
goal is to maintain this fund at $10 million.

The District has established a governing financial policy to maintain a minimum of $150 million of
unrestricted reserves and a minimum of $175 million of total reserves, in accordance with Resolution No. 11-13616,
adopted by the Commission on January 24, 2011. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Strategic Planning.”
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On April 1, 2011, the District and Bank of America entered into the Credit Agreement with an available
commitment of $50 million. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION--Strategic Planning.”

As part of its 2010 Strategic Plan, the District has adopted total liquidity targets through 2016. As of
September 30, 2012, the District’s targets for available total liquidity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013,
2014, 2015 and 2016 were $192 million, $196 million, $176 million, $188 million and $175 million, respectively.

Investment Policies

All cash and investments are managed by the Treasurer according to the District’s currently adopted
investment policies, most recently amended on December 17, 2012. Investments can be made specific to a particular
fund, or to take advantage of economies, the District may pool cash and invest the resultant pool. Under the District’s
current investment policies, the Treasurer may invest cash, depending on individual fund restrictions and
diversification limits specified by policy, in one or more of the following investments: (1) U.S. Treasury bills, notes
or bonds; (2) U.S. Government agency securities; (3) repurchase agreements, which must be collateralized with a
third party at a minimum of 102%; (4) savings or time deposits, including insured or collateralized certificates of
deposit, with institutions approved as qualified public depositories by the State of Washington Public Deposit
Protection Commission (“PDPC”); (5) banker’s acceptances issued by banks approved by the Washington State
Treasurer; (6) commercial paper having received the highest rating of any two nationally recognized statistical ratings
organizations at the time of purchase (P-1 (Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”)), A-1 (Standard & Poor’s Ratings
Inc. (“S&P”)), F-1 (Fitch Ratings, Inc. (“Fitch™))); (7) bonds of the State of Washington and any local government of
the State of Washington, which at the time of investment have one of the three highest credit ratings of a nationally
recognized rating agency; (8) general obligation bonds of a state other than the State of Washington and general
obligation bonds of a local government of a state other than the state of Washington, which at the time of investment
have one of the three highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency; (9) the State Investment Pool;
(10) bonds of U.S. domiciled banks, savings and loan associations, mutual savings banks, savings and loan service
corporations operating with approval of the federal home loan bank, and corporate mortgage companies, which bonds
are insured or guaranteed by an agency of the federal government; (11) mutual funds and money market funds only
for District funds that are subject to the arbitrage provisions of Section 148 of the Code; and (12) any other
investment permitted under the laws of the State of Washington.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, U.S. Treasury bills, notes or bonds, U.S. Government agency
securities, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, and municipal bonds that had a remaining maturity at the time of
purchase of greater than one year are recorded at fair value. U.S. Treasury bills, notes or bonds, U.S. Government
agency securities, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, and municipal bonds that had a remaining maturity at the
time of purchase of one year or less are recorded at amortized cost. Repurchase agreements and certificates of
deposit are also recorded at amortized cost.

Investments of the District are held in the District’s name by banks or trust companies as the District’s agent.
The remainder of the District’s funds consists of cash on deposit that is insured by a combination of federal
depository insurance or depositories qualified by the PDPC. Cash and investments are considered risk category one
under the guidelines of GASB Statement No. 3.

Changes in Accounting Principles
Regulatory Deferrals

The Commission has the authority to establish the level of rates charged for all District services. As a
regulated entity, the District is subject to the general standards of accounting for the effects of regulation as defined
by GASB 62, which requires that the effects of the District’s rate-making process be recorded in the District’s
financial statements. Accordingly, certain expenses and credits, normally reflected in changes in net assets as
incurred, are recognized when included in rates and recovered from, or refunded to, customers. The District records
various regulatory assets and credits to reflect rate-making actions of the Commission.

The Commission has taken various regulatory actions that result in differences between recognition of
revenues and expenses for rate-making purposes and their treatment under generally accepted accounting principles
for non-regulated entities. These actions result in regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities, which are described
below. Changes to the balances, and their inclusion in rates, occur only at the direction of the Commission.

75



Investment Derivative Instruments. The District has entered into various derivative instrument
contracts (the Payment Agreements and forward purchase agreements) that are subject to the fair value reporting
requirements of GASB Statement No. 53. The fair value of these contracts is recorded on the balance sheet. A
number of these are considered investment derivative instruments and as such, any change in fair value would
normally be reflected in net increase (decrease) in net position for the period. Derivative instruments are reflected in
rates as cash settlements occur in accordance with the terms of the contracts. The Commission has approved
resolutions that allow the change in fair value during the period to be deferred and recorded as regulatory assets
and/or regulatory liabilities, which have no impact on operating results. Regulatory asset deferrals amounted to $21.0
million and $23.3 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. As of September 30, 2012, regulatory
asset deferrals amounted to $22.3 million.

Swap Termination Payments. The District terminated three interest rate swap agreements during
2011, incurring swap termination fees in the amount of $24.6 million. The termination fees, along with $0.2 million
of unamortized costs related to the swap transactions, would normally be reflected as a non-operating expense in
2011; however, the Commission has approved a resolution allowing for the deferral of the termination fees and
related swap costs as a regulatory asset to be amortized over a period of up to 15 years to match the expense with the
period in which the payments will be recovered through rates. The remaining unamortized regulatory asset balance
was $19.7 million as of September 30, 2012 and $22.4 million as of December 31, 2011. In 2010, the District did not
record any regulatory deferrals of swap termination payments.

Contributions in Aid of Construction. Individual contributions exceeding $1 million are deferred
as regulatory liabilities and amortized over the life of the related contributed depreciable plant assets. The
Commission has approved resolutions that require this treatment to offset the earnings effect of these large non-
exchange transactions and align the District’s recognition of these credits with the periods in which the amounts will
be reflected for rate-making purposes. In 2011 and 2010, the District recorded deferrals of contributed capital in the
amount of $5.9 million and $2.3 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2012, deferred contributions in aid of
construction amounted to $6.8 million.

Conservation Program Expenditures. With conservation investments, the District is considered
to be buying an energy resource from its customers. The District’s conservation program also supports compliance
with [-937. The Commission has approved resolutions that require these program costs to be deferred and recorded
as regulatory assets, to be amortized and included in rates over the benefit period. As of December 31 2011, the
District recorded regulatory deferrals of conservation program expenditures in the amount of $1.1 million. In 2010,
the District did not record any regulatory deferrals of conservation program expenditures. As of September 30, 2012,
deferred conservation program expenditures amounted to $1.9 million.

Consolidated System Payment Agreements

Pursuant to the Master Resolution, the District may enter into one or more Payment Agreements with respect
to all or a portion of a Series of Bonds. A Payment Agreement is defined in the Master Resolution as any financial
instrument that (i) is entered into by the District with a party that is a Qualified Counterparty (as defined in the Master
Resolution) at the time the instrument is entered into; (ii) is entered into with respect to all or a portion of a Series of
Bonds; (iii) is for a term not extending beyond the final maturity of the Series of Bonds or portion thereof to which it
relates; (iv) provides that the District shall pay to such Qualified Counterparty an amount accruing at either a fixed
rate or a variable rate, as the case may be, on a notional amount equal to or less than the principal amount of the
Series of Bonds or portion thereof to which it relates, and that such Qualified Counterparty shall pay to the District an
amount accruing at either a variable rate or fixed rate, as appropriate, on such notional amount; (v) provides that one
party shall pay to the other party any net amounts due under such instrument; and (vi) which has been designated by
the District as a Payment Agreement with respect to such Bonds. The Qualified Counterparty must be rated in one of
the three top rating categories by at least two rating agencies. The Master Resolution provides that, if and to the
extent provided in any Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Series of Bonds, Payment Agreement
Payments may be paid directly out of the account or accounts in the Bond Fund established with respect to such
Series of Bonds, and thus on a parity with debt service on the Bonds.

2009 Payment Agreement; 2009 Reversal Payment Agreement. On April 13, 2006, the District
competitively bid and executed an interest rate swap payment agreement (the “2009 Payment Agreement”) pursuant
to which the District receives payments from the counterparty at a variable rate with respect to its 2009A/B Bonds
(the “Swapped 2009 Bonds™) and the District pays to the counterparty a fixed rate. The aggregate notional amount of
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the 2009 Payment Agreement is equal to $30,355,000. The variable rate the District is to receive under the 2009
Payment Agreement was intended to approximate the variable rate the District expected to pay on the Swapped 2009
Bonds. The 2009 Payment Agreement is scheduled to terminate on July 1, 2034. The regularly scheduled payments
of the District under the 2009 Payment Agreement are additionally secured by a financial guaranty insurance policy
issued by Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. (“Assured”). As of February 19, 2013, Assured was rated A2 and AA-
by Moody’s and S&P, respectively. Assured is not rated by Fitch. Due to uncertainty in the financial markets in
2009, however, the District purchased and is holding in trust the Swapped 2009 Bonds for a period of up to five
years. In connection with the issuance of the Swapped 2009 Bonds, the District bid out and executed an interest rate
swap payment agreement (the “2009 Reversal Payment Agreement”) pursuant to which the District will receive
payments from the counterparty at a fixed rate with respect to the notional amount of the 2009 Payment Agreement
and the District will pay to the counterparty a variable rate. The 2009 Reversal Payment Agreement is scheduled to
terminate on July 1, 2014.

2013 Payment Agreement. On April 13, 2006, the District competitively bid and executed a forward
starting interest rate payment agreement (the “2013 Payment Agreement” and together with the 2009 Payment
Agreement and the 2009 Reversal Payment Agreement, the “Consolidated System Payment Agreements”) in
connection with the expected issuance of Bonds in 2013 to refund certain outstanding Senior Consolidated System
Bonds. The District subsequently refunded such Senior Consolidated System Bonds and is considering various
options with respect to the 2013 Payment Agreement. The Payment Agreement Payments to be made by the District
to the counterparty pursuant to the 2013 Payment Agreement are to be payable on a parity with the Bonds. The
regularly scheduled payments of the District under the 2013 Payment Agreement are expected to be secured by
financial guaranty insurance policies to be issued by Assured.

Additional Terms. The Payment Agreement Payments with respect to the Consolidated System Payment
Agreements, other than any payments due upon the early termination of any such Payment Agreements, are payable
on a parity with the Bonds. The Consolidated System Payment Agreements each include a unilateral option on the
part of the District to terminate the agreement at any time at its then-current market value. The Consolidated System
Payment Agreements require the counterparties to post collateral in the event their credit ratings fall below the two
highest long-term ratings categories. The District is not required to post collateral under the Consolidated System
Payment Agreements; however, if the District’s Credit Support Provider under a Consolidated System Payment
Agreement did not maintain a credit rating of “A-" or above from S&P and “A3” or above from Moody’s and if the
District’s credit ratings were reduced below “BBB+” by S&P and below “Baal” by Moody’s, to avoid termination of
the Consolidated System Payment Agreements, the District would have the option to post collateral under such
Consolidated System Payment Agreements.

[Remainder of page intentionally blank]
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Table 20 below summarizes the Consolidated System Payment Agreements of the District as of December 31, 2012.

Table 20

Chelan County Public Utility District No. 1

Consolidated System Payment Agreements of the District

Counterparty
Initial Credit Ratings Mark to
Associated Effective Notional (Moody’s/ District Market Expiration
Bonds Date Amount Counterparty/Guarantor s&p) Receives District Pays Value® Date
2009 Bonds June 1, 2009 $30,355,000 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Aa3/A+ 70% of 4.031% ($11,700,618) July 1, 2034
BBA
LIBOR
2009 Bonds July 22,2010 $30,355,000  The Bank of New York Mellon Aal/AA- 1.760% 70% of BBA $755,263  July 1,2014
LIBOR
2013 Bonds  May 30, 2013 $28,815,000  Goldman Sachs Mitsui Marine Aa2/AAA 70% of 4.085% ($10,217,293)  July 1, 2032
Derivative Products, L.P./The BBA
Goldman Sachs Group Inc. LIBOR
TOTAL $89,525,000

M As of December 31, 2012.
@ As of December 31, 2012.
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AGREEMENTS, PROCEEDINGS AND LAWS AFFECTING THE DISTRICT
Coordination Agreements
Canadian Entitlement Allocation and Extension Agreement

In 1961, the United States and Canada signed a treaty relating to cooperative development of the water
resources of the Columbia River Basin (the “Canadian Treaty”). The Canadian Treaty required Canada to build
storage facilities in Canada and outlined the manner in which these Canadian Storage Projects are to be operated,
with the goals of optimizing flood control and power benefits downstream of the projects. Power benefits that result
from the operation of the Canadian Storage Projects are shared between the United States and Canada. Under the
terms of the Canadian Treaty, Canada is entitled to receive from the United States one-half of the annual average
usable energy and one-half of the dependable capacity that can be realized in the United States each year as a result
of the coordinated use of the Canadian storage projects (the “Canadian Entitlement”). See “THE CONSOLIDATED
SYSTEM—Consolidated System Energy Resources.”

The most recent agreement between the United States and Canada regarding the Canadian Entitlement,
signed in 1997, established the parameters for determining the District’s obligations to return energy to Canada
generated by the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects attributable to the Canadian storage projects, via
Bonneville, continuing until September 15, 2024. The District’s current obligations are approximately 32 MW for
the Rock Island Project and 68 MW for the Rocky Reach Project, in each case delivered over high load hours,
Monday through Saturday.

Beginning in 2014, either country may terminate the Canadian Treaty by providing ten years’ prior notice
to the other country. Regional discussions within the Northwest and led by Bonneville have been initiated with the
goal of providing to the U.S. State Department a recommendation in 2013 regarding whether the Canadian Treaty
should continue or be terminated. BC Hydro, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Bonneville and other entities
within the United States, including the District, are in the process of considering options available after 2024 for
power operations and flood control. The District cannot predict what requirements may be agreed to for the period
after 2024.

Pacific Northwest Coordination Agreement

The Canadian Treaty assumes coordination among the producers of power in the Pacific Northwest and the
Canadian facilities subject to the Canadian Treaty. In 1964, the Pacific Northwest Coordination Agreement (the
“1964 PNCA”) was executed by those entities, including the District, that operate major electric plants and systems
that serve the Pacific Northwest. The 1964 PNCA coordinated the operations of the parties’ facilities, among other
things, to achieve economies and additional firm power resources for the Pacific Northwest.

The 1964 PNCA expired in 2003. A new PNCA (the “1997 PNCA”) became effective August 1, 2003 and
continues until July 31, 2024.

Mid-Columbia Hourly Coordination Agreement

In 1973, the District entered into the Mid-Columbia Hourly Coordination Agreement to provide for
moment by moment coordination of the seven federal and non-federal hydroelectric projects on the mid-Columbia
River, including the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects. This coordination reduces the fluctuation of reservoir
levels at each dam and allows operation of the reservoirs at a higher average level and with more total power
production. The agreement has existed as a series of one-, five-, ten- and 20-year agreements, with the latest 20-year
agreement scheduled to terminate on June 30, 2017. Other signatories to the agreement include Bonneville; U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers; U.S. Bureau of Reclamation; U.S. Department of the Interior; City of Seattle,
Washington; City of Tacoma, Washington; City of Eugene, Oregon; City of McMinnville, Oregon; Grant PUD;
Douglas PUD; Public Utility District No. 1 of Cowlitz County, Washington; Puget Sound Energy; Portland General
Electric Company; PacifiCorp; Avista; and Colockum Transmission Company, Inc.
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Endangered Species Act
General

The Endangered Species Act of 1973 (16 U.S.C. 1531 et seq.), as amended (the “ESA”), makes it unlawful
for any person subject to the jurisdiction of the United States to “take” a listed species. The term “take” means “to
harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture, or collect, or to attempt to engage in any such conduct.”
Violations of the ESA can be enforced by governmental and citizen suits and are subject to both civil and criminal
penalties, which may include, among other things, the imposition of monetary fines. Civil penalties may include the
imposition of requirements to prevent the takings.

The ESA, however, provides mechanisms to permit “takes” that would otherwise violate the ESA. An
“incidental take” in compliance with an “incidental take permit” or an “incidental take statement” authorized by the
National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”), which for purposes of this section of the Remarketing Memorandum
includes the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Fisheries Service (the “NOAA Fisheries”), or the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Services (“USFWS”) is not an ESA violation. An “incidental take” is a take that “is
incidental to, and not the purpose of, the carrying out of any otherwise lawful activity.” NMFS may also authorize
direct take “for scientific purposes or to enhance the propagation or survival of the affected species.”

The U.S. Secretary of Commerce and the U.S. Secretary of Interior, as appropriate (either, the “Secretary”),
have the authority to permit nonfederal applicants to incidentally take listed species under such terms and conditions
as the Secretary prescribes in an incidental take permit. The Secretary may issue an incidental take permit if the
applicant submits to the Secretary a conservation plan that specifies: (1) the impact that will likely result from such
taking; (2) what steps the applicant will take to minimize and mitigate the impacts and the funding that will be
available to implement the steps; (3) the alternatives to the taking that the applicant considered and why those
alternatives were rejected; and (4) other measures that the Secretary may require as being necessary or appropriate
for purposes of the plan. The Secretary is required to issue the permit if, after opportunity for public comment, the
Secretary finds that: (1) the taking will be incidental; (2) the applicant will, to the maximum extent practicable,
minimize and mitigate the impacts of such taking; (3) the applicant will ensure that adequate funding will be
provided for the plan; (4) the taking will not appreciably reduce the likelihood of the survival and recovery of the
species in the wild; (5) the other necessary and appropriate measures required by the Secretary will be met; and
(6) the Secretary has received such other assurances as the Secretary may require that the plan will be implemented.

Upon the listing of a species, the ESA requires the listing agency to define the species’ “critical habitat.”
Critical habitat designations require federal agencies to ensure that any action they authorize, fund or carry out is not
likely to destroy or adversely modify designated critical habitat. Operation of the Rocky Reach and Rock Island
Projects has resulted and may result in the future, based on new listings or information, in federal agencies taking
actions that could trigger new or additional critical habitat consultation under the ESA. These consultations must
address the effects of the proposed action on the listed species and on its critical habitat and typically result in the
issuance of an incidental take statement.

Listings

There are several fish, wildlife and plant species that have been listed or are proposed for listing that exist
in the area of the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects. Some listings have had no material effect on the operation
of the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects, while other listings, such as anadromous fish listings, have had
implications for operation of the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects. Listed anadromous fish and other selected
species within the vicinity of the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects are discussed below. The listings include
naturally spawned fish, as well as fish produced in artificial propagation programs.

Steelhead—Upper Columbia DPS. In 1997, NMFS listed the Upper Columbia River Steelhead
distinct population segment (“DPS”) as endangered under the ESA. The Upper Columbia Steelhead DPS was
reclassified as threatened on January 5, 2006, and then reinstated as endangered in June 2007. In June 2009, the
Upper Columbia Steelhead DPS was again reclassified as threatened. On July 26, 2011, NMFS issued its 5-year
status review findings and concluded that the Upper Columbia River steelhead DPS should remain listed as
threatened. The DPS includes all naturally-spawned anadromous steelhead populations below natural and man-
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made impassable barriers in streams in the Columbia River Basin upstream from the Yakima River, Washington, to
the U.S.-Canada border, as well as six artificial propagation programs.

In 2005, NMFS designated portions of the Columbia River mainstem and tributaries as critical
habitat of the Upper Columbia River Steelhead DPS. The District’s Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects lie
within Columbia River mainstem reaches designated as critical habitat.

Steelhead—Mid-Columbia DPS. In 1999, NMFS listed the Middle Columbia River Steelhead
DPS as threatened under the ESA, and in 2006 reaffirmed the listing. This DPS includes all naturally-spawned
anadromous steelhead populations below natural and man-made impassable barriers in streams from above the Wind
River, Washington, and the Hood River, Oregon (exclusive), upstream to, and including, the Yakima River,
Washington, excluding steelhead from the Snake River Basin, as well as seven artificial propagation programs.

The District’s Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects lie upstream of the Middle Columbia River
Steelhead DPS. In 2005, NMFS designated critical habitat for the Middle Columbia River Steelhead DPS
downstream of those Projects.

Spring Chinook—Upper Columbia ESU. In 1999, NMFS listed the Upper Columbia River
Spring Run Chinook Salmon Evolutionarily Significant Unit (“ESU”) as an endangered species under the ESA. In
2005, NMFS published the final rule reaffirming the ESU’s endangered status. The ESU includes naturally-
spawned populations of spring Chinook salmon in all river reaches accessible to spring Chinook salmon in
Columbia River tributaries upstream of Rock Island Dam and downstream of Chief Joseph Dam in Washington as
well as six artificial propagation programs.

On July 26, 2011, NMFS issued the 5-year status review findings and concluded that the Upper
Columbia River Spring-Run Chinook salmon should remain listed as endangered. In 2005, NMFS designated
critical habitat for the Upper Columbia Spring Chinook ESU.

Upper Columbia River Salmon and Steelhead Recovery Plan. The NOAA Fisheries adopted
the Upper Columbia River Salmon and Steelhead Recovery Plan in 2007 (the “2007 Plan”). Recovery plans
describe actions beneficial to the conservation and recovery of species listed under the ESA. The ESA generally
requires the development of recovery plans for listed species. The 2007 Plan is a guide to be used by federal and
state agencies charged with species recovery. In and of itself, the 2007 Plan is not a regulatory document. That is,
the District is not obligated to adhere to the 2007 Plan but works closely with other agencies and Native American
tribes on its implementation.

Bull Trout—Columbia Basin DPS. The USFWS listed the bull trout in all DPSs as threatened in
1999. The USFWS considers the Columbia River population as one of five DPSs. The USFWS developed the Bull
Trout Draft Recovery Plan covering five western states in 2002. The USFWS is currently drafting a new recovery
plan based on distinct recovery units. Under the biological opinions issued to the District by the USFWS, the
District is required to participate in the regional recovery planning efforts. Bull trout in the Middle Columbia
constitute one portion of the total Columbia River population. Following litigation, the USFWS issued a final rule
designating revised critical habitat on October 17, 2010. The revised critical habitat designation includes the
mainstem Columbia River including the Rocky Reach and Rock Island reservoirs. It also includes the Chelan River
in the natural river channel up to the first natural passage barrier, which includes the Lake Chelan powerhouse
tailrace.

Other Species. The NMFS and the USFWS (collectively, the “Services”) considered and found
that listing was not warranted in the region for several other fish species. These include the Upper Columbia
Summer and Fall Run Chinook salmon ESU, the Okanogan River and Lake Wenatchee sockeye salmon ESUs,
Pacific Lamprey and coastal and westslope cutthroat trout.

The District cannot predict the outcome of consideration by the Services of new listings, de-listings or
critical habitat designations for listed species and related litigation. For example, the USFWS currently considers
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the Pacific lamprey as a “species of concern.” The USFWS also currently considers the Washington/lower Columbia
River DPS of coastal cutthroat trout a “species of concern.”

Effects of Listings and Critical Habitat Designations on Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects

As a result of the listings under the ESA, the Services may require minimization and mitigation measures to
address potential effects of the Hydro-Electric Projects’ operations on the listed species or their habitats. The
District could be required to alter operations at the Rock Island and the Rocky Reach Projects, which could result in
possibly substantial reductions in power generation at the Hydro-Electric Projects, thereby increasing the unit cost of
power from the Hydro-Electric Projects. The steps being taken by the District to minimize the effects of the listings
are discussed below.

Rocky Reach and Rock Island Anadromous Fish Agreements and Habitat Conservation Plans

In late 1994, the District, Grant PUD and Douglas PUD (collectively, “Mid-Columbia PUDs”) initiated
discussions with the Services and Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife (“WDFW?”) to develop a Mid-
Columbia Habitat Conservation Plan to manage the aquatic species (fish, plants and animals) that inhabit the Mid-
Columbia River Basin. The Mid-Columbia PUDs sponsored extensive studies and submitted the first draft of the
plan to the parties in May 1996.

The District, along with Douglas PUD, the Services, WDFW, the Colville Tribes and the Yakama Nation,
thereafter developed and signed the Anadromous Fish Agreements and Habitat Conservation Plans (“HCPs”) for the
Rocky Reach, Rock Island and Wells Projects. The HCPs apply to spring, summer and fall Chinook salmon,
sockeye salmon, coho salmon and steelhead (collectively, the “Plan Species”). The HCPs provide that “No Net
Impact” (“NNI”) will be achieved on a specified schedule and maintained for the duration of the agreements for
each Plan Species affected by the Rocky Reach, Rock Island and Wells Projects. NNI has two components:
(1) 91% combined adult and juvenile project survival achieved within the geographic area of each project by project
improvement measures for juveniles and adults; and (2) 9% compensation for unavoidable project mortality
provided through hatchery and tributary programs, with 7% compensation provided through hatchery programs and
2% compensation provided through tributary programs. With the HCPs in place, NMFS issued incidental take
permits to the District for listed Upper Columbia River Spring-run Chinook salmon and Upper Columbia River
steelhead, as well as the unlisted Upper Columbia River sockeye and summer/fall Chinook salmon. These permits
ensure that the District can continue to operate the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects even though listed species
are present and ensure continued operations of the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects if additional ESA listings
occur for any species covered by the HCPs.

The District agreed to be responsible for achieving 91% combined adult and juvenile project survival
through improvements to the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects. The District is also responsible for (1) funding
the 2% tributary conservation plan, (2) providing capacity and funding for up to 7% hatchery compensation plan and
(3) making capacity and funding adjustments necessary to reflect and compensate future hatchery program
modifications.

In 2004, FERC issued orders amending the operating licenses for the Rocky Reach and Rock Island
Projects to incorporate the terms of the HCPs. The District is currently engaged in full implementation of the
programs outlined in the HCPs.

Site-Specific ESA Section 10 Permits

In 2003, NMFS issued separate biological opinions evaluating the issuance of permits under ESA section
10 for the Upper Columbia River spring Chinook hatchery program and the Upper Columbia River steelhead
hatchery program, and in 2004, re-consulted regarding the Upper Columbia River spring Chinook program to
evaluate proposed permit amendments. Based on these consultations, NMFS concluded that the specific hatchery
activities authorized by the permits, which also included programs administered by Douglas PUD and WDFW, were
not likely to jeopardize listed salmon and steelhead species.
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In 2007, NMFS consulted on HCP-related hatchery activities in the context of evaluating FERC’s
relicensing of the Rocky Reach Project, including continued implementation of the HCP and a comprehensive
settlement agreement executed by the District, NMFS and USFWS, among others. NMFS’s biological opinion
validated its prior programmatic analysis of the HCP hatchery mitigation actions related to the Rocky Reach Project
and concluded that such actions would not destroy or adversely modify Upper Columbia River spring Chinook or
Upper Columbia River steelhead critical habitat. As in NMFS’s 2003 biological opinions, the 2007 biological
opinion noted that specific HCP hatchery mitigation actions would undergo separate ESA consultations in which
NMEFS would consider potential effects at a site-specific level. In their 2004 biological opinion, USFWS was clear
that future HCP-related hatchery actions would require additional ESA consultation at a site-specific level.

NMEFS is currently considering the issuance of new permits for the District’s HCP-related hatchery
programs for Upper Columbia River spring Chinook and Upper Columbia River steelhead. The District formally
submitted the final Hatchery Genetics and Management Plans (HGMPs) for NMFS’ review in October 2009. In
March 2010, NMEFS issued a public notice in the Federal Register pursuant to ESA Section 10(c) indicating that
NMFS would evaluate the HGMPs as applications for new ESA Section 10 permits, review the associated
documents and any comments received, and determine whether the HGMPs meet the applicable requirements of
ESA Section 10. NMFS will also initiate consultation with USFWS regarding the effects, if any, of the issuance of
new HGMP permits on bull trout. These regulatory processes will result in the issuance of new Section 10 permits
with new terms and conditions, governing the operations of the District’s Chiwawa spring Chinook and Wenatchee
steelhead hatchery programs.

HCP Implementation

From 2002 to 2006, the District conducted survival studies on all four Plan Species as part of the first phase
of the Rock Island HCPs. In 2006, the District satisfied the 3-year study requirements under the Plan. Juvenile
survival for all three spring migrants (sockeye, steelhead and spring Chinook) exceeded the 93% juvenile survival
standard. The District thus has satisfied a major component of the NNI requirement under the HCPs for the Rock
Island Project.

From 2007 to 2010, the District conducted tests at the Rock Island Project to determine if survival levels
could still be met under reduced spill levels. At the end of the testing cycle, all three spring migrant species
exceeded the 93% juvenile survival standard. The District’s satisfaction of the survival standards means that it is
likely that no additional survival studies will be conducted until 2020.

The District completed survival studies at the Rocky Reach Project for steelhead in 2006, for sockeye in
2009 and for spring Chinook in 2011. Juvenile steelhead and sockeye exceeded the 93% survival standard and
spring Chinook exceeded the 91% combined adult and juvenile survival standard. The District thus has satisfied a
major component of the NNI requirement under the HCP for the Rocky Reach Project. It is unlikely that any
additional survival studies will need to be performed at Rocky Reach until 2021.

In 2012, the District analyzed the adult passage data at the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects for years
2010 through 2012 and determined that adult survival rates for spring Chinook, steelhead, and sockeye all exceeded
98%, and when combined with the previously documented juvenile survival rates for the same species, resulted in
meeting or exceeding the HCP Combined Adult-Juvenile Survival rate of 91%. This result fully satisfies both adult
and juvenile survival rates for spring Chinook, steelhead, and sockeye at the Rock Island and Rocky Reach Projects.

The survival of summer migrants (summer/fall sub-yearling Chinook) currently cannot be studied due to
the limitations of existing technologies because of their small size and because some fish do not migrate to the ocean
in their first year, but instead remain in the project reservoirs. The District has committed to continue monitoring
technological advances to determine whether survival studies can be undertaken for sub-yearling Chinook. While
the HCP requires the District to meet NNI for all Plan Species by 2013, it also states that the inability to determine
whether a survival standard has been satisfied because of technological limitations does not constitute a failure to
meet the NNI requirement. The District will continue to monitor technological advances until such time as effective
survival studies for this Plan Species can be undertaken.
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Bull Trout

In May 2004, the USFWS issued biological and conference opinions (“Opinions™) and incidental take
statements regarding the anticipated effect to bull trout from FERC’s proposed amendments incorporating the
District’s HCPs into the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Project licenses. The Opinions required the development of
bull trout management plans in collaboration with various federal and state agencies and relevant Native American
tribes. The District worked closely with USFWS to include measures that USFWS deemed necessary to protect the
bull trout from adverse effects of continued operation of the Rock Island and the Rocky Reach Projects in the
licensing settlement agreement.

The bull trout management plans were completed in February 2005, and implementation began in
May 2005. The management plan was approved by FERC in April 2005. Implementation of the bull trout
management plan has shown no adverse effects to bull trout from the operation of Rocky Reach and Rock Island
Projects. In December 2008, the USFWS issued its Biological Opinion and Incidental Take Statement in connection
with the District’s new Rocky Reach Project license, concluding that the Project is not likely to jeopardize the
continued existence of bull trout. That biological opinion included a detailed analysis of site-specific hatchery
activities and provided incidental take coverage for effects to bull trout associated with hatchery operations and
maintenance, broodstock collection, and release of juvenile salmon and steelhead at the Rocky Reach, Turtle Rock
Island, Eastbank, Chelan, Tumwater and Dryden hatchery facilities.

As noted above, USFWS issued a revised critical habitat designation for bull trout on October 17, 2010,
which includes the mainstem Columbia River, including the Rocky Reach and Rock Island reservoirs. As a result,
FERC is required to reinitiate consultation for the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects to consider the impact of
the Projects on the critical habitat. This has not yet occurred, but the District expects USFWS and FERC to do so
when they are able. It is possible that USFWS will request that FERC also enter into a new consultation for Lake
Chelan to consider impacts to the bull trout critical habitat. The various consultations could result in the imposition
of additional measures to minimize impacts of the Hydro-Electric Projects on bull trout and its critical habitat.

Federal Columbia River Hydropower System - Biological Opinion

The Federal Columbia River Hydropower System (the “FCRPS”) is comprised of federally owned dams
and those federal agencies that operate, or market power from, those dams, namely, Bonneville, the U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers and the Bureau of Reclamation. The FCRPS includes projects upstream and downstream from
the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects on the Columbia River, as well as projects on the Snake River.

The various biological opinions issued over the past 18 years by NMFS for the FCRPS regarding various
listed species have been the subject of an on-going series of lawsuits and additional regulatory proceedings. The
biological opinion issued by USFWS in 2000 for the FCRPS regarding bull trout has not been litigated. Most
recently, on July 2, 2011, a federal district court concluded that NMFS’s 2008 biological opinion, as supplemented
by a 2010 biological opinion, did not violate the ESA, but remanded the biological opinion back to NMFS for
further consideration. The biological opinion remains in place until December 31, 2013. NMFS must produce a
new biological opinion that corrects the opinion’s reliance on certain mitigation measures.

Two of the most significant features of the biological opinions described above are (1) the requirement for
substantial Columbia River storage and flow pattern changes to assist migration of juvenile salmon and steelhead
and (2) water quality issues associated with water spilled for fish passage purposes at the upstream dams. Due to the
location of the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects in relation to the FCRPS, these conditions may reduce the
power output at the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects and will potentially change the seasonal timing of a
significant amount of such generation. A reduction in output or changes in the timing of storage releases and
resulting energy generation may increase the amount of water the Rocky Reach and Rock Island Projects must spill
to aid fish passage, increase the unit cost of power from these Projects, require the District to replace the lost power
from other higher-cost sources, and reduce District revenues from the sale of non-firm energy from these Projects.
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Pacific Northwest Power Planning and Conservation Act

In 1980, Congress enacted the Pacific Northwest Power Planning and Conservation Act (the “Regional
Power Act”). The Regional Power Act provides for the establishment and operation of the Pacific Northwest
Electric Power and Conservation Planning Council (now referred to as the Northwest Power and Conservation
Council), which is required to prepare and adopt a regional conservation and electric power plan and a program to
protect, mitigate and enhance fish and wildlife, including related spawning grounds and habitat, of the Columbia
River and its tributaries. The adoption of the District’s HCP and comprehensive settlement agreements under the
FERC licenses has taken precedence over the Northwest Power and Conservation Council’s Fish and Wildlife Plans,
but the District continues to coordinate with the Northwest Power and Conservation Council to ensure consistency
with regional plans.

Possible Effects

The above-described regulatory actions and litigation and other current and potential future lawsuits and
regulatory proceedings relating to threatened and endangered species listings and critical habitat designations under
the ESA have had and are likely to continue to have both direct and indirect effects on the operations of hydro-
electric projects in and near the Columbia River including the Hydro-Electric Projects. It is possible that operations
of the Hydro-Electric Projects could be significantly constrained, although the District believes that this is unlikely
given the progress to date on the HCPs and implementation of the Rocky Reach Project license. Further, additional
minimization and mitigation measures could be imposed for species other than salmon or steelhead, resulting in a
substantial increase in the District’s unit cost of production of power at the three Hydro-Electric Projects. The
District believes the imposition of such additional measures is unlikely.

DEVELOPMENTS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY
General

The electric utility industry in the United States is in a period of significant change, resulting in part from
actions taken by legislative and regulatory bodies at the national, regional and state levels. Legislative and
regulatory actions have fostered, among other things, increased wholesale competition and, in some states,
competition at a retail level, as well as “open access” for certain transmission facilities. The industry also is being
affected by a variety of other factors that can have an impact on the financial condition of electric utilities, including
without limitation the following: (1) the effects of increased competition in certain sectors of the industry, including
in the wholesale power markets; (2) changes in the availability and cost of fuels, including natural gas; (3) changes
in the availability of and demand for power generally, as a result of economic, demographic, regulatory, weather and
other factors; (4) climate change; (5) reliability standards; and (6) the costs and operational impacts of endangered
species, environmental, safety, licensing and other federal, state and local laws and regulations.

Electric utilities are subject to continuing environmental regulation. Federal, state and local standards and
procedures that regulate the environmental impact of electric utilities are subject to change. Consequently, there is
no assurance that the facilities operated by the District will remain subject to the regulations currently in effect, will
always be in compliance with future regulations or will always be able to obtain all required operating permits. An
inability to comply with environmental or regulatory standards could result in reduced operating levels or the
shutdown of facilities not in compliance.

The District cannot predict whether additional legislation or rules will be enacted which will affect the
operations of the District, and if such laws or rules are enacted, what the costs to the District might be in the future
because of such action.

The electric utility industry is also subject to changes in technologies. Recent and continuing advances in
electrical generation may render electrical generation on a smaller scale more feasible or make alternative forms of
generation more or less economic. Such technology would provide certain purchasers of the power generated by the
District’s facilities with the ability to generate increased portions of their own electrical power needs and reduce the
market price for power provided by the District. The District cannot predict the timing of the development or
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availability of such technologies and the ultimate impact they would have on the Revenues of the Consolidated
System.

The District cannot predict what effects such factors will have on its operations and financial condition, but
the effects could be significant. Extensive information on the electric utility industry is available from the various
regulatory bodies and other sources in the public domain. See “AGREEMENTS AND PROCEEDINGS
AFFECTING THE HYDRO-ELECTRIC PROJECTS.”

Recent Market Conditions

Power prices in the Pacific Northwest change over time depending on demand, weather conditions, fuel
prices, supply availability, neighboring regional markets and other market drivers, many of which are beyond the
control of the District. Recent decreases in natural gas prices, higher than normal runoff conditions, increased wind
generation and slower economic conditions have led to lower prices. The District cannot predict future price
movements.

With above normal flows on the Columbia River during 2011, the District was able to meet all of its retail
load requirements during that time from its own resources. In addition, the District was able to sell power that
exceeded its own needs in most months.

Due to much higher than normal Columbia River flows in 2012, the District was able to sell more surplus
generation than in a typical run off year. According to the National Weather Service’s Northwest River Forecast
Center, which is a part of the NOAA, the Columbia River at Grand Coulee (Jan-July 2012) was 128% of normal
runoff.

Energy Policy Act of 2005

The Energy Policy Act of 2005 (“EPAct 2005”’) made fundamental changes in the federal regulation of the
electric utility industry, particularly with regard to transmission access, market behavior and mandatory reliable
standards.

Open Access by Unregulated Transmitting Utilities

In 1996, FERC issued Order 888, which had ordered pro forma, open-access mandatory transmission tariffs
to be put into effect for all jurisdictional utilities. Order 888 did not apply to municipal utilities such as the District.
However, FERC adopted a “reciprocity” provision in Order 888 that required non-jurisdictional utilities to offer
“comparable” transmission services in return for using a jurisdictional utility’s open access transmission services. A
non-jurisdictional utility could satisfy reciprocity by filing a safe-harbor tariff with FERC and receiving approval;
entering into a bilateral agreement with the jurisdictional utility; or receiving a waiver from FERC.

In EPAct 2005, Congress added section 211A to the FPA. The section authorized FERC to, by rule or
order, require a non-jurisdictional utility to provide transmission services at rates that are comparable to those it
charges itself and under terms and conditions (unrelated to rates) that are comparable to those it applies to itself, and
that are not unduly discriminatory or preferential. In other words, EPAct 2005 authorized FERC to require non-
jurisdictional utilities to provide non-discriminatory open access for all transmission customers - even for
transmission customers from whom the non-jurisdictional utility did not take service. This authority is subject to
certain exemptions and to the limitation that it may not require a violation of a private activity bond rule for tax
purposes.

After the rulemaking process, FERC issued a final Order 890 on February 15, 2007. In Order 890, FERC
declined to adopt a generic rule to implement the new FPA section 211A. However, FERC stated it will apply the
provisions of 211A on a case-by-case basis. For example, if a jurisdictional utility wants service from a non-
jurisdictional utility, FERC could compel the non-jurisdictional utility to provide service “comparable” to what it
provides itself and that is not unduly discriminatory or preferential.
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FERC Order 890 also cited eight principles for increasing transparency in regional transmission planning.
The principles included coordination, openness, transparency, information exchange, comparability, dispute
resolution, regional participation, and congestion studies. While the specific requirements with regard to
transmission planning are not formally applied to non-jurisdictional utilities, FERC clearly stated that it expects non-
regulated transmission providers will participate in open and transparent regional planning processes.

Furthermore, FERC’s Order 890 requires jurisdictional utilities, working through the North American
Electric Reliability Corporation (“NERC”), to develop consistent methodologies for available transmission capacity
calculations and to publish those methodologies to increase transparency. The District continues to evaluate the
extent to which Order 890 will affect its relationships with jurisdictional utilities with which it does business.

On December 28, 2007, FERC issued Order 890-A, largely confirming Order 890. On June 19, 2008,
FERC issued Order 890-B, largely reaffirming its rule on open access (Order 890) and its later rehearing order
(Order 890-A). Order 890-B provided clarification and guidance on the rule. In these Orders, FERC reiterated its
expectation that non-jurisdictional utilities participate in regional transmission planning.

The District is a member of ColumbiaGrid, a non-profit corporation formed in March 2006 to improve the
operational efficiency, reliability, and planned expansion of the Northwest transmission grid. Members of
ColumbiaGrid include Bonneville, public power utilities and investor-owned utilities. As to transmission planning
and expansion, ColumbiaGrid provides a single-utility based transmission planning forum for the combined network
of its participating utilities. The goal of the program is to resolve issues regarding determining whether transmission
infrastructure should be expanded, what entities should be responsible for undertaking such expansion and what
entities should be responsible for paying for such expansion. On February 7, 2007, the District signed
ColumbiaGrid’s Planning and Expansion Functional Agreement (“PEFA”). The investor-owned utilities filed the
PEFA with FERC as part of their compliance to FERC Order 890 planning requirements. For the District, the PEFA
is an integral part of meeting FERC’s expectations for participating in regional transmission planning as a non-
jurisdictional utility. The District is currently engaged with Douglas PUD, Grant PUD and Bonneville in a PEFA
transmission expansion project that impacts on the District’s transmission network. On July 2, 2012, the parties
entered into a cost-sharing agreement.

On July 1, 2011, FERC issued Order 1000 on transmission planning and cost allocation. The new rule
requires FERC regulated transmission providers to participate in regional planning processes that meet certain
transmission planning and cost allocation requirements, including considering transmission planning processes that
consider public policy requirements established by state or federal laws that may affect transmission needs (such as
renewable portfolio standards). With respect to transmission cost allocation, Order 1000 requires, among other
things, that regulated transmission providers establish principles for allocating the costs of new transmission in a
manner “roughly commensurate with the distribution of benefits.” Order 1000 impacts some non-jurisdictional
transmission-owning public power utilities. While the District does not have a tariff on file with FERC, as a
member of ColumbiaGrid it engages in consensus-based interregional planning processes. Potential impacts on the
District are unknown at this time and could be less pronounced than on others in the industry because of the amount
of transmission the District owns and operates. The parties to the PEFA have revised the PEFA to comply with the
intra-regional portion of Order 1000. The jurisdictional transmission operators have made compliance filings which
included an amended PEFA. The District continues to work with jurisdictional transmission operators on
compliance with the inter-regional portion of Order 1000 while maintaining the District’s status as a non-
jurisdictional entity.

Mandatory Reliability Standards

EPAct 2005 authorized FERC to certify and oversee, in coordination with governmental authorities in
Canada, an Electric Reliability Organization (“ERO”) for the purpose of establishing and enforcing mandatory
reliability standards for all users, owners and operators of bulk power systems in North America. Under EPAct
2005, the ERO can delegate enforcement authority to qualified regional reliability organizations (“RROs”). On
July 20, 2006, FERC certified NERC as the ERO. In April 2007, the Western Electricity Coordinating Council
(“WECC”) became the RRO for the western interconnect. The western interconnect extends from Canada to
Mexico and includes the provinces of Alberta and British Columbia, the northern portion of Baja California, Mexico
and all or portions of the 14 western states in between.
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NERC’s reliability standards are developed in coordination with the electric industry and approved by the
NERC Board of Trustees, which then submits the standards to FERC. New standards are frequently developed
through NERC’s standards development process. Utility experts provide input through the NERC Standards
Committee, and each standard is voted on through a ballot pool. The District follows these processes closely and
participates in standards developing and balloting processes as appropriate. Compliance with the approved
standards is mandatory and enforceable, and NERC has the authority to levy fines for non-compliance. The District
has a good record of compliance. Adoption of standards in the future could add to the District’s costs of compliance
with such standards.

The District has implemented an internal reliability compliance program. The work is independently
reviewed and monitored by the District’s Compliance Manager under the direction of the District’s Chief
Compliance Officer.

Prohibition on Market Manipulation

EPAct 2005 prohibits entities, including municipalities such as public utility districts, from using any
manipulative or deceptive device or contrivance, in connection with the purchase or sale of electric energy or the
purchase or sale of transmission. In 2006, FERC issued a final rule implementing this section. The regulation
specifically makes it unlawful for any entity, directly or indirectly, in connection with the purchase or sale of electric
energy or the purchase or sale of transmission services subject to FERC jurisdiction: (1) to use or employ and
device, scheme or artifice to defraud; (2) to make any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not misleading; or (3) to engage in any act, practice or course of business that operates or would operate as a fraud
or deceit upon any entity. This regulation applies to the District to the extent it engages in conduct “in connection
with” matters over which FERC has jurisdiction. The District has taken steps to demonstrate a culture of
compliance, including compliance with anti-manipulation requirements. A compliance plan and training program
have been implemented.

Compliance and Risk Management

The District is subject to various legal, regulatory and contractual compliance requirements. The District
has a comprehensive ethics and compliance program that is designed to foster a culture of compliance. The culture
of compliance means that all District employees are expected to learn, understand and follow the laws and
regulations that affect their job responsibilities and that the District enforces this expectation in policies and
procedures. The District has established a Compliance Office consisting of the General Counsel/Chief Compliance
Officer and a Compliance Manager. This office is responsible for leading and coordinating the development,
implementation and ongoing monitoring of the District’s compliance programs. The Chief Compliance Office is
independent from the compliance operational areas. In addition, the Chief Financial/Risk Officer is responsible for
the District’s enterprise risk management program and chairs the District’s Power Risk Management Committee.
See “THE DISTRICT—Management and Administration.”

Amendments to the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act

PURPA was enacted in 1978. Among other things, PURPA was intended to encourage (1) the
conservation of energy supplied by electric utilities; (2) optimal efficiency of electric utility facilities and resources,
and (3) equitable rates for electric consumers. The law has been amended several times, notably by the Energy
Policy Act of 1992, the EPAct 2005 and most recently by the Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007
(“EISA 2007”). EPAct 2005 amended PURPA to require utilities to consider, and make a determination about
whether it is appropriate to implement, five new federal standards relating to electric generation and efficiency.
These federal standards are (1) net metering; (2) fuel diversity; (3) fossil fuel generation efficiency; (4) time-based
metering and communications; and (5) interconnection.

EPAct 2005 sets various deadlines for commencing and completing consideration of these standards. The

Commission began consideration of three of these standards (net metering, time-based metering/communications
and interconnection) in 2006.
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The Commission determined that it is not in the best interest of the District to adopt the federal net
metering standard. Instead, the Commission decided that the District’s net metering practices should be updated in
accordance with recent State legislation that increased net metering eligible systems from 25 kW to 100 kW. With
regard to interconnection service, the Commission determined it is not in the best interest of the District to adopt the
federal standard. Rather, the District continues to provide interconnection service to customer generators of up to 10
MW and has adopted the specific interconnection services developed by the Washington PUD Association Public
Power Ad-hoc Interconnection Standards Committee for customer generators of 25 kW or less.

The Commission also declined to adopt federal standards for time-based rates and communications.
Instead, District staff will continue to study and evaluate the benefits, technology and costs of time-based rates and
communications (or smart metering) in conjunction with automated meter reading.

EPAct 2005 also required that the Commission complete a determination of the last two standards (fuel
diversity and fossil fuel efficiency) by August 8, 2008. The Commission began consideration in July 2007, and the
Commission determined not to adopt the fuel source diversity standard. Commissioners also declined to adopt the
fossil fuel efficiency standard, finding it not applicable to the District.

EISA 2007 also added several new PURPA standards related to integrated resource planning; rate design to
promote energy efficiency; and smart grid information. The District initiated consideration of these standards on
August 11, 2008 in a public hearing. On November 3, 2008 the Commission held a public hearing to consider
adopting proposed standards for two of the four standards, specifically smart grid investments and smart grid
information. After considering the standards, the Commission elected not to adopt them, but directed staff to
continue to evaluate possibilities for the future.

On November 16, 2009, the Commission held a public hearing to consider the two remaining EISA 2007
PURPA standards: (1) integrated resource planning/energy efficiency; and (2) rate design modifications to promote
energy efficiency investments. The Commission also considered establishing 10- and two-year conservation targets
as required under the voter-approved Energy Independence Act of 2006, codified as RCW Chapter 19.285 (“EIAct
2006”). See “State Energy Legislation — Renewable Portfolio Standard” under this heading. At the November 16,
2009 public hearing, the Commission decided not to adopt the PURPA standards as written but instead to adopt a
10-year conservation plan and two-year conservation targets that identify cost-effective energy efficiency measures
appropriate to the District and comply with the EIAct 2006.

Climate Change and Renewables
General

The District is attentive to the developing scientific knowledge and information regarding climate change
which may result from greenhouse gas emissions and accumulations and from other factors. To the extent that
regional warming increases the average temperature in the watershed that feeds the Columbia River, such warming
could result in earlier run-off into the Columbia River, and thus affect the timing and/or amount of power generation
at the District’s Hydro-Electric Projects. The District is unable to predict whether any such climate changes will
occur, the nature or extent thereof, or the effects they might have on the District’s business operations and financial
condition.

State and national policymakers are debating how to manage and mitigate for greenhouse gas emissions
from many sectors of the economy, including electric generation. The District’s three hydroelectric generating
projects provide low-cost, clean, renewable power that does not generate greenhouse gas emissions. As an electric
generator that relies on emission-free hydropower to serve its retail load plus provide energy to thousands of other
Northwest customers, the District has a significant interest in the role that hydropower plays in climate change
policy. District management and staff monitor the latest regional policy proposals. Current focus includes
greenhouse gas developments at the state regulatory level. District staff also continues to monitor federal policy
development.
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Chicago Climate Exchange

The District has taken steps seeking to have hydropower generation recognized as part of the solution in the
climate change debate. In December 2007, the Chicago Climate Exchange approved a portion of the hydropower
generated at Rocky Reach Dam to be traded to offset greenhouse gas emissions from other sources. The Chicago
Climate Exchange emission reduction program concluded following the completion of Phase II at the end of 2010,
and the District’s remaining offsets were deregistered. The revised offset registry program is to operate
independently of the previous phases, and the District does not have offsets that qualify under the new program.

Renewable Energy Markets

The District has actively participated in the voluntary and compliance renewable energy markets.
Renewable Energy Credits (“RECs”) are the environmental attributes associated with one MWh of a qualifying
renewable energy resource. Markets for RECs support both voluntary renewable energy programs and mandated
state renewable portfolio standards. The District has sold a portion of the RECs associated with its hydro-electric
power and wind power. As of September 30, 2012, over 175,000 of the District’s RECs have been sold.

Low Impact Hydropower Institute

On January 24, 2008, the District’s Lake Chelan Project was certified as “low impact” by the Low Impact
Hydropower Institute, an independent non-profit organization (“LIHI”). In September 2012, the District applied for
renewal of its five-year LIHI certification for the Lake Chelan Project, and in December 2012, the District received
confirmation that its renewal application was approved. LIHI’s mission is to reduce the impacts of hydropower
dams through market incentives. Receiving certification as low-impact hydro means the dam and powerhouse are
recognized for meeting criteria related to river flows, water quality, fish passage and protection, watersheds,
threatened and endangered species, cultural resources, and public access and recreation. If any of the electricity
generated at the Lake Chelan Project is ultimately certified as “green power,” the energy or environmental values
could potentially be sold in environmental markets. This product includes low impact hydropower from facilities
certified by LIHI to have environmental impacts in key areas below levels LIHI considers acceptable for
hydropower facilities. LIHI certification has been considered an important first step toward green certification.

Financial Services Reform

In July 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”)
was signed into law. The Dodd-Frank Act allows the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the “CFTC”) to
regulate clearing and exchange requirements for the purchase and sale of swaps, including some energy derivatives.
The CFTC continues to address comments to proposed rules, to finalize rules and to develop its oversight
responsibilities. The Dodd-Frank Act will continue to impact utilities that utilize derivatives and possibly other
energy products as rules are finalized and become effective. On October 12, 2012, the CFTC finalized the rule that
includes the definition of “swap” (a key term in the Dodd-Frank Act), which provides additional guidance regarding
energy products that may qualify for a forward contract exclusion from the definition. On July 23, 2012, the rule
defining “swap dealer” became effective. The rule provides for a de minimis threshold and a special entity sub-
threshold for notional values of swap transactions before an entity is designated as a swap dealer. In response to
concerns of representatives of the public power sector that entities might refrain from executing swap transactions
with special entities (such as the District) because of the low threshold, the CFTC issued no-action relief that
increased the sub-threshold to $800 million and that narrowed the definition of qualifying swaps. Although an end-
user of derivatives is exempt from mandatory clearing requirements if it is using a swap to hedge or mitigate
commercial risk, there continues to be uncertainty in the industry regarding whether certain types of energy products
are considered to be swaps and concerns that entities not wanting to be designated as “swap dealers” may refrain
from entering into swap transactions with special entities. In addition, significant reporting requirements and record
keeping obligations, for which rules are still being proposed, may ultimately raise costs for utilities, including the
District.

As of December 31, 2012, the District has no credit support outstanding related to forward sales or

purchases of energy or energy derivatives. At this time, the majority of the District’s forward energy contracts are
over-the-counter bilateral contracts that are physically delivered, and the District currently is not engaged in
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financial only energy transactions. The District continues to evaluate its current energy transaction portfolio with
regards to the swap definition and potential reporting requirements and will consider the implications of the Dodd-
Frank Act when evaluating new types of transaction.

The District is a party to three interest rate swap agreements and is evaluating any historical reporting
requirements that may be required under the Dodd-Frank Act and the rules promulgated thereunder. The District
does not currently anticipate entering into any new interest rate swap agreements. See “FINANCIAL
INFORMATION—Consolidated System Payment Agreements.”

Cyber Security

Over the past several years, Congress has considered and ultimately rejected various pieces of cyber
security legislation, ranging from H.R. 5026, the Grid Reliability and Infrastructure Defense Act (“GRID Act”), to
S. 2105, the Cyber Security Act of 2012 (the “Cyber Security Act”). Political pressure to address perceived cyber
security weaknesses is increasing, and governmental authorities generally believe that the electric sector is not doing
enough to protect the grid. The electric industry opposed the GRID Act because, among other things, it would have
given to FERC authority to issue emergency orders if the President determines that a “grid security threat” exists
and to order specific measures to be taken by industry to address grid security vulnerabilities if FERC determined
that the existing NERC standards were inadequate. Because FERC already has the authority to direct NERC to
submit new or modified standards for approval, utilities were concerned that this new authority, if utilized by FERC,
could undermine the NERC standards development process and result in FERC rewriting cyber security standards
without using the NERC process to engage utility experts, which could potentially result in unworkable standards,
given the diversity of the electric power system. The electric industry and other business interests also opposed the
Cyber Security Act because of a provision which would have allowed the government, including the Department of
Homeland Security (the “DHS”), to write voluntary cyber security standards that could later be adopted as
mandatory by federal agencies with jurisdiction over critical electric infrastructure. Fundamentally, the electric
industry is interested in preserving the current NERC standards development process, which protects the ability of
utilities to provide input on the efficacy and appropriateness of proposed cyber security standards on critical electric
infrastructure.

While opposing new regulatory frameworks, the electric industry has supported aspects of legislation that
would encourage information sharing between the electric sector and the federal government to ensure that utilities
can effectively act to protect against identified threats; however, attempts to pass information sharing legislation
without broader regulatory mandates have thus far failed. In August 2012, the Senate Intelligence Committee Chair,
Dianne Feinstein (D—Calif.), urged President Obama to issue an executive order “or take other appropriate action” to
advance cyber security of critical infrastructure in the United States. It was expected that President Obama would
issue an executive order in November 2012, but no such order has been publicly released.

The District continues to monitor these developments for potential effects on grid stability and new
compliance and documentation requirements.

Electromagnetic Pulse Events

The U.S. Congress and the DHS are considering the potential effects of natural and manmade
electromagnetic pulse threats and vulnerabilities on the bulk-power system and electrical infrastructure. DHS has
identified electrical control systems as vulnerable to disturbances caused by geomagnetic storms and
electromagnetic pulse attack. Such events could interrupt power generation and delivery. Several bills have been
introduced in Congress that addresses electromagnetic pulse vulnerabilities, including the 2010 GRID Act, which
identified electromagnetic pulse as a grid security threat. In 2011, the Secure High-Voltage Infrastructure for
Electricity from Lethal Damage Act (or “SHIELD Act”) was introduced with a provision requiring FERC to order
NERC to submit reliability standards to adequately protect the bulk-power system from any reasonably foreseeable
geomagnetic storm or electromagnetic pulse events.

The District is monitoring these developments. Depending on the legislative response to these concerns,
mitigation plans to prepare for EMP events could be costly for the electricity industry.
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Integration of Variable Energy Resources

On November 18, 2010, FERC issued a notice of proposed rulemaking addressing the integration of
variable energy resources, such as wind and solar, into the electric grid. The notice introduced three potential
reforms intended to increase operational efficiencies in light of variable power output and to prevent undue
discrimination of variable energy resources, including a proposed requirement for FERC-jurisdictional transmission
providers to offer 15-minute intra-hourly transmission scheduling. Although the District is not a FERC-
jurisdictional transmission provider, it is active in the wholesale market and may need to accommodate such
scheduling to participate in the market place.

On June 21, 2012, FERC issued a final rule adopting changes to the pro forma Open Access Transmission
Tariff (“OATT”) intended to facilitate the integration of variable energy resources (“VERs”). The final rule
implements two changes initially proposed in November 2010. First, transmission providers are to amend their
OATTSs to permit customers to schedule transmission service at 15-minute intervals. The final rule permits
transmission providers to submit alternative proposals that are consistent with or superior to FERC’s 15-minute
scheduling requirement, provided that the alternative proposal offers an equal or greater opportunity for customers
to mitigate generator imbalance penalties, and for the transmission provider to lower its reserve-related costs.
Second, revisions are to be made to FERC’s pro forma Large Generator Interconnection Agreement to require
generators using VERs to provide transmission owners with certain data (i.e., meteorological and operational data)
to support power production forecasting and to help transmission providers more efficiently manage resource
variability.

FERC declined to adopt the proposal advanced in the notice of proposed rulemaking that would have
introduced a generic ancillary service rate schedule (Schedule 10 - Generator Regulation and Frequency Response
Service) to the pro forma OATT under which transmission providers would offer generation regulation service
(where physically feasible from resources available to them) to deliver energy from a generator within a
transmission provider’s balancing authority area. FERC notes, however, that it will evaluate proposed charges for
this service on a case-by-case basis, and that the final rule includes a framework for transmission providers to
develop proposed changes.

FERC found that transmission customers are exposed to excessive imbalance service charges because they
cannot adjust their service schedules within each operating hour, and that intra-hour scheduling gives customers the
ability to manage cost exposure when generation output changes within the hour.

On October 19, 2012, Edison Electric Institute (“EEI”) filed a motion to extend the Order No. 764
compliance filing deadline from September 11, 2013 to November 12, 2013. EEI stated that the 62-day extension
was necessary to “provide some flexibility in addressing any operational challenges that may arise during the
transition to intra-hourly scheduling throughout summer peak conditions without jeopardizing reliability.” FERC
has granted rehearing.

If FERC’s proposed requirement for 15-minute intra-hourly scheduling is not implemented in an
incremental manner that takes existing business practices into account, there could be a financial impact to the
District as new software and personnel may be needed to accommodate scheduling goals. The District continues to
monitor any future developments on this issue.

State Energy Legislation
Renewable Portfolio Standard

A ballot initiative known as 1-937 was passed by the voters of the State of Washington in November 2006.
Under the initiative, utilities with a retail load of more than 25,000 customers are required to use eligible renewable
resources (excluding existing hydro-electric power) or acquire equivalent renewable energy credits, or a
combination of both, to serve 3% of load by January 1, 2012; 9% by January 1, 2016; and 15% by January 1, 2020.
The initiative also requires utilities to pursue all available conservation that is cost-effective, reliable, and feasible
and impose deadlines for meeting conservation targets. Initiative 937 has been codified in the RCW as The Energy
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Independence Act of 2006 (RCW 19.285). The Washington State Department of Commerce (“DOC”) adopted rules
for implementing the requirements of the EIAct 2006 as it pertains to consumer owned utilities on March 14, 2008.

The new law is specific about what types of renewable generation is eligible to meet the renewable
portfolio standard (“RPS”). Existing hydropower is not eligible, but incremental hydropower is included as a
renewable if it is produced as a result of efficiency improvements completed after March 30, 1999 to hydroelectric
generation projects owned by a qualifying utility and located in the Pacific Northwest or to hydroelectric generation
in irrigation pipes and canals located in the Pacific Northwest, where the additional generation in either case does
not result in new water diversions or impoundments. Under the initiative, therefore, the District could count
efficiency gains at its existing hydropower projects toward meeting the RPS. All of the District’s share of the Nine
Canyon Wind Project would qualify for the RPS.

The District continues to evaluate the impacts of [-937 and other proposed changes to [-937, specifically to
what extent the District’s current portfolio meets the RPS and how much additional renewable energy generation it
may need to acquire at a future date to ensure compliance. In addition, the District is evaluating the potential for
cost effective, reliable and feasible conservation measures that could be derived from more efficient energy use,
production and distribution within its system. The Commission has adopted a 10-year conservation plan and two-
year conservation targets in compliance with the EIAct 2006.

The District has closely followed efforts by the Washington State Legislature to revise the law since 2009,
when the Legislature was allowed to amend the citizen’s initiative by a simple majority vote. During the 2012
legislative session, the Legislature passed Senate Bill 6414 amending 1-937 and providing some assistance to public
utility districts and other entities regulated by the Washington Utility and Transportation Commission (“WUTC”).
Senate Bill 6414 provides a pre-qualification review process through the DOC of electric generation and
conservation projects to determine qualification of projects under 1-937. This process provides more certainty that
utilities and entities who are eligible for the review process and that make this type of investment will receive credit
under the EIAct 2006 by the Washington State Auditor’s office. In August 2012, the District received a favorable
opinion from DOC that rehabilitation of Rocky Reach Project turbines, generators and transformers, plus spill
avoided due to the juvenile fish bypass system, qualifies as incremental hydropower efficiency improvements under
the Energy Independence Act. Future proposals to amend 1-937 could expand eligible resources or could result in
increased RPS targets for the District.

In addition, in March 29, 2011, the California Legislature adopted legislation that increased California's
renewable portfolio standard for electric utilities from 20% to 33% by 2020. While not applicable to the District, the
new requirement is expected to impact Northwest markets because it allows a percentage of eligible resources to be
procured from sources outside California and delivered to a California balancing authority. A portion of the
requirement may also be met by unbundled renewable energy credits. The District continues to review the
legislation to determine potential positive and negative impacts to the District and regional energy markets.

Integrated Resource Planning

In 2006, the Legislature passed HB 1010 (RCW 19.280), which requires investor-owned and consumer-
owned electric utilities with more than 25,000 customers to develop integrated resource plans (“IRPs”) and submit
them to the DOC.

IRPs must include demand forecasts; assessment of commercially-available conservation and efficiency
resources; assessments of commercially-available, utility scale renewable and nonrenewable generating
technologies; a comparative evaluation of renewable and nonrenewable generating resources, including transmission
and distribution delivery costs and conservation and efficiency resources, using “lowest reasonable cost” as a
criterion; integration of demand forecasts and resource evaluations to identify how to meet current and projected
needs at the lowest reasonable cost and risk to the utility and its ratepayers; and a short-term plan identifying
specific actions to take consistent with the long-range IRP. Consumer-owned utilities must seek public input in
development of their IRPs and progress reports and provide public notice and hearing. The initial IRPs were
required to be submitted by September 1, 2008, with progress reports due at least every two years thereafter. An
updated IRP must be developed at least every four years.
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Following development of the District’s initial IRP in 2008 and a progress report in 2010, the District
completed its 2012 IRP as required by state law. The District’s 2012 IRP was approved by the Commission on July
2, 2012 and submitted to the DOC shortly thereafter, following a public process in which no public comments were
received. The 2012 IRP outlines the source of power needed to supply District customers through 2022. The
District determined that it should retain its current mix of generating resources as well as continue to evaluate and
implement conservation programs based on the work performed in a 2011 conservation potential assessment and
carry on the evaluation and implementation of strategies for additional power sales contracts and ancillary services
contracts consistent with District financial policies and the hedging strategy.

Cleaner Energy

In 2007, the Legislature passed and the Governor signed HB1303, which would in part require all state
agencies and local government subdivisions of the state to satisfy 100% of their fuel needs for operating publicly-
owned vessels, vehicles and construction equipment with electricity or biofuels by 2015 (subsequently codified as
RCW 43.19.648). The DOC is to adopt rules for implementation of this requirement “to the extent practicable.” If
the DOC finds it not practicable, the requirement can be suspended, delayed or modified until it is deemed
practicable. The DOC issued a pre-proposal statement of inquiry in January 2012 for a possible determination of
practicable goals for use of biofuels and electricity by all state agencies operating vessels, vehicles and construction
equipment. Since January 2012, DOC has issued no other notices or findings on this issue. The District continues
to monitor DOC findings and rulemaking on this issue.

Climate Change

In 2008, the Legislature passed and the Governor signed E2SHB 2815, which requires reductions in
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, initiates GHG reporting requirements, and requires the Department of Ecology
to make recommendations for the development of a market-based cap and trade system. Under the bill, the state
must reduce over-all greenhouse gas emissions to 1990 levels by 2020; to 25% below 1990 levels by 2035; and to
50% below 1990 levels by 2050. In December 2008, the Department of Ecology provided a suite of
recommendations to the Legislature regarding methods to reduce GHG emissions. Among these recommendations
was continued participation as a partner in the Western Climate Initiative (“WCI”), which is finalizing design for a
multisector market-based cap and trade system to reduce GHG emissions. The WCI was operational in some
participating jurisdictions in 2012; however, the Washington State Legislature must pass authorizing legislation
before such a system can be implemented in Washington State. Thus far, such legislation has not passed the
Legislature, particularly as lawmakers focus on economic and budget priorities. The District continues to monitor
WCI activity.

E2SHB 2815 also required the Department of Ecology to adopt rules requiring the reporting of GHG
emissions. The original provisions would have required owners or operators of a fleet of on-road motor vehicles
that emit at least 2,500 metric tons of direct GHG emissions annually in the state, or a source or combination of
sources that emit at least 10,000 metric tons of direct GHG emissions annually in the state, to report their total
annual GHG emissions beginning in 2010 for their 2009 emissions. The District contracted with a consulting firm
to conduct analyses related to the District’s carbon footprint using methods and procedures specified by The Climate
Registry. Results of the inventory for years 2007 and 2008 indicated the District would have been below the
reporting requirements and that no further action was necessary. The requirements of this reporting provision were
subsequently superseded by ESSB 6373, passed by the Legislature and signed by the Governor in 2010, which
aligned the Washington State GHG reporting protocols with federal regulations promulgated by the Environmental
Protection Agency and overrode the reporting requirements of E2SHB 2815. This new approach made it even less
likely that the District would be required to report GHG emissions. The new rule removed the requirement to report
indirect emissions or emissions of a fleet of on-road motor vehicles that emit at least 2,500 metric tons of GHG. The
District continues to monitor state and federal GHG reporting trends.

Finally, legislation enacted in 2009 added a new layer of climate considerations to current law. E2SSB
5560 required the development of an “integrated climate change response strategy” that will enable adaptation to the
impacts of climate change. The DOE released its “Preparing for a Changing Climate” - Washington State's
Integrated Climate Response Strategy in April 2012, which includes seven high priority, overarching response
strategies to help Washington adapt to climate change and in recognition of the state’s vulnerability to climate
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change impacts. This District continues to monitor for any potential legislative proposals that may result from the
recommendations in the report regarding water and fish management.

Washington State Budget

Like many other states, the State of Washington is facing a significant budget deficit for the biennium
ending June 30, 2013. To close the budget gap, the Legislature is considering cutting services and expenditures of
several identified programs. District operations interface contractually with the Washington State Parks and
Recreation Commission (“WSP”), for which additional budget reductions are being considered. Additionally, the
Legislature is considering increasing revenues, including fees for certain government permits and licenses, which
may result in increased costs for permits that the District renews or obtains in the course of business operations, such
as water rights or hydraulic approval permits. The District is currently monitoring the State budget discussions
closely to assess the likelihood and potential impact of possible budget reductions for WSP and fee increases, but
cannot predict whether such measures will be adopted or their exact magnitude. The District is proactively
developing operational contingency plans (short-term and long-term) to address the operation of six District-owned
parks that offer camping services, including three parks that WSP currently operates under contract with the District.

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

In 2009 through 2011, the Distribution Division sold approximately 34% of the power output of the Hydro-
Electric Projects throughout an area coextensive with Chelan County, Washington, located in central Washington
approximately 138 road miles east of Seattle and 165 road miles west of Spokane. Wenatchee, the county seat of
the County, is located on east-west U.S. Highway 2 and within five miles of north-south U.S. Highway 97, and is on
the Columbia River.

Agriculture is the mainstay of Chelan County. Due to the Wenatchee area’s soil and climate conditions, the
area produces substantial crops of apples, pears and cherries. The three-county region of Chelan, Okanogan to the
north and Douglas to the east produces a significant portion of the apple crop of the State.

Although Wenatchee’s economy is based primarily on agriculture, it is supported by the aluminum
industry, with Alcoa being a major employer in the area. See “THE CONSOLIDATED SYSTEM—The Alcoa
Sales Contract” and APPENDIX H—“DESCRIPTION OF THE MAJOR POWER PURCHASERS.” In addition to
Alcoa, local industries include steel and machinery fabricating firms, food processors and garment manufacturing.

Over 3,000 businesses provide goods and services required by a four-county trade area of 240,000 people.
The abundant outdoor recreation opportunities and close proximity of Wenatchee to the urban Puget Sound region
have made Wenatchee a major year-round convention and recreation site within the State. The Greater Wenatchee
Regional Events Center (the Town Toyota Center), a premier multi-purpose sports and entertainment venue, opened
in October 2008. The facility is being financed through a partnership of the Greater Wenatchee Regional Facility
District and the City of Wenatchee.

Wenatchee and East Wenatchee residents enjoy a wide range of educational, cultural and civic institutions.
The Wenatchee and Eastmont school districts together provide three high schools, a junior high school, five middle
schools and 12 elementary schools to the community’s young people. Also available are parochial school systems
and the campus facilities of Wenatchee Valley College, an 8,000-student (including part-time students) two-year
institution. Central Washington University in Ellensburg and Washington State University in Pullman maintain
extension centers for students seeking four-year degrees as well as master’s certificate programs.

Tables 21 through 26 on the following pages present data regarding population, employment, income, retail
sales, major employers and building permit activity.
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Table 21

Population”

Year Wenatchee
2008 30,810
2009 30,960
2010 31,120
20110 32,090
20120 32,400

M

available after the estimate date.

Chelan
County

72,100
72,600
73,300
72,700
73,200

Source: Washington Office of Financial Management.

Table 22
Average Annual Employment

)

State of
Washington

6,608,245
6,672,159
6,724,540
6,767,900
6,817,770

Figures are estimates. Estimates are not revised based on information that becomes

Chelan County 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Total Civilian Resident Labor Force 40,710 41,810 41,060 40,520 40,990
Employment 38,430 38,450 37,380 37,100 37,820
Unemployment 2,280 3,360 3,670 3,420 3,170
Unemployment Rate 5.6% 8.0% 9.0% 8.4% 7.7%
State of Washington

Unemployment Rate 5.4% 9.4% 9.9% 9.2% 8.2%

M Annual averages, not seasonally adjusted.

Source: Washington State Employment Security Department.

Table 23
Per Capita Personal Income

Year Chelan County
2006 $31,963
2007 34,217
2008 38,279
2009 36,356
2010 36,250
2011 37,619

Source: U.S. Census Bureau.
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$39,570
42,192
44,106
41,504
42,024
43,878



Table 24
Chelan County
Taxable Retail Sales

2008 2009 2010 011 2012

$1,532,758,491  $1,300,189,738  $1,319,346,941  $1,308,164,727  $974,631,770

(1) Data as of the third quarter of 2012. Through the third quarter of 2011 taxable retail sales were
$970,538,506.
Source: Washington State Department of Revenue.

Table 25
Chelan County and Douglas County
Major Employers
No. of
Employer Project or Service Employees
Stemilt Growers, LLC Agriculture 3,024
Wenatchee Valley Medical Center Healthcare 1,697
Central Washington Hospital Healthcare 1,456
Wenatchee School District Education 1,027
McDougall & Sons, Inc. Agriculture 900
The District Utilities 640
Eastmont School District Education 610
Crunch Pak, LLC Processing 500
Custom Apple Packers Agriculture 497
Alcoa Inc. Manufacturing 465
County of Chelan Government 446
Blue Star Growers Agriculture 405
Northern Fruit Co. Inc. Agriculture 350
Wenatchee Valley College Education 348
Campbell’s Lodge, Inc. Resort 300
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. — Wenatchee Retail 285
Blue Bird, Inc. Agriculture 280
C & O Nursery Agriculture 277
Washington State Department of Transportation Transportation 259
Mission Ridge Ski Area Recreation & Fitness 237
Lake Chelan Community Hospital Healthcare 228
Pacific Aerospace & Electronics Manufacturing 219
Cashmere Valley Bank Finance 213
Columbia Valley Community Health Healthcare 203
Peshastin Hi-Up Agriculture 200

" As stated in “THE DISTRICT—Employees,” as of September 30, 2012 the total number of District employees was 710.
Source: Port of Chelan County, December 201 1.
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Table 26
Chelan County
Building Permits

Permits Issued Valuation
2007 950 $69,632,903
2008 805 67,130,520
2009 566 47,033,822
2010 569 30,441,094
2011 456 59,095,239
2012 497 36,168,435

D Through November 2012.
Source: Port of Chelan County and Chelan County Building, Fire Safety and
Planning, Building Division.

TAX MATTERS

On June 3, 2009, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, San Francisco, California, Bond Counsel, delivered
its opinion that, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, and assuming,
among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the
2008B Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) and Title XIII of the Tax Reform Act of 1986. Bond Counsel further opined
that interest on the 2008B Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual and
corporate alternative minimum taxes, nor is it included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate
alternative minimum taxable income. Bond Counsel expressed no opinion regarding any other tax consequences
related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the 2008B Bonds. A complete
copy of the opinion of Bond Counsel concerning the 2008B Bonds rendered on June 9, 2009 (herein referred to as
the “Original Bond Counsel Opinion”) is set forth as Appendix E attached hereto.

In connection with the execution and delivery of the 2008B Credit Facility, Bond Counsel will deliver its
opinion to the effect that the execution and delivery of the 2008B Credit Facility will not adversely affect the
exclusion of interest on the 2008B Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes (the “Credit Facility
Opinion”). Bond Counsel’s Credit Facility Opinion is expressly limited to such matters. Bond Counsel has not
reviewed, and has not been requested to review, any events other than those described above that have occurred
since issuance of the 2008B Bonds and expresses no opinion with respect thereto. A complete copy of the proposed
form of Credit Facility Opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix F hereto.

The Original Bond Counsel Opinion has not been updated as of the date of this Remarketing Memorandum,
and Bond Counsel is not rendering any opinion on the current status for tax purposes of the 2008B Bonds.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, investors should be aware of the following information.

Title XIIT of the Tax Reform Act of 1986 and Section 103 of the Code imposes various restrictions,
conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest
on obligations such as the 2008B Bonds. The District has made certain representations and covenanted to comply
with certain restrictions, conditions and requirements designed to ensure that interest on the 2008B Bonds will not
be included in federal gross income. Inaccuracy of these representations or failure to comply with these covenants
may result in interest on the 2008B Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly
from the date of original issuance of the 2008B Bonds. The Original Bond Counsel Opinion assumed, and the Credit
Facility Opinion assumes, the accuracy of these representations and compliance with these covenants. Other than
delivery of the 2008B Credit Facility described herein, Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform
any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) or any other matters
coming to the attention of Bond Counsel after the date of original issuance of the 2008B Bonds may adversely affect
the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the 2008B Bonds. Accordingly, neither the Original Bond Counsel
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Opinion nor the Credit Facility Opinion is intended to be relied upon in connection with any such other actions,
events or matters, nor may any opinion be relied upon in connection with any such other actions, events or matters.

Although the Original Bond Counsel Opinion stated that interest on the 2008B Bonds is excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest
on, the 2008B Bonds may otherwise affect a holder’s federal, state or local tax liability. The nature and extent of
these other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status of the holder or the holder’s other items of
income or deduction. Bond Counsel has expressed and will express no opinion regarding any such other tax
consequences.

The Original Bond Counsel Opinion was based upon then-existing laws, regulations, rulings and court
decisions. Events occurring after the delivery of the Original Bond Counsel Opinion, including subsequently
enacted legislation, legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or of Title XIII of the Tax
Reform Act of 1986, or court decisions may cause interest on the 2008B Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly,
to federal income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise prevent holders
of 2008B Bonds from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. The introduction or
enactment of any such legislative proposals, clarification of the Code or of the Title XIII of the Tax Reform Act of
1986, or court decisions may also affect the market price for, or marketability of, the 2008B Bonds. Prospective
purchasers of the 2008B Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding any past, pending or proposed
federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, and regarding the impact of future legislation, regulations or
litigation, as to which Bond Counsel has expressed and will express no opinion.

The Credit Facility Opinion will be based on current legal authority, will cover certain matters not directly
addressed by such authorities, and will represent Bond Counsel’s judgment as to the proper treatment of the 2008B
Bonds for federal income tax purposes. The Original Bond Counsel Opinion was based on legal authority as of June
3, 2009, covered certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities and represented Bond Counsel’s
judgment as to the proper treatment of the 2008B Bonds for federal income tax purposes. Neither the Original Bond
Counsel Opinion nor the Credit Facility Opinion is or will be binding on the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or the
courts. Furthermore, Bond Counsel cannot give and has not given any opinion or assurance about the activities of
the District after the date on which the Original Bond Counsel Opinion was delivered or after the date on which the
Credit Facility Opinion will be delivered, nor has Bond Counsel given any opinion or assurance about the effect of
changes in the Code, Title XIII of the Tax Reform Act of 1986, the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof
or the enforcement thereof by the IRS after the date on which the Original Bond Counsel Opinion was delivered or
after the date on which the Credit Facility Opinion will be delivered. The District has covenanted, however, to
comply with the requirements of Title XIII of the Tax Reform Act and the Code.

Bond Counsel’s original engagement with respect to the 2008B Bonds ended with the issuance of the
2008B Bonds on June 3, 2009. Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the delivery of the 2008B Credit
Facility will end on the delivery of the 2008B Credit Facility. Unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not
obligated to defend the District or the holders of Bonds regarding the tax-exempt status of interest on the 2008B
Bonds in the event of an audit examination by the IRS. Under current procedures, parties other than the District and
their appointed counsel, including the holders of Bonds, would have little, if any, right to participate in the audit
examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with an audit examination of tax-
exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions, with which the District legitimately
disagrees, may not be practicable. Any action of the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the 2008B Bonds
for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues, may affect the
market price for, or the marketability of, the 2008B Bonds, and may cause the District or the holders of Bonds to
incur significant expense.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Pursuant to a certificate to be executed by the District prior to the remarketing of the 2008B Bonds (a
“Continuing Disclosure Certificate”), the District will covenant for the benefit of the Owners and the “Beneficial
Owners” (as defined in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate) of the 2008B Bonds to provide certain financial
information and operating data relating to the District by not later than six months after the end of each of the
District’s fiscal years (presently, December 31), commencing with the report for the fiscal year ended December 31,
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2013 (the “Annual Report”), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events with respect to
the 2008B Bonds. The Annual Report will be filed by or on behalf of the District with the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board. The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report and the notices of
enumerated events are set forth in the proposed form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, which is included in
its entirety in APPENDIX K. The District’s covenant will be made in order to assist the Underwriters in complying
with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12. The District has complied in all material aspects with all
prior written undertakings under the Rule.

APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Certain legal matters relating to the remarketing of the 2008B Bonds will be passed upon by Orrick,
Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Seattle, Washington, Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel to the District. The
proposed form of the Credit Facility Opinion of Bond Counsel is attached hereto as APPENDIX F. Bond Counsel
undertakes no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of this Remarketing Memorandum. Certain
legal matters will be passed on for the Remarketing Agent by its counsel, Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, New
York, New York.

LIMITATIONS ON REMEDIES

The ability of the District to comply with its covenants under the Resolution and to generate Revenues
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 2008B Bonds may be adversely affected by actions and events
outside the control of the District, including without limitation by actions taken (or not taken) by voters or
ratepayers. Furthermore, any remedies available to the owners of the 2008B Bonds upon the occurrence of an event
of default under the Resolution are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are in turn often subject
to discretion and delay and could be both expensive and time-consuming to obtain.

In addition to the limitations on remedies contained in the Resolution, the rights and obligations under the
Bonds and the Resolution may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent
conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights, to the application of equitable
principles, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases, and to limitations on legal remedies against
public utility districts in the State. In the event the District fails to comply with its covenants under the Resolution
or to pay principal or Purchase Price of or interest on the 2008B Bonds, there can be no assurance that available
remedies will be adequate to fully protect the interests of the owners of the 2008B Bonds.

Bankruptcy Considerations

A municipality such as the District must be specifically authorized under state law in order to seek relief
under Chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”). A creditor, however, cannot bring an
involuntarily bankruptcy proceeding against a municipality, including the District. The federal bankruptcy courts
have broad discretionary powers under the Bankruptcy Code. The District is authorized under Washington law to
file for bankruptcy protection under the Bankruptcy Code. Should the District become a debtor in a bankruptcy
proceeding, the owners of the 2008B Bonds would continue to have a lien on Net Revenues after the
commencement of the bankruptcy case so long as the Net Revenues constitute “special revenues” within the
meaning of the Bankruptcy Code. “Special revenues” are defined under the Bankruptcy Code to include, among
other things, receipts by local governments from the ownership, operation or disposition of projects or systems that
are primarily used to provide utility services. While the District believes that Net Revenues constitute “special
revenues,” no assurance can be given that a court would not determine otherwise. If Net Revenues do not constitute
“special revenues,” there could be delays or reductions in payments by the District with respect to the 2008B Bonds.

INITIATIVE AND REFERENDUM
Under the State Constitution, the voters of the State have the ability to initiate legislation and require a
public vote on legislation passed by the State Legislature through the powers of initiative and referendum,

respectively. Neither power may be used to amend the State Constitution. Initiatives and referenda are submitted to
the voters upon certification of a petition signed by at least 8.0% (initiative) and 4.0% (referenda) of the number of

100



voters registered and voting for the office of Governor at the preceding regular gubernatorial election. Any law
approved in this manner by a majority of the voters may not be amended or repealed by the Legislature within a
period of two years following enactment, except by a vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house of
the Legislature. After two years, the law is subject to amendment or repeal by the Legislature in the same manner as
other laws.

It is possible that future initiatives could be approved by the voters from time to time, including without
limitation initiatives that revise or restrict the powers of the District to increase rates and charges. The District is
unable to predict whether any such initiatives might be submitted to or approved by the voters, the nature of such
initiatives, or their potential impact on the District.

LITIGATION

The District is not aware of any litigation pending or threatened in any court (either state or federal) to
restrain or enjoin the remarketing of the 2008 B Bonds, or questioning the creation, organization or existence of the
District or the title to office of the members of the Commission or officers of the District or the proceedings for the
issuance of the 2008B Bonds, or in any manner questioning the power and authority of the District to impose,
prescribe or collect rates and charges for the services of the Consolidated System. The District is a party to other
lawsuits arising out of its normal course of business, but the District does not believe that any of such lawsuits will
have a material adverse effect upon the District or its ability to pay the 2008B Bonds.

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

The District’s financial statements as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and for the two years
then ended, included as Appendix A in this Remarketing Memorandum, have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, as stated in their report appearing herein.

The preliminary financial data included in this Remarketing Memorandum has been prepared by, and is the
responsibility of, the District’s management. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has not audited or compiled the
accompanying preliminary financial data. Accordingly, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP does not express an opinion
or any other form of assurance with respect thereto.

RATINGS

Moody’s, S&P and Fitch are expected to assign their ratings of “VMIG 1,” “A-1” and “F1,” respectively, to
the 2008 B Bonds, based upon the 2008B Credit Facility. Moody’s, S&P and Fitch have assigned underlying ratings
of “Aa3,” “AA” and “AA+,” respectively, to the 2008B Bonds. Such ratings reflect only the views of the rating
agencies, and any explanation of the significance of each such rating should be obtained from the rating agency
furnishing the same. Such ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the 2008B Bonds. There is no
assurance that any such ratings will be retained for any given period of time or that the same will not be revised
downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency furnishing the same, if, in its judgment, circumstances so
warrant. The District and the Remarketing Agent undertake no responsibility to oppose any such revision or
withdrawal. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of a rating may have an adverse effect on the market price
of the 2008B Bonds.

REMARKETING

Barclays Capital Inc. (the “Barclays™) has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the 2008B
Bonds from the District at a purchase price of $65,250,000, which is equal to the aggregate principal amount of the
2008B Bonds. The District has agreed to pay Barclays an underwriting fee in the amount of $114,592 in connection
with the purchase and remarketing of the 2008B Bonds on the Mandatory Tender Date.

Barclays’s obligation to purchase the 2008B Bonds on the Mandatory Tender Date is subject to certain

conditions precedent, and Barclays will be obligated to purchase all the 2008B Bonds, if any such 2008B Bonds are
purchased.
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FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Public Financial Management, Inc. has acted as financial advisor to the District in connection with the
remarketing of the 2008B Bonds.

MISCELLANEOUS

The references, excerpts and summaries contained herein and in the appendices hereto of the Enabling Act,
the Senior Consolidated System Resolution, the Master Resolution and the 2008B Supplemental Resolution and
certain other statutes, licenses, permits, resolutions, agreements and contracts are brief outlines of certain provisions
thereof. Such outlines do not purport to be complete statements of the provisions of such documents and reference
should be made to such documents for full and complete statements thereof. Copies of such documents are available
for inspection at the general office of the District.

Neither this Remarketing Memorandum nor any advertisement of the 2008B Bonds is to be construed as a
contract with the owners of the 2008B Bonds. Any statements made in this Remarketing Memorandum involving
matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not expressly so identified, are intended merely as such and not as
representations of fact.

The execution and delivery of this Remarketing Memorandum has been duly authorized by the District.
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1
OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON

/s/ Carnan Bergren
President, Board of Commissioners
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APPENDIX A—AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Commissioners of Public Utility District No.1 of Chelan County, Washington

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of revenue, expenses and
changes in net assets and statements of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington (the "District") at December 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010, and its changes in financial position and its cash flows for the years then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The management's discussion and analysis for the year ended December 31, 2011 on pages 13 through 18
and the Schedule of Funding Progress for Postretirement Health Benefits Program on page 47 are not
required parts of the financial statements but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion
on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the District's financial statements taken
as a whole. The Combining Schedules of Assets and Liabilities and Net Assets, of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets, and of Cash Flows, as well as Note 11: Supplemental Disclosure of
Telecommunication Services, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the financial statements taken as a whole.

April 20, 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 1300 SW Fifth Ave, Suite 3100, Portland, OR 97201
T: (971) 544 4000, F: (971) 544 4100, www.pwc.com/us
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B MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31, 2011 and 2010

The following discussion provides an overview and analysis of the
financial activities of Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County
(the District) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.
This discussion and analysis is designed to be used in conjunction
with the financial statements, notes and other supplementary
information, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e locking in predictable revenue by selling “slices” of the future
output of Rock Island and Rocky Reach dams in up to five-year
increments is proving to be successful in helping the District
meet financial goals called for in its Strategic Plan. The power
is auctioned under a new power sales strategy approved
by the Board of Commissioners that allows the District to sell
slices of clean, renewable hydropower output in advance
in up to five-year blocks. A slice means that purchasers are
not guaranteed a specific number of megawatts, but, in
exchange for fixed payments to the District, they will receive
a percentage under whatever generating conditions exist at
the time. The District will still have adequate energy supplies
to meet local load during this period, and, for most weather
and water supply conditions, the District expects to have
additional power to sell on the surplus market beyond what
was auctioned. This should benefit customers by providing
more rate stability and more certainty for District programs.

In March 2011, the District locked in additional predictable
revenue of $86.4 million from November 2011 through

the end of 2015, in exchange for a share of future power
produced by Rock Island and Rocky Reach dams that is
surplus to local needs. Fixed monthly payments began as soon
as the power was delivered beginning in November 2011.
This sale was the third of its kind. The previous two auctions
raised $129.0 million for output from December 2010 through
2014.

e In May 2011, the District successfully marketed $179.7
million in Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, Refunding
Series 2011AB (AMT). The 2011AB bonds, issued as fixed-
rate bonds, refunded $200.8 million of existing debt at
lower interest rates. In conjunction with the refinancing, a
forward starting swap negotiated in 2006 scheduled to go
live June 1, 2011, was terminated. Net Present Value (NPV)
savings associated with the refinancing were used to offset
the termination fee. Factoring in the termination fee, the NPV
savings on the refinancing was $36.4 million.

e In October 2011, the District successfully marketed $164.4
million in Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, Refunding
Series 2011C. The 2011C bonds were issued as fixed-rate,
taxable bonds. The 2011C bonds refunded $164.4 million of
existing debt at lower interest rates. The District was also able
to secure more favorable repayment terms, shortening the
average life of the debt. The NPV savings associated with the
refinancing was $31.4 million.

e As part of refinancing a portion of existing PUD bonds for
better terms, three bond rating agencies — Standard and
Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch Ratings and Moody’s Investor
Service — affirmed the District’s strong overall bond ratings.
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Standard and Poor’s affirmed the District's previous bond
rating of AA with a stable outlook, while Fitch maintained its
AA+ rating but changed the outlook to negative. Moody’s
affirmed the Aa2 bond rating with a negative outlook. All
three firms mentioned the District’s new financial principles as
positive but noted the need to see continued positive results in
order to maintain the strong ratings.

In November 2011, new power sales contracts with Puget
Sound Energy (PSE) and Alcoa for the output of power from
Rocky Reach Dam went into effect. The new contracts benefit
all parties and extend power sales to PSE and Alcoa through
2031 and 2028, respectively. Under the new contracts, PSE
receives 25 percent of the output from Rocky Reach and
Alcoa receives energy equivalent to 27.5 percent of the
output from Rocky Reach in exchange for PSE and Alcoa
paying 25 percent and 27.5 percent, respectively, of costs
associated with the project, including capital, operation and
maintenance and debt service costs. Once the new power
sales contracts for the output of power from Rock Island Dam
become effective on July 1, 2012, PSE and Alcoa will receive
25 percent and energy equivalent to 26 percent, respectively,
of the combined output of the Rocky Reach and Rock Island
dams. The contracts allow the District to pay down debt and
to pay for some future capital improvements at the hydro
projects without borrowing. In addition, PSE made an $89.0
million payment and Alcoa made a $22.9 million payment
to the District in 2006 and 2008, respectively. The payments
represented deferred wholesale power sales revenue, which
will be recognized as earnings over the life of the new power
sales contracts.

In 2011, commissioners approved a combination of steps to
help bring District debt balances down by over $300 million
through 2015. The steps included refinancing a portion of
existing District bond issues for better terms and terminating
some interest rate swaps. The goals of the financing plan were
to maintain the District’s strong bond ratings and financial
position, to reduce the complexities of the District’s financial
portfolio and meet Financial Policy targets established in

the latest Strategic Plan. The targets, incorporating what

the District heard from customers, are intended to: provide

a sufficient rate of return for the District so assets can be
replaced over time and there will be sufficient income to meet
District obligations, even under unusual (low water/low price)
conditions; maintain an adequate debt-service coverage

ratio to demonstrate that the District clearly has the resources
to meet debt obligations, even under unusual conditions;
gradually reduce the debt ratio (percentage of utility assets
financed by debt) from approximately 75 percent to below 60
percent by 2015; and provide financial liquidity (cash reserves
and other sources) to cover risks and provide additional
financial stability.

The District met an important milestone in its fish protection
efforts at Rock Island Dam. Studies over the last three years
show that spilling 10 percent of the river flow for spring fish
migration downstream is as effective at meeting survival
targets as spilling 20 percent. Those results have earned
the District approval from agencies and tribes to continue
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operating the dam for the next 10 years in much the same
way it is operated today. That will add more certainty to
District budgeting and help stabilize rates for customer-owners.
Fewer fish-survival studies will be needed. The ability to refine
the District's approach to fish protection at Rock Island Dam is
one of the innovative aspects of the Habitat Conservation Plan
(HCP) that is part of the District's federal license to operate
both Rocky Reach and Rock Island Dams.

e The District was also recognized by fisheries agencies and
participating tribes as achieving the survival standard for
endangered spring Chinook salmon as part of the District's
HCP for Rocky Reach Dam. The achievement means the
District has now reached the HCP survival standard for all
spring migrating salmon and steelhead at both Rocky Reach
and Rock Island Dams. Reaching the goals for spring migrants
means the District can maintain its existing hydro project
operations and fish protection measures for the next 10
years when another check-in on survival will take place. By
combining survival methods with habitat restoration work and
hatchery programs, the District is on track for achieving its
HCP goal of no net impact on salmon and steelhead by 2013.
This is a positive reflection of the HCP and its outcome-based
design. The HCP lets the District choose various tools and
methods to use as long as the fish survival goals are achieved.

e The temporary electric rate surcharge of 9-percent that
had been in place since May 2009, after record-low river
flows, expired at the end of December 2011. Even with the
temporary surcharge, average residential rates for District
power were approximately 3.4 cents per kilowatt hour, among
the lowest rates in the nation. The Pacific Northwest average
rate was 8.7 cents per kwh, and the national average was
12.1 cents per kwh. In October 2011, the commissioners
approved a new residential flat rate, effective January 2012.
In addition to a basic charge, residential customers will
now be charged a flat 2.7 cents per kilowatt-hour for all the
energy they use. The move to a flat rate will make it easier
for customers to understand their bill and calculate the impact
of adding new appliances or reducing energy use. The new
electrical rates will result in 2.5 percent more retail electric
revenue for the District, but with the end of the 9-percent
surcharge, customers should see an overall average decrease
of 6.5 percent in bills. The average residential rate in 2012 is
expected to be approximately 3.2 cents per kilowatt hour, still
among the lowest in the nation.

Average Residential Rates (cents/kWh)
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o The District’s conservation programs for residential,
commercial and industrial customers in 2011 and 2010 saved

I MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - cont.

enough electricity to power approximately 1,700 homes.
The expected savings of 3.2 to 3.6 average megawatts
(aMW) will exceed the target of 3.1 aMW, which was set
under the requirements of Washington State Initiative 937,
the Energy Independence Act. The savings of 1.72 aMW for
2010 alone is the largest amount of conservation achieved
for any year in District history. One aMW serves about 500
Northwest homes. State law requires utilities with 25,000 or
more customers to acquire all cost-effective conservation. The
District’s philosophy is that conservation is an energy resource,
which will help meet future demand. The District must reset
conservation fargets every two years, as well as its 10-year
plan for achieving those savings.

o Faced with higher costs and a longer construction schedule
than originally estimated, commissioners stood by the District’s
Strategic Plan and decided in April 2011 to withdraw from
participating in a federal grant that was designed to extend
the District's fiber-optic network. Commissioners also rescinded
a 2-percent electric rate increase approved in 2010 to cover
the District's share of matching dollars for the grant. Money
received since December 2010 was used to cover costs for
bidding contracts and materials, design and other work
on the project. The original grant would have provided the
District $25 million to extend fiber over three years to areas of
Chelan County not yet served by any high-speed broadband.
Strategic planning is currently under way to determine a long-
term plan for the District’s fiber system, with the goal of putting
the system on sound financial footing for the future.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This section of the Annual Report consists of the Independent
Auditors’ Report, Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A),
Basic Financial Statements with accompanying notes, and
Supplementary Information. The financial statements of the District
are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
District's finances similar to a private-sector business. They are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Under this basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they
are earned and expenses are recognized in the period in which
they are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
These statements offer short- and long-term financial information
about District activities.

The Balance Sheets present information on all of the District's
assets and liabilities and provide information about the nature and
amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to
creditors (liabilities).

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
provide the operating results broken info categories of operating
revenues and expenses, non-operating revenues and expenses, as
well as capital contributions.

The Statements of Cash Flows provide relevant information about
the District's cash receipts and cash payments from operations
as well as funds provided by and used in capital and related
financing and investment activities.

Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County




The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

One of the most important questions asked about the District's
finances is, “Is the District, as a whole, better off or worse off

as a result of the year’s activities2” The Balance Sheets and the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
report information about the District’s activities in a way that helps
answer this question. These two statements report the net assets of
the District and the changes in them. The District's Net Assets — the
differences between assets and liabilities — is one way to measure
financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in the District's net assets are one indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, other non-
financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, customer
growth and legislative mandates should also be considered.

In 2011, the overall financial position of the District improved. The
District’s total net assets increased by $16.7 million. The increase

CONDENSED COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(amounts in thousands)

is due primarily to improved snow pack and stream flows, which
resulted in a significant increase in generation at the District’s
hydro projects compared to 2010, reducing the need for purchases
of energy and resulting in increased revenues as energy in excess
of the District's load requirements was sold in the wholesale
market. The increase in sales volume was partially offset by lower
average wholesale power prices compared to the prior year.
Lower market prices were somewhat buffered by the sale of slices
of the District’s hydro production at fixed prices. Continued cost
containment efforts by the District contributed to the improvement in
earnings, as well.

Despite cost-cutting efforts in 2010, the District experienced a $13
million decrease in net assets. This was the second year in a row of
keeping the District in preservation mode and restricting spending.
Contributing to the loss were reduced net wholesale power
revenues due primarily to lower-than-normal runoff in the spring of
2010 and low wholesale power prices. Spring and early summer
rains helped the situation somewhat, but not enough.

The following analysis provides a three-year comparison of key
financial information:

Increase
(Decrease)
2011 2010 2009* 2011 - 2010
Current assets $ 196,741 $ 194,736 $ 201,680 $ 2,005
Net utility plant 1,090,933 1,095,308 1,096,518 (4,375)
Other non-current assets 286,970 316,382 315,828 (29,412)
Total assets 1,574,644 1,606,426 1,614,026 (31,782)
Current liabilities 99978 84,703 76,579 15,275
Long-term debt 912,037 992,219 1,010,158 (80,182)
Other liabilities 174,561 158,164 142,894 16,397
Total liabilities 1,186,576 1,235,086 1,229,631 (48,510)
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 220,126 208,355 212,686 1,771
Restricted 110,692 106,766 107,501 3,926
Unrestricted 57,250 56,219 64,208 1,031
Total net assets $ 388,068 $ 371,340 $ 384,395 $ 16,728

* The District's 2009 Balance Sheet was restated for the impacts of the required retroactive implementation of GASB Statement No.
53 (SGAS 53), “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments,” which became effective for the District in 2010.
Implementation of the statement had no impact on the District’s operating results or net cash flows for any year presented.
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December 31, 2011 and 2010

I MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - cont.

Increase
(Decrease)
201 2010 2009 2011 - 2010
Operating revenues $ 238,543 $ 216,355 $ 202,760 $ 22,188
Less
Operating expenses 177,092 183,487 176,053 (6,395)
Other income and expenses 46,608 49,379 44,712 2,771
Net income (loss) before capital contributions 14,843 (16,511) (18,005) 31,354
Capital contributions 1,885 3,456 2,886 (1,571)
Change in net assets 16,728 (13,055) (15,119) 29,783
Total net assets — beginning of year 371,340 384,395 399,514 (13,055)
Total net assets — end of year $ 388,068 $ 371,340 $ 384,395 $ 16,728
ASSETS as a result of the termination of the 2008B and 2011 swaps in

Current assets increased by $2.0 million in 2011, primarily

due to an increase in accounts receivable as a result of the
implementation of the new power sales contracts and the current
portion of deferred regulatory charges which will be amortized
in 2012. These increases were offset by a net decrease in the
District's cash and investment balances primarily as a result of
payments made related to the termination of interest rate swap
agreements with three counterparties.

On the other hand, current assets decreased $6.9 million in

2010, primarily due to negative operating results and a shift in
investment strategy given market conditions and projected liquidity
requirements resulting in increased long-term investments.

As of December 31, 2011, the District had approximately $1.1
billion invested in a variety of capital assets (see Note 3). Net
utility plant decreased $4.4 million in 2011, reflecting additional
investments in utility plant assets, including significant additions
related to the hydro fisheries and hatchery projects, transmission
corridor upgrades and hydro modernization projects at Rock
Island, which were more than offset by the cumulative effect of

12 months’ worth of depreciation. As of December 31, 2010, the
District had approximately $1.1 billion invested in a variety of
capital assets (see Note 3). Net utility plant decreased $1.2 million
in 2010, reflecting additional investments in utility plant assets,
including significant additions related to the hydro modernization
projects at Rock Island and Lake Chelan, substation improvements
and a new water reservoir, which were more than offset by the
annual depreciation.

Other non-current assets decreased $29.4 million in 2011
primarily as a result of a net decrease in restricted assets and
long-term investments offset somewhat by an increase in deferred
regulatory charges. Restricted assets and long-term investments
decreased primarily as a result of a reduction in balances used
to fund capital expenditures combined with the early retirement
of existing debt. Deferred regulatory charges increased primarily

2011. The 2008B and 2011 swaps were terminated in March

and May 2011, respectively, and the termination payments

were recognized as regulatory assets. Other non-current assets
increased slightly in 2010 primarily as a result of a net increase in
long-term investments combined with changes in fair market value
of the District's interest rate swaps. These increases were offset

by lower restricted construction funds as balances were spent on
capital projects, including significant additions related to the hydro
modernization projects at Rock Island and Lake Chelan as well as
substation improvements and a new water reservoir.

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities increased $15.3 million in 2011, primarily as a
result of increases in the current portions of long-term obligations
and deferred wholesale power sales, offset somewhat by a
reduction in accrued interest. The increase in current portion of
long-term obligations is due primarily to refunding existing debt
as the average life of the debt was shortened in order to secure
more favorable repayment terms. With the implementation of the
new power sales contracts, unearned revenue previously received
from the power purchasers will now be recognized over the life
of the contracts. The change in current portion represents a full
year’s unearned revenue to be recognized in 2012. The decrease
in accrued interest is due primarily to refunding of existing debt at
lower interest rates combined with the retirement of existing debt.
Balances on which interest is calculated are down, and interest
rates are down, as well.

Current liabilities increased $8.1 million in 2010, primarily as a
result of an increase in the current portion of long-term obligations
combined with an increase in warrants and accounts payable. The
increase in current portion of long-term obligations is due to the
expiration of the prepaid escrow for the 2009 and 2010 senior
lien debt service. In 2009, the District set aside funds in an escrow
account to cover obligated senior Chelan Hydro Consolidated
System debt-service payments related to the non-hydro systems for
2009 and 2010. As of December 31, 2009, any senior lien debt

Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County



payments due within 12 months were to be paid out of the funded
escrow account. As of December 31, 2010, any scheduled senior
lien debt service payments are reflected in the current portion

of long-term debt. Warrants and accounts payable increased
primarily as the result of a large accrual for the final payment on
the hydro modernization project at Lake Chelan combined with the
reclassification of the Rocky Reach working capital obligation from
long-term to short-term as the contract end date was October 31,
2011.

During 2011, the District successfully marketed $344.1 million in
Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, refunding existing debt at
lower interest rates and securing more favorable repayment terms,
shortening the average life of the debt. In addition to the refunding,
the District was able to make advance repayment of several bond
issues during 2011, contributing to the $80.2 million decrease in
the long-term debt balance compared to the prior year.

LONG-TERM DEBT*
(amounts in thousands)

$1,100,000

$1,010,158

$992,219
1,000,000

$912,037

900,000

800,000 |-
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*Net of premiums, discounts and deferred refunding losses
The District did not refinance or issue additional bonds in 2010.

For more information regarding the long-term debt activity see
Note 6.

Other liabilities increased $16.4 million in 2011 primarily as

a result of the implementation of the new long-term power

sales contracts and the accrual of various initial charges which
are deferred and will be recognized in wholesale revenue
systematically over the periods in which the charges are earned.
This was offset somewhat by a decrease in derivative instrument
liability as a result of the termination of the 2008B and 2011
swaps combined with changes in the fair market value on the
District's remaining interest rate swaps. Other liabilities increased
$15.3 million in 2010 as a result of changes in the fair market
value of the District's interest rate swaps.

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, increased $11.8
million in 2011, and decreased $4.3 million in 2010. The increase
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in 2011 reflects a reduction in debt primarily as a result of early
retirements and downsizing offset somewhat by lower restricted
construction funds as compared to the prior year. The decrease

in 2010 reflects somewhat reduced growth in net utility plant
combined with no additional debt proceeds as compared to

the prior year. Restricted net assets represent resources that are
subject to external restrictions, such as bond covenants or third-
party contractual agreements. Restricted net assets increased $3.9
million in 2011 due to funds that are restricted by the new Rocky
Reach power sales agreement that became effective November 1,
2011, and decreased $700,000 in 2010. Unrestricted net assets
are not restricted for the purpose of debt covenants or other legal
requirements and can be used to finance the day-to-day operations
of the District. In 2011 and 2010, unrestricted net assets increased
approximately $1.0 million and decreased approximately $8.0
million, respectively, due primarily to increased earnings in 2011
and decreased earnings in 2010.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

In 2011, retail energy sales increased $2.2 million compared to
2010 as a result of an increase to more “normal” usage levels
during the winter. Retail sales in 2010 were lower than average
due to mild weather conditions. Wholesale power sales increased
$19.3 million in 2011 compared to 2010. Significantly increased
generation at the District's hydros combined with retaining a
higher percentage of generation at Rocky Reach under the new
power sales contracts resulted in a higher volume of surplus
energy available for sale into the wholesale market. The increase
in volume was partially offset by lower average market prices.
Purchased power costs decreased $8.5 million in 2011 compared
to 2010, primarily corresponding to a combination of reduced
purchase volume and lower average purchase prices. Operating
expenses came in $6.4 million lower in 2011 than in 2010,
primarily as a result of decreased purchased power costs and cost
containment efforts. Other expenses, which include net interest
expense and income, decreased $2.8 million primarily as a result
of decreased interest on long-term debt due to a combination

of reduced debt balances as a result of some early retirements
during 2011 and the issuance of refunding bonds at lower interest
rates. The decrease in interest expense was offset somewhat by
amortization of swap termination payments made in 2011 and
losses on early retirements of debt. Capital contributions decreased
$1.6 million compared to 2010 due primarily to a couple of

large projects recognized in the prior year. There were no similar
projects in 2011. Net income before capital contributions improved
by $29.8 million compared to 2010 due primarily to increased
operating revenues combined with decreased purchased power
costs as a result of increased generation and the implementation of
the new power sales contracts.

In 2010, retail energy sales decreased $1.5 million compared to
2009 as a result of less usage during the mild winter weather.
Wholesale power sales increased $15.4 million in 2010 compared
to 2009 driven by a combination of higher average market prices
than in 2009 and the resale of energy bought back for credit

risk mitigation purposes. Purchased power costs increased $4.2
million in 2010 compared to 2009, primarily corresponding to the
same higher average market prices and the buyback of power
previously sold in order to mitigate credit risk with a particular
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counterparty. Operating expenses came in $7.4 million higher in
2010 than in 2009 despite significant cost-cutting measures taken
by the District, primarily as a result of increased purchased power
costs and depreciation. Other expenses, which include net interest
expense and income, increased in 2010 by $4.7 million due
primarily to reduced investment earnings as a result of declining
market investment yields. Some individual investments which were
earning higher investment yields matured during the year and were
reinvested at much lower rates. Balances available for investments
also declined somewhat during 2010 as a result of capital
spending. Capital contributions increased $570,000 compared to
2009 as a result of a couple of large projects which were partially
offset by a reduction in line extension activity as a result of slower
growth due to the current economic conditions. Net loss before
capital contributions improved by $1.5 million compared to 2009
due primarily to continued cost-cutting efforts.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT MATTERS

We are proud of the District's many accomplishments in 2011. This
was the third year of keeping the District in preservation mode
and restricting spending. By remaining disciplined in its financial
policies and capitalizing on a good water year, the District was
able to exceed budgeted expectations in 2011 by $14.0 million.
Combined improvement in net assets for the District was $16.7
million, compared to a budgeted amount of $2.7 million.

The focus for 2011 was on keeping the District strong and reliable.
In line with its Strategic Plan, which incorporates what the District
has heard from customers regarding financial priorities, the District
is on track to build up reserves for a rainy day, continue reducing
debt and maintaining low rates and reliable service by keeping its
assets in good shape.

o The 9-percent electric rate surcharge imposed in May 2009
was extended through April 2011 and then again through
December 2011. As of January 2012, the electric rate
surcharge has been replaced with a 2.5-percent increase
from where rates stood in 2008. The average residential rate
for 2012, of 3.2 cents per kilowatt hour, remains among the
lowest in the nation.

e To reduce financial risk and decrease year-to-year revenue
volatility, the District also locked in predictable revenue
by selling slices of surplus hydropower in up to five-year
increments through a competitive bidding process.

Providing additional encouragement for 2012 is the end of the
long-term power sales contract at Rock Island Dam that expires in

I MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - cont.

June 2012, to be replaced by restructured contracts with Alcoa and
Puget Sound Energy that will run for nearly another 20 years. With
that change, continued cost-containment and average snowpack,
the District expects to end 2012 with a positive bottom line.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview

of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's
accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any
of the information provided in this report should be directed to the
District at P.O. Box 1231, Wenatchee, WA 98807.

Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County
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I BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(amounts in thousands)

ASSETS 2011 2010
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 55,968 $ 65,470
Investments 76,192 39,236
Accounts receivable, net 25,843 21,476
Accrued interest receivable 1,535 1,446
Materials and supplies 10,595 10,362
Prepayments and other 747 1,260
Current portion of deferred regulatory charges 3,508 -
174,388 139,250
RESTRICTED ASSETS - CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents 9,978 32,901
Investments 12,375 22,585
22,353 55,486
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 196,741 194,736
UTILITY PLANT
In service, at original cost 1,804,366 1,769,796
Construction work in progress 34,645 28,533
Less-accumulated depreciation (748,078) (703,021)
1,090,933 1,095,308
RESTRICTED ASSETS - NONCURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents 36,847 58,886
Investments 131,770 121,425
168,617 180,311
DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS
Deferred financing costs 7,391 10,499
Fish protection costs 856 1,776
Long-term receivables, net 1,772 3,323
Long-term investments 58,691 79,003
Deferred regulatory charges, net 40,978 23,296
Derivative instrument asset 7,375 3,948
Deferred outflow of resources- derivatives - 8,370
Other 6,290 5,856
118,353 136,071
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,574,644 $ 1,606,426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2011 2010
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long-term obligations $ 46,778 $ 35,401
Current portion of deferred wholesale power sales 6,703 -
Accounts payable 18,322 17,900
Accrued taxes 4,385 3,389
Accrued interest 11,935 16,585
Accrued vacation and other 11,855 11,428
99,978 84,703

LONG-TERM DEBT
Revenue bonds and notes payable, less current portion 912,037 992,219

OTHER LIABILITIES

Deferred wholesale power sales revenue, less current portion 113,061 111,941
Long-term contract customer deposit 18,500 -
Derivative instrument liability 21,012 31,664
Deferred inflow of resources - derivatives 7,375 3,948
Licensing obligation, less current portion 8,046 7,858
Regulatory liabilities 5,886 2,277
Other liabilities 681 476

174,561 158,164
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,186,576 1,235,086

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (see Note 13)

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 220,126 208,355
Restricted 110,692 106,766
Unrestricted 57,250 56,219
388,068 371,340
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,574,644 $ 1,606,426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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B STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(amounts in thousands)

2011 2010
OPERATING REVENUES
Retail sales $ 56,469 $ 54,256
Wholesale sales 179,363 160,042
Other operating revenues 2,711 2,057
238,543 216,355
OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power and water 14,731 23,193
Generation 67,542 69,613
Utility services 30,050 28,806
Taxes 7,403 6,284
Depreciation and amortization 48,468 49,025
Other operation and maintenance 8,898 6,566
177,092 183,487
OPERATING INCOME 61,451 32,868
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest on long-term debt (50,140) (55,520)
Amortization of deferred debt costs (1,186) (1,123)
Investment income 9,461 7,692
Federal subsidy income 630 630
Other (5,373) (1,058)
(46,608) (49,379)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 14,843 (16,511)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 1,885 3,456
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 16,728 (13,055)
TOTAL NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 371,340 384,395
TOTAL NET ASSETS
End of year $ 388,068 $ 371,340

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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B STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(amounts in thousands)

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 261,406 $ 213,975
Payments to suppliers (60,925) (64,826)
Payments to employees (66,003) (64,606)
Net cash provided by operating activities 134,478 84,543
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Additions to plant (44,463) (41,525)
Proceeds from sale of plant 463 81
Proceeds of new debt 362,660 -
Principal paid on debt (444,415) (31,999)
Interest paid on debt (39,736) (39,919)
Capital contributions 5,322 2,470
Other (27,108) 1,725
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (187,277) (109,167)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments (203,014) (195,557)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 194,078 184,611
Interest on investments 6,527 7,720
Long-term receivables 1,551 471
Other, net (807) 873
Net cash used in investing activities (1,665) (1,882)
NET DECREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (54,464) (26,506)
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 157,257 183,763
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 102,793 $ 157,257
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 61,451 $ 32,868
Depreciation and amortization 48,468 49,025
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable, net (4,367) (2,380)
Materials and supplies (233) (3)
Prepayments 513 2,580
Other (1,112) -
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,105 1,778
Accrued taxes 996 (301)
Accrued vacation and other 426 976
Deferred wholesale revenue 8,774 -
Long-term contract customer deposits 18,457 -
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 134,478 $ 84,543
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES
Construction costs included in accounts payable $ (683) $ 614
Capital contributions 116 2,538

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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I |\ otes to Basic Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity and Operations of the District
Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County, Washington
(the District) is a municipal corporation of the State of
Washington established in 1936. The District owns and
operates electric generation, electric and water distribution,
wastewater properties and a wholesale telecommunication
system. The District is governed by an elected five-

member Board of Commissioners (Commissioners). The
Commissioners’ responsibilities are to appoint the General
Manager, approve budgets for the District’s Systems and
set policies and guiding principles for the operations
included in these financial statements. The District has no
component units. The District’s operations consist of the
Rocky Reach Hydroelectric System, the Columbia River-Rock
Island Hydroelectric System, the Lake Chelan Hydroelectric
System (the Hydro Systems); a retail electric distribution
system, a water system, a wastewater system, a fiber-optic
telecommunication system (Utility Services); and some
infernal service systems.

Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the District
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP) applicable to a
municipal utility. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body

for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles.

GASB Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental
Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” requires

that governments’ proprietary activities apply all GASB
pronouncements as well as the pronouncements of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its
predecessors issued on or before November 30, 1989,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements. As allowed by GASB Statement No.
20, the District has elected not to implement FASB Statements
and Inferpretations issued after November 30, 1989.

In June 2010, GASB Issued Statement No. 59, “Financial
Instruments Omnibus.” Statement No. 59 updates and
improves existing standards regarding financial reporting
and disclosure requirements of certain financial instruments
and external investment pools for which significant issues
have been identified in practice. This statement was effective
for periods beginning after June 15, 2010. Implementation
of Statement No. 59 did not have a material impact on the
District’s financial results.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The District has used significant estimates in the
determination of fair value of derivatives, regulatory assets
and liabilities, depreciable lives of utility plant, license
obligations, unbilled revenues, self-insurance reserves,
incurred but not reported self-insurance liabilities, allowance
for uncollectible accounts receivable and payroll related
liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits at
commercial banks and investments with maturities of ninety
days or less when purchased.

Revenues and Expenses from Operations

Revenues of the District are recognized when earned and
are comprised of sales of power, sales of electric, water,
wastewater and wholesale telecommunication services

and sales of environmental attributes. The accompanying
financial statements include estimated unbilled revenues for
energy and wholesale telecommunication services delivered
to customers between the last billing date and the end of the
year. Estimated unbilled revenues amounted to $2.5 million
in 2011 and $2.6 million in 2010. The amounts are included
in accounts receivable.

Revenues from the Rocky Reach and Columbia River-Rock
Island hydroelectric production facilities represent sales of
power generated under firm “take-and-pay” power sales
contracts or sales directly to the retail electric distribution
system. Revenues under these contracts are cost-based,
including debt service costs. The long-term contract under
which the Rocky Reach System had sold its output for the last
50 years expired in October 2011, and the Columbia River-
Rock Island System’s current contract expires in June 2012.

In January 2006, the District entered into a 20-year power
sales contract with Puget Sound Energy (PSE) for 25% of the
output of the Rocky Reach and Columbia River-Rock Island
projects, starting in 2011 and 2012, respectively, when the
prior power sales contracts expire. PSE will generally be
responsible to pay 25% of costs associated with the projects,
including capital, operation and maintenance and debt
service costs. Under the terms of the contract, the District
received an advance payment of $89.0 million during 2006,
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which was deferred and will be recognized as revenue over
the term of the new contract.

In July 2008, the District entered into a 17-year power

sales contract with Alcoa for output equivalent to 27.5%

of the Rocky Reach project effective November 2011, and
26% of both Rocky Reach and Columbia River-Rock Island
projects, effective July 2012, when the prior power sales
contracts expire. Alcoa will generally be responsible to

pay 26% and 27.5% of costs associated with the projects,
including capital, operation and maintenance and debt
service costs beginning November 2011 and July 2012,
respectively. Under the terms of the contract, the District
received an advance payment of $22.9 million of an $89.0
million capacity reservation charge during 2008, which was
deferred and will be recognized as revenue over the term
of the new contract. The balance of the capacity reservation
charge will be deferred as long as the plant continues to
operate and waived if the plant continues to operate under
the terms of the contract for the entire contract term.

Revenues from the sale of environmental attributes
associated with a portion of the District’s hydroelectric and
wind generation are recorded as delivered and earned.

As of December 31, 2011, the District's share of power
produced by the Rocky Reach, Lake Chelan and Rock

Island Systems is sold to the retail electric distribution system
on a cost-of-service basis. The Rocky Reach, Lake Chelan
and Rock Island Systems sell 41.96%, 100% and 50%,
respectively, of their output to the retail electric distribution
system, which is in turn sold to retail customers or sold on the
wholesale market if in excess of the District's retail load.

Electric, water and wastewater customers and
telecommunication service providers are billed on a cyclical
basis under rates established by the District’s Commission.
Revenues from the sale of electric, water, wastewater and
telecommunication services are recorded as delivered and
earned.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010, the District had two significant customers (greater than
10% of operating revenues), Puget Sound Energy and Alcoq,
collectively comprising total revenue of $123.0 million and
$94.5 million, respectively.

The District accounts for expenses on an accrual basis.
Expenses for the costs of production from the Rocky Reach,
Columbia River-Rock Island and Lake Chelan hydroelectric
production facilities are recovered under firm power sales
contracts or sales directly to the retail electric distribution
system.
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In 2009, the District issued taxable Build America Bonds
(BABs) to finance capital projects that otherwise could be
financed with tax-exempt bonds as permitted under the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The
District receives periodic subsidy payments from the federal
government equal to 35 percent of the interest paid on the

BABs. The District recognized non-operating revenues of
$0.6 million in 2011 and in 2010.

Intradistrict revenues and expenses are eliminated in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Assets.

Regulatory Deferrals

The Commissioners have the authority to establish the level
of rates charged for all District services. As a regulated
entity, the District’s financial statements are prepared in
accordance with FASB ASC 980, “Regulated Operations”,
which requires that the effects of the rate-making process be
recorded in the financial statements. Accordingly, certain
expenses and credits, normally reflected in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets as incurred,
are recognized when included in rates and recovered

from, or refunded to, customers. The District records various
regulatory assets and credits to reflect rate-making actions of
the Commissioners. See Note 5.

Power Marketing

To balance the District’s anticipated power resources and
demand for those power resources, the District enters into
forward physical power sales agreements when resources
exceed expected demand and forward physical power
purchase agreements when expected demand exceeds the
resources estimated to be available.

To help manage risk and keep future rates stable and
affordable, the District has implemented a comprehensive
forward energy hedging strategy. A key component of this
strategy includes the execution of market based products
such as physical block transactions and slice output
contracts over a rolling forward horizon of up to 60 months
beyond the current year. The execution of this strategy
helps to mitigate the risks the District faces related to power
marketing while securing revenue for the future. Forward
physical block transactions are used to mitigate market price
risk the District faces related to its long or short positions.
The execution of slice output contracts, which provide a
counterparty a percentage share of hydropower production
for a fixed payment, also help mitigate price risk, as well
as volumetric risk related to river flows and production risk
related to the District’s ability to generate power.

All power risk management activities are subject to the
Power Risk Management Policy requirements and oversight
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by the District’s Power Risk Management Committee, which
monitors the District’s exposure to various power related risks
using a series of industry standard methodologies.

The Power Risk Management Policy includes credit
management provisions under which individual limits

are assigned fo counterparties based upon specific
predetermined criteria utilizing an industry standard credit-
scoring model. Active counterparties are reviewed on a
regular basis to evaluate whether the assigned limits need to
be adjusted. In addition, daily monitoring of financial and
market information is performed to identify any developing
counterparty credit risk. Transactions are limited accordingly
when deemed necessary. Credit exposure reports are
reviewed by the Power Risk Management Committee on a
weekly basis.

The District requires that a collateral annex be executed in
conjunction with any slice output contract. Currently, the
District is requiring that all posting requirements be met with
a Letter of Credit. For higher rated counterparties, the District
will accept Performance Assurance in the form of cash.

All of the District's forward power contracts are derivative
instruments. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the
District has reviewed its various contractual agreements and
concluded that all forward power contracts constitute normal
purchases and sales under GASB Statement No. 53 and as
such, are excluded from fair value reporting requirements.
All forward power contracts are recognized over the
duration of the contracts as a component of Operating
Revenues and Purchased Power Operating Expenses in

the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Assets.

Fish Protection Costs

Costs associated with projects for research and development
of fish protection measures are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. When successful fish protection
systems are developed and permanently installed at a
hydro project, all appropriate costs are capitalized to utility
plant and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

In accordance with power sales contracts, certain fish
protfection costs incurred prior to 1995 have been deferred
and are being amortized over a period of 5 to 20 years to
match the contractual revenues received.

Deferred Financing Costs

Costs associated with the issuance of bonds are amortized
to expense over the term of the related debt. Amortization
expense is calculated under the straight-line method or
effective interest method, depending on the maturity
schedule of the related bonds.
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Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable

A reserve is established for uncollectible accounts receivable
based upon actual historical write-off trends and knowledge
of specific circumstances that indicate collection of an
account may be unlikely. The allowance for uncollectible
accounts was $144,000 and $127,000 at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

Capital Contributions

A portion of the District's utility plant has been financed
through contributions from federal and state agencies and
from assessments of local property owners. The District
also records contributions from customers and developers,
primarily relating to the District’s Utility Services System, in
accordance with the District’s line extension policy. In-kind
contributions are recognized based on the donor’s actual
costs. Capital contributions are recorded as Non-Operating
Revenues in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets. For rate-making purposes, individual
contributions in excess of $1 million are deferred when
received and included in revenues to match the estimated
useful lives and amortized costs of the related facilities. See
Note 5.

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies consist of hydroelectric generation,
transmission, distribution, water and wastewater assets, and
fiber-optic cable and fiber-related supplies. Inventories are
valued at average cost.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the District accrue a personal leave benefit
based upon a years of service schedule. Personal leave
may be used for vacation and sick leave purposes. The
District records personal leave as an expense and a liability
as earned. Unused personal leave may be accumulated

up to a maximum of 1,350 hours for non-bargaining unit
personnel and 1,200 hours for bargaining unit employees.
Upon resignation, retirement or death, 90% of accumulated
personal leave is deposited into a personal Voluntary
Employees’ Beneficiary Association (VEBA) account. The
remaining 10% of accumulated personal leave is cashed out.

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Investments of the District are held by banks or trust
companies as the District's agent and in the District's name.
The remainder of the District's funds consists of uninvested
cash that is protected against loss by a combination of
federal depository insurance and being on deposit with
qualified public depositories of the Washington Public
Deposit Protection Commission (WPDPC).

Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County



Cash and investments are recorded in accounts as required As of December 31, the District's unrestricted, board
by the District’s bond indentures. Restricted assets represent  designated and restricted assets included on the Balance

accounts that are restricted by bond covenants or third Sheets as cash and cash equivalents, investments and long-
party contractual agreements. Accounts that are allocated term investments, consisted of the following:

by resolution of the Commissioners are considered to be

board designated accounts. Board designated accounts (amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

are a component of unrestricted assets as their use may be

redirected at any time by approval of the Commissioners. Unrestricted assets

. : Unrestricted $ 51,570 $ 21,787
Generol'lly,b\ivh;en both .:e.strtlhcteg.in.dtlunreT.trlct;ad resourtc(.ast ; Board designated 134,281 161,922
are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted - | ectricted assets 185.851 183.709
resources first as appropriate, then unrestricted resources as Restricted assets 190.970 235 794
they are needed. $ 376,821 $ 419,503

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the District had the following cash and investments:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

(amounts in thousands) Fair Value

Investment Type 2011 Less than 1 1-2 3-4 More than 4
U.S. Treasuries $ 45,056 $ 5,352 $ 13,561 $ 6,795 $ 19,348
U.S. Agency Notes 69,791 35,626 28,249 5,916 -
U.S. Agency Bills 19,033 19,033 - - -
Municipal Bonds 56,827 17,672 21,255 9,813 8,087
TLGP Bank Bonds 36,820 36,820 - - -
State Investment Pool 26,537 26,537 - - -
Financial Institution Deposits 51,978 43,978 4,000 4,000 -
Cash 70,779 70,779 - -

$ 376,821 $ 255,797 $ 67,065 $ 26,524 $ 27,435

Investment Maturities (in Years)

(amounts in thousands) Fair Value

Investment Type 2010 Less than 1 1-2 3-4 More than 4
U.S. Treasuries $ 27,113 $ 7,020 $ 5,407 $ 3,461 $ 11,225
U.S. Agency Notes 52,494 22,162 15,104 6,009 9,219
U.S. Agency Bills 27,009 27,009 - - -
Municipal Bonds 48,769 7,865 14,466 20,338 6,100
TLGP Bank Bonds 53,083 26,043 27,040 - -
State Investment Pool 58,827 58,827 - - -
Financial Institution Deposits 77,869 39,869 30,000 4,000 4,000
Cash 74,339 74,339 -

$ 419,503 $ 263,134 $ 92,017 $ 33,808 $ 30,544

U.S. Treasury bills, notes or bonds, U.S. Government agency  prices for those investments. It is generally the District's
securities, municipal bonds, TLGP bank bonds and bankers’  policy to hold investments to maturity.
acceptances that had a remaining maturity at the time of

purchase of greater than one year are recorded at fair Interest rate risk. The District’s investment policy limits
value. U.S. Treasury bills, notes or bonds, U.S. Government direct investments in securities to those with maturities of five
agency securities, municipal bonds, TLGP bank bonds, years or less, or as designated in specific bond resolutions,
bankers’ acceptances and commercial paper that had a with the exception of reserve funds which may be invested
remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year in securities exceeding five years if the maturity of such
or less are recorded at amortized cost. Non-negotiable investments is made fo coincide with the expected use
certificates of deposit are recorded at amortized cost. The of the funds. The District may collateralize its repurchase
fair value of investments recorded at amortized cost does not  agreements using longer dated investments. The District may
differ materially from the recorded value. also invest in variable rate securities with final maturities
beyond five years, as long as the time period between rate
The fair value of investments is based on quoted market changes is less than five years.
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Credit risk. The District pools a portion of each of the
Systems’ cash and investments. The District’s Treasurer
directs the investment of any temporary cash surplus in
accordance with the District’s investment policy and guided
by State of Washington statute. The Treasurer may invest
such surplus, depending on individual fund restrictions, in
one or more of the following investments in accordance
with the current District investment policy: 1) U.S. Treasury
bills, notes or bonds; 2) U.S. Government agency securities,
limited to 30% of the qualifying portfolio and no more
than 10% of the total assets invested with a single issuer;
3) repurchase agreements, which must be collateralized
with a third party at 102%, limited to $10 million with any
financial institution; 4) savings or time deposits, including
insured or collateralized certificates of deposit, with
institutions approved as qualified public depositories by
the WPDPC, amount held by each issuer limited to 15% for
certificates of deposit and 20% for savings and other deposit
accounts, of the District’s investment portfolio; 5) bankers’
acceptances with the highest short-term credit rating of any
two nationally recognized statistical ratings organizations
at the time of purchase, limited to no more than 30% of the
qualifying portfolio and no more than $5 million invested
in a single banker’s acceptance; 6) commercial paper
having received the highest short-term credit ratings of any
two nationally recognized statistical ratings organizations
at the time of purchase, limited to no more than 25% of

the qualifying portfolio and no more than 5% of the total
assets invested with a single issuer; 7) bonds of the State
of Washington or any local government in the State of
Washington, which bonds have, at the time of investment,
one of the three highest credit ratings of a nationally
recognized rating agency, limited to no more than 30% of
the qualifying portfolio and no more than 5% of the total
assets invested with a single issuer; 8) the State Investment
Pool, limited to no more than 15% of the qualifying portfolio;
9) general obligation bonds of a state other than the State
of Washington and general obligation bonds of a local
government of a state other than the State of Washington,
which bonds have, at the time of investment, one of the
three highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized
rating agency; 10) mutual funds having received one of
the four highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized
rating agency, and money market funds as authorized
under the laws of the State of Washington, limited to 10%
of the qualifying portfolio; 11) notes, bonds or debentures
that are insured or guaranteed by an agency of the federal
government limited to no more than 30% of the qualifying
portfolio and no more than 10% of the total assets invested
with a single issuer; 12) and any other investment permitted
under the laws of the State of Washington.
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As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, investments in debt
securities had credit quality ratings as follows:

(amounts in thousands)

Investment Rating (S&P) 2011 2010

Long Term

AAA $ 18,582 $ 64,244

AA+ 53,211 16,591

AA 327 5,462

AA- 16,715 14,751

A+ 4,812 -

Short Term

SP-1+ - 804
$ 93,647 $ 101,852

Concentration of credit risk. The District’s investment
policy requires that investments are diversified by security
type and institution. Investments in an individual issuer of
commercial paper or bankers’ acceptances are limited to
no more than 5% of the District’s total investment portfolio.
The aggregate amount of savings, demand deposits and
certificates of deposit are limited to 75% of portfolio and
20% per institution.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 5% or more of the
District’s total investment portfolio was invested with each of
the following issuers:

Percentage
S&P of Portfolio
Credit
Issuer Rating 2011 2010
Federal National Mortgage
Association AA+ 8% 6%
Federal Home Loan Bank AA+ 7% 2%
CitiBank NA — FDIC Insured AA+ 1% 5%
Federal Farm Credit Bureau AA+ 6% 7%

Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County



Derivative Instruments - Forward Purchase Agreements

Objective and Terms. As a tool to achieve a fixed rate

of return on certain District bond reserves, the District has
entered into a forward purchase agreement for the purchase
of investment securities. Under the terms of the agreement, the
provider must tender qualified securities with maturities of six
months or less to the District on the semi-annual debt service
dates at a price that produces at least the guaranteed rate of
return under the agreement.

The terms, including the counterparty credit ratings of the
outstanding forward purchase agreement, as of December 31,
2011, are provided below.

Forward Purchase Agreements

Credit Rating by Guaranteed Notional Effective 12/3111 12/31/10
Counterparty Moody’s/S&P/Fitch Yield Amount Date Maturity Fair Value Fair Value
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. AaB/AA-/AA- 6.630% $ 18,820,179 12/21/1999 6/1/2029 $ 7,374,771 $ 3,846,121

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the agreement is
considered a hedging derivative instrument and the fair value
is recorded on the Balance Sheet as a Deferred Inflow of
Resources.

Fair value. Due to declining interest rates, the forward
purchase agreement had a positive fair value to the District
as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. The fair value takes into
consideration the prevailing investment rate environment and
the specific terms and conditions of the transaction. The fair
value was estimated using the par value method.

Credit risk. The District is exposed to credit risk in the amount
of the positive fair value of the forward purchase agreement.
The credit ratings of the counterparty are noted in the table
above.

Interest rate risk. The District is exposed to inferest rate
risk if the counterparty to the forward purchase agreement
defaults or if the agreement is terminated.

Termination risk. The District or the counterparty may
terminate a forward purchase agreement if the other party
fails to perform under the terms of the respective contracts. If
at the time of termination the agreement has a negative fair
value, the District would be liable to the counterparty for a
payment equal to the agreement’s fair value.
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NOTE 3: UTILITY PLANT

Utility plant is stated at original cost, which includes both
direct and indirect costs of construction or acquisition,
including an allowance for funds used during construction
(AFUDC) for major non-hydro system projects. The

District charges the cost of repairs and minor renewals

to maintenance expense and the cost of renewals and
replacement of property units that meet the District's
capitalization threshold to utility plant. The cost, less net
salvage, of property units retired is charged to accumulated
depreciation. The District’s capitalization threshold is

I N otes to Basic Financial Statements - cont.

$5,000. As the District constructs various major projects,
costs accumulate in construction work in progress and are
capitalized to utility plant after the projects have been
completed and placed into service.

Provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method by applying rates based upon the estimated service
lives of the related plant, ranging from 5 to 90 years.

A summary of utility plant in service for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(amounts in thousands) January 1, 2011 Additions Reductions December 31, 2011
Hydroelectric generation $ 1,149,509 3 20,904 $ (2,863) $ 1,167,550
Transmission 111,961 5,978 (147) 117,792
Distribution 204,625 4,251 (535) 208,341
General plant 117,963 2,600 (305) 120,258
Intangible 32,805 686 - 33,491
Telecommunications 82,486 3,629 - 86,115
Water/Wastewater 70,447 372 - 70,819
1,769,796 38,420 (3,850) 1,804,366

Construction work in progress 28,533 42,917 (36,805) 34,645
Accumulated depreciation (703,021) (47,551) 2,494 (748,078)
$ 1,095,308 $ 33,786 $ (38,161) $ 1,090,933

(amounts in thousands) January 1, 2010 Additions Reductions December 31, 2010
Hydroelectric generation $ 1,121,732 $ 31,170 $ (3,393) $ 1,149,509
Transmission 108,208 3,956 (203) 111,961
Distribution 199,608 5,510 (493) 204,625
General plant 116,308 1,655 - 117,963
Intangible 32,296 509 - 32,805
Telecommunications 79,567 2,919 - 82,486
Water/Wastewater 65,084 5,466 (103) 70,447
1,722,803 51,185 (4,192) 1,769,796

Construction work in progress 33,214 43,129 (47,810) 28,533
Accumulated depreciation (659,499) (47,623) 4,101 (703,021)
$ 1,096,518 $ 46,691 $ (47,901) $ 1,095,308

Plant assets include land of $71.4 million and $71.4 million
as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 4: LICENSING

The Lake Chelan, Rocky Reach and Rock Island hydroelectric
projects are licensed under the Federal Power Act of 1920
and subsequent amendments. The District received a 50-
year license for the Lake Chelan Project in November

2006 and a 43-year license for the Rocky Reach Project in
February 2009 and is implementing license measures for
both projects. The Rock Island Project license was issued in
January 1989 and expires in December 2028. The costs

associated with licensing the projects have been included
in the District’s Utility Plant balance as Intangible Assets and
are being amortized over the lives of the associated licenses.

The Rock Island Project license contains various operational
requirements and environmental protections. Primary
measures include continuation of maintenance and
operation of the Wenatchee Confluence, Kirby Billingsley
Hydro, Wenatchee Riverwalk and Walla Walla parks. As
also required in the license, the District manages cultural,
shoreline, recreation and wildlife resources. All costs
associated with the ongoing fulfillment of these Rock Island
license measures are recognized in the year incurred.

Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County



The 50-year license for the Lake Chelan Project was issued
by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) in
November 2006. The license requires detailed management
plans for fish, operations, wildlife and recreation resources.
In accordance with the FERC approved fish plan, the District
constructed three major capital projects, a low-level outlet
structure at the dam, a pump station adjacent fo the Lake
Chelan Project tailrace and four acres of fish spawning
habitat in the lower Chelan River and Project tailrace. These
projects were successfully completed in October 2009, and
spawning and rearing monitoring studies were completed
during 2010. In accordance with the approved Recreation
Plan, the District completed construction of a trail link
between the newly constructed Reach 1 Trail and Riverwalk
Loop Trail located in Chelan. Additionally, the third-year
study on whitewater boating was conducted during 2011.
The Lake Chelan Project settlement agreement and license
contains some measures that will be carried out by various
agencies using funds provided by the District. The present
value of these accrued funding obligations was $9.6 million
and $9.3 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

A summary of accrued licensing obligations, accounted for
as intangible assets, for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 are as follows:

(amounts in thousands) 2011 2010
Licensing obligation -

beginning of year $ 9,287 $ 9,183
Additions 686 509
Reductions (369) (405)
Licensing obligation -

end of year $ 9,604 $ 9,287

In February 2009, the District received a 43-year FERC
license to continue operating the Rocky Reach Hydroelectric
Project. The license is based on a seftlement agreement
submitted to FERC in March 2006, between the District and
stakeholders, including local communities, state and federal
agencies, Tribes and environmental groups.

The Washington State Department of Ecology issued its final
water quality certification for the Rocky Reach Project in
March 2006. The issuance of this water quality certification
was not appealed. In August 2006, the FERC issued a final
environmental impact statement (“FEIS”) for the Rocky Reach
Project. In July 2007, National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (“NOAA") issued its Biological Opinion for
the Rocky Reach Project evaluating how the new license
may affect listed species in the area - specifically, salmon
and steelhead and endorsed continuation of the Habitat
Conservation Plan (HCP). In December 2008, U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service filed its Biological Opinion for the Rocky
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Reach Project concluding that the Project is not likely to
jeopardize the continued existence of bull trout or destroy or
adversely modify designated critical habitat. The U.S. Fish
and Wildlife Biological Opinion provided conditions through
an incidental take statement and requires five reasonable
and prudent measures be implemented to minimize the
incidental take of bull trout.

The Rocky Reach Project license contains various operational
requirements and environmental protections. Primary
measures include continuation of the HCP for salmon and
steelhead, measures fo protect and enhance white sturgeon,
bull trout and pacific lamprey, upgrades to Entiat, Daroga
and Lincoln Rock parks and new trails. As also required in
the license, the District finalized detailed management plans
for operations, recreation and wildlife resources. These plans
are now being implemented. Future costs of implementing
the license requirements cannot be reasonably estimated;
therefore, no obligation has been recorded and all related
costs are recognized in the year incurred.

NOTE 5: REGULATORY DEFERRALS

The Commission has taken various regulatory actions that
result in differences between recognition of revenues and
expenses for rate-making purposes and their treatment
under generally accepted accounting principles for non-
regulated entities. These actions result in regulatory assets
and liabilities, which are summarized below. Changes to
the balances, and their inclusion in rates, occur only at the
direction of the Commission.

Investment Derivative Instruments. The District has
entered into various derivative instrument contracts (interest
rate swaps and forward purchase agreements) that are
subject to the fair value reporting requirements of GASB
Statement No. 53. The fair value of these contracts is
recorded on the balance sheet. A number of these are
considered investment derivative instruments, and as such
any change in fair value would normally be reflected in Net
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets for the period. Derivative
instruments are reflected in rates as cash settlements occur
in accordance with the terms of the contracts; therefore, the
Commission has approved resolutions that allow the change
in fair value during the period to be deferred and recorded
as regulatory assets and/or liabilities, which have no impact
on operating results.

Swap Termination Payments. The District terminated
three inferest rate swap agreements during 2011, incurring
swap termination fees in the amount of $24.6 million. The
termination fees, along with $0.2 million of unamortized
costs related to the swap transactions, would normally be
reflected as a non-operating expense in 2011; however,
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the Commission has approved a resolution allowing for these large non-exchange transactions and align the District's
deferral of the termination fees and related swap costs as recognition of these credits with the periods in which the

a regulatory asset to be amortized over a period of up to amounts will be reflected for rate-making purposes.

15 years to match the expense with the period in which the

payments will be recovered through rates. The following regulatory balances are as of December 31,

2011 and 2010.

Conservation Expenses. The District’s conservation plans

include a significant increase in program expenditures to (amounts in thousands) 2011 2010

support compliance with the Energy Independence Act.

The District defers conservation expenditures as incurred Regulatory Assets:

and amortizes them over the estimated benefit period. Investment derivative

The Commission has approved resolutions that require this instruments $ 21,012 $ 23,294
. . . . Swap termination

treatment in order to match the expense with the periods in bayments 0 358 i

which the benefit is received and will be reflected in rates. Conservation Expenses 1115

$ 44,485 $ 23,294

Contributed Capital. Individual contributions exceeding $1

million are deferred as regulatory liabilities and amortized Regulatory Liabilities:
over the life of the related contributed depreciable plant Contributed Capital $ 5886 $ 2,277
assets. The Commission has approved resolutions that
require this treatment in order to offset the earnings effect of

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT

Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable

(amounts in thousands) January 1, December 31, Due Within
2011 Additions Reductions 2011 One Year

Rocky Reach Revenue Bonds,

3% to 5%, due July 1, 2012,

to July 1, 2034

(net unamortized premiums of $505) $ 21,620 $ 9 $ (1,738) $ 19,891 $ 1,720

Rock Island Revenue Bonds,

3% to 6.05%, due June 1, 2012,

to July 1, 2034

(net unamortized premiums of $106) 272,156 15,416 (22,940) 264,632 20,015

Notes Payable, 0.5% to 5.25%,
due July 1, 2012, to October 1, 2027
(net unamortized premiums of $1,483) 93,537 1,180 (1,551) 93,166 676

Chelan Hydro Consolidated

System Revenue Bonds, 5% to 5.14%,

due July 1, 2012, to January 1, 2015

(net unamortized premiums of $3) 441,789 4,463 (405,010) 41,242 1,250

Consolidated System Revenue Bonds,

0.52% t0 6.897%, due July 1, 2012,

to July 1, 2042 (net unamortized

premiums of $15,578) 197,090 363,357 (22,120) 538,327 21,560
$ 1,026,192 $ 384,425 $ (453,359) $ 957,258 $ 45,221
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Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable

(amounts in thousands) January 1,

2010

Additions

Due Within
One Year

December 31,

Reductions 2010

Rocky Reach Revenue Bonds,

3% to 5%, due July 1, 2011,

to July 1, 2034 (net unamortized

premiums of $588) $ 23,261 $
Rock Island Revenue Bonds,
3% to 6.05%, due June 1, 2011,
to July 1, 2034 (net unamortized
premiums of $136) 279,290
Notes Payable, 0.5% to 5.25%,

due July 1, 2011, to October 1, 2027
(net unamortized premiums of $2,240) 94,888
Chelan Hydro Consolidated

System Revenue Bonds, 4% to 6.05%,
due June 1, 2011, to January 1, 2039
(net unamortized discounts of $1,252,
unamortized premiums of $1,338) 444,308
Consolidated System Revenue Bonds,

3.5% to 6.897%, due July 1, 2011,

to July 1, 2042 (net unamortized

discounts of $347, unamortized

premiums of $544) 199,285

15,633

13 $  (1,654) $ 21,620 $ 1,655

(22,767) 272,156 22,910

144 (1,495) 93,537 733

891 (3,410) 441,789 5,605

782 (2,977) 197,090 3,070

$ 1,041,032 $

17,463 $

(32,303)  $ 1,026,192 $ 33,973

In June 2011, the District issued $179.7 million of
subordinate Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, Refunding
Series 2011AB (AMT). The 2011A and 2011B bonds in the
amount of $107.5 million and $72.2 million, respectively,
were issued as fixed rate bonds with interest rates ranging
from 2% to 5.5% and annual maturities between July 1,
2012, and July 1, 2026. The proceeds, together with other
available funds, were used to refund various debt issues

to obtain an economic gain (the difference between the
present values of the old and new debt service payments) in
excess of $54 million, excluding related swap termination
payments. In conjunction with the refinancing, a forward
starting swap entered into in 2006 with an effective start
date June 1, 2011, was terminated.

2011 AnnwalReport _________________________________________JER]

In November 2011, the District issued $164.4 million of
subordinate Consolidated System Revenue Bonds, Refunding
Series 2011C. The 2011C bonds were issued as fixed-rate,
taxable bonds with interest rates ranging from 0.52% to
4.253% and annual maturities between July 1, 2012, and
July 1, 2026. The proceeds, together with other available
funds, were used to refund various debt issues to obtain an
economic gain in excess of $31 million.

The difference between the reacquisition price and the

net carrying amount of the old debt is reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a deduction from
bonds payable and is being amortized over the shorter of
the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt.
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A summary of scheduled debt service requirements to
maturity is as follows:

Principal and Interest
(amounts in thousands)

Estimated

Principal Interest Debt Service

2012 $ 45,221 $ 25412 % 70,633
2013 94,416 26,819 121,235
2014 112,196 23,579 135,775
2015 72,006 19,427 91,433
2016 42,076 17,358 59,434
2017-2021 288,473 71,476 359,949
2022-2026 288,778 37,970 326,748
2027-2031 112,290 11,893 124,183
2032-2036 65,385 6,488 71,873
2037-2041 7,240 2,513 9,753
2042-2046 8,370 385 8,755
Total $ 1,136,451 $ 243,320 $ 1,379,771

Estimated principal retirements are based on the assumption
that all bonds are called or purchased at par. Principal
retirements of $1.1 billion also include $151 million of future
appreciation on Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABs).

The subordinate Consolidated System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2008B, in the outstanding amount of $89.9 million
at December 31, 2011, were issued as variable rate bonds
and have a reset of interest rates every seven days. In
conjunction with the 2008B bonds, the District entered into
a standby bond purchase agreement (the “Credit Facility”)
with US Bank National Association (the “Bank”). The Credit
Facility requires the Bank to provide funds, subject to the
satisfaction of certain conditions precedent, for the purchase
of the 2008B bonds that have been tendered or deemed
tendered and not remarketed. As of December 31, 2011, the
Bank does not hold any un-remarketed 2008B bonds. The
District pays the Bank a commitment fee of 15 basis points
as prescribed in the Credit Facility. If any 2008B bonds

are purchased and held by the Bank, the bonds will bear
interest at a fluctuating annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 200
basis points multiplied by a factor as specified by the Credit
Facility. In addition, any 2008B bonds purchased and held
under the Credit Facility are subject to special mandatory
redemption over a five-year period in ten equal semi-annual
principal installments. The Credit Facility will expire on the
later of March 7, 2013, or the last day of any extension of
such date pursuant to the Credit Facility.

The District has covenanted in bond resolutions that it

will establish, maintain and collect rates and charges for
electric power and energy and other services, facilities
and commodities sold, furnished or supplied through the
facilities of the Chelan Hydro Consolidated System, which
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shall provide Distribution Division and other non-hydro
systems net receipts, less the Distribution Division Senior Debt
Service Requirement, in each fiscal year equal to at least

(a) 100% of annual debt service in such fiscal year on the
Distribution Division bonds then outstanding and (b) together
with available funds with respect to the Distribution Division
bonds, 115% of annual debt service in such fiscal year on the
Distribution Division bonds then outstanding and net receipts,
together with available funds, less the Senior Debt Service
Requirement, in each fiscal year equal to at least (i) 100%

of Annual Debt Service in such fiscal year on all bonds then
outstanding, plus (i) 15% of the interest coming due in such
fiscal year on all bonds then outstanding.

The senior Chelan Hydro Consolidated System lien is now
closed and the District has covenanted in a subordinate
Consolidated System resolution that it will establish, maintain
and collect rates and charges for electrical power and
energy, water, wastewater, fiber-optic networks and other
services, facilities and commodities sold, furnished or supplied
by or through the Consolidated System adequate net revenues
sufficient to pay at least () 100% of annual debt service

in such fiscal year and (b) together with available funds,
125% of annual debit service in such fiscal year on both the
senior Chelan Hydro Consolidated System Bonds and the
subordinate Consolidated System Bonds.

The District also adopted a resolution subordinate to the
Consolidated System resolution, with the primary intent of
creating a third lien to allow for short-term notes to be issued
with a lien status subordinate to both the senior Chelan Hydro
Consolidated System Bonds and the subordinate Consolidated
System Bonds. The District has covenanted in this resolution

to fix, establish, maintain and collect rates and charges for
electric power and energy, water, wastewater, fiber-optic
networks and other services, facilities and commodities sold,
furnished or supplied by or through the Consolidated System,
adequate net revenues together with available funds sufficient
to pay 100% of total Consolidated System annual debt
service in such fiscal year.

The District has adopted two additional resolutions confirming
and continuing both the Rocky Reach Hydroelectric System
and the Rock Island Hydroelectric System. The District has
covenanted in these resolutions fo fix, establish, maintain and
collect rates and charges for electric power and energy, and
other services, facilities and commodities sold, furnished or
supplied by or through the Rocky Reach System and the Rock
Island System, adequate net revenues in each system sufficient
to pay 100% of annual debt service in such fiscal year.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the District was in
compliance with all debt covenants. In 2009, the District set
aside funds in an escrow account to cover obligated senior
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pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps. The District has
also entered into a pay-variable, receive-fixed interest rate
swap for the purpose of offsetting the JP Morgan swap that
became effective in June 2009, as the District determined it
was not financially attractive to issue the variable rate bonds
that the JP Morgan swap was intended to hedge.

Consolidated System debt-service payments related to the
non-hydro systems for 2009 and 2010. Setting aside the
funds in escrow effectively eliminated the District’s Coverage
requirement for these years as the principal and inferest
payments were made from the escrow account.

Derivative Instruments - Interest Rate Swaps

Terms. The terms, including the counterparty credit ratings
of the outstanding swaps, as of December 31, 2011, are
included below.

Obijective of the swaps. In order to protect against the
potential of rising interest rates associated with the issuance of
variable rate bonds, the District entered into forward starting

Swap Portfolio

Credit Rating by 12/31/11

Related Moody’s/S&P/  District District Notional Call  Effective 12/31/11 12/31/10
Bonds Counterparty Fitch Pays Receives Amount Option Date Maturity Fair Value Fair Value
Series  The Bank of Aaa/AA-/AA-  70% of 1.76% $ 30,355,000 No 7/22/2009 7/1/2014 $ 1,046,779 $ 827,771
2009AB New York Mellon LIBOR
Series  JP Morgan Aal/A+/AA- 4.031%  70% of 30,355,000 No 6/1/2009  7/1/2034 (12,343,888) (6,034,967)
2009AB Chase Bank, NA LIBOR
Series  Goldman Sachs Aa1/AAA/NR* 4.085%  70% of 28,815,000 No 5/30/2013 7/1/2032  (9,715,030) (3,297,940)
2013 Mitsui Marine LIBOR

Derivative

Products, LP
Total $ 89,525,000 $(21,012,139) $(8,505,136)
*Not rated

During 2011 and 2010, the net cash outflows related to the
swaps were $1.6 million and $3.9 million, respectively.

In August 2005, the District elected to enter into a 70% of
London Inter-bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) floating-to-fixed
inferest rate swap to hedge the anticipated issuance of
$93.8 million of variable rate Series 2007 Bonds in May of
2007. In May 2007, the 2007 swaps became effective with
the issuance of the 2007A Bonds. Those 2007A Bonds were
subsequently refinanced and are now the 2008B Bonds. In
April 2006, the District elected to enter into three additional
70% of LIBOR floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps to hedge
the anticipated issuance of $30.4 million of variable rate
bonds in 2009, $78.4 million of variable rate bonds in
2011 and $28.8 million of variable rate bonds in 2013. The
combination of variable rate bonds and floating-to-fixed
rate swaps creates synthetic fixed-rate debt for the District.
The transactions allowed the District to create synthetic fixed
rates on the bonds in advance of issuance, protecting the
District against potential increases in long-term interest rates.

In June 2009, the JP Morgan 2009 swap became effective.
The District had originally intended to issue variable rate
bonds in relation to the JP Morgan 2009 swap at the time

351

it was entered into in 2006. However, due to turmoil in the
financial markets and other related risks, issuing variable
rate bonds was financially unattractive. In July 2009, the
District issued its fixed-rate Series 2009AB Notes which were
used to purchase and hold the 2009AB Bonds in trust. The
Series 2009AB swaps are connected to the Series 2009AB
Bonds. Rather than terminating the JP Morgan 2009 swap,
an offsetting five-year fixed-to-floating rate 2009 swap
payment agreement was entered into with the Bank of New
York Mellon. Upon maturity of the 2009AB Notes and Bank
of New York Mellon 2009 swap, the District will determine
the best course of action in regards to the remaining term of
the original JP Morgan 2009 swap. Both 2009 swaps are
investment derivative instruments as they do not qualify for
hedge accounting. However, the transactions are included
in the District’s rates; therefore, any changes in fair value
are reported on the Balance Sheet as Regulatory Assets or
Regulatory Liabilities. See Note 5.

In March 2011, the District paid $4.9 million, including
accrued interest, to Bear Stearns Capital Markets, Inc and
$2.2 million, including accrued interest, to the Bank of New
York Mellon to terminate the Series 2008 swaps associated
with the 2008B Bonds. The termination payments were
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deferred as regulatory assets and will be amortized over the
period of time which the payments will be included in rates.
See Note 5.

In May 2011, the District paid $17.6 million to Goldman
Sachs Mitsui Marine Derivative Products, LP to terminate the
Series 2011 forward starting swap. The termination payment
was deferred as a regulatory asset and will be amortized
over the period of time which the payment will be included
in rates. See Note 5.

Due to continued turmoil in the financial markets and other
related risks, the District will evaluate if it will issue variable
rate bonds in 2013 as intended when the associated swap
was entered into. Therefore, the forward starting 2013
interest rate swap is considered an investment derivative
instrument. The change in fair value of the 2013 swaps is to
be recognized in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets as Investment Income; however, the
transaction is subject to regulatory accounting requirements,
therefore, any changes in fair value are reported on the
Balance Sheet as Regulatory Assets or Regulatory Liabilities.
See Note 5.

Fair values. Because interest rates have declined since the
execution dates, the swaps net fair values were negative to
the District as of both December 31, 2011 and 2010. The
fair values as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, are included
in the table on the previous page. The fair values take into
consideration the prevailing interest rate environment and
the specific terms and conditions of a given transaction. The
fair values were estimated using the zero-coupon discounting
method. This method calculates the future payments required
by the swaps, assuming the current forward rates implied by
the LIBOR swap yield curve are the market's best estimate

of future spot interest rates. These payments are then
discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield
curve for a hypothetical zero-coupon rate bond due on the
date of each future net settlement on the swaps.

Credit risk. The District is exposed to credit risk in the amount
of any net positive swap fair values. The District nets termination
values for swaps with the same counterparty when determining
credit risk exposure. As of December 31, 2011, the District had
net credit risk of $1.0 million related to the Bank of New York
Mellon on the Series 2009AB swap. The credit ratings of the
counterparties are noted in the table on the previous page.

The swap agreements contain collateral agreements with
the counterparties. The swaps require collateralization of
the positive fair value of the swap, inclusive of any call
option, in excess of the notional amount by $250,000 for
swaps with The Bank of New York Mellon as counterparty
and $100,000 for all others. For the District's swap
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counterparties, this requirement only applies to those that

do not have a credit rating within the two highest long-

term investment grade rating categories from at least two
nationally recognized rating agencies. As of December

31, 2011, no swap counterparties were required to post
collateral. For the District, no collateralization is required as
long as the District's Credit Support Providers (Swap Insurers)
maintain a financial strength rating from S&P that is at or
above “A-" and a claims paying ability rating from Moody's
that is at or above “A3”. In the event a Swap Insurer’s

rating drops below these levels and the District does not

find a substitute Credit Support Provider acceptable to the
counterparty, the District may be required to post collateral
if the District's long-term senior unsecured debt rating from
S&P’s and Moody’s drops below BBB+ or Baal, respectively.
As of December 31, 2011, the District's ratings were Aa2/
AA/AA+ from Moody's, S&P and Fitch Ratings, respectively.
The District's Swap Insurers' ratings as of December 31,
2011, were as follows:

Swap Insurers
Credit Rating

Related Credit Support by Moody’s/ Notional

Bonds Provider S&P/Fitch Amount

Series 2009  Assured Guaranty Aa3/AA-/NR* $ 30,355,000
Municipal Corp.

Series 2013  Assured Guaranty Aa3/AA-/NR* 28,815,000
Municipal Corp.

Total $ 59,170,000

*Not rated

Interest rate risk. The District is exposed to inferest rate risk
only if the counterparty to the swap defaults or if the swap is
terminated.

Basis risk. Basis risk is the risk that the interest rate paid by
the District on underlying variable rate bonds to bondholders
temporarily differs from the variable swap rate received

from the applicable counterparty. The District bears basis
risk on its swaps. The swaps have basis risk since the District
receives a percentage of LIBOR to offset the actual variable
bond rate the District pays on its bonds. The District is
exposed to basis risk if the floating rate that it receives on a
swap is less than the actual variable rate the District pays on
the bonds. Depending on the magnitude and duration of any
basis risk shortfall, the expected cost of the basis risk may
vary.

Tax risk. Tax risk is a specific type of basis risk. Tax risk
is a permanent mismatch between the interest rate paid on
the District’s underlying variable rate bonds and the rate
received on the swaps caused by a reduction or elimination
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in the benefits of the tax exemption for municipal bonds,

e.g. a tax cut that results in an increase in the ratio of tax-
exempt to taxable yields. The District is receiving 70% of
LIBOR (a taxable index) on the swaps and would experience
a shortfall relative to the rate paid on its bonds if marginal
income tax rates decrease relative to expected levels, thus
increasing the overall cost of its synthetic fixed rate debt.

Termination risk. The District or the counterparty may
terminate a swap if the other party fails to perform under
the terms of the respective contracts. If a swap is terminated,
the associated variable rate bonds would no longer be
hedged to a fixed rate. If at the time of termination the swap
has a negative fair value, the District would be liable to the
counterparty for a payment equal to the swap's fair value.

Other material terms. The District has the right to cancel
any outstanding swap at the prevailing market price for
swaps.

NOTE 7: PURCHASED POWER SUPPLY

A significant portion of the retail electric distribution system
power is purchased from the Hydro projects on a cost-
of-service basis, including debt service costs. However,

a portion of the power purchased from the Rocky Reach
project was on a cost-plus basis under new power sales
contract terms effective November 2011. Of the total
kilowatt-hours purchased by the retail electric distribution
system during 2011, approximately 55% was provided by
the Rocky Reach project, 29% by the Columbia River-Rock
Island project, 8% by the Lake Chelan project and 8% from
other sources.

A power sales contract with Alcoa for a 23% share of Rocky
Reach output was effective through October 2011. Under a
provision of the contract, during the operating period, the
District remarketed the Surplus Rocky Reach Replacement
Power (23% share of Rocky Reach output] that exceeded

the energy requirements at the Wenatchee Works aluminum
plant.

When Alcod’s energy requirements exceeded the Rocky
Reach Replacement Power, the District made available up
to 42 MW of additional firm energy, to the extent needed
for use at Wenatchee Works. Alcoa paid average industrial
rates for this power unless the average monthly load at
Wenatchee Works exceeded a threshold of 189.15 aMW.
Any portion of the additional 42 MW that was required to
meet loads in excess of the threshold was sold to Alcoa at
market price. The District purchased power at market prices
daily as required to meet any shortfalls in energy supply to
Wenatchee Works not met by the Rocky Reach Replacement
Power and the 42 MW of firm energy. Alcoa was
responsible for all costs and counterparty risks associated
with these market purchases.
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NOTE 8: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Pension Plan

Substantially all of the District's full-time and qualifying part-
time employees participate in one of the following statewide
retirement systems administered by the Washington State
Department of Retirement Systems, under cost-sharing,
multiple-employer public employee defined benefit retirement
plans. The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a
department within the primary government of the State of
Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive
annual financial report (CAFR) that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for

each plan. The DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to:
Department of Retirement Systems, Communications Unit,
P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380; or it may be
downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov. The
following disclosures are made pursuant to GASB Statements
No. 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Government Employers” and No. 50, “Pension Disclosures,
an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27"

All Information on the website is the responsibility of the
State of Washington. The District’s independent auditor
has not audited or examined such information, and does
not express an opinion or any other form of assurance with
respect thereto.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plans 1, 2
and 3

Plan Description

The Legislature established PERS in 1947. Membership

in the system includes: elected officials; state employees;
employees of the Supreme, Appeals and Superior courts
(other than judges currently in the Judicial Retirement
System); employees of legislative committees; community
and technical colleges, college and university employees
not participating in higher education retirement programs;
judges of district and municipal courts; and employees of
local governments. PERS retirement benefit provisions are
established in Chapters 41.34 and 41.40 RCW and may be
amended only by the State Legislature.

PERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement system
comprised of three separate plans for membership purposes.
Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans, and Plan 3 is a
defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component.

PERS members who joined the system by September 30,
1977, are Plan 1 members. Those who joined on or after
October 1, 1977, and by either, February 28, 2002, for
state and higher education employees, or August 31, 2002,
for local government employees, are Plan 2 members unless
they exercised an option to transfer their membership to
Plan 3. PERS members joining the system on or after March



138

1, 2002, for state and higher education employees, or
September 1, 2002, for local government employees have
the irrevocable option of choosing membership in either
PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must be exercised
within 90 days of employment. An employee is reported in
Plan 2 until a choice is made. Employees who fail to choose
within 90 days default to PERS Plan 3. Notwithstanding,
PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 members may opt out of plan
membership if terminally ill, with less than five years fo live.

PERS Plan 1 and Plan 2 defined benefit retirement benefits
are financed from a combination of investment earnings and
employer and employee contributions.

PERS Plan 1 members are vested after the completion of
five years of eligible service. Plan 1 members are eligible
for retirement after 30 years of service, or at the age of 60
with five years of service or at the age of 55 with 25 years
of service. The monthly benefit is two percent of the average
final compensation (AFC) per year of service. (AFC is the
monthly average of the 24 consecutive highest-paid service
credit months.) The retirement benefit may not exceed 60
percent of AFC. The monthly benefit is subject to a minimum
for PERS Plan 1 retirees who have 25 years of service and
have been retired 20 years or who have 20 years of service
and have been retired 25 years. Plan 1 members retiring
from inactive status prior to the age of 65 may receive
actuarially reduced benefits. If a survivor option is chosen,
the benefit is further reduced. A cost-of-living allowance
(COLA) is granted at age 66 based upon years of service
times the COLA amount. This benefit was eliminated by

the legislature, effective July 1, 2011. Plan 1 members may
elect to receive an optional COLA amount that provides an
automatic annual adjustment based on the Consumer Price
Index. The adjustment is capped at three percent annually.
To offset the cost of this annual adjustment, the benefit is
reduced.

PERS Plan 1 provides duty and non-duty disability benefits.
Duty disability retirement benefits for disablement prior to
the age of 60 consist of a temporary life annuity payable to
the age of 60. The allowance amount is $350 a month, or
two-thirds of the monthly AFC, whichever is less. The benefit
is reduced by any workers' compensation benefit and is
payable as long as the member remains disabled or until
the member attains the age of 60. A member with five years
of covered employment is eligible for non-duty disability
retirement. Prior fo the age of 55, the allowance amount is
two percent of the AFC for each year of service reduced

by two percent for each year that the member’s age is less
than 55. The total benefit is limited to 60 percent of the AFC
and is actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor
option. A cost-of living allowance was granted at age 66
based upon years of service times the COLA amount. This
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benefit was eliminated by the Legislature, effective July 1,
2011. Plan 1 members may elect to receive an optional
COLA that provides an automatic annual adjustment based
on the Consumer Price Index. The adjustment is capped

at three percent annually. To offset the cost of this annual
adjustment, the benefit is reduced.

PERS Plan 1 members can receive credit for military service.
Members can also purchase up to 24 months of service
credit lost because of an on-the-job injury.

PERS Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five
years of eligible service. Plan 2 members are eligible for
normal retirement at the age of 65 with five years of service.
The monthly benefit is two percent of the AFC per year of
service. (AFC is the monthly average of the 60 consecutive
highest-paid service months.)

PERS Plan 2 members who have at least 20 years of service

credit and are 55 years of age or older are eligible for early
retirement with a reduced benefit. The benefit is reduced by

an early retirement factor (ERF) that varies according to age,
for each year before age 65.

PERS Plan 2 members who have 30 or more years of service
and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of two
provisions:

+  With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each
year before age 65.

«  With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction
(depending on age) that imposes stricter return-to-work
rules.

PERS Plan 2 retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced
to reflect the choice, if made, of a survivor option. There

is no cap on years of service credit, and a cost-of-living
allowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index),
capped at three percent annually.

The surviving spouse or eligible child or children of a PERS
Plan 2 member who dies after leaving eligible employment
having earned ten years of service credit may request a
refund of the member’s accumulated contributions.

Plan 3 has a dual benefit structure. Employer contributions
finance a defined benefit component, and member
contributions finance a defined contribution component. The
defined benefit portion provides a monthly benefit that is one
percent of the AFC per year of service. (AFC is the monthly
average of the 60 consecutive highest-paid service months.)

Effective June 7, 2006, Plan 3 members are vested in
the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years
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of service; or after five years if 12 months of that service
are earned after age 44; or after five service credit years
earned in PERS Plan 2 prior to June 1, 2003. Plan 3
members are immediately vested in the defined contribution
portion of their plan.

Vested Plan 3 members are eligible for normal retirement
at age 65, or they may retire early with the following
conditions and benefits:

+ If they have at least ten service credit years and are 55
years old, the benefit is reduced by an ERF that varies
with age, for each year before age 65.

« Ifthey have at least 30 service credit years and are at
least 55 years old, they have the choice of a benefit that
is reduced by three percent for each year before age
65; or a benefit with a smaller (or no) reduction factor
(depending on age) that imposes stricter return-to-work
rules.

PERS Plan 3 defined benefit retirement benefits are also
actuarially reduced to reflect the choice, if made, of a
survivor option. There is no cap on years of service credit,
and Plan 3 provides the same cost-of-living allowance as
Plan 2.

PERS Plan 3 defined contribution retirement benefits are
solely dependent upon contributions and the results of
investment activities.

The defined contribution portion can be distributed in
accordance with an option selected by the member, either
as a lump sum or pursuant to other options authorized by the
Director of the Department of Retirement Systems.

PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 provide disability benefits. There is
no minimum amount of service credit required for eligibility.
The Plan 2 monthly benefit amount is two percent of the AFC
per year of service. For Plan 3, the monthly benefit amount is
one percent of the AFC per year of service.

These disability benefit amounts are actuarially reduced
for each year that the member’s age is less than 65, and
to reflect the choice of a survivor option. There is no cap
on years of service credit, and a cost-of-living allowance
is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index) capped at
three percent annually.

PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 members may have up to ten
years of interruptive military service credit; five years at
no cost and five years that may be purchased by paying
the required contributions. Effective July 24, 2005, a
member who becomes totally incapacitated for continued
employment while serving the uniformed services, or
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a surviving spouse or eligible children, may apply for
interruptive military service credit. Additionally, PERS Plan 2
and Plan 3 members can also purchase up to 24 months of
service credit lost because of an on-the-job injury.

PERS members may also purchase up to five years of
additional service credit once eligible for retirement. This
credit can only be purchased at the time of retirement and
can be used only to provide the member with a monthly
annuity that is paid in addition to the member’s retirement
benefit.

Beneficiaries of a PERS Plan 2 or Plan 3 member with ten
years of service who is killed in the course of employment
receive retirement benefits without actuarial reduction, if
the member was not at normal retirement age at death.
This provision applies to any member killed in the course of
employment, on or affer June 10, 2004, if found eligible by
the Department of Labor and Industries.

A one-time duty-related death benefit is provided to the
estate (or duly designated nominee) of a PERS member who
dies in the line of service as a result of injuries sustained in
the course of employment, or if the death resulted from an
occupational disease or infection that arose naturally and
proximately out of said member’s covered employment, if
found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries.

There are 1,197 participating employers in PERS. Membership
in PERS consisted of the following as of the latest actuarial
valuation date for the plans of June 30, 2010:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 76,899
Terminated plan members entitled to

but not yet receiving benefits 28,860
Active plan members vested 105,521
Active plan members nonvested 51,005
Total

262,285

Funding Policy

Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts
PERS Plan 1 employer contribution rates, PERS Plan 2
employer and employee contribution rates and PERS Plan

3 employer contribution rates. Employee contribution rates
for Plan 1 are established by statute at 6 percent for state
agencies and local government unit employees and at 7.5
percent for state government elected officials. The employer
and employee contribution rates for Plan 2 and the employer
contribution rate for Plan 3 are developed by the Office of
the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit
portion of Plan 3. All employers are required to contribute at
the level established by the Legislature. Under PERS Plan 3,
employer contributions finance the defined benefit portion

of the plan, and member contributions finance the defined
contribution portion. The Plan 3 employee contribution rates
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range from 5 percent to 15 percent, based on member
choice. Two of the options are graduated rates dependent
on the employee’s age. As a result of the implementation of
the Judicial Benefit Multiplier Program in January 2007, a
second tier of employer and employee rates was developed
to fund, along with investment earnings, the increased
retirement benefits of those justices and judges that
participate in the program.

The methods used to determine the contribution requirements
are established under state statute in accordance with
Chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW.

The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of
current-year covered payroll, as of December 31, 2011, were
as follows:

PERS Plan 1 PERS Plan 2 PERS Plan 3
Employer* 7.25%** 7.25%** 7.25%***
Employee 6.00%**** 4.64%**** ool

* The employer rates include the employer
administrative expense fee currently set at 0.16%.

** The employer rate for state elected officials is
10.80% for Plan 1 and 7.25% for Plan 2 and Plan 3.
***Plan 3 defined benefit portion only.

**** The employee rate for state elected officials

is 7.5% for Plan 1 and 4.64% for Plan 2.

***** Variable from 5.0% minimum to 15.0% maximum
based on rate selected by the PERS 3 member.

Both the District and the employees made the required
contributions. The District's required contributions for the
years ending December 31, were as follows:

PERS Plan 1 PERSPlan2 PERS Plan 3
2011 $ 77,606 $ 2,734,289 $ 549,967
2010 $ 69,075 $ 2,345456 $ 449,180
2009 $ 153,035 $ 2,951,314 § 562,500

Deferred Compensation Plans

The District offers its employees a deferred compensation
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457 (457 Plan). The 457 Plan, available to District
employees, permits employees to defer a portion of their
salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not
available to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency.

In accordance with the 457 Plan, the District has placed the
457 Plan assets into a separate trust for the exclusive benefit
of plan participants and beneficiaries. Accordingly, plan
assets and the corresponding liability are not included on
the District’s financial statements.

The District also offers its employees a 401(a) employer
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matching plan. The 401(a) is a qualified, tax deferred plan
that allows the District to match employee contributions
made to the 457 Plan. Under the 401(a) Plan, the District
will match each employee’s contribution to the 457 Plan at a
rate of 50% with a cap of 5% of an employee’s annual base
salary up to a maximum of $8,250 or up to a maximum of
$11,000 for employees age 50 years and over. The District's
401(a) Plan matching contributions for the years ending
December 31, 2011 and 2010, were $1.5 million and $1.4
million, respectively. Matching contribution rates are at the
District's discretion within the requirements of the current
bargaining unit agreement.

NOTE 9: POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS

Plan Description

The District administers a single-employer defined benefit
healthcare plan (“the retiree medical plan”). The plan
provides healthcare insurance until the age of 65 for
retirees and their spouses through the District’s group

health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired
members. The retiree medical plan does not issue a publicly
available financial report.

Funding Policy

The District's subsidy of the cost of 2011 and 2010 premiums
for eligible retired plan members and their spouses
amounted to $129,000 and $126,000, respectively. Plan
members receiving benefits contributed 72% of the premium
costs for years 2011 and 2010. For the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, total member contributions
were $330,000 and $323,000, respectively. Future
subsidies will be provided by the District at the 2007 level
adjusted for inflation, with plan members contributing the
remaining premium. Contribution rates may be adjusted at
the District's discretion.

Annual Other Postemployment Benefit Cost and Net
Obligation

The District’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
cost ([expense) is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that,
if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
cost each year. The District's OPEB plan was fully funded
as of both December 31, 2011, and December 31, 2010.
As a result, the District’s annual OPEB cost and net OPEB
obligation were zero as of both December 31, 2011, and
December 31, 2010.
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The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual
OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB
obligation for 2008 through 2011 were as follows:

Percentage
of Annual
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
12/31/11 $ - 0% $ -
12/31/10 - 0% -
12/31/09 (50,000) 0% -
12/31/08 50,000 0% 50,000

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the plan was fully
funded. The covered payroll (annual wages of active
employees covered by the plan) was $48.6 million and
$48.1 million for 2011 and 2010, respectively. The ratio of
the current ARC to the covered payroll was 0.0%.

Plan assets are held in an irrevocable trust by a third party
fiduciary. Accordingly, plan assets and the corresponding
liability are not included in the financial statements of the
District.

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing
plan involves estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events
far into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the

plan and annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented

as required supplementary information following the

notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets
is increasing or decreasing over time relative fo the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits. Actuarial valuations are as of
the last actuarial report dated January 1, 2011.
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Methods and Assumption

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by
the employer and plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of the valuation and the sharing
of benefit costs between the employer and plan members in
effect at the time of the valuation. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with
the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The following assumptions are integral to the actuarial
calculations:

Retirement age for active employees — Based on
assumptions used by Washington Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS).

Mortality - Life expectancies were based on the RP 2000
combined active/retiree healthy mortality table for males
and females, projected using 50% of Scale AA.

Inflation rate — An inflation rate of 2.3% was used for 2011
and thereafter. Inflation rates are based upon the Consumer
Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers

(CPIW).

Discount rate — The actuarial assumptions included a
7.0% investment rate of return based upon the investment
allocation policy of the trust.

NOTE 10: SEGMENT DISCLOSURE

The District has outstanding revenue bonds used to
finance the Rocky Reach and Columbia River-Rock Island
hydroelectric production facilities. Each project has an
external requirement to be accounted for separately, and
investors in the revenue bonds rely solely on the revenue
generated by the individual projects for repayment.
Summary financial information as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, for both projects is
presented on the following pages. Included in operating
revenues and expenses are intradistrict sales and rents which
are eliminated in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets.
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CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

Columbia Columbia
River- River-
Rocky Reach Rock Island Rocky Reach Rock Island
(amounts in thousands) 2011 2011 2010 2010
ASSETS
Current assets $ 12,256 $ 6,582 $ 7,397 $ 5,196
Restricted assets — current 609 16,910 5,557 13,708
Total current assets 12,865 23,492 12,954 18,904
Utility plant, net 355,655 326,937 372,085 316,599
Restricted assets — noncurrent 16,305 36,473 23,388 57,853
Deferred charges and other assets 5,158 15,002 5,727 13,999
Total assets $ 389,983 $ 401,904 $ 414,154 $ 407,355
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities $ 23,007 $ 37,337 $ 16,571 $ 33,504
Revenue bonds payable,
net of current portion 18,171 244,618 19,965 249,246
Intersystem loans
payable, net of current portion 237,465 166,786 264,255 181,682
Other liabilities 11,178 12,506 - 5,120
Total liabilities 289,821 461,247 300,791 469,552
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 349,231 75,049 366,594 73,821
Restricted 4,275 49,519 18,404 47,195
Unrestricted (253,344) (183,911) (271,635) (183,213)
Total net assets (deficit) 100,162 (59,343) 113,363 (62,197)
Total liabilities and net assets $ 389,983 $ 401,904 $ 414,154 $ 407,355

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Columbia Columbia
River- River-

Rocky Reach Rock Island Rocky Reach Rock Island
(amounts in thousands) 2011 2011 2010 2010
Operating revenues $ 77,541 $ 77,217 $ 75,278 $ 80,582
Less:
Operating expenses 40,558 36,675 40,777 40,321
Depreciation and amortization 16,968 10,577 17,477 10,744
Operating income 20,015 29,965 17,024 29,517
Other expense 16,869 27,128 17,617 26,636
Income (loss) before capital contributions
and interfund equity transfers 3,146 2,837 (593) 2,881
Capital contributions - 17 759 673
Interfund equity transfers (16,347) - - -
Change in net assets (deficit) (13,201) 2,854 166 3,554
Total net assets (deficit) — beginning of year 113,363 (62,197) 113,197 (65,751)
Total net assets (deficit) — end of year $ 100,162 $ (59,343) $ 113,363 $ (62,197)
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Columbia Columbia
River- River-
Rocky Reach Rock Island Rocky Reach Rock Island

(amounts in thousands) 2011 2011 2010 2010
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities $ 52,939 $ 39,963 $ 34,522 $ 40,013
Capital and related financing activities (53,701) (60,364) (35,927) (53,964)
Investing activities 1,194 (8,094) (3,243) 5,669
Net increase (decrease) 432 (28,495) (4,648) (8,282)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 8,650 39,367 13,298 47,649
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 9,082 $ 10,872 $ 8,650 $ 39,367

NOTE 11: SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES (unaudited)

The District has developed a fiber-optic network to provide
a backbone for the District’s utility communication use,

as well as infrastructure over which to provide wholesale
telecommunications services in accordance with the authority
granted to PUDs by state law. Private service providers
deliver services over the District's infrastructure, including
high-speed internet access, telephone and television to end-
users. These private firms set final end-user pricing and are
directly responsible for billing each end-user. The District
bills the service providers for wholesale telecommunications
services.

Following is a summary of the results of operations of the
District's fiber-optic activities, included in the accompanying
financial statements. Included in operating revenues

and expenses are intradistrict sales and rents which are
eliminated in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets.

(amounts in thousands) 2011 2010
Operating revenues

Wholesale fiber services $ 4,541 $ 4,109
Fiber leasing 505 487
Intradistrict revenues 1,937 1,984
Total operating revenues 6,983 6,580
Operating expenses

Administrative and general 1,637 1,522
Repairs and maintenance 1,115 1,043
Other operating 2,613 1,400
Depreciation expense 5,545 5,170
Total operating expense 10,910 9,135
Operating loss (3,927) (2,555)
Other expenses 4,882 4,856
Net loss before

capital contributions (8,809) (7,411)
Capital contributions 21 5
Interfund equity transfers 337 94
Change in net assets $ (8,451) $ (7,312)
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Following is a summary of the District’s fiber-optic balance sheets
as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

(amounts in thousands) 2011 2010
ASSETS

Current assets $ 3,350 $ 3,108
Utility plant, net

and other assets 57,365 60,888
Total assets $ 60,715 $ 63,996
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities $ 523 $ 3,231
Intersystem loans 98,978 91,100
Total liabilities 99,501 94,331
Net assets (deficit)* (38,786) (30,335)
Total liabilities and net assets $ 60,715 $ 63,996

*Includes $18 million interfund equity transfer in 2007.

The District’s capital investment in telecommunications plant
and equipment for 2011 and 2010 was $2.1 million and
$4.3 million, respectively. The District's cumulative capital
investment in telecommunications plant and equipment

as of December 31, 2011, was $87.9 million. The capital
investment, as well as cumulative net losses, has been
funded by intersystem loans and an interfund equity transfer.

NOTE 12: SELF-INSURANCE

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors

or omissions; workers compensation; and health care of

its employees. The District has elected to cover these risks
primarily through self-insurance programs. Secondarily, the
District has purchased commercial excess liability insurance
for claims beyond the deductible amounts. The accrual and
payment of claims for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010, is summarized in the following table for each
insurance program:
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Property Workers Medical &

& Liability Compensation Health Dental
Claims Liability as of January 1, 2011 $ - $ 151,000 $ 1,050,000 $ 132,426
Claims accrued 318,366 729,109 8,470,539 946,825
Claims paid (318,366) (671,109) (8,250,539) (936,793)
Claims Liability as of December 31, 2011 $ - $ 209,000 $ 1,270,000 $ 142,458
Commercial Insurance Deductible Up to

$2,000,000

depending on $500,000
line of coverage per incident N/A N/A

Funds Held Including Reserves $ 1,500,000 $ 1,100,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 75,000

Property Workers Medical &

& Liability Compensation Health Dental
Claims Liability as of January 1, 2010 $ 135,000 $ 97,000 $ 1,364,899 $ 142,815
Claims accrued 16,982 547,